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*Mr. Vinod Kumar Mittal (DIN:07421742), resigned from the post of Independent Director of the company w.e.f. December 21, 2020
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WHEN

EXPERIENCE

MEETS

EXPERTISE,
THENATION

REAPS

THEBENEFIT

Agriculture is one of the
oldest and most significant
pillars of the human
civilisation. Unlike any
other sector, it constantly
adapts and aligns
according to our needs to
sustain us, while giving us
several avenues to tap its

unlimited potential.

Farmers know what is best for
their crops. Their priceless
experience is something

we cannot find from years of
research. But what we can do is use
our expertise and work towards
developing products that enhance
their overall experience to increase
their productivity and financial

security. Because, when the farmers

grow, the nation grows too.




At IIL, we strive to make farmers'

lives better by developing
products that are safe,
environment-friendly, affordable
and effective. Qur R&D team
understands their concerns and
the land’'s topography to do an
extensive research and come up
with products tailored to their
needs. Ourinitiative ‘Farmers
Contact Programme’ helps us to
reach out to them directly and

help them out with their various

concerns about crop protection.

The mutual trust ensures that
we receive honest feedback
about our products so that we
can work towards improving
them. This healthy to and fro
communication helps us forge a
stronger bond that is more than
just an alliance.

With our CSR initiatives like
‘Insecticides Jaroori Hai’and

insecticides
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‘Kisaan Jagrukta Abhiyan’, we
help them understand the
importance of employing new
farming techniques so that they
can reap innumerable benefits.
We also promote and introduce
the latest technologies that help
them optimize their work. From
sowing to harvesting, we work
with them at every step to
ensure that they don't fall short
of anything.
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Growth in any time is remarkable, but
growth in a time of crisis is extraordinary.
Due to the sudden outbreak of Covid-19
pandemic, the world came to a standstill,
but it could not dampen our farmers'
spirits. Their relentless hard work is a
reflection of the remarkable growth of
industry and its positive contribution to the
nation’s GDP (Gross Domestic Product) and
GVA(Gross Value Added).

Last year, the agriculture
sector’'s share in the GDP was
17.8%, but this year, it
increased to to a whopping
19.9%. Moreover, our nation

hadn’t withessed this kind of

phenomenal growth since
the FY 2003-04.

Agriculture sector was also the only one
that grew by 3.4 % growth while the entire

economy contracted by 7.2%.

The tangible outcome of this unexpected
growth was seen as continuous supply of

food to everyone.

These victories were a result of planned
farming, government’s support to
agriculture industry and favourable
environmental factors like early monsoon
and judicial use of agrochemicals.

(INDIA) LIMITED

Rice sowing covered 68.1lakh
hectares this year as
compared to last year's 49.2
lakh hectares while oilseeds
grew more than 3 times to
109.2 lakh hectares from last
year’s 33.6 lakh hectares.
Pulses covered 36.8 lakh
hectares, i.e. 4 times more
than last year’'s 9.5 lakh
hectares while coarse cereals
coverage doubled to 70.7 lakh
hectares.

Due to early monsoons, we witnessed a
remarkable increase in the sowing of Kharif
crops. With proper irrigation techniques
and use of good agri-inputs, one can hope
for an excellent crop yield. Moreover,
devising and implementing a good
irrigation technique will also help one save

water for the next season.

We are using our expertise to help our
farmers understand the benefits of
judicious use of agrochemicals.
Government, associations as well as
companies are working with the farmers to

ensure the same.

Companies are striving hard to come up
with products that are tailored to enhance
their farming experience and give better
yield.

Agriculture sector’s victories during these
bleak times have been our silver lining in
FY2021. Our focus is to work together to
keep up with this pace and help them grow
and prosper in the following years too.
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CHAIRMAN'S OVERVIEW

EXPERIENCE
& EXPERTISE

KEY TO SURVIVING

ANY ADVERSITY

Dear Shareholders,

Your company, Insecticides
(India) Limited aims at bringing
the best crop protection
solutions within the reach of
every small and marginal
farmer since its inception.
Betteryield ensures
agricultural growth which
brings financial security to
farmers and stability to other
sectors and eventually to our
nation.

Growth in Agriculture Sector

Indian agriculture is
responsible for the livelihoods
of more than half of the
population. Both public and
private sectors have taken
multiple initiatives towards
improving agricultural inputs
with technological
interventions and knowledge
management systems.
Agriculture production has also
grown from last year, whichis a
silver lining during such dark
times.

Augmenting Ourselves

Your company continues to
invest inits resources to
ensure quality products and
services. The brown field
expansions in our plants
enhanced our production
capacities & capabilities. We
also began operations at the
new Export Oriented Unit in
SEZ (Special Economic Zone),
Gujarat last year. Our R&D wing
continues to putin their heart
and soul to come out with new
technologies.

We are harnessing the power of
social media to engage with
wider audience. Our virtual
initiatives aided in business
continuity, thus resulting in
minimal supply chain
disruptions.

The growth story

FY2021was a challenging year.
It started with the
unprecedented outbreak of
Covid-19 adversely impacting
economy and people across the

world. The domestic
agrochemical industry was also
affected as lockdowns curbed
the operations to a certain
extent. Industry faced
challengesin terms of raw
material and packaging
material availability as well.
With on-ground sales and
logistics constraints also
creating pressure on the
businesses, it was a difficult
time. However, India's
agriculture system
demonstrated its resilience
amidst such adversitiesand in a
short span of time, its output
performance began to improve.
IIL also strived hard to continue
on the path of growth despite
all odds.



BONDING
WITH

FARMERS

Ensuring farmers'
holistic welfare is the
foundation of our
alliance with the them.
The pandemic might
have robbed us off of
many things, but it could
not take away one thing
from us, i.e., our spirit of
working with and for the
farmers. Our team stays
constantly in touch to
understand their
challenges and discuss
ways of overcoming
them in an efficient,
cost-effective and
accessible manner. Our
nation's years of
scientific research,
farmers' valuable
experience and our
expertise in the field
helps us devise

innovative solutions.

In the year 2020-21, Revenue from
Operations of your company stood at
Rs. 1,420 crores, marking a growth of
4.2% from last year, EBITDA and Net
Profit stood at Rs. 152 crores and Rs. 93
crores respectively. Total dividend of
Rs. 2 persharei.e., 20% on face value,
was announced during the year.
Looking Forward

Agrochemicals play a major role in
managing loss of yield due to pests and
diseases, and improving overall
agricultural output. We plan to bring
latest technology and products in the
coming year as well from our
collaborations and R&D. Your company
has already adapted to the new ways of
working and enhanced customer
engagement with virtual collaborations
thus contributing to our market growth.
Therefore, it is vital for key stakeholders
to understand the role of agrochemicals
in propelling India's economic growth
and take necessary actions to enable
the sector to achieve its potential.

I would like to take this opportunity to
thank all the stakeholders who have

been tirelessly working to ensure
that we continue to serve the
farmers of the country and beyond
through this extremely challenging
times.

Most importantly, | would like to
thank you, our shareholders, for
your overwhelming trust,
support, and confidence in
Insecticides (India) Limited.

H.C. AGGARWAL
Chairman




inseCi ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21

(INDIA) LIMITED

MD'S THOUGHT
PROCESS

FINDING
BEACONS
OF HOPE

Dear Shareholders,

FY21transformed our lives. However, one
thing that remained constant at IIL was
our commitment and compassion. At a
time when several organizations took
drastic measures to remain cost
competitive, we fully supported our team
and ensured their well-being to the best of
our abilities. We remain committed to
uphold the culture of togetherness, along
with a professional working environment.
During the lockdown, as team was
concerned about their well-being and the
future of their families, we engaged in
regular discussions and tried to motivate
them to stay positive, committed and
focused.

With the unparalleled efforts of the team
even during the pandemic times, your
company launched seven new products
last year to further improve product mix,
which received an overwhelming response
and contributed Rs. 32 crores to net sales.
| am also pleased to announce that our
products Lethal GR and Tadaaki have
started substituting Thimet sales during
the year and have registered annual sales
of Rs. 56.5 Crores. We look forward to a
good contribution and growth from these
two products in the coming year too.




Committed to continue on
the path of bringing in the
latest technology products,
your company has recently
launched Hachiman, a
patented herbicide mixture
with Nissan, Japan, which is
a part of our 5-6 new product
launches this FY22.
Management teamis
equipped and committed to
growth with new products,
improve product mix and
increase brand business
which will help in scaling new
heights.

Five growth fundamentals of
your company are
purposeful brands, improved
market penetration and
creating value for the
farmers, impactful
innovations to bring new
technologies for the
farmers, and augmenting the
manufacturing for world
class products.

The agrochemical industry
played a crucial role in
increasing the yield. High
performance agrochemicals
are alsointegral to high-
value farming like
horticulture and export-
oriented agriculture. As the
fourth-largest agrochemical
industry in the world, India
has the potential to become
a global manufacturing hub.

In the year 2020-21, we
witnessed our farmers' hard
work bear fruits of success
as they outdid themselves.
They not only showed
growth in terms of
productivity, they also broke

Last year, we focused
on all of our business
verticals of the Brand
sales, Institutional
sales as well as Export
sales and have got
good response from
our channel partners.

As people will seek to
make changes in the
way they live, work,
and travel, winners
will be the
organisations that
guide customers

through the transition
with innovative ideas
and solutions. | am
sure inherent
resilience and the
unparalleled
dedication of our
team will help us
navigate through the
exciting times ahead
and continue to
create unmatched
value for all.

insect
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years of stagnancy. Their
victory was possible due to
their invaluable experience
and assistance by the full
agriculture industry.

Last year also helped us to
learn and grow. 2020's
unpredictable nature made
the world adapt to a virtual
world. We held our first
virtual 23th Annual General
Meeting last year which
was huge success. We
acquainted our team and
farmers with the digital
world so that they can
access it not only for
farming, but other
activities like education
and training too.

With our portfolio of over
100 formulation products
and over 21technical grade
products, we are
continuously working on
introducing new
technologies that will be
effective to protect and
sustain the requirement of
the agriculture in future.

| whole heartedly thank all
the stakeholders for their
putting their trust in us as
we promise them another
successful year ahead.

| take this opportunity to
thank you all for your
unwavering support and
commitment that
continues to make llL a
frontline runnerin the
industry.

RAJESH AGGARWAL
Managing Director
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OUR PILLARS
OF STRENGTH

MEET OUR BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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MISSION

Our purpose, what we are

We work to make agriculture sustainable
and profitable for our farmers, by using
simple and effective technologies to
ensure food security for all.

VISION

Our dream, our big contribution
to this planet earth

We will make this earth greener and
cleaner through our work and our various
product portfolio that will become the
first choice for all farmers worldwide.

insect
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OUR TEAM

THE ARCHITECTS OF OUR GROWTH

At lIL, we believe that developing
and maintaining a conducive work
culture is imperative for an
organisation to attain its full
potential. We are focussed on
sustaining an engaged and skilled
workforce that is capable of
delivering on the commitments to
our stakeholders and making us
‘future ready’ structurally,
financially and culturally.

Human resource has always been a
key differentiator for Insecticides
(India) Limited. Our ability to deliver
long-term value rests on the
principles of participative
management. Our culture
exemplifies our core values and
nurtures innovation, creativity and
diversity. It encourages high

s

performance through continuous
development and opportunities for
growth, enhancing engagement
and experience through our
distinctive reward and recognition
programmes.

We believe that an engaged
workforce produces extraordinary
business results. Our people's
practices focus on ‘Engage to
Excel. We endeavour to create an
environment where employees
experience a sense of
belongingness, pride and
opportunity to deliver to the best
of their potential. We have adopted
a holistic approach for workplace
and individual well-being to ensure
arewarding and enriching work
environment that is continuously

innovating and improving customer
satisfaction, productivity and
sustainability. Not withstanding
the current environment caused by
COVID-19 pandemic, engagement
continues stronger through
Connect, Communicate,
Collaborate and Care. Several
initiatives that enable mixed ways
of working at site, in the field, in
offices and from home, balancing
the business and individual
requirements. Policies that offer
support and care for employees
and family members affected by
COVID-19 has been put in place and
precautions like vaccinations and
safety training are also carried out.

i1

1250+

Employees

500+

in Manufacturing
& Research

500+

in Sales and
Marketing

250+

in Branch and
Head Office

Average age of Team/IL : 35 years

12/
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BRAND
PRINCIPLE

To bring synergetic benefits

to farmers by providing a
comprehensive range of Continuously adopting
crop protection. innovative measures

Always evolving in best Advancing towards
interest of farmers sustainable agricultural
practices

Ultra-modern automated
manufacturing for consistent
quality and safety
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THEIR
EXPERIENCE,
OUR
EXPERTISE

A FOOLPROOF FORMULA
TO MUTUAL SUCCESS

8997 ¢

Insecticides (India)
Limited believes that

when the farmers grow,

: the nation grows too. ~',
l--‘ And we with our cutting- ""' ;
ﬁ 4/ f . edge technology in crop '\"
E’T \ : protection, we strive to E>
make this process an i

o/ achievable reality.

N
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We are continuously investing ~ Theireonstent

encouragement and support

In new tEChnO|Ogy {ocome up inspires us to do more for the
. : d ted t
with affordable and effective /. e andset thom

of the sector and set them

products in the market. And on the path of growth too.

Despite this year's

our success is not determined
unprecedented challenges,
by our SaleS, tis al\/\/ays we were able to launch 7 new
. , products in the market.
determined by our farmers | -
We wish to carry on with this
valuable feedbacks and their spirit and help our farmers in
enhaﬂced productivity every step of their lives.

6 Manufacturing Units
f.'\ 28 branCh ﬂ 2 Technical Synthesis Plants

III g:c;[[(;lebsu]f[(l)gn 6 Formulation Plants
&
1 Biological Plant*
\%ﬂ‘ 20 years /s‘ Annual turnover
O of service isINR 1420 Cr.
, :
® o farmers N inFY20-21
e®e 1750+ Expanding in the
‘m Emp|oyees \{h‘hg newkmttematlonal
markets
| m
A ]OO+ g 22
E Formulation =\ Technical
Products Products

§5- 21 §=- 7
MEREIEIGE New Product

Products Launches

15
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GROWTH STRATEGY

« Working on registration in new
countries with 100+ export
agreements

ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21

« Focusonin-house R&D and
international partners to launch
new products « Expandingin new geographies:

Exporting to 20+ countries

Expand to 50+ countries and 100+

customers by the end of FY23 + Capitalize on the Make in
_____ India’ initiative

« Moving on the strategic
path of backward and
- Launched 7 new products in FY21 forward integration

« Expect 5-6 new products next year

» Will result in better
margins across technicals
and formulations

---------- International
Business

« Phasing out the
Generic Products (high -----
volume-low margin)

« Introduction of new
products in the
- Maharatna category
g ,'mq‘ving up the

« Focus on sustainable
generation of cash
flows

« CapexofRs.1.1bnin
next 2 yearsina

Backward phased manner.

value chain F
Ph(;aes:;grigm and Forward Out of the above capex
e e Integration half of the amount has
already been spent
during FY2021
Optimum :
Focussed Capital
Approach Structureand ----- '

on Biologicals Operational

Efficiency
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POWERING THROUGH
CHALLENGING TIMES
WITH IMPACTFUL STRATEGIES

ail (C:

Capacity Upscaling of
Enhancement Technology

x <

Product Expansion New Product
L.aunches
PR Modern

Productivity

17
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VISION OF
GROWTH
COMES TO LIFE

142023

110639
629

13632
119195
o

107 /
2016-7  2017-18 201819 201920  2020-21

Net Revenue (T inlacs)

9343

2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21
Net Profit (T in lacs)

15301

11810 11903

2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21
Profit Before Tax (3 in lacs)

59. 23
45 21

41, 63/
40. so
28 74 Ei

2016-17 2017-18  2018-19  2018-20 2020-21

Earning per share (%)
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81840 29745
[ ] [ )
7302?/ 2780(/
66135 e 25920 "
54759 24839
o/ o/
ABAV 242M
() % [ )
2016-17 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20  2020-21 2016-17 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20  2020-21
Net Worth (% in lacs) Net Block of assets (% in lacs)
142246

¢ 136273
109767 4

@ 98027
64711 $

2016-17  2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21
Market Capitalisation* (3 in lacs)

# Figures are restated as per IND AS
*Market Capitalisation based on year end closing share price quoted on BSE Ltd.

insecticides
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Featuring in top 10 performing
companies of FY 21in agrochemical sector
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WALKING
DOWNTHE
MEMORY LANE

» Launched Nuvan in technical
collaboration with AMVAC

« Launched Hakama and Pulsor in
tie-up with Nissan

« Entered into a Joint Venture with
OAT Agrio, Japan, for research

* Acquired the exclusive
rights to sell the Thimet
brand in India from

Americar} Vanguafd and invention of new agro . Launch'ed
Eorr;])o.ratllon,”UEA |nt. chemicals Lgvlolujuo:\e;'y.l
iological Soi
echnical coflaboration « Commencement of operations at Energiser product
20006 the Technical plant at Dahej KAYAKALP
« Acquired Monocil brand 29’12 2017 . Launched
from NOCIL Limited « Launch of Biological CHAPERONE and
* Started operations « Set up two new products KUNOICHI
by commencing formulation plants at - Follow on QIP

2019

Dahejand Udhampur
20M

formulation plant
in Chopanki (Rajasthan)

2002
o

2015

/]
« Received the d ERVA VAN BVAL R =
OHSAS 18001

certification

2008

+ Commissioned S0
second formulation
plantin Samba

(Jammu & Kashmir)

2020
« Started with
export oriented
unit (EOU) at
SEZ, Dahez,
Gujarat

2014

« Started R&D Centre in
Joint Venture with OAT
Agrio, Japan, at
Chopanki, Rajasthan

2018

« Launched

2003

« Acquired 21
leading brands of
Montari Industries
Limited (Ranbaxy
Group Company)

2001

Commenced
Operations

2005

2007

« The Company got listed on NSE and
BSE with an Initial Public Offering

« The Technical plant at Chopanki
commenced operations

- Expansion of capacity at the
Formulations plant was completed
in Samba

» SetupaR&D
Laboratory in Chopanki
« Plant at Chopanki
accredited with
1S0 9001:2008
certification

« Commencement of
New Formulation unit at
E439- 440, Chopanki
(Rajasthan)

e,
g

a =~ !
s

AIKIDO, SOFIA,
ENCOUNTER &
HERCULES

2016

« Tie-up with MOMENTIVE, USA
for AGRO SPRED* MAX

« Tie-up with NITHON NOHYAKU,
Japan for SUZUKA and HAKKO

« Launched GREEN LABEL
(Bispyribac Sodium 10% SC)
manufactured in India for the
first time

...And it is just the beginning!
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MANUFACTURING
CAPABILITIES

pTTTTmmmmsssmsosssososoooo- ® Formulation Unit :
Samba, Jammu and Kashmir

® [Formulation and
Technical Unit:

Chopanki, Rajasthan RS, ® Formulation Unit :

Udhampur, Jammu and Kashmir

o A ® Biological Unit *:
Shamli, Uttar Pradesh

e Formulation
Unitll: ...
Chopanki,
Rajasthan

Formulation and
Technical Unit :
Dahej, Gujarat

® Export Oriented
Unit (SEZ.) : Dahej
Gujarat

AGGREGATEINSTALLED CAPACITY

19,400 | 75,750 | 18,770 | 13,800
KLPA ! MTPA  MTPA ! MTPA
Liquid @ Granules : Powder : ActiveIngredient

& Bulk

* Under Toll Arrangement

22
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RESEARCH &

DEVELOPMENT

SHORT TERM: MEDIUM TERM: LONG TERM:

« Launch new generic  Launch latest technology products - Launch proprietary
products going off-patent  through international partners discovery products
(Reverse Engineering) « Launch new combination products (chemicals and biologicals)

Product Invention R&D Centre
A'unique initiative of product
discovery in India by forming a JV
with Japanese company, OAT
Agrio Co. Ltd.

« Equipped with the latest machines
and equipment's like NMR, Lab set
designed by Kewanee, USA

» Lead by the internationally
renowned scientists with more
than 25 years of experience

« One of its kind breeding centers,
bio assay rooms and spray
cabinets

State-of-the-art in house R&D

centre established in 2005

« Approved by DSIR, Ministry of
Science and Technology

- Working on new formulations and
new combination products

Biological R&D Centre

« Equipped with bio assay and
product development facilities

« Looking forward to development of
3-4 new biological products

« Development of new generation
formulations

« Focus on cost reduction,
customer- friendly and

Formulation R&D Centre i
environment-safe products i

In House R&D Centre,
Chopanki, Rajasthan

Product Invention R&D
Centre in JV with OAT
AGRIO, Chopanki, Rajasthan

InHouse R&D Centre, 77777777~
Dahej, Gujarat

Biological R&D Centre,
Shamli, Uttar Pradesh

Patents

‘I Patents
Received*

Pending

60+ Scientistsin
R&D Centres

*As in June 2021
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EVOLVING IN

ALL DIRECTIONS

&

R&D
NABL QC Labs

In-house R&D Centre

JV with OAT Agrio Co., Japan for
dedicated invention R&D Centre

Biological R&D Centre

0"'

MARKETING

Sales & Market development

Branding

International Tie-ups and
collaborations

24

MANUFACTURING

6 Manufacturing Units
2 Technical Synthesis Plants

6 Formulation Plants
&

1 Biological Plant*

*under toll arrangements

DEVELOPMENT & TRAINING

Emphasis on field activities
Farmer awareness
Sales force training

* Under Toll Arrangement
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INTERNATIONAL
BUSINESS OUTLOOK

- Highlights in 2020-21 ~

IIL established as a trusted partner having geographic presence in more than 20 Countries

Set Up Formulation facility in Dahez SEZ area for supplying innovative formulations

Invested in data generation ; Regulatory compliance & registrations for business expansion

Leveraged Chemistry strength for innovative products

- KEY FOCUS AREA AHEAD ~

Geographic & Market expansion through innovative & New generation Eco-friendly product

Strengthening R&D, process scale-up for Contract Manufacturing

Investment in data generation compliance to global requlatory guidelines

New pilot plants facility to strengthen process scale-up capabilities

Integrated approach to entire value chain through forward & backward integration

Aggressive Use of Digital Technology in order to display IILs competency & capabilities

. J

- BUSINESS OUTLOOK ~

Expectation of demand for Agrochemicals to go up with recovery in Global Economic scenario
due to Covid pandemic situation

Countries pushing vaccination drive very aggressively will trigger economic activities

Expectation of demand going up for current Active Ingredients with correction in key RM & PM Cost

Expectation of more demand Cost-effective and high performance broad spectrum product

Global registration & regulatory activities will further drive growth for new products

Improvement in logistics & transportation activity & reasonable correction in logistic cost

25
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CHARTINGOUR
GROWTH

THANK YOU FOR YOUR OVERWHELMING
RESPONSE AND MAKING THEM A BIG SUCCESS

SEGMENT REPORTING-FY 2021

NET SALES BY PRODUCT CATEGORY NET SALES BY SEGMENT
2%

M |Insecticides

H Herbicides M B2C
® Fungicides M B2B
® PGR H Exports

NET SALES VS INTERNAL CONSUMPTION BREAKDOWN OF TOP SELLER RANGE IN B2C

M Sales
M Maharatna
Products

®m Other Products

H Internal
Consumption
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CREATING
AFRESHIMPACTWITH
OURNEW PRODUCTS

Product Freshness Index

571
Proven track record of successful new product 535 T
launches exhibits lIL's strong R&D capabilities as it 478 70 >
continues to provide a competitive edge % -
420 66
Gross Revenue from new product launches(Rs. Cr.) 89 59
76
131 L4 o ® o6

221
172

FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 FY2016 Fy2017 FY2018 FY2019 FY2020 FY2021
New Products launched
during the year

% of Revenue
from Operations

WARRIORS
OF2021-22

HEROES
OF2020-21
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OURLEADING
PATENTED PRODUCTS

///
N

[ |
RECOMMENDED BY

Punjab Agricultural University, Ludhiana, Punjab

PULSOR PROVIDES EFFECTIVE PROTECTION
TO PADDY AGAINST SHEATH BLIGHT

el

RSN AL L e UL

-

RECOMMENDED BY

KUAST

KASHMIR

SKUAST (Sher-e-Kashmir University of
Agricultural Sciences and technology, Kashmir)

sdnea: HPOATN
T

KUNOICHI

Kunoichi gives
effective control
of mites in apple
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STRIKING A SUSTAINABLE
BALANCE IN AGRICULTURE WITH

BIOLOGICAL PRODUCTS

Agro Chemicals
and biological input
need to coexist to
bring synergistic
benefits to farmers.

OUR GREEN FOOTPRINT

« Implementation of integrated
pest management by farmers

» Dedicated R&D center with latest
infrastructure & researchers

CERTIFIED
ORGANIC PRODUCTS

With a range of more than 100
productsinits kitty, IIL aims to
provide a balance between
organic and non-organic
products to encourage holistic
and sustainable ways of farming.
[IL proudly owns an In - House
R&D Centre for Biologicals in
Shamli, Uttar Pradesh that mainly

focuses on developing biological
products for sustainable
agriculture by engaging in
developing processes and
products of biologicals. They also
engineer technology that
compliments the products
before sending them for
commercialisation.

ILSTIM

AT MANURE
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COLLABORATING WITH
THEBESTTO GIVEOUR
FARMERSTHEBEST

N/ NISSAN CHEMICAL CORPORATION /#1%

JAPAN

Marketing Tie-up for specialty
products i.e. PULSOR, Fungicide,
HAKAMA, Selective Herbicide &

KUNOICHI, Miticide

A 0aT Agrio Co,, Ltd. L

OATS JAPAN

Tie-up with OAT Agrio Co., Ltd.
Japan to bring a specialised
product for Seed treatment,

ROOTBEAD & TADAAKI, a broad
spectrum insecticide

MOMENTIVE
USA

Tie-up with MOMENTIVE

Performance Material Inc., USA

for AGROSPRED* MAX for silicone

based super spreader

@& TNihon Nohyaku Co.,Lid.
JAPAN

Marketing tie-up for SUZUKA,
HAKKO & AIKIDO

gAl OATJﬁg;E) Co,, Ltd. JV for a dedicated R&D Centre in
India to invent new agrochemical

OAT & IIL INDIA molecules
LABORATORIES
PRIVATE LIMITED
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DEALING
WITH

TOGETHER
ESTAND

, IIL FAMILY

The entire world was brought to an abrupt standstill due to the
rapid spread of Corona virus in March 2020. It severely
impacted people’s way of lives and their work. It was the same
case with us and our farmers. The future was uncertain, but
with certain steps, we were able to find ways to move forward.

@
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OUR TEAM COMES FIRST

In March 2020, we announced
Work from Home for our office
team. They were familiarized
with connecting and carrying out
work digitally from the safety of
their homes. They were given the
necessary resources to adapt to
this change effectively. Our on-
site team and marketing team
were given adequate safety gear
to contain the spread.

MEETING WITH FARMERS

Despite the uncertainties
imposed by Covid-19, we made
sure that we were in regular
contact with our farmers.
Meeting them in person was not
possible, so we began holding our
meetings digitally. Our team

introduced the concept of virtual

ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21

meeting to them so that they
could easily contact us
whenever they wanted to. It also
opened up a new path for our
marketing and sales team to
reach out to them, listen to their
concerns and report to the head
office so that constructive steps
can be taken to resolve them.
They were also able to have a
better reach as they interacted
with them to further understand
their needs, the shortcomings
they were facing, etc. so that we
could bridge the gap with the
help of technology.

DIGITAL LAUNCHES OF OUR
NEW PRODUCTS

Our farmers’ growth is pivotal to
us and the nation. To ensure that
it was not hampered by Covid-19,

VIRTUAL ALL INDIA

MARKETIN -
STAFF - SINESS
) 2021 ¢

JCIATES

we launched our products
digitally. This not only helped us
reach to a more diverse
audience which would not have
been possible in an offline
launch, but it also helped us
celebrate our achievements with
our farmers. The warm
reception encouraged us to
venture further and create more
products for them.

BRINGING IIL EXPERT TALKS
TO THEM

We harness the power of social
media to bring our experts’
advice to our farmers with
Facebook live sessions. Our
experts not only educate them
about the correct usage, but

they also address their queries.

VIRTUA!
BUSINE
ASSOCIA
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et thgH, H thgH
A MESSAGE OF TOGETHERNESS TO BEAT THE ODDS.

lIL always stands with farmers through their expertise that brings progressive change in farming.
We named this endeavour "Har Kadam, Hum Kadam®. To reach out to our farmers and make them
understand this message, we have launched a film where we have shown how farming in India is
changing and the role of our products. We have shown how our R&D centre is playing a pivotal
role in developing products that help farmers in increasing productivity. Our products include
biological as well as chemical molecules that takes care of diseases, insects, weeds and also
improve the fertility of the soil, thus increasing productivity. But without the proper knowledge
about their usage, it is impossible to gain benefits. Our experts play a crucial role in spreading
awareness through the digital medium by conducting seminars.

[T+ asE wHl e
‘mu:lu_. - '@
g, BRI
AT

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=BrzpdSVDtQ4
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YOU CAN CALL
THEM TAGLINES
BUT FORUSIT'S
COMMITMENT

At lIL, we develop each and every product after rigorous research. But developing a product is not
enough, communicating the product to the target audience is equally important. Our products are
the solution to the problems farmers face with their crops. So, we carefully choose our words to
make a crystal clear communication for them to understand.

h et {1 au= HHeel @
&1 =T8T AT & ..

Lethal 5257

———

a1

TR -

R
-

lima icides | BT TBUH, BH IR
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BRINGINGAPROGRESSIVEWAVE
OF CHANGEWITHTHE POWER OF

DIGITALMEDIA

DIGITALMEDIA

i @O O @

116,549 11,299 21,422 3,605

Insecticides India Ltd

SUBSCRIBED
T0.BK = cribers
HoME VIDEDS PLAYLISTS COMMUNITY CHANNELS ABOUT Q,

Insecticides India Ltd.

Birsnctiéssndia - Local busingss # it Whatshg Descriptian Stats
Warkcome 1o the official {India} Limited 5i ception, L 15 striving Jained A 20, 2010
hard to provide the best quality crop protection peoducts within the reach of the farmers. Our peoduct

. Gl s T o G - " rseng w
range includes inseclicides, herbicides, fungicides, FGRs and blologicals for 2l types of craps and G375 diews
household
@- Lreate Fost Aqpiculiee hat 3 fang Wistory. L time by new Bl ne teehniques M
x @ processes can replace the efforts of farmens. That's why we af 0L congtantly endegvar to stand
I Photovideo O et Messages Feefing/ Actrity shouicer 10 ehoulider with the faemers at every stage of tarming

Vot £ eall it car mAtin. eor missinn o aur ohilennie: Siacs Fen AT neads: A Aiansn 1n mofivate

{India) Limited
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Insecticides Jaroori Hai

IILFOUNDATION

IIL has always been known for  This is a digital platform to around the country and asked
the welfare of farmers, beitby  thank the farmers for providing them to educate our farmers

providing advanced research-  the basic necessity of life - about crop diseases as well as
based products at an food. the judicious use of
affordable price or giving ) . . insecticides. We do this
information to strengthen their ~ The aim of this platformis to because knowledge is the key
farming techniques. bust myths regarding the to growth in life.

usage of insecticides. Here, we
Adding to this, IIL Foundation provide authentic information ~ Come, join our page to start

has started a new initiative by ~ about farming, associated conversations and discussions
launching a page on Facebook  hurdles, and how a farmercan  on the benefits of using

and creating You-Tube overcome them. We have judicious amount of

Channel called Insecticides reached out to the best minds  insecticides to improve crop
Jaroori Hai. in agrochemical industry health and bring happiness to

the farmers.

DIGITALMEDIA
IO MDE v

m 9, sesch _ﬁ

Insecticides
Saraori Hal
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: AT it T P . s

Insecticides Jaroori Hai
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Jarnart Hal ch D] D
Insecticides Jaroori Hai 2 B
v @insecticieesiaracrHa - Agricultural coopertive # Edit Send Message + Follow |_visit website & )| Mare
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Insecticides Jaroorn Hai

5 2 farmers wedare initiative by UL Fourdation the CSR arm of insecticdes ingia
Limnited, 8 \eading crop care marufactuser in India.
www.insecticidesjarooriha.com
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Hero Campaign of IJH

A series to bust myths
around the usage of
insecticides and other
agrochemicalsin the
crops for better quality
and quantity.

Campaign - Crop Biography
E-mq oL SUIL A campaign showcasing
“GouN 0 AN | the important stages of
— the crops we consume
and the insects which
attack them during the

process.

s Jaroori Hai®

BADE MAZE SE AP
ENJOY KARTE HONGE CORN

o ETOE : An awareness-driven
"3 W campaign related to the
insects and pests that
harm the crops by
providing ways to avoid
them.

Facts/Trivia Posts

! L

SECURING WHAT'S
IN STORAGE

L4

8.4% et l
agrochemical.zms

—

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCu7EddC7--uBlwdfaYFo95w?view_as=subscriber https://insecticidesjaroorihai.com/
https://www.facebook.com/InsecticidesJarooriHai/?modal=admin_todo_tour https://twitter.com/InsecticidesJH
https://www.instagram.com/insecticidesjaroori/

Youcan
visit us at:
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IILFOUNDATION
BRINGINGAWAVEOF
HOLISTICGROWTH

[IL Foundation’s primary goal is to
conduct CSR activities in rural
areas. lIL Foundation also played its
role for the activities to support
public by large against Covid 19. Over
the last couple of years, it has been
working on the following projects:

1. Spreading awareness about the
judicious use of agrochemicals in
rural as well as urban
geographies with the

Goodness B4 '
Is the only
investment that
never fails.

Il
2 |r| 1

L

aim of busting common myths and
understanding the underlying cause
of their concerns and
apprehensions.

2. Collaborating with schools in rural
India, to help children get better
access to quality education. This
year, the
education

L

system was one of
the most affected
sectorsinany
society. lIL Foundation worked
towards bridging the technological
gaps so that their education is not
halted. Under the Education project,
we have been associated with the
schools and supporting them in all
the best possible manner like
vocational teachers, support staff,
sports kits, computers, and other
support material.

59

3.This year, IIL Foundation and
National Food Security Mission
(NFSM) have been working with
farmersin the backward areas of
Andhra Pradesh and Telangana to
educate them about the latest
techniques of farming and crop
protection products. Ouraimis to
work on increasing their
productivity at a minimal
cost so that they can
lead a financially secure
and holistic life.

4. On the occasion of
World Environment Day,

| A collaboration with Ff\%'l' s
B because for 7| Foundation
farmers come first o, .

IIL Foundation planted
Trees for a better
tomorrow. The
plantation drive was
conducted, near our
plant at Chopanki,
Rajasthan. Around 100 trees were
planted in and around schools in
Jodiamev and Chopanki. On this
occasion, the IIL foundation
pledged to continue this initiative in
future for a better nature.

5. Distribution of masks and
Sanitizers to farmers and Schools,
donating oxygen concentrators and
supporting the local administrative
bodies in local awareness programs
were on of the few initiatives under
the Covid Prevention activities.
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GETTING
THE WORD OUT

By harnessing the power of media, we are able to talk about our brand and vision across various
mediums and platforms. Every medium gives us an opportunity to educate and inform to

‘ ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21

reform people’s conceptions about agrochemicals.

lIL arm in pact

T
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Visakhapatnam:
Agrochemical Company
Insecticides (India) Ltd's lIL
Foundation organised an
awareness camp at
Darmavaram village in
Srikakulam districtin
association with National Food
Security Mission on Sunday. The
objective ofthe camp was to
make farmers aware of modern
innovations in farming. Around
50 farmers attended. T
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ESTABLISHING A
STRONGER AND
GREENER TOMORROW
TOGETHER

AtlIL, we believe that our work does not
end with production and sale of our

Q__ products. Rather, this marks the
9 beginning of a progressive change. Our
' = 2 dedicated team has designed a plan to
educate our farmers about the judicious

use of agrochemicals. From
understanding what kind of formulation
toits appropriate usage, we walk them
through the entire process. Our process
of reaching out to farmers include:

EDUCATING FARMERS

We aim to equip our farmers not only
with the means to a better yield, but
also explain the science behind it in
their language.

CORRECT USAGE OF AGROCHEMICALS

The next step involves a thorough run-
through about the correct way of using
agrochemicals. From safety gear to the
right proportions, we help them
understand how this knowledge and
ample preparation can help them have a
betteryield.

CREATING AWARENESS IN REMOTE
AREAS

Our outreach programs are designed to
make an impact in both accessible and
remote areas. Our team travels
extensively to these areas and talk to
the people to understand their troubles

3 and help them overcome them with the
Jl use of knowledge and technology.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

1. GlobalandIndian Economic Overview The Indian economy is undergoing a V-shaped recovery,

Financial Year 2020 began with a significant slowdown in
demand in most of the economies of the World. Previous 2
Financial Years were affected and influenced by several
eventsranging fromthe after-effects of deteriorating US-
China trade relationships, uncertainties around the US
Presidential elections, volatile crude prices, the closure of
Brexit deal and so on. But far above these disruptions, the
breakout of the worldwide Covid-19 pandemic was more
catastrophic, leading to severe contractions across
economies. Months of uncertainty and fear, paralysed
economic activities in both developed and developing
economies. Trade and tourism came to a halt, while job
and output losses saw a steep rise. Consumption dropped
further, putting pressure on global Gross Domestic
Product (GDP). The world GDP fell by an estimated 3.3% in
2020 - the sharpest contraction of global output since the
Great Depression Governments around the world;
however, acted quickly and boldly to brace for the health
and economicramifications of the crisis.

(Source: World Economic Outlook, April 2021).

Impact of the lockdown on the Indian agriculture sector
has been complex and varied across diverse segments
that constitute the agricultural value chain. Several
activitiesacrossthe agriculture value chain have been the
most hit. Acute shortage of labour, reverse migration,
harvest, transportation & logistics and exports were some
of the unforeseen challenges that the stakeholders
acrossthevalue chainwitnessed.

World Real GDP Growth (%)
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2020 -2.6

showing strong signs of revival. The positive economic
symptoms are underpinned by the rollout of vaccine,
increase in mobility, privatization and the Government's
strong financial impetus. There is, however, an
uncertainty about the nature of the ongoing recovery, but
with strong prospects of growth in consumption and
investments, the GDP is estimated to grow at 11% in FY
2021-22.

Further, waves of the virus could, however, affect the
economyand makesthe overall outlook uncertain.

Indian Economic Growth Output (%)
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2. Annual overview of Indian Agriculture and Agro-

ChemicalIndustry

Agriculture is the primary source of livelihood for about
58% of India's population. Gross Value Added by
agriculture, forestry, and fishing was estimated at Rs.
19.48 lakh crore (USS 276.37 billion) in FY20. Share of
agriculture and allied sectorsin gross value added (GVA) of
India at current prices stood at 17.8 % in FY20. Consumer
spending in India will return to growth in 2021 post the
pandemic-led contraction, expandingbyasmuchas6.6%.

The Indian food industry is poised for huge growth,
increasing its contribution to world food trade every year
due to its immense potential for value addition,
particularly within the food processing industry. Indian
food and grocery market is the world's sixth largest, with
retail contributing 70% of the sales. The Indian food
processing industry accounts for 32% of the country's
total food market, one of the largest industries in India and
isrankedfifthintermsof production, consumption, export
and expected growth.

Principal agricultural commodities export for April 2020 -
January 202Twas USS 32.12 billion.



The Economic Survey of India 2020-21 report stated that
in FY20, the total food grain production in the country was
recorded at 296.65 million tonnes-up by 11.44 million
tonnes compared with 285.21 million tonnes in FY19. The
government has set a target to buy 42.74 million tonnes
from the central pool in FY21; this is 10% more than the
quantity purchased in FY20. For FY22, the government
has set a record target for farmers to raise food grain
production by 2% with 307.31milliontonnes of food grains.
In FY21, production was recorded at 303.34 million tonnes
againstatargetof 301 milliontonnes.

The Agrochemicals are designed to protect crops from
insects, diseases and weeds. They do so by controlling
pests that infect, consume or damage the crops.
Uncontrolled pests significantly reduce the quantity and
quality of food production. It is estimated that annual crop
losses could double without the use of crop protection
products. Food crops must compete with 30,000 species
of weeds, 3,000 species of nematodes and 10,000 species
of plant-eating insects. Agrochemicals are the last and
one of the key inputsinagriculture for crop protectionand
betteryield.

India is the world's 4th largest producer of agrochemicals
after United States, Japan and China and has emerged as
the13thlargest exporterof pesticides globally.

The Indian agrochemicals industry was valued at around

Top agrochemical exporters by value in 2021
(in USD billion)
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INR 44,000 crore in FY21 out of which domestic
consumption was worth around INR 21,000 crore, while
exports during the same period were worth around INR
23,000 crore. The industry is expected to grow at a CAGR
of 8-10% till 2025 and will be driven by several growth
levers like increasing population, decreasing arable land,
increasing demand for high-value agricultural products
and increasing efforts from the industry and the
Government to promote awareness and technology
penetration.

(Source : Ministry of Agriculture & Farmers Welfare, GOl and FICCI)

Industry Turnaround:

» Industryisincreasingly focusing ondigitisationto drive
better analytics, decision making and traceability
across the value chain. Digital tools such as farmer
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apps and dealer management systems (DMS) are
helping companies in undertaking tailor made
approaches for different market segments. The
COVID-19 outbreak has further pushed an already
growingtrend of technology and internet usageinrural
areas, thuscreatingafavourable digitalenvironment.

» On the requlatory front, the industry has witnessed
some emerging trends such as aerial spraying of
agrochemicals being allowed on interim basis for
locust control and a proposed ban on 27 agrochemical
molecules, amongst several others.

» Some of the evolving go-to-market models are being
considered and adopted by the industry. These include
direct selling to Farmer Producer Organisations (FPQOs)
asalternativestotraditional.

Share of different agrochemical products by
volume of usage in 2020-21(technical grade)

Biopesticides
N.9% @y

@ Others 1.4%

Insecticides
Herbicides 36.3%
15.0%

Fungicides

35.5%

Source : Statistical database, Directorate of Plant Protection,

Quarantine and Storage

Industry Dependency onImports
TheIndianagrochemicalindustryishighly reliantonimport of
raw materials and technical intermediates. In FY20, China
alone contributed to around 49% of India's total pesticide
imports(valuedatINR9,096 crore).

Share of major contributors to India's
agrochemical imports in 2020-21

Israel 4%® [

Japan5% e-{-

Germany

Source : Export Import Data Bank, Directorate General of Foreign Trade
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3. Opportunitiesand Challenges

Opportunities

The Company is working diligently to capitalize
opportunitiessuchas:

Consumer awareness: Consumer awareness in the
context of agrochemicalsislow, especially when it comes
to selection and usage of right products at the right time.
The Company is providing information to the farmers
through various programmes to advance agronomic
knowledge of the farmers. The Government should also
strengthen its extension efforts through its network of
Krishi Vigyan Kendras (KVKs) and extension bodies
equipped with the latest best practices in crop
production.

Technology interventions: Services such as spraying of
agrochemicals are vastly dominated by manual
operations, with onlyafew agrochemical/ farm equipment
players and start-ups trying to introduce technology
interventions in these services. Improvements in
agrochemical applicationrelated technology mayimprove
usage and application efficiency while tackling issues
such as scarce availability and increased costs of farm
labour during peak requirements.

Export orientation products: In recent times the global
supplies has been disrupted and India being the fourth
largest manufacturer of agro-chemicals, the company
canplay apivotal role in the global value chainand start its
exports more aggressively by identifying rapid growing
avenues.

Growth in herbicides and fungicides: Labor shortage,
risinglabor costsand growthin GM crops hasled to growth
in the use of herbicides. The herbicide consumption in
India stands at 0.4 USD billion in FY21 and is expected to
grow at a CAGR of 15% over the next five years to reach
~0.8USD billion by FY22. On the other hand the fungicide
industry in India has grown due to the growth in Indian
horticulture industry, which has grown at a CAGR of 7.5%
overthelastfiveyears.

Online Marketing: The agro-chemical industry is to adopt
the e-commerce model for selling its products and open
the new space for selling its products, wherein details of
the products will be provided to the farmers along with
usage of pesticides and its effectiveness; it leads to
increase the competivenessinthe market.

Fast Registration of Products in the Agro-chemical
Industry: The government has significantly reducing the
time required for regulatory compliances by introducing
fast-track regulatory regimes. A similar approach is
expected for monitoring production, distribution and
movement of the otheragriculturalinputsamid COVID-19.

Challenges of Indian Agro-Chemical Industry

Lack of awareness and non-scientific usage: The
average farmer in India lacks proper knowledge of
agronomy and relies mostly on skills and knowledge
gained with experience or from product
recommendations at a point of sale, i.e. by an agri input
retailer. This lack of awareness and usage of

agrochemicals based on habit and non-scientific
recommendations may lead to over usage of a particular
product (which might be required in a lesser quantity) or
underusage of a product (which might have been required
in a higher quantity), thus resulting in sub-optimal yields
andreturnsforfarmers.

High reliance on generic molecules: Agrochemical
consumption in India is represented by high usage of
generic molecules, some of which have been continuously
used for decades. The adoption of newer or better
molecules, although increasing, is still low. This trend is
prevalent in India for multiple reasons. The high R&D cost
for agrochemicals, coupled with a complex registration
procedure has deterred companies from introducing new
molecules to the market. Premium-priced better
molecules are unaffordable for a large segment of
farmers. Farmers have also become dependent on off-
patented generic molecules as they are affordable and
beingusedforyears.

Low usage of agrochemicals: Agrochemical usage in
India is low when compared to many agriculturally
advanced nations and the global average. In 2021,
agrochemical usage in India was 0.6 kg/ha. The figure
below compare India’s per hectare pesticide usage with
othercountries.

Pesticide consumption by country
in 2021(kg/ha)

India
us
World
Asia
Brazil
Japan

China 13.1

Source : FAOSTAT

Lack of education and awareness among farmers: It is
important to educate the farmers about the appropriate
kind of pesticide, its dosage, quantity and application
frequency. However it is not easy to reach the farmers
owing to differences in regional languages and dialects
and a general inertia towards adoption of newer products
onaccountof possiblerisks of crop failure.

Liquidly crunch: The sector is facing stretched working
capital as the entire value chain, starting from the farmer,
isfacingliquidity problem.

Regulatory framework: The Indian agrochemicals
industry is requlated by the Directorate of Plant
Protection, Quarantine and Storage which consists of



bodies like the Central Bureau of Insecticides and
Registration Committee (CBI&RC) and Central, regional
and state pesticides testinglaboratories. The Insecticides
Act, 1968, and the Insecticide Rules, 1971, are the two major
acts that reqgulate the industry. Changes in Rules and
Regulations pose challenges to adapt and alter the
presentarrangements.

. Company Overview

We, Insecticides (India) Limited (IIL) is India’s one of the
fastest growing Agro chemicals manufacturing company.
IIL has emerged as a front-line performer in India’s crop
caremarketandisall settogrowimpressively.lIL ownsthe
prestigious “Tractor Brand” which is highly popular among
the farmers pan India. This umbrella brand of its agro
products signifies the company’s deep connection with
the farming community. The largest selling brands of IIL
include Nuvan, Lethal Gold, Hercules, Pulsar, Green Label,
Hakamaandlethal superetc.

Our vision is to build a globally respected organization
delivering the best-of-breed crop care solutions to the
farmers. We are guided by our value system which
motivates our attitude and actions. Our core value is to
increase the income and wealth of the farmers and to
provide the solution through technology driven and
innovative products.

Our strategic objective is to build a sustainable
organization that remains relevant to the agenda for our
consumers, while creating growth opportunity for our
employees and generating profitable returns for our
investors.

IIL stands today amongst the leading agrochemical
companies in India. With a strong product portfolio and a
pan India presence; we are among the few companies in
the country to have a complete integrated portfolio. IIL
today is a fully integrated company with R&D capabilities,
Technical synthesis, large formulation facilities, edge to
edge product portfolio, leading brands in the kitty, global
tie ups and strong distribution network, which helps the
company toreachthe farmerspanindia.

Engaged in the manufacturing and marketing
of crop-protection products

Four product categories : Insecticides, Herbicides,

Fungicides, Biologicals and Plant Growth Regulators
(PGRs)

Distribution network of 375+ SKUs, 5,000+ Distributors
and 60,000+ retail networks

Total 16 registration approved under 9(3)

4 R&D centres - Developing a comprehensive
range of agro chemical products

State-of-the-art manufacturing facilities in
Chopanki (Rajasthan), Samba & Udhampur

(Jammu & Kashmir) and Dahej (Gujarat)

Owner of the prestigious Tractor brand, highly
popular among the farmers

®
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60,000+

Formulation Retail Outlets

Products i
Technical

2 1 Products

Maharatna | T

Products FY21 New

Product launches*

1,250+

Employees

Annual Target
of New Product
launches*

. Segment-wise and Product wise Performance

The Company has flexible manufacturing approach with a
combination of in-house manufacturing as well as an
outsourcing model supported by strong in-house R&D.
The capacity of our multi-purpose plants ranges from
kilograms to multi-tonnes. We have a long-term
experience of Technical and Formulations. Our R&D
division are established at strategic locations within the
proximity of Manufacturing Plants at Chopanki
(Rajasthan), Shamli (UP) and Dahej (Gujarat) and supports
our Formulationsand Techincal manufacturing segment.

NET SALES BY PRODUCT CATEGORY
2%

M Insecticides
®m Herbicides
® Fungicides
® PGR

. Financial Highlights

FY2020 was a challenging year for the world. The agro-
chemical sector was also impacted owing to availability of
raw material and packaging material with on ground sales
and logistics constraints also created pressure on the
businesses. However, our encouraging results are a true
testament to our focused strategies and resilience amidst
such adversities and in a short span of time, its output
performance begantoimprove.

The Company’s Revenue from Operation was Rs. 1,420.23
Crores in FY 2021 as compare to Rs. 1,363.20 Crore in FY
2020. Reported increase by 4.2%. Total branded sales
declined marginally by 0.4%, while, Maharatna sales grew
by 3.7% whereas other branded
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The Company’s Net Profit for FY 2021is Rs. 93.43 Crore as
compare to Rs. 86.00 Crore in FY 2020 reported increase
0f8.6%.

Ratio Analysis :

FY FY

Ratios Formula 2021 | 2020 Deviation
Inventories | [(Inventories*
Turrwover No. of days)/ 2.99 1.89 58.08%
Ratio COGS]
(in days)
Interest [EBIT/
Coverage Finance 20.36 5.63 | 261.82%
Ratio Cost]
Current [Current
Ratio Assets/Current 1.86 1.81 2.43%
Liabilities]
Debt Equity | [Debt/
Ratio Shareholders 0.25 0n -54.81%

Equity]

Operating [EBIT/
Profit Revenue from 1.0057 | 1.0097 | -0.3888%
Margin Ratio | Operations]

Net Profit [Profit Before

Margin Ratio | Tax/Revenue 0.07 0.06 3.86%
from Operations]

RO a2 | ns|  -3m%

Net Worth | year/Net Worth] ‘ : e

Inventory Turnoverand Debtor Turnover

The Company strategically improved its Inventory and
debtor turnover by fast movement of Inventory and
reducedthedebtorcycle.

Debt

The consolidated debt of the Company as on March 31,
2021stood at Rs. 9636.62 lakhs, against Rs. 18762.14 lakhs
lastyear. Overall working capital utilisationreduced due to
timely realisation of debtors leading to improvement in
interestcoverageratioaswell.

Financial Condition

Insecticides India monitors its financial position regularly
and deploys a robust cash management system. The
Company has adequate liquidity at an optimum cost to
meet its business and liquidity requirements. CRISIL has
rated A/Stable for long term debt and Al for short term
debt.

. HumanResources

During the year amid lockdown period the Company
accorded paramount priority to Employee health and
welfare and ensured that its commitment towards
payment to the vendors and work force are duly met. With
the help of technology, the respective teamswere actively
engaged with Customers and Vendors. Under review,

there was a cordial relationship with all the employees.
Amid COVID-19 loss of production were for very brief
period; however the production was resumed with limited
workforce. The directors would like to acknowledge and
appreciate the contribution of all employees towards the
performance of the Company. As on March 31, 2021, the
Companydirectly employed more than1,272 people.

. Researchand Development

Insecticides (India) Ltd. has been directing its focus on
Research and Development for development of more
technicals. Being one of the few companies engaged into
formulations and technicals, it is investing into R&D to
rigorous extent at present for bridging the gap and rapid
growth.

The Company having State-of-the-art in house R&D
centre augmented by product innovation R&D center,
formulation R&D centre and biological R&D centre
approved by DSIR, Ministry of Science and Technology
whichisengagedin development of new formulations and
new combinations. Formulation R&D Centre is dedicated
to Development of new generation formulations and
Focus on cost reduction, customer friendly and
environment safe products wherein Biological R&D centre
which is equipped with bio assay and focuses on Bio-
productdevelopment.

The Company’'s R&D unit, established in JV with Japanese
Company already operational is expecting to produce new
products which would help the Company achieve new
heights of success and partner the growth of the
agriculture sector. The Company's QC labs are NABL
accredited, which has dedicated professional scientist
who carry out a wide range of chemical reactions with an
analytical support of GC, HPLC, GC Mass, AAS, UV and
Infrared Spectrophotometeretc.

. Riskmanagement

Risks and its effect are possible events or possibilities
that could have animpact on the Company’s performance
or results. lIL analyses business risks followed by a
detailed mitigatingapproach.

Risk of fluctuationsin prices of key inputs

Prices of the raw material, technical’s, active molecules
used in the products manufactured and marketed by the
Company remain volatile due to several market-related
factors, including changes in government policies and
fluctuationsintheforeignexchangerates.

Mitigation: The Company enters into short and long term
contracts to reduce the impact of price volatility. Its
proximity to raw material (being close to ports)and multi-
vendorsupporthashelpedreduce costs.

Risk of competitionand price pressure

The Company’'s products enjoy leading positions in their
respective categories, the risk of competition from
existing players, as well as from new entrants, remains
high.
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Mitigation: the Company’'s strength in the market place is
due to its strong hold of dealers and distributers coupled
with its continuous thrust on improving the quality of its
products and offering newer products in the every
segment. During the FY 2020 the Company has launched 8
products. The Company supplies its products in both
retail as well as institutional segments. Both segments
have their own nuances in terms of customer
expectations, competition and pricing. However, the
Company is well focused on increasing its share in all
segments through a sound marketing strategy and a
balancedapproach.

Economicrisk: Major slowdown due to COVID-19

The ongoing COVID-19 pandemic is likely to impact the
country’s economy through various vectors of growth.
Fewkeyvectorsare:

A. Supply Challenges - Availability of raw materials and
intermediate materials. Higher input prices and
reduced profitability, leading to decline in capacity
building.

B. Global and domestic demand - Amid Covid19 the Indian
farmers earning has been in hit substantially due to
previous season. Further reduced wealth effect of
farmers due to various issues in their jobs or business
due to COVID-19 has contributed to steep fall in the
demand.

C. Marketing strategy: Customer outreach will continue
to be a major challenge due to restrictions on
movement, coupled with reduced budgets available for
marketinginitiatives.

Mitigation: The company has secured its supply’s through
advance booking and reached to the alternative suppliers
as well, further awareness program for the farmers has
been placed by the marketing teams of the Company,
online classes, online product information through social
media has been used by the team to reach farmers,
dealersanddistributers.

10. Internal Control System

The Company has established a well-defined process of
risk management, wherein the identification, analysis and
assessment of the various risks, measuring the probable
impact of such risks, formulation of risk mitigation
strategy and implementation of the same takes place ina
structured manner. Though the various risks associated
with the business cannot be eliminated completely, all
efforts are made to minimise the impact of such risks on
the operations of the Company. Necessary internal
control systems are also put in place by the Company on
various activitiesacrossthe board to ensure that business
operations are directed towards attaining the stated
organisational objectives with optimum utilisation of
resources. Apart from these internal control procedures,
a well-defined and established system of internal audit is
in operation to independently review and strengthen
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these control measures, which is carried out by a reputed
firm of Chartered Accountants. The Audit Committee of
the Company regularly review the reports of the internal
auditors and recommends actions for further
improvement of operations in general and financial
controlsinparticular.

Environment, Safety and Health Parameters

The Company has been following a stringent policy for
implementing an Environmental management System
(EMS)for meeting the purpose of organization’s policy and
objectives regarding environment. It aims at use of
processes, practices, techniques, materials, products,
servicesorenergytoavoid, reduce orcontrol the creation,
emission or discharge of any type of pollutant or waste, in
order to reduce adverse environmental impacts.
Occupational Health & Safety describes the Occupational
Health & Safety Management System adopted by the
Company, the elements of the OHSAS 18001:2007
standard and measures stipulated for ensuring the
conformance to the Occupational Health & Safety
Management System, legal & statutory requirements,
continual improvement and satisfaction of interested
parties(i.e.customers, suppliers, employeesand public)

Corporate Social Responsibility

Growing Together: Accomplishing the role of responsible
corporate concerned about the overall growth of farmers,
our CSR engagement is driven through two specific
imperative: Farmer awareness and Child Education.
Insecticides (India) Limited strongly believes in inclusive
economic growth. The Company's CSR initiatives are
based on this principle of sustainable development of the
society as whole. Most of the CSR activities of the
Companyare carried out underthe aegis of lIL Foundation.

|IL foundation recognises the importance of education in
socio-economic development. Focussing on schools in
rural areas of Punjab & UP, the organisation provides
scholarships along with stationary, study material to the
students across village schools. The activities like Project
Vidhya include distribution of books and study material to
children and empowering them towards leading a better
life. Another campaign was launched by the name of
Kisaan Jagruta Abhiyan, where farmers of the several
districts in most of the states were uneducated and
unable to use the new technology, unable to safe use the
agro chemicals.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

The statementsinthe“Management Discussion & Analysis
Report” describing the Company’s objectives,
expectationsand forecasts may be forward looking within
the meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations.
The actual results may differ from those expressed or
implied, depending upon the economic and climatic
conditions, government policies and other incidental
factors.
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BOARD'S REPORT

Dear Members,

The Board of Directors hereby submit the report of the business and operations of your Company('the Company'or'liL’), along with
the audited financial statements, for the financial year ended March 31, 2021.

(%in Millions, except per equity share data)

1. Financial Results and State of Company's Affairs

Operatingrevenue
OtherIncome

Total Revenue

EBITDA

EBITDA Margin(%)

EBIT

EBIT Margin(%)

Finance Cost

PBT before Exceptional Item
PBT before Exceptional Item Margin (%)
Exceptional ltem

Profit After Tax(PAT)

PAT Margin(%)

Earnings Per Share(EPS)

During the year under review, revenue of the company has
increased to Rs. 1,420 Crores from Rs. 1,363 Crores in
FY2020 with a growth rate of 4.2%. EBITDA has
decreased by 2.3% to Rs. 152 Crores from Rs. 155 Crores
as compared to same period last year. Profit after Tax
(PAT) increased by 8.6% to Rs. 93 Crores from Rs. 86
Croresin FY2020.

e Revenue from operations increased, primarily driven
by increase in institutional sales (+19.7%). Total
branded sales declined marginally by 0.4% while
Maharatna sales increased by 3.7%

e Despite Covid-19 challenges the Company able to
deliver stable topline growth with slight decline in
EBITDA margins. However, net profit increased by
8.6% with improvement in profitability margins of the
company during the period

e Company has implemented various cost control
measures and focused on managing working capital
through higher cash sales and collection which has
helped in delivering stable performance during the
year

14202 13632
77 26
14280 13658
1,523 1,559
10.7% 11.4%
1,354 1,344
9.5% 9.8%
67 239
1,287 1,105
9.0% 8.1%
97 0.00
934 860
6.5% 6.3%
45.21 41.63

COVID-19 Updates

Since FY2020, COVID-19 has impacted the life of
every individuals including organizations, the needs
of the business has rapidity changes and
organizations required to adapt according to the
Changing Environment. We, at IIL swiftly reacted
according to the changes and provided the required
support to the workforce, farmers and the
community, when it's needed the most. The Company
puts all its efforts to quickly restore the normalcy of
operations amid an unprecedented global crisis, IIL
continue to succeed as a business with exemplary
governance and responsiveness to the needs of all
our stakeholders.

Dividend

The Company paid an Interim Dividend of Rs. 2/-
(20%) per equity share having face value of Rs. 10/-
each for the financial year 2020-21 as against the
Interim Dividend of Rs. 4/- (40%) per equity share for
the financial year 2019-20. The aforesaid payment of
Interim Dividend may be treated as Final Dividend for
the Financial Year 2020-21.



Share Capital

The Board of directors of the Company has, vide its
Board Meeting held on March 30, 2021, approved the
Buyback by the Company of its fully paid-up Equity
Shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each at a price not
exceeding Rs. 575/- (Rupees Five Hundred and Seventy
Five only) per Equity Share and for an aggregate amount
not exceeding Rs. 60/- Crore (Rupees Sixty Crores only),
from the shareholders/beneficial owners of the
Company excluding its promoters, and members of its
promoter group, and persons who are in control of the
Company, payable in cash from the open market through
the stock exchange mechanism under the Buyback
Regulations in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, as amended read with the
Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014,
the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules,
2014.

The paid up Equity Share Capital of the Company as on
March 31, 2021 was Rs. 2066.78 Lacs. Apart from the
above, there was no change in the Company's Share
Capital during the year under review.

Credit Rating

The Company enjoys a good reputation for its sound
financial management and ability to meet in financial
commitments.

CRISIL, a S&P Global Company, a reputed Rating Agency,
has re-affirmed the credit rating of CRISIL A/Stable for
the long-term and CRISIL A1l for the Short-term Bank
facilities.

Award and Recognitions

Your Company received awards at various industry
platforms in the area of Management, corporate
management, digital engagement, and corporate social
responsibility.

Particulars of Loans given, Investment made,
Guarantees given And Securities provided

During the FY2021 your Company has not granted any
Loan, Guarantee or provided securities under Section
186 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules framed
thereunder.

Deposits

Your Company has not accepted any deposits under
Section 73 and 74 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
and no amount of principle or interest was outstanding
as of Balance Sheet date.

Companies which have become or ceased to be its
Subsidiary Company, Associate Company And Joint
Venture Company

There is no subsidiary of the Company during the year
under review.
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The Company has “OAT &IIL India Laboratories Private
Limited” as its joint venture within the meaning of
Section 2(6) of the Act, as on March 31, 2021.

Further, during the year under review, no company have
become or ceased to be its subsidiary, associate or joint
venture Company.

A highlights of performance of associates and joint
venture along with there contribution to all overall
performance of the Company during the period are
provided in form AOC-1and annexed as Annexure - 1.

Consolidated Financial Statements

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company
for the Financial Year 2020-21 are prepared in
compliance with the applicable provisions of the Act,
Accounting Standards and Regulations as prescribed by
Securities and Exchange Board of India SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, (SEBI “Listing Regulations”).

The Consolidated Financial Statement have been
prepared on the basis of audited financial statements of
the Company and its Joint Venture Company, as
approved by their respective Board of Directors.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 136 of the Act, the
Financial Statements of the Company, the Consolidated
Financial Statements along with all relevant documents
and the Auditor's Report thereon form part of this
Annual Report. The Financial Statements as stated
above are also available on the website
https://www.insecticidesindia.com/investors-desk/ of
the Company.

Transfer to Reserves

During the year under review, your directors do not
propose to transfer any amount to the reserves.

Management's discussion and analysis

Management's Discussion and Analysis Report for the
year under review, as stipulated under Regulation 34
read with Schedule V of the SEBI “Listing Regulations”, is
presented in a separate section forming part of the
Annual Report. Certain Statements in the said report
may be forward-looking. Many factors may affect the
actual results, which could be different from what the
Directors envisage in terms of the future performance
and outlook.

Corporate Social Responsibility

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CSR
Committee) has formulated and recommended to the
Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy (CSR
Policy) indicating the activities to be undertaken by the
Company, which has been approved by the Board.

The CSR Policy may be accessed on the Company's
website at the link:
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https://www.insecticidesindia.com/investors-desk/

The key philosophy of all CSR initiatives of the Company
is quided by three core commitments of Scale, Impact
and Sustainability.

The Company has identified following focus areas for
CSR engagement:

e Rural Transformation: Creating sustainable
livelihood solutions, addressing poverty, hunger and
malnutrition.

e Environment: Environmental sustainability,
ecological balance, conservation of natural
resources and promoting bio-diversity.

e Health: Affordable solutions for healthcare through
improved access, awareness and health seeking
behavior.

e Education and Sports: Access to quality education,
training and skill enhancement, building sports &
skills in young students.

o Disaster Response: Managing and responding to
disaster.

e Art, Heritage and Culture: Protection and
promotion of India's art, culture and heritage.

The Company would also undertake other need based
initiatives in compliance with Schedule VIl to the Act.The
annual report on CSR activities is annexed herewith and
marked as Annexure - 2.

Risk Management

The Company has formulated the Risk Management
Policy through which the Company has identified various
risks like, strategy risk, industry and competition risk,
operation risk, liability risks, resource risk, technological
risk, financial risk. The Company faces constant
pressure from the evolving marketplace that impacts
important issues in risk management and threatens
profit margins. The Company emphasizes on those risks
that threaten the achievement of business objectives of
the Group over the short to medium term. Your Company
has adopted the mechanism for periodic assessment to
identify, analyze, and mitigation of the risk.

The appropriate risk identification method will depend
on the application area (i.e. nature of activities and the
hazard groups), the nature of the project, the project
phase, resources available, regulatory requirements and
client requirements as to objectives, desired outcome
and the required level of detail.

The trend line assessment of risks, analysis of exposure
and potential impact shall be carried out. Mitigation
plans shall be finalized, owners identified, and progress
of mitigation actions shall be reqularly and periodically
monitored and reviewed.

Treatment options which are not necessarily mutually
exclusive or appropriate in all circumstances shall be
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driven by outcomes that include:

e Avoidingtherisk,

e  Reducing(mitigating)the risk,

e Transferring(sharing)the risk, and
e  Retaining(accepting)the risk.

The Risk management Policy of the Company is available
at https://www.insecticidesindia.com/investors-desk/
and also annexed herewith as Annexure - 3 to this
Report.

Vigil Mechanism

The Company promotes ethical behaviour in all its
business activities and has put in place a mechanism for
reporting unethical behaviour, fraud, violations, or
bribery. The Company has Vigil Mechanism (Whistle
Blower) Policy under which the employees are free to
report violations of applicable Laws and Regulations and
the Code of Conduct, the same can be accessed through
the Chairman of the Audit Committee. The reportable
matters may be disclosed to the Ethics and Compliance
Task Force which operates under the supervision of the
Audit Committee. Employees may also report to the
Chairman of the Audit Committee. During the year under
review no such complain has been received and no
employee was denied access to the Audit Committee for
reporting violations. The details of the aforementioned
policy is available on the Company's website at
https://www.insecticidesindia.com/investors-desk/

Disclosure of Remuneration & Particulars Of
Employees And Related Disclosures

The information as required in accordance with Section
197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014, the details regarding the
remuneration and other requisite details are mentioned
in the Annexure - 4(a) attached hereto.

List of top 10 employees remuneration are annexed as
Annexure-4(a) under Section 197 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment
and Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014.

No director of the Company who is receiving
commission from the Company is in receipt of any
remuneration or commission from any holding company
or subsidiary company of the Company.

The Remuneration Policy of the company is annexed
herewith as Annexure - 4(b) to this Report.

Directors

Pursuant to the Provisions of Companies Act, 2013
(“Act”), the Shareholders in the 23" AGM of your company
held on September 04, 2020 appointed Mrs. Praveen
Gupta (DIN: 00180678), as an Independent Non-
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Executive women director of the company for a period of
five years' term upto February 14, 2025. The Board of
Directors on the recommendation of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee has recommended her
Appointment for a period of 5 years.

Mr. Vinod Kumar Mittal (DIN: 07421742) ceased to be an
Independent Director of the company w.e.f. December
21, 2020 due to the health issues. The Board places on
record its appreciation towards valuable contribution
made by Mr. Vinod Kumar Mittal during his tenure as an
Independent Director of the Company.

Pursuant to the Provisions of Companies Act, 2013 ("Act”)
and the Articles of Association of the Company, Mrs.
Nikunj Aggarwal, (DIN: 06569091) director of the
Company retire by rotation at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting of the Company and being eligible, offer
herself, for re-appointment. The Board of Directors on
the recommendation of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee has recommended her re-
appointment.

The information of Directors, seeking appointment/ re-
appointment, pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the Listing
Regulations and Companies Act, 2013 is provided in the
notice of the 24" Annual General Meeting of the
Company.

Allthe Independent directors have given declaration that
they meet the criteria of Independence laid down under
Sectionl149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Regulation 16(b)of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

Meeting of the Board

During the financial year 2020-21, the Board of Directors
met 5 (Five) times, the details of which are given in the
Corporate Governance Report that forms part of the
Annual Report. The notice along with Agenda of each
Board Meeting was given in writing to each Director. The
intervening gap between any two meetings was within
the period prescribed by the Act and SEBI Listing
Requlations.

Performance Evaluation Report

In terms of Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Listing
Requlations, there is requirement of formal evaluation
by the Board of its own performance and that of its
committees and individual directors.

The evaluation of Board of its own performance and that
of its committees and individual directors was
conducted based on criteria and framework adopted by
the Board. The evaluation criteria have been explained in
the Nomination and Remuneration Policy adopted by the
Board. The details of the aforementioned policy is
available on the Company's website at

https://www.insecticidesindia.com/investors-desk/

20.
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Familiarisation Programme for Independent Directors

Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 25 of the SEBI
Listing Regulations, the Company has formulated a
programme for familiarising the Independent Directors
with the Company, their roles, rights, responsibilities in
the Company, nature of the industry in which the
Company operates, business model of the Company etc.
through various initiatives. The details of the
aforementioned programme is available on the
Company's website at

https://www.insecticidesindia.com/investors-desk/

Further, the Company has received declaration from all
the Independent Directors, as envisaged in sub section
(6) of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Board Committees

In compliance with the requirements of the Act and SEBI
Listing Regulations, your Board had constituted various
Board Committees including Audit Committee,
Nomination & Remuneration Committee, Stakeholders
Relationship Committee, Finance Committee and
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee.

Details of the constitution of these Committees, which
are in accordance with regulatory requirements, have
been uploaded on the website of the Company viz.
https://www.insecticidesindia.com/board-of-directors/
Details of scope, constitution, terms of reference,
number of meetings held during the year under review
along with attendance of Committee Members therein
forms part of the Corporate Governance Report annexed
herewith this report. A detailed report on Corporate
Social Responsibility activities initiated by the Company
during the year under review, in compliance with the
requirements of Companies Act, 2013, is annexed with
thisreport.

Key Managerial Personnel

During the financial year under review, there was no
change in the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company.

The following persons have been continued to be
designated as Key Managerial Personnel of the Company
pursuant to Section 2(51) of the Act, read with the Rules
framed there under.

1. ShriHari Chand Aggarwal - Chairman &WTD

2. ShriRajesh Aggarwal - Managing Director

3. Smt. NikunjAggarwal - Whole-time Director

4. ShriSandeep Kumar - Company Secretary & CCO
5. ShriSandeepAggarwal - Chief Financial Officer

During the financial year 2020-21, all the necessary
information, as mentioned in Part A of Schedule Il of
SEBI Listing Regulations, has been placed before the
board for discussion and consideration.
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Directors Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013,
the Board of Directors, to the best of their knowledge
and ability, confirm that:

in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year
ended March 31, 2021, the applicable accounting
standards had been followed along with proper
explanation relating to material departures;

the directors had selected such accounting policies and
applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give
atrue and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the
Company for the year;

the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for
the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 for safequarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irreqularities;

the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a
going concern basis.

the directors had laid down internal financial controls to
be followed by the Company and that such internal
financial controls are adequate and were operating
effectively;

the directors had devised proper systems to ensure
compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and
that such systems were adequate and operating
effectively.

Contracts Or Arrangements With Related Parties

Your Company has formulated a policy on related party
transactions which is also available on Company's
website at the link
https://www.insecticidesindia.com/investors-desk/ .
The Board of Directors of the Company has approved the
criteria for making the omnibus approval by the Audit
Committee within the overall framework of the policy on
related party transactions. Prior omnibus approval is
obtained for related party transactions which are of
repetitive nature and entered in the ordinary course of
business and at arm's length. All related party
transactions are placed before the Audit Committee for
review and approval.

All related party transactions entered during the
Financial Year were in ordinary course of the business
and on arm's length basis. Disclosure of related party
transactions, as required pursuant to Section 134(3) h) of
the Companies Act, 2013, is provided in Form AOC-2 and
annexed as Annexure -5.

Members may refer to Note No. 38 of the financial
statement which sets out related party disclosures
pursuant to IndAS-24.

25.
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Details in respect of adequacy of Internal Financial
Controls

The Board has adopted the policies and procedures for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of business,
including adherence to the Company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records and timely preparation of
reliable financial disclosures.

Along with external Internal Auditor, the Company has an
in-house Internal Audit department with a team of
qualified professionals. The internal audit department
prepares an annual audit plan based on risk assessment
and conducts extensive reviews covering financial,
operational and compliance controls. Improvements in
processes are identified during reviews and
communicated to the management on an ongoing basis.
The Audit Committee of the Board monitors the
performance of the internal audit team on a periodic
basis through review of audit plans, audit findings and
issue resolution through follow-ups. Each year, there are
at least four meetings in which the Audit Committee
reviews internal audit findings.

Details of Significant & Material Orders passed by the
regulator or Courts

No significant and material order has been passed by the
Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting the going
concern status of the Company and Company's
operations in future, details of which needs to be
disclosed in the board's report as Section 134 (3)q) read
with rule 8 of Companies(Accounts)Rules, 2014.

Material Changes and Commitments

There have been no material changes and commitments
affecting the financial position of the company which
have occurred between the end of the financial year of
the Company to which the financial statements relate
and the date of the report.

Auditors

a) Statutory Auditors

M/s SS Kothari Mehta & Company., Chartered
Accountants (ICAl Regd. No.: 000756N) and M/s Devesh
Parekh & Co., Chartered Accountants (ICAl Regd. No.:
013338N) were appointed as Auditors of the Company at
the Annual General Meeting held on August 08, 2017, for
term of 5 (Five) consecutive Years. They have confirmed
that they are not disqualified from continuing as
Auditors of the Company.

The Notes on financial statement referred to in the
Auditors' Report are self-explanatory and do not call for
any further comments. The Auditors' Report does not
contain any qualification, reservation, adverse remark or
disclaimer.



During the year under review, the Auditors had not
reported any matter under Section 143(12) of the Act,
therefore no detail is required to be disclosed under
Section 134(3)ca) of the Act.

b) Secretarial Auditor

The Board of Directors had appointed Akash Gupta &
Associates, Company Secretaries, (PCS Regis. No.
11038), to conduct Secretarial Audit for FY 2020-
2021. During the year under review the company
complies with all applicable Secretarial Standards.
The Secretarial Report annexed to this report are
self-explanatory and do not call for any further
comments. The Secretarial Audit Report does not
contain any qualification, reservation, adverse
remark or disclaimer.

During the year under review, the Auditors had not
reported any matter under Section 143 (12) of the Act,
therefore no detail is required to be disclosed under
Section 134 (3)ca) of the Act.

In terms of Section 204 of the Companies Act,2013,
the Audit Committee recommended and the Board of
Directors appointed M/s. Akash Gupta & Associates,
Company Secretaries (PCS Registration No.11038) as
the Secretarial Auditors of the Company in relation to
the financial year 2021-22. The Company has
received their consent for appointment.

A Secretarial Compliance Report for the financial
year ended March 31, 2021 as required under
Regulation 24A of SEBI(LODR) Regulations 2015 has
been submitted to the stock exchanges within due
time.

c) Cost Auditor

In terms of the requirement of Section 148 of the Act
read with Companies (Cost Records and Audits)
Rules, 2014, the cost audit records maintained by the
Company is required to be audited. The Audit
Committee recommended and the Board of
Directors appointed M/s Aggarwal Ashwani K &
Associates, Cost Accountants, as Cost Auditors of
the Company, to carry out the cost audit for the
financial year 2021-22. The Company has received
their written consent that the appointment is in
accordance with the applicable provisions of the Act
and rules framed thereunder. The remuneration of
Cost Auditors has been approved by the Board of
Directors on the recommendation of Audit
Committee and in terms of the Companies Act, 2013
and Rules thereunder the requisite resolution for
ratification of remuneration of Cost Auditors by the
members has been set out in the Notice of the 24"
Annual General Meeting of your Company.

The Cost Auditors'Report are self-explanatory and do
not call for any further comments. The Cost Audit
Report of the relevant period does not contain any
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qualification, reservation, adverse remark or
disclaimer.

During the FY 2020-21, the Cost Auditor has not
reported any matter under Section 143(12) of the Act,
therefore no details is required to be disclosed under
Section 134(3)ca) of the Act.

d) Internal Auditors

29.
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The Board of Directors on recommendation of the
Audit Committee, appointed M/s. Aditi Gupta &
Associates, Chartered Accountants as Internal
Auditors of the Company for the financial year 2021-
22.

The Internal Auditors' Report submitted to the Board
were not contained any qualification, reservation,
adverse remark or disclaimer, however suggestions
given by the internal auditors for the improvement of
the system were taken by the management.

Corporate Governance

The Company is committed to maintain the highest
standards of Corporate Governance and adhere to
the Corporate Governance requirements set out by
the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI).
The report on Corporate Governance as stipulated
under the Listing Regulations forms an integral part
of this Report. The requisite certificate from the
Auditors of the Company confirming compliance with
the conditions of Corporate Governance is attached
to the report on Corporate Governance.

Business Responsibility Report

The Listing Regulations mandate the inclusion of the
BRR as part of the Annual Report for the top 1,000
listed entities based on market capitalization. In
compliance with the Listing Regulations, we have
integrated BRR disclosures into our Annual Report as
Annexure - 6. The Board of Directors has adopted a
Business Responsibility Policy. The said Policy is
available on Company's website at
https://www.insecticidesindia.com/investors-desk/

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption,
Foreign Exchange Earnings & Outgo

In terms of requirement of clause (m) of sub-section
(3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with the Companies (Account)s Rules, 2014, the
particulars relating to conservation of energy,
technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings
and outgo, as required to be disclosed under the Act,
are provided in Annexure -7 to this report.

Annual Return

In accordance with Section 134 (3) (a) of the Act, the
annual return for the financial year 2020-21 is
available on Company's website at
https://www.insecticidesindia.com/investors-desk/

ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21
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Disclosure under the Sexual Harassment of Women at
the Work Place (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal)
Act, 2013

The Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment
Policy (‘Policy') in line with the requirements of The
Sexual Harassment of Women at the Work Place
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. Your
Directors state that during the year under review, no
cases of sexual harassment have been reported.

Further, the company has complied with provisions
relating to the constitution of Internal Complaints
Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,
2013. The said Policy is available on Company's website
at https://www.insecticidesindia.com/investors-desk/

Pollution Control

The Company has taken various initiatives to keep the
environment free from pollution. It has already installed
various devices in the factories to control the pollution.

Unclaimed Dividend

As per the Companies Act, 2013, dividends that are
unclaimed for a period of seven years, statutorily get
transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund (IEPF) administered by the Central Government.
During the year under review, in terms of provisions of
Investors Education and Protection Fund (Awareness
and Protection of Investors) Rules, 2014, unclaimed
dividend for financial year 2012-13, aggregating to Rs.
56,799.00/- was transferred to Investors Education and
Protection Fund. As per Regulation 43 of the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Requlations, 2015, no shares
are lying in the suspense account of the Company.

Insurance

The Company has taken the required insurance coverage
for its assets against the possible risks like fire, flood,
public liability, marine, burglary etc.

Nature of Business

Place: Delhi
Dated: June 18, 2021

38.

39.

40.

There is no change in the nature of business during the
periodunderreview.

Listing of Securities

The Company's equity shares are listed on BSE Limited &
National Stock Exchange Limited.

Cautionary Statement

Statements in the Board's report and the Management
Discussion and Analysis Report describing the
expectations or predictions, may be forward looking
within the meaning of applicable securities laws and
regulations. Actual results may differ materially from
those expressedin the statement. Important factors that
couldinfluence the Company's operationsinclude: global
and domestic demand and supply conditions affecting
selling prices, new capacity additions, availability of
critical materials and their cost, changes in government
policies and tax laws, economic development of the
country and other factors which are material to the
business operations of the Company.

Appreciation

Your Company has been able to perform efficiently
because of the culture of professionalism, creativity,
integrityand continuousimprovementinall functionsand
areas as well as the efficient utilization of the Company's
resourcesforsustainable and profitable growth.

The Directors hereby wish to place on record their
appreciation of the efficient and loyal services rendered
by each and every employee, without whose whole-
hearted efforts, the overall satisfactory performance
would not have beenpossible.

The Directorsappreciate and value the contribution made
by everymemberof thellL family.

For and on behalf of the Board
Insecticides (India) Limited

Sd/-
(Hari Chand Aggarwal)
Chairman & WTD
DIN-00577015

Sd/-
(Rajesh Aggarwal)
Managing Director

DIN-00576872
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Annexure -1
FORM NO. AOC.1

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of
subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Part "A": Subsidiaries - Not Applicable

Part "B": Associates and Joint Ventures
Statement pursuant to Section129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures

(% in Lacs)

OAT & IIL India Laboratories

Name of Associates/Joint Ventures Private Limited (Joint Venture
Company)

1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date 31.03.2021

2. Date on which the Associate or Joint Venture was associated or acquired 06.03.2013

3. Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the company on the year end

No. 795000
Amount of Investmentin Associates/Joint Venture 795.00
Extend of Holding % 20

Joint Venture Agreement &

4. Description of howthereissignificantinfluence Shareholding of 20% in OATSIL

5.Reasonwhythe associate/joint ventureisnot consolidated NA
6. Networthattributable to Shareholdingas perlatest audited Balance Sheet

7. Profit / Loss for the year

[ Consideredin Consolidation 20%
i Not Consideredin Consolidation 80%

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations. — NIL

2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year.-NIL

For and on behalf of the Board
Insecticides (India) Limited

Sd/- Sd/-
(Hari Chand Aggarwal) (Rajesh Aggarwal)
Place: Delhi Chairman & WTD Managing Director
Dated: June 18, 2021 DIN-00577015 DIN-00576872
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Annexure - 2

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

1.

Brief outline of the Company's Corporate Social Responsibility(CSR) policy:

Insecticides(India) Limited is known for its Social Responsibility for long time before the incorporation of Corporate Social responsibility
in the Companies Act. The Company's CSR Policy is in adherence to the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
rules framed thereunder and provides for carrying out CSR activities.The Company undertake activities relating to rural development
including enhancing environmental and natural capital, supporting rural development, promoting education and vocational skills,
providing preventive healthcare, providing sanitation and drinking water, creating livelihoods for people, especially those from
disadvantaged sections of society, inruraland urbanIndia etc. through various non-profit Organizations, vizIIL Foundation, NavjyotiIndia
Foundation, Shree Aggarsain North Ex Welfare Society, BrahmaKumaris Educational Society and others.

The CSR spend may be carried out by way of donation to the corpus of the above 'Non-Profit Organisations' or contribution towards some
specific project being undertaken by any of the organisations or to Central / State Government Relief Funds or directly by the Company.
The CSR policyisavailable onCompany's website. The web link of the sameishttps://www.insecticidesindia.com/investors-desk/

2. Compositionof the CSRcommittee
Name of Director Designation Number of meetings of CSR Committee held Number of meetings of CSR Committee
during the year attended during the year
Mr. Hari Chand Aggarwal Chairman
Mr. Rajesh Aggarwal Member 4 4
Mr. Virjesh Kumar Gupta Member 4 4
3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the board are disclosed on the
website of the company:
a. Composition of CSR committee  : https://www.insecticidesindia.com/board-of-directors/
b. CSRPolicy : https://www.insecticidesindia.com/investors-desk/
c. CSRprojects : https://www.insecticidesindia.com/investors-desk/
4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy)Rules, 2014, if applicable(attach the report): Not Applicable
5. The details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility
Policy)Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year, if any:
Financial Year Amount available for set-off from preceding | Amount required to be setoff for the
financial years (in Rs) financial year, if any (in Rs)
Not Applicable
6. Average net profit of the Company as per Section 135(5) : Rs. 13,123.53 Lakhs
a. Two percent of average net profit of the company as per Section 135(5) : Rs. 262.47 Lacs
b. Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years : Rs. 44.56 Lacs
c. Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any - Nil
d. Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+ 7b - 7c) : Rs. 307.03 Lacs8.
8 a. CSRamount spent or unspent for the financial year : 2020-2021

Total Amount Spent for the
Financial Year (Rs. in lakhs)

Amount Unspent (in Rs.)

Total Amount transferred to Unspent Amount transferred to any fund specified under Schedule VIl as
CSR Account as per section 135(6). per second proviso to section 135(5).

307.03 Not Applicable

b .Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: 2020-2021

Item from Location of the | Project | Amount Amount Amount Mode of Mode of
the list of project. duration | allocated |spent inthe | transferredto |Implemen Implementation -
Project | activitiesin | (Yes/N for the current Unspent CSR tation | Through Implementing
Schedule VII project (in financial Account for - Direct Agency

to the Act. Rs.). Year(inRs.) | the projectas |(Yes/No).
per Section
135(6) (in Rs.)

CSR
Registration
number.

Not Applicable
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C. Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year : 2020-2021

Name of the Project Item from Location of the Amount Mode of Mode of implementation -
the list of project. spent for | implementati Through implementing
activities in the on agency
schedule VIl project Direct
to the Act (Rs.in (Yes/No) CSR
Lacs) Registration
number
1. KisaanJdagruktaAbhiya (iv) Yes  PANIndia 56.72 No I CSR00002345
n(Training Foundation
programmes to
Farmers)
2. Project Vidya(Child (ii) Yes  PAN India 2.01 No I CSR00002345
educationin rural Foundation
areas)
3. NavjyotiIndia (ii) Yes Delhi; ~ Various 7.00 No - -
Foundation (NGO) Haryana Districts
4. Subhaksiksha (ii) Yes Delhi; ~ Various 6.00 No = =
Educational Society Haryana; Districts
Rajasthan
5. Anil Jindal Memorial (i) Yes Delhi ~ Various 15.00 No = =
Foundation Districts
6. Maharaja Agrasen (i) Yes Delhi  Various 30.00 No - -
Technical Districts

Education Society

7. Maharaja Agrasen (i) Yes Delhi  Various 25.00 No = =
Hospital Charitable Districts
Trust
8. Brahma Kumaris (iii) Yes  PAN India 60.00 No = =
educational Soceity
9. Shree (i) Yes Delhi ~ Various 53.00 No = =
AgresenNorthex Districts
Welfare Society
10. COVID Support - (viii) Yes  PANIndia 11.00 No PM Cares =
PM CARES Fund Fund
1. Social Welfare (i)H(xii) Yes  PAN India 21.54 No IIL CSR00002345
Foundation
12. Other Welfare (i)-(xii) Yes  PANIndia 19.76 No I CSR00002345
Foundation
Total 307.03
d. Amount spentin Administrative Overheads : Nil
e. Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable : NA
f.  Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e) : Rs. 307.03 Lacs
g. Excessamount for set off, if any :NA

e Jpartcur e

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5)
(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year
(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)~(i)] Not Applicable
(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years, if
any
(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)]
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9. a. Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

Preceding | Amount transferred | Amount Spent in | Amount transferred to any fund specified
Financial to Unspent CSR the Reporting | under Schedule VIl as per section 135(6), if
Year Account under Financial any.

Amount remaining
to be spentin

section 135 (6) (Rs. Year (Rs. in succeeding financial

; ears
in lakhs) lakhs) (Rsyin lakhs)

Name of the Amount Date of
Fund (Rs.inlakhs) transfer

1. 2019-2020 - 44.56 = - = -
TOTAL = 44.56 - - - o

b. Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s):

Project | Name of | Financial Year in Project Total Amount spent on | Cumulative amount | Status of
ID. the Which the duration. amount the projectin the | spent at the end of | the project
Project. project was allocated for | reporting Financial | reporting Financial -

commenced. the project ACENOR Year. (inRs.) Completed
(inRs.). /0Ongoing.

Not Applicable

10. Incase of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired through CSR spent in
the financial year (Assets Wise Details) : 2020-2021
a. Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s): NA
b. Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset : NA
c. Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is registered, their address etc : NA
d. Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location of the capital asset) : NA

1. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per section 135(5): Not Applicable

Sd/- Sd/-
(Rajesh Aggarwal) (Hari Chand Aggarwal)
Place: Delhi Managing Director Chairman & WTD
Dated:June 18, 2021 DIN-00576872 DIN-00577015
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Annexure -3

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

PREAMBLE

This Risk Management Policy ("Policy”) is prepared and
adopted to build a framework for risk management of
Insecticides (India) Limited (“Company”), in accordance
with the requirement of Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”),
which has become applicable with effect from 1*April,
2014 and amended Regulation 21 of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (LODR or
Listing Requlations), which has become applicable with
effect from 2™ September, 2015. This Policy is aimed to
develop an approach to make an assessment, and
minimization of the risks in financial, operational and
projectbasedareasinatimely manner.

. PURPOSE

The provisions of the Act and Listing Requlations provides
for the requirement of developing and implementing a
Risk Management Policy ("Policy”) of the Company and a
statement to this effect shall be included in the Report of
Board of Directors (“Board”) every year. The statement
shall contain the identification of risk elements, if any,
whichinthe opinion of the Board may create threat for the
existence of the Company.

OBJECTIVE

A Company is exposed to several types of risks, including
operational and financial risks. The key objective of this
Policy is to ensure sustainable business expansion with
stability, and to promote an upbeat approach in risk
management process by eliminating risk. In order to
achieve this key objective, this Policy provides a prepared
and well-organized approach to manage the various types
of riskassociated with day to day business of the Company
and minimize adverse impact on its business objectives.
Main objectives of the Policy are:

1. Toensurethatallthe current and future material risk
exposures of the Company are identified, assessed,
quantified, appropriately mitigated, minimized and
managed i.e. to ensure adequate systems for risk
management;

2. Toprotect brand value through strategic control and
operational policies;

3. To establish a framework for the Company's risk
management process and to ensure company- wide
implementation;

4. To ensure systematic and uniform assessment of
risksrelated withdifferent projects of the Company;

5.  To enable compliance with appropriate regulations,
wherever applicable, through the adoption of best
practices.

. BACKGROUND ANDIMPLEMENTATION

This document is intended to formalize a risk

management policy for the Company, the objective of
which shall be identification, evaluation, monitoring and
minimization of identifiable and predictable future risks.
The Board of Directors of the Company shall periodically
review and evaluate the risk management system of the
Company so that the management controls the risks
through properly defined network. The head of
Departments shall be responsible for implementation of
the risk management system as may be applicable to their
respective areas of functioning and report to the Board
and/or Audit Committee.

. CATEGORIES OF RISKS

The Company faces constant pressure from the evolving
marketplace that impacts important issues in risk
management and threatens profit margins. The business
is exposed to several kinds of risk from time to time which
include the following:

1. Strategic Risks: These risks concernrisksrelating to
the flux and movement of money and capital in the
Company. This will include cash flow management,
investment evaluation and credit default. These risks
emanate out of the choices, the Company makes in
the markets, resourcesanddelivery of services.

2. Industry and Competition Risks: Risks relating to the
agro chemicalsindustry, including competitionin the
industry, technological landscape, risks arising out of
volatility manufacturing industry, and those relating
tobrandsof the Company.

3. Risk of Theft, Pilferage and Non Delivery: Risks
relating to theft or pilferage when the goods
manufacturedare failed tobe delivered to the buyers.
The risk of Non- delivery concerns a situation where
the whole cargoisnot deliveredto the consignee.

4. Risk of Clash and Breakage: The risk of clash and
breakage is mainly referred to the risks associated
with the manufacturing output caused due to quiver,
bump, squeezing, lacquer desquamation, nick and so
on, in transit. Fragmentation is mainly referred to
fragile substances and includes loss including
breaching and smash in transit due to careless
loading and unloading and bumping of conveyance,
and may alsooccurduringwarehousing.

5. Operational Risks: Most common, and often
combatable in all situations, these risks related to
business operations such as those relating to
determination, identification and procurement of
vendors, services delivery to vendors, security and
surveillance, and business activity disruptions.

6. Currency Risk: The Company deals in various foreign
currencies and is exposed to fluctuations in the
currency marketsfromtimetotime.

7. Resource Risk: The Company may at times, become
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susceptible to various risks associated with the
procurement of talent, capital and infrastructure, as
may be specifictotheindustry.

8. Risks relating to regulatory and compliance
framework: Risks due to inadequate compliance to
regulations, contractual obligations and intellectual
property violations leading to litigations and related
costsandeffectonbrandvalueandimage.

Due to the constant changes in the issues affecting
the business, there is always a need for proactive
solutions for risk prevention and management. A
comprehensive risk policy covering the broadest
spectrum of potential risks will provide the most
protection.

VI. RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS

2.
1. Identification
Establishment g  Of risks
of goal &
context \
3.
Analysis
of risks
7. Communication
& Reporting of
risks
4. Evaluation
of risks
6. Monitoring
of risks \ 5.
Treatment
or risks

ESTABLISHMENT OF GOALS & CONTEXT

The purpose of this stage is to understand the
environment in which the Company operates, keeping in
view its external environment, as well as, internal culture.
For this, the Company shall establish it's strategic,
organizational and risk management context and identify
the constraints and opportunities of its operating
environment.

. IDENTIFICATION OF RISKS

Periodic assessment to identify significant risks for the
Company and prioritizing the risks for action is an
important aspect of this Policy. Mechanisms for
identification and prioritization of risks include risk
survey, scanning of the environment of risks, discussions
about the risks and threats to the Company. A risks
register shall also be maintained, and internal audit
findings shallinclude pointersforriskidentification.

Key questions that may assist identification of risks
include:

To achieve its goals, the Company shall determine when,
where, why, andhow arerisks likely tooccur?

What are therisksassociated withachievingeach goal?

5.

Whatare therisks of notachievingthese goals?

Who are involved (for example, suppliers, contractors,
stakeholders)in the creation, as well as combating of the
same?

The appropriate risk identification method will depend on
the application area (i.e. nature of activities and the
hazard groups), the nature of the project, the project
phase, resources available, regulatory requirements and
client requirements as to objectives, desired outcome
andtherequiredlevel of detail.

ANALYSIS OF RISKS

Risk analysis involves the consideration of the source of
risk, the consequence and likelihood of the risks to
estimate the inherent or unprotected risk without
controls in place. It also involves identification of the
controls, an estimation of their effectiveness and the
resultant level of risk with controlsin place(the protected,
residual or controlled risk). Qualitative, semi-quantitative
and quantitative techniques are all acceptable analysis
techniques depending on the risk, the purpose of the
analysisandtheinformationand dataavailable.

EVALUATION OF RISKS

Once the risks have been analyzed they can be compared
against the previously documented and approved
tolerableriskcriteria.

The decision of whetherariskisacceptable ornotistaken
by the relevant manager. A risk may be considered
acceptableif forexample:

» The risk is sufficiently low that treatment is not
considered cost effective, or

» Atreatmentis not available, e.g. a project terminated
byachange of government, or

» A sufficient opportunity exists that outweighs the
perceivedlevel of threat.

If the manager determines the level of risk to be
acceptable, the risk may be accepted with no further
treatment beyond the current controls. Acceptable risks
should be monitored and periodically reviewed to ensure
they remain acceptable. The level of acceptability can be
organizational criteria or safety goals set by the
authorities.

TREATMENT OF RISKS

For top risks, dashboards shall be created to track
external and internal indicators relevant for risks, so as to
indicate the risk level. The trend line assessment of top
risks, analysis of exposure and potential impact shall be
carried out. Mitigation plans shall be finalized, owners
identified, and progress of mitigation actions shall be
regularly and periodically monitored and reviewed.
Treatment options which are not necessarily mutually
exclusive or appropriate in all circumstances shall be
drivenbyoutcomesthatinclude:

Avoidingtherisk,
Reducing(mitigating)therisk,



- Transferring(sharing)therisk, and

- Retaining(accepting)therisk.

6. MONITORING OF RISKS

It is important to understand that the concept of risk is
dynamic and needs periodic and formal review. The currency
of identified risks needs to be regularly monitored. New risks
and their impact on the Company may to be taken into
account. This step requires the description of how the
outcomes of the treatment will be measured. Milestones or
benchmarks for success and warning signs for failure need to
beidentified.

The review period is determined by the operating
environment (including legislation), but as a general rule a
comprehensive review every three years is an accepted
industry norm. Thisis on the basis that all changes are subject
to anappropriate change processincluding risk assessment.
The review needs to validate that the risk management
process and the documentation is still valid. The review also
needs to consider the current regulatory environment and
industry practices which may have changed significantly in
theinterveningperiod.

The assumptions made in the previous risk assessment
(hazards, likelihood and consequence), the effectiveness of
controls and the associated management system as well as
people need to be monitored on an on-going basis to ensure
riskareinfactcontrolledtotheunderlyingcriteria.

Foran efficientrisk control, the analysis of risk interactionsis
necessary. This ensures that the influences of one risk to
another is identified and assessed. A framework needs to be
in place that enables responsible officers to report on the
following aspects of risk and its impact on the Company's
operations:

= Whatarethekeyrisks?
= Howaretheybeingmanaged?

= Arethe treatment strategies effective? - If not, what else
mustbe undertaken?

= Are there any new risks and what the implications for the
organizationare?

7. COMMUNICATION & REPORTING

Risk updates shall be provided to the Board. Entity level risks
such as project risks, account level risks shall be reported to
and discussed at appropriate levels of the Company. Clear
communication is essential for the risk management
process, i.e. clear communication of the objectives, the risk
management processandits elements, aswellas the findings
andrequiredactionsasaresult of the output.

VIl. ROLE OF THEBOARD

The Board willundertake the following to ensure that the risks
inthe Company are managed appropriately:

« The Board shall be responsible for framing, implementing
and monitoring the risk management plan for the
Company;
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« The Board shall ensure that appropriate systems for risk
managementareinplace;

« The Board shall ensure allocation of priorities and
resourcesinaddressingrisks;

« The independent directors of the Company shall help in
bringing an independent judgment to bear on the Board's
deliberations on issues of risk management and satisfy
themselves that the systems of risk management are
robustanddefensible;

« The Board shall actively participate in major decisions
affectingthe Company'srisk profile;

« The Board may constitute any committees to ensure that
risks are adequately managed and resolved where
possible;

« The Board may deploy mechanisms to monitor
compliance withthe Policy.

The Chief Financial Officer will gather and review information
and data, be thorough in assessments, seek independent or
expert advice where appropriate and provide direction and
guidance to the Board of Directors in terms of decision-
making.

In fulfilling the duties of risk management, the Chief Financial
Officer may have unrestricted access to Company
employees, contractors and records and may obtain
independent expert advice on any matter they believe
appropriate, withthe approval of the Board.

VIII.RISKREGISTRATION, TREATMENT & REPORTING

The Company should make the risk registers in which the
managers to record, the risk description, an assessment of
that risk, the responsible officer for managing that risk &
treatmentplans.

Thisinformation providesausefultool for managers & staff to
consider in both strategic & operational planning & the
registerwillbe available to managers & staff.

The Board of the Company will monitor the risk profile of the
organization with particular regard to those risks that exceed
anacceptablerisklevel.

The management of risk will be integrated into organization's
existing planning & operational processes & will be
recognized in the funding & quarterly reporting mechanisms,
on the basis of the evaluation of the level of risk &
organization'sexposure.

IX. DISCLOSURE IN BOARD'S REPORT

Board of Directors shall include a statement in their Board's
Report, indicating development and implementation of a Risk
Management Policy for the Company, including identification
therein of elements of risk, if any, which in the opinion of the
Board may threatenthe existence of the Company.

X. REVIEW

This Policy shall be reviewed annually, to ensure that it meets
the requirements of the law and its provisions, and the needs
of Company.
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Annexure - 4(a)

Statement of Disclosure of Remuneration under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule
5(1) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

a. The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the . . .
median remuneration of the employees of the Company Name of Director | Director/ % Increase in
. . and KMP KMP remuneration
forthe financialyear2020-21:
. Chairman
Table no. | 1'in Lacs) 1 0z R i) Cum Whole-time  Nil

Aggarwal Director
Ratio to
M 2 Mr.Rajesh Aggarwal Managing Director Nil

Mr. Hari Chand Aggarwal Chairman & (WTD)  166:1 3 Mrs. Nikunj Aggarwal Whole-time Nil

Director
2 Mr. Rajesh Aggarwal Managing Director  163:1 4 Mr. Sandeep Chief Financial Nil
Aggarwal Officer
- Whole-time
3 Mrs. Nikunj Aggarwal Director 18.84:1 §  Mr.Sandeep Kumar gompany Nil
ecretary
Table no. I (UinLacs) c. The percentage increase in the median remuneration of
Ratio to the employees for the financial year is Nil. The median
Name of Director Designation .
Employee remuneration of the employee of the company for the
Mr. Virjesh Kumar Independent Director 1.03:1 financialyearwereRs. 2.42/-Lakhs(Per Annum)
Gupta

d. Total number of employees of the Company for the
Financial Year was 1,272. The Company has maintained
peaceful and harmonious relations with all its

2 Mr. Navin Shah Independent Director 1.03:1

3 Mr.Vinod Kumar Mittal Independent Director 0.61:1

employees.
4 Mr. Jayaraman Independent Director 1.44:1 e. Average percentileincreaseinthe salaries of employees
Swaminathan and managerial remuneration is Nil. Amid COVID-19
5  Mrs. Praveen Gupta Additional 1.03:1 Pandemic the Company decides not to increase the
Independent Director salary during the period. The Company's remuneration

philosophy is to ensure that it is competitive in the
Pesticides industry in which it operates, for attracting

Notes: andretainingthe best talent.
1. DirectorsatabovetablellareIndependent Directors f.  The company affirms that the remuneration is as per the
andreceivedonlysittingfeeduringtheyear. Remuneration policy of the Company.
2. Out of pocket expenses incurred by them for 4 statement showing the names and other details of the
attendingthe meetingsnot takenintoaccount. top tenemployees in terms of remuneration drawn along
b. The percentage increase in remuneration of each with other particulars. All these employees are in whole
Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer, time employment of the Company.
Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial
year:
(77 in Lacs)

% of
shareholding | Relationship to any
in the Director or Manager
Company

Designation/ Remuneration Date of Previous
Nature of Qualification X o Employment &
p.a Experience | Joining X p
Duty Designation

Name

and Age

Father of Mr. Rajesh

Mr. Hari
. . 73 Years/ 01711/ . Aggarwal, MD and
2ha2?wa| Chairman 402.00 High School 45 Years 2001 Own Business 4.47 Fatherin-law of Mrs.
99 Nikunj Aggarwal, WTD
Mr Son of Mr. Hari Chand
" Managing 51Years/ 01711/ . Aggarwal, Chairman
EajeasrTNal Director skl R 28 Years 2001 Dt BT — and Husband of Mrs.
99 Nikunj Aggarwal, WTD
Wife of Mr. Rajesh
Mrs. oA Aggarwal, MD and
Nom (e 4563  BA 48 Years/ 0205/ o1 Business 544 Daughter-in-law of Mr.
Director 14 Years 2013 .
Aggarwal Hari Chand Aggarwal,

Chairman
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. . . % of
Name and LR IELT Remuneration APt Age / Date of HLOTEIT shareholding | Relationship to any
/ Nature of Qualification 5 v Employment & A A
Age p.a Experience | Joining X A in the Director or Manager
Duty Designation c
ompany
M/s Solrex
Mr. Sunil . Pharmaceutica ) L
KA KGE 3670  otechin o S3Years/ 0000016 ILtd, Sr. 0.00  NoRelationshipwith
Purchase Chemicals 32 Years Directors
Wasan General
Manager
Mr. . -
Sandeep  CFO aay  |CERECE SSVEEEE e | Eustines 0.00  NoRelationshipwith
Accountant 32 Years Directors
Aggarwal
Mr. Arun VP~ Phd 61 Years/ M/s UPL No Relationship with
L Institutional 33.80 ' 29/10/1960 . . 0.00 . P
Kohli Sales Management 41Years Limited Directors
M/s Dhanuka
Mr. Sanjay G.M, Market 53 Years/ Agritech Ltd, No Relationship with
Singh Development Al =t 28 Years Rl ez Sr. Product Ly Directors
Manager
Phd,
Dr. Lokesh Synthetic Crystal Crop . -
Chander g;;ﬁl:‘ 28.02  Organic gg i::::/ 09/06/1953 Production 0.00 gﬁfcetfrtf”smp Ui
Rohela y Chemistry, Private Limited
1IT-Delhi
. V.P.- M/s Hikal Ltd, . -
Mr. Srikant International 26.71 MSC and 58 Years/ 08/12/2014 Head 0.00 N.o Relationship with
S Satwe . PGDMS 33 Years . Directors
Business Marketing
Mr.Vinod V.P.-Sales & . R
Kumar  Marketing 26.29 B.Com LLB 237838/ 41082002 - 0.00 No Relationship with
. 37 Years Directors
Garg (South India)
Dr M/s Hindustan
) Pulverising . L
Mukesh GM-R&D 95.89 P.hd and 59 Years/ 21/12/2001 Mills, Manager 0.00 N'O Relationship with
Kumar MSC 28 Years 0c & Directors
Aggarwal Production
Mr.PC Sr. V.P.- 60 Years/ No Relationship with
L Dales & 24.43 Graduate 23/03/1961 Own Business 0.00 . P
Pabbi ) 35 Years Directors
Marketing
For and on behalf of the Board
Insecticides (India) Limited
Sd/- Sd/-
(Hari Chand Aggarwal) (Rajesh Aggarwal)
Place: Delhi Chairman & WTD Managing Director
Dated:June 18, 2021 DIN-00577015 DIN-00576872
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Annexure -4(b)

“NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION & BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY"

Legal Framework

Inanendeavor to make the hiring of directors, KMP & other senior
official more transparent, the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’)
requires the Company to have the Nomination & Remuneration
Policy for inter-alia, setting up the criteria of Nomination of
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel & Senior Management and
Remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, Senior
Management and other employees. The constitution of
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and this Policy is in
compliance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
along with the rules there under and Regulation of SEBI (Listing
Obligationsand Disclosure Requirements)Regulations, 2015.

Definitions

Forthe purpose of thisPolicy:'

= ‘Act'shallmeanthe CompaniesAct, 2013;'

=  ‘Board' shall mean the Board of Directors of Insecticides
(India)Limited;'

= ‘Committee’ shall mean the Nomination and Remunera-
tion Committee of the Company, constituted and re-
constituted by the Board from time to time;'

= ‘Company'shallmean Insecticides(India)Limited;
=  ‘Directors'shallmeanthedirectorsof the Company;'

= ‘Independent Director' shall mean a director referred to in
Section149(6)of the CompaniesAct, 2013;'

= ‘KeyManagerial Personnel(KMP) shallmeanthefollowing:

(I) Executive Chairman and / or Managing Director (MD)
and/or Manager

(i) Whole-time Director(WTD);

(i) Chief Financial Officer(CFO);

(iv) Company Secretary(CS);

(v) Suchotherofficerasmaybe prescribed.’

e ‘Senior Management' shall mean personnel of the company
who are members of its core management team excluding
the Board of Directors. This would also include all members
of management one level below the executive directors
includingallfunctional heads.

OBJECTIVE & PURPOSE
The objective and purpose of this Policy are as follows:

=  Tolaydown criteriaand terms and conditions with regard to
identifying persons who are qualified to become Directors
(Executive and Non-Executive) and persons who may be
appointed in Senior Management and Key Managerial
positions and to determine remuneration of Directors, Key
Managerial Personneland Other Employees.

= To determine remuneration based on the Company's size
and financial position and trends and practices on
remuneration prevailing in peer companies in the agro
chemicalsindustry.

= To provide them reward linked directly to their efforts,
performance, dedication and achievement relating to the
Company'soperations.

=  To retain, motivate and promote talent and to ensure long
term sustainability of talented managerial persons and
create competitive advantage.

SCOPEOF THEPOLICY
The policy shallbe applicable to the followinginthe Company:

= Directors

= KeyManagerial Personnel(KMP)
= SeniorManagement

= (Otheremployeesof the Company

CONSTITUTION

= The Board shall determine the membership of the
Committee.

= TheCommittee willcomprise atleast three members of non-
executive directors, a majority of whom shall be
independentdirectors.

=  QOne of the independent non-executive directors shall be
designated by the Board to serve as the Committee's
Chairman.
The presentcomposition of the Committeeis:

Em

Chairman Mr. Jayaraman Swaminathan,
aged 72, holds a Master's Degree in
Science and a Diploma in Business
Management. In addition he had
done an advanced General
Management course in MIT Sloan
School USA. He joined Hoechst
India in 1970 and held various
positions. He rose to become a
Director Member of Board .The
responsibilities included
manufacturing, QA, Safety in
divisions of Agrochemicals,
Pharmaceuticals (Pharma &
Veterinary) and Vaccines. The
demerger and acquisitions took
him to Head new areas of
responsibility in Commercial,
Purchase (Imports, Exports &
Domestic),Supply Chain, SAP. The
companies were Hoechst Schering
Agrevo Ltd., Agrevo Ltd., Aventis
Ltd., Bayer Crop Science Ltd. In
2004 he joined Hikal as Business
Head, VP for their the
Agrochemicals division. Here the
areas of work involved were active,
formulations and contract
manufacturing from three
different factory locations. In 2008
he joined Sequent to work as
Business Development Advisor for
Domestic and International
markets. Here the areas of work
involved identifying new domestic
and international customers for
active, formulations and contract
manufacturing for both pharma
and veterinary products. Both
Hikaland Sequent work focused on
developing new long term
sustainable and mutually
beneficial long term growth
oriented business relationships.
Such contracts were very well
coordinated and supported by
creating an efficient
manufacturingand supply chain.

Jayaraman
Swaminathan



Em

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

Member Mr. Virjesh Kumar Gupta, aged 74

Vlrjesh years, belongs to a business family of
Kumar Delhi. After a graduate from
Gupta Sri Ram College of Commerce

(Delhi University), he has highly
experienced professional with in
depth understanding and hands on
experience in diverse business field
for Over 35 years. He has specialized
in general management covering
almost all aspects of day to day
business activities. He is currently
associated with various Educational
and Charitable Societies.

Mr. Navin Member Mr. Navin Shah, aged 79 years,

Shah belongs to a business family of Delhi.
He started his business career in
plasticindustries. Mr. Navin Shah has
more than 40 years experience in
manufacturingin PVC compound.

Appointment criteriaand qualifications

Letter of appointment shall be issued based on the
recommendations of the Committee on the basis of the
guidelines for the same under the Companies Act, 2013 or
the Company Internal policy.

The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity,
qualification, expertise and experience for appointment
tothe position of Directors, KMPs & Senior Management.

A potential candidate should possess adequate
qualification, expertise and experience for the position
he/she is considered for appointment. The Committee
shall review qualifications, expertise and experience, as
well as the ethical and moral qualities possessed by such
person, commensurate to the requirement for the
position.

The Committee shall determine the suitability of
appointment of a person to the Board of Directors of the
Company by ascertaining the 'fitand proper criteria'of the
candidate. The candidate shall, at the time of
appointment, as well as at the time of renewal of
directorship, fill in such form as approved by the
Committee to enable the Committee to determine the 'Fit
and Proper Criteria'. The indicative form to be filled out is
placedas Annexure1to this Policy.

The Company shall not appoint or continue the
employment of any person as whole time director who
has attained the age of seventy years. Provided that the
term of the person holding this position may be extended
beyond the age of seventy years with the approval of
shareholders by passingaspecial resolution based onthe
explanatory statement annexed to the notice for such
motion indicating the justification for extension of
appointmentbeyond seventyyears.

The Committee shall ensure that there is an appropriate
induction & training programme in place for new
directors, members of seniormanagement, and KMPs;

1.7

2.2
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The Committee shall making recommendations to the
Board concerning any matters relating to the
continuationinoffice of anydirectoratanytimeincluding
the suspension or termination of service of an executive
director as an employee of the Company subject to the
provision of the law and their service contract.

The Committee shallrecommend any necessary changes
tothe Board.

Term/Tenure
Managing Director/Whole-time Director:

The Company shallappoint orre-appointany personasits
Chairman & Managing Director, Executive Chairman,
Managing Director or Executive Director for a term not
exceedingFiveyearsatatime.

No re-appointment shall be made earlier than one year
beforethe expiry of termof the Directorappointed.

Independent Director

An Independent Director shall hold office fora term up to
five years onthe Board of the Company and will be eligible
for re-appointment on passing of a special resolution by
the Company and disclosure of such appointment in the
Board'sreport.

No Independent Director shall hold office for more than
two consecutive terms, but such Independent Director
shall be eligible for re- appointment in the Company as
Independent Director after the expiry of three years from
the date of cessation as such in the Company. The
Committee shalltake into consideration all the applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the relevant
rules, asexistingorasmaybeamended fromtime to time.

Removal

Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in the
CompaniesAct, 2013 and rules made there under orunder
any other applicable Act, rules and regulations, the
Committee may recommend to the Board with reasons
recorded in writing, removal of a director, KMP or senior
management personnel or functional heads, subject to
the provisions and compliance of the Act, rules and
regulations.

Retirement

The director, KMP, senior management & functional
heads shall retire as per the applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 along with the rules made there
under and the prevailing policy of the Company. The
Board will have the discretion to retain the Directors,
KMPs & Senior Managements even after attaining the
retirementage, forthe benefit of the Company.

Diversity on the Board of the Company

The Company aims to enhance the effectiveness of the
Board by diversifying it and obtain the benefit out of it by
better and improved decision making. In order to ensure
that the Company's boardroom has appropriate balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives thatare
imperative for the execution of its business strategy, the
Company shall consider a number of factors, including
but notlimited to skills, industry experience, background,
raceandgender.
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The Policy shall confirm with the following two principles
forachievingdiversityonits Board:

» Decisions pertaining to recruitment, promotion and
remuneration of the directors will be based on their
performanceand competence;and

» For embracing diversity and being inclusive, best
practicestoensure fairness and equality shallbe adopted
and there shall be zero tolerance for unlawful
discriminationand harassment of any sort whatsoever.

In order to ensure a balanced composition of executive, non-
executive and independent directors on the Board, the
Company shall consider candidates from a wide variety of
backgrounds, without discrimination based on the following
factors:

» Gender-The Company shall not discriminate on the basis
of genderin the matter of appointment of director on the
Board. The Company encourages the appointment of
women at senior executive levels to achieve a balanced
representationonthe Board.

» Age - Subject to the applicable provisions of Companies
Act, 2013, age shall be no bar for appointment of an
individualasdirectoronthe Board of the Company.

» Nationality and ethnicity - The Company shall promote
having a boardroom comprising of people from different
ethnic backgrounds so that the directors may efficiently
contribute their thorough knowledge, sources and
understanding for the benefit of Company's business;

»  Physical disability - The Company shall not discriminate
on the basis of any immaterial physical disability of a
candidate forappointment on Company's Board, if he/she
isabletoefficiently discharge the assigned duties.

»  Educational qualification- The proposed candidate shall
possess desired team building traits that effectively
contribute to his/ her position in the Company. The
Directors of the Company shallhave amix of finance, legal
and management background, that taken together,
provide the Company with considerable experience in a
range of activities including varied industries, education,
government, banking, andinvestment.

6. Remuneration

6.1 In discharging its responsibilities, the Committee shall
haveregardtothe followingPolicy objectives:

» To ensure the Company's remuneration structures
are equitable and aligned with the long-term
interestsof the Companyanditsshareholders;

» Toattractandretaincompetent executives;

» To plan short and long-term incentives to retain
talent;

» Toensurethatanyseverance benefitsarejustified.

6.2 The remuneration/ compensation/ commission etc. to
the whole-time director, KMP and senior management &
other employees will be determined by the Committee
andrecommended tothe Board forapproval.

6.3 Theremunerationto be paidto the MDand/or whole-time
director shall be in accordance with the percentage/
slabs/ conditions laid down in the Articles of Association

of the Company and as per the provisions of the
CompaniesAct, 2013and therules made there under.

6.4 Increments to the existing remuneration/ compensation
structure of the Senior Management excluding the Board
of Directors comprising of members of Management one
level below the Executive Director, including the
Functional Heads will be decided by the Chairman &
Managing Director.

6.5 Remuneration to Whole-time/ Managing Director, KMP,
seniormanagement;

6.5.1 Fixed pay

The MD and/or whole-time director / KMP and senior
management shall be eligible foramonthly remuneration
asmay beapproved by the Board ontherecommendation
of the Committee and the shareholders wherever
applicable. The breakup of the pay scale and quantum of
perquisites including, employer's contribution towards
provident fund, pension scheme, medical expenses, club
feesand other perquisites shallbe decided and approved
by the Board onthe recommendation of the Committee.

6.5.2 Minimum Remuneration

If in any financial year, the Company has no profits or its
profitsare inadequate, it shall pay remuneration toits MD
and/or Whole-time Director in accordance with the
provisions of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 and
ifthe Companyisnotable tocomply with such provisions,
previous approval of the Central Government shall be
requiredtobe obtained.

6.6 Remuneration to Non- Executive/Independent
Director:

6.6.1 Remuneration : The remuneration /
commission shall be fixed as per the slabs and conditions
mentioned in the Articles of Association of the Company
and with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 along
withtherules made thereunder.

6.6.2 Sitting Fees: The Non- Executive/ Independent

Director may receive remuneration by way of fees for
attending meetings of Board or Committee thereof.
Provided that the amount of such fees shall not exceed
thelimitsprescribed under Companies Act 2013.

MINUTES OF COMMITTEE MEETING

Proceedings of all meetings must be recorded as minutes and
signed by the Chairman of the Committee at the subsequent
meeting. Minutes of the Committee meetings will be tabled at
the subsequent Boardand Committee meeting.

DISCLOSURE OF THISPOLICY

The policy shall be disclosed in the Annual report of the
Company, asrequired under Companies Act, 2013, Rules made
there underandthe Listing Agreement, asamended from time
totime and as may be required underany otherlaw forthe time
beinginforce.

REVIEW

The Committee as and when required shall assess the
adequacy of this Policy and make any necessary or desirable
amendments to ensure it remains consistent with the Board's
objectives, currentlawandbest practice.
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Annexure-1- Criteria for determination of the 'Fit and Proper Criteria'.

Name of Company: Insecticides (India) Limited
Declaration and Undertaking

I. Personal details of the Candidate/ Director IV. Proceedings, if any, against the Candidate/
Director

a. |Full name

If the person is a member of a
b. |Date of Birth professional association/ body,
details of disciplinary action, if any,
pending or commenced or

c. |Educational Qualifications

a Relev:?mt Background and a. | resulting in conviction in the past
Experience against him/her or whether he/she
. ||Permmenemt Addass has been banned from entry of at
any profession/ occupation at any
f. |Present Address time.
o E-mail Address/ Telephone Whether the person attracts any of
Number b the disqualifications envisaged
h Permanent Account Number “|under Section 164 of the
" |under the Income Tax Act Companies Act2013?
. Relevant knowledge and Whether the person in case of
experience appointment as Executive

Chairman, Managing Director,
c. | Whole-time Director attracts any
of the disqualification envisaged
under Schedule V of Companies
Act,2013?

Whether the person at any time

Any other information
j. |relevant to Directorship of
the Company.

Il. Relevant Relationship of Candidate/Director

d. | come to the adverse notice of a
List of Relatives if any who are regulatorsuchas SEBI, IRDA, MCA?
a connected with the Company
" |(w.r.t. the Companies Act,
2013) V. Any other explanation/ information in regard to
items | to lll and other information considered
List of entities, if any, in which relevantforjudgingfitand proper.
b. he/she is considered ag being Undertaking
interested [ w.r.t. R e 1. Iconfirmthattheaboveinformationistothebestof my
of the Companies Act, 2013] knowledge and belief true and complete. | undertake
to keep the Company fully informed, as soon as
Names of other Companies in possible, of all events which take place subsequent to
which he/ she is or has been a my appointment which are relevant to the information
. member of the bogr.d during. providedabove.
thelas.t3yea‘rs (glv.lng details 2. | also undertake to execute the deed of covenant
of penod during which such required to be executed by all directors of the
office was held) Company.
Place:
lll. Records of professional achievements Signature
Date:
. Relevant Professional
" |achievements

VI. Remarks of Nomination Committee
Place:

Signature

Date:
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Annexure -6

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT

SECTION A: GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY

1. Corporateldentity Number(CIN)ofthe Company ~ :  L65991DL1996PLC083909
2. Nameofthe Company :  Insecticides(India)Limited
3. Registeredaddress : 401-402, Lusa Tower, Azadpur
Commercial Complex, Delhi - 110033
4. Website : www.insecticidesindia.com
5. E-mailid :  investor@insecticidesindia.com
6. Financial Yearreported : 01/04/2020t0 31/03/2021
7. Sector(s)thatthe Companyisengagedin
(Industrial activity code-wise) : Agrochemicals
8. Listthreekeyproducts/servicesthatthe
Company manufactures/provides : a. Insecticides
b. Herbicides
c. Fungicides
9. Totalnumberoflocations where businessactivityisundertaken by the Company
(a) Number of International Locations : Nil
(b) Number of National Locations : TheCompanyhasmanufacturing
facilities situated at Chopanki (Rajasthan), Dahej(Gujarat),
Sambha; Udhampur(J&K)
10. Marketsserved by the Company : In addition to serving the Indian market, the Company exports to

around 24 countries worldwide.

SECTION B: FINANCIAL DETAILS OF THE COMPANY

N N

Paid up Capital : Rs.206,677,960/-
Total Turnover(INR) : Rs.14,279,536,076/-
Total profit after taxes(INR) : Rs.934,329,855/-
Total Spendingon : 2.81%

Corporate Social Responsibility(CSR)
aspercentage of profit aftertax(%)
List of activitiesinwhich expenditurein4above
has beenincurred : a. Farmer Awareness (Education)
b. Rural development project
c. Education
d. Healthcare
e. Adoption of School in rural areas
f. Employment enhancing vocational skills

SECTION C: OTHER DETAILS

1.
2.

Doesthe Company have any Subsidiary Company/Companies : No.
Do the Subsidiary Company/Companies participate in the BR Initiatives of the parent company? If yes, then indicate the
number of such subsidiary company(s) : Not Applicable

Do any other entity/entities (e.g. suppliers, distributors etc.) that the Company does business with, participate in the BR
initiatives of the Company? If yes, then indicate the percentage of such entity/entities? [Less than 30%, 30-60%, More
than60% ] : Not Applicable

SECTION D: BR INFORMATION

1.

Details of Director/Directors responsible for BR
(a) Details of the Director/Directorresponsible forimplementation of the BR policy/policies

1. DINNumber : 00576872
2. Name : Mr.Rajesh Aggarwal
3. Designation : Managing Director
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Details of the BR head

1

2
3
4
5

DIN Number (if applicable)
Name

Designation

Telephone number

e-mail id

2. Principle-wise(as perNVGs)BRPolicy/policies

(a)

Details of compliance(Replyin Y/N)

Do you have a policy/ policies for...

Has the policy being formulated in

00576872

Mr. Rajesh Aggarwal
Managing Director
011-27679700

rajesh@insecticidesindia.com

2 consultation with the relevant stakeholders? Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
Does the policy confirm to any national/ international
3 standards? If yes, specify? (50 words) Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
The policies are based on the National Voluntary Guidelines
on social, environment and economic responsibilities of
business issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
Government of India.
Has the policy being approved by the Board?
4 Isyes, has it been signed by MD/ owner/ CEO/ appropriate Y \% Y Y \% Y Y \% \%
Board Director?
All the policies were signed by Mr. Hari Chand Aggarwal,
Chairman
Does the company have a specified committee of the Board/
® Director/ Official to oversee the implementation of the policy? v v v v v v v v v
6 Indicate the link for the policy to be viewed online? http://www.insecticidesindia.com/CompanyPolicy.html
7 !-Iasthe policy been formally communicated to all relevant v y v v y v v y v
internal and external stakeholders?
8 Dogs the c.or.npany have in-house structure to implement the v v v Y v v Y v v
policy/ policies.
Does the Company have a grievance redressal mechanism
9 related to the policy/ policies to address stakeholders' Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
grievances related to the policy/ policies?
Has the company carried out independent audit/ evaluation
10 of the working of this policy by an internal or external Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

agency?

(b)
:Not Applicable

Governance related to BR

(a) Indicate the frequency with which the Board of
Directors, Committee of the Board or CEO to
assess the BR performance of the Company.
Within 3 months, 3-6 months, Annually, More than
lyear:

Annually

(b) Does the Company publish a BR or a Sustainability
Report? What is the hyperlink for viewing this

report how frequently it is published?

If answer to the question at serial number Tagainst any principle, is'No', please explain why: (Tick up to 2options)

Yes, the Company publishes BR as part of annual report
and also publishes Sustainability Report on its website
annually.

SECTION E: PRINCIPLE-WISE PERFORMANCE

Principle 1: Businesses should conduct and govern
themselves with Ethics, Transparency and Accountability

1.

Does the policy relating to ethics, bribery and
corruption cover only the company? Yes/ No. Does it
extend to the Group/Joint Ventures/ Suppliers/
Contractors/NGOs/Others?



Yes. This Policy covers the Insecticides (India) Limited
but not to the Group/Joint Ventures/ Suppliers/
Contractors/NGOs/Others.

How many stakeholder complaints have been received
in the past financial year and what percentage was
satisfactorily resolved by the management? If so,
provide details thereof, in about 50 words or so.

For investors Grievances please refer to Corporate
Governance Report

Principle 2: Businesses should provide goods and services
that are safe and contribute to sustainability throughout
their life cycle

1

List up to 3 of your products or services whose design
has incorporated social or environmental concerns,
risks and/or opportunities.

We understand the impact of manufacturing
Insecticides, Pesticides and other chemicals on
environment & society and takes responsibility t 0
develop products having least carbon footprint and
favoring betterment of environment and society. The
farmer are the center of our business philosophy we,
invests in cost efficient products for our beneficiaries.
We strive of produce products which consumes minimal
resources resulting to create positive environmental.
Following are the three key products and service whose
design address social and environmental concerns:

a. Thimet
b. Kayakalp
c. Mycoraja

For each such product, provide the following details in
respect of resource use (energy, water, raw material
etc.) per unit of product(optional):

(a) Reduction during sourcing/production/ distribution
achieved since the previous year throughout the
value chain?

The Company manufactures and distributes at its world
class manufacturing facilities, a wide range of
Branded & Generics Formulations. As consumption
per unit depends on the product mix, there are no
specific standards to ascertain reduction achieved
at product level.

(b) Reduction during usage by consumers (energy,
water) has been achieved since the previous year?

The Company's products do not have any broad-
based impact on energy and water consumption by
consumers. However, the Company has taken
several measures to reduce the consumption of
energy and water.

Does the company have procedures in place for
sustainable sourcing (including transportation)?

(a) If yes, what percentage of your inputs was sourced
sustainably? Also, provide details thereof, in about
50 words or = so.

The Company has formulated an operating
procedure to approve vendors. Materials are
procured from approved vendors both, at local and
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at international level. The quality assurance team of
the Company conducts periodic audit of the
vendors, especially those who supply key materials.
The Company has longstanding business relations
with regular vendors. The Company enters into
annual freight contracts with leading transporters
for movement of materials. The Company continues
toreceive sustained support fromall its vendors.

Has the company taken any steps to procure goods and
services from local &small producers, including
communities surrounding their place of work?

(a) If yes, what steps have been taken to improve their
capacity and capability of local and small vendors?

The Company procures goods and avail services
also from local and small vendors, particularly those
located around its manufacturing locations. The
Company provides technical support and guidance
to vendors in developing products and capability
wherever possible.

Does the company have a mechanism to recycle
products and waste? If yes what is the percentage of
recycling of products and waste (separately as <5%, 5-
10%, >10%). Also, provide details thereof, in about 50
words or so.

Yes. The Company has mechanism for recycling of
product as well as waste. Specific percentage of the
same is not ascertained but optimum recycling of
product and wastehas been made.

Principle 3: Businesses should promote the wellbeing of all

employees

1. Pleaseindicate the Total number of employees. :1,272

2. Please indicate the Total number of employees hired on
temporary/contractual/casual basis : 917

3. Please indicate the Number of permanent women
employees : 28

4. Please indicate the Number of permanent employees
with disabilities : Nil

5. Do you have an employee association that is recognized
by management : No

6. What percentage of your permanent employees is
members of this recognized employee association? -
Not Applicable

7. Please in dicate the Number of complaints relating to

child labour, forced labour, involuntary labour, sexual
harassment in the last financial year and pending, as on
the end of the financial year.

complaints
Category

pending as on
end of the
financial year

Child labour/ forced labour/
involuntary labour

Sexual harassment Nil

Discriminatory employment
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What percentage of your under mentioned employees
were given safety & skill up-gradation training in the last
year?

(a) PermanentEmployees :80%
(b) PermanentWomenEmployees :85%
(c) Casual/Temporary/Contractual
Employees :90%
(d) Employeeswith Disabilities :N.A.

Principle 4: Businesses should respect the interests of, and
be responsive to the needs of all stakeholders, especially
those who are disadvantage vulnerable, and marginalised.

1.

Has the company mapped its internal and external
stakeholders ?Yes/No

Yes

Out of the above, has the company identified the
disadvantaged, vulnerable & marginalized stakeholders.

Yes

Are there any special initiatives taken by the company to
engage with the disadvantaged, vulnerable and
marginalized stakeholders. If so, provide details thereof,
inabout50wordsorso.

The Company throughits Non-Profit Organisationsviz. lIL
Foundation, farmers awareness programme, project
vidhya, Navjyoti India Foundation and others are taking
various initiatives in the area of Education, Healthcare
including Preventive Healthcare, Community outreach
programs, Sanitation, Employment enhancing vocational
skills, etc. to engage with the disadvantaged, vulnerable
andmarginalized stakeholders.

Principle 5: Businesses should respect and promote human
rights

1.

Does the policy of the company on human rights cover
only the company or extend to the Group/Joint
Ventures/Suppliers/Contractors/NGOs/Others?

The Company's Policy on Human Rights cover the
Insecticides(India)Limited only.

How many stakeholder complaints have beenreceived in
the past financial year and what percent was
satisfactorilyresolved by the management?

Duringthereportingperiod company hasnotreceivedany
complaint.

Principle 6: Business should respect, protect, and make
efforts to restore the environment

1

Does the policy related to Principle 6 cover only the
company or extends to the Group/Joint Ventures/
Suppliers/Contractors/NGOs/others.

The Company's Policy covers the Insecticides (India)
Limitedonly.

Does the company have strategies/ initiatives to
address global environmental issues such as climate
change, global warming, etc? Y/N. If yes, please give

3.

hyperlink for web page etc.
No.

Does the company identify and assess potential
environmentalrisks? Y/N

Yes, The Company is continually working towards the

improvement of environment by taking steps further and
hasinstallthe Solar Power plantsinits factories.

Does the company have any project related to Clean
Development Mechanism? If so, provide details thereof,
in about 50 words or so. Also, if Yes, whether any
environmental compliancereportis filed?

Yes, Clean Development Mechanism measure have been
part of our continuous endeavour of excellence.
Installation of Solar Power plantis one of them.

Has the company undertaken any other initiatives on -
clean technology, energy efficiency, renewable energy,
etc. Y/N.If yes, please give hyperlink for web page etc.

Yes, The Company has taken various initiatives on
conservation of energy and technology absorption as
mentionedin Annexure7to the Board's Report.

Are the Emissions/ Waste generated by the company
within the permissible limits given by CPCB/SPCB for
the financial year beingreported?

Yes

Number of show cause/ legal notices received from
CPCB/SPCB which are pending (i.e. not resolved to
satisfaction)ason end of Financial Year.

Nil

Principle 7: Businesses, when engaged in influencing public
andregulatory policy, shoulddo soinaresponsible manner

1.

Is your company a member of any trade and chamber or
association? If Yes, Name only those major ones that
your business deals with:

(a) CropCareFederationofIndia(CCFl)
(b) NIPMA

Have you advocated/lobbied through above associations
for the advancement or improvement of public good?
Yes/No; if yes specify the broad areas ( drop box:
Governance and Administration, Economic Reforms,
Inclusive Development Policies, Energy security, Water,
Food Security, Sustainable Business Principles, Others)

Yes, The Company has advocated on various areas
concerning economic reforms, best practices, new
standards or regulatory development pertaining to
Agrochemical industry through the associations, from
timetotime.

Principle 8: Businesses should support inclusive growth and
equitable development

1.

Does the company have specified programmes/
initiatives/projects in pursuit of the policy related to
Principle 8? If yes details thereof.



Yes, The Company has carried out various community
development activities from several years. Company has
established, nurtured and promoted various Non-Profit
Organisations focussing on three major areas -
Education, Healthcare and Rural Development. The
details are mentioned in Annexure 2 to the Board's
Report.

Are the programmes/projects undertaken through in-
house team/own foundation/external NGO/
government structures/any other organization?

The Company undertakes programmes/projects
directly/through various Non-Profit Organisations viz. IIL
Foundation, Navjyoti India Foundation, Subhaksiksha
Educational Societyand others.

Have you done any impact assessment of your
initiative?

Yes

What is your company's direct contribution to
community development projects- Amount in INR and
the details of the projects undertaken.

The Details are mentioned in Annexure - 2 to the Board's
Report

Have you taken steps to ensure that this community
development initiative is successfully adopted by the
community? Please explainin50 words, or so.

The Company conducts impact assessment of its CSR
initiatives through feedbacks collected from the
beneficiaries of projects undertaken. Various projects
are undertaken with Government and Semi- Government
agencies that have their monitoring mechanisms and
impact assessment systems. We believe that our
initiatives has genuinely covered and benefitted large
number of beneficiaries.

Principle 9: Businesses should engage with and provide
value to their customers and consumers in a responsible
manner

What percentage of customer complaints/ consumer
casesare pendingas onthe end of financial year.

Nil

inseC'l' ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21

(INDIA) LIMITED

Does the company display product information on the
product label, over and above what is mandated as per
local laws? Yes/No/N.A. /Remarks(additional
information)

No. The Company follows all legal statues with respect to
product labellinganddisplaying of productinformation.

Is there any case filed by any stakeholder against the
company regarding unfair trade practices,
irresponsible advertising and/or anti-competitive
behaviorduring thelast five years and pendingas onend
of financial year. If so, provide details thereof, in about
50 words or so.

No

Did your company carry out any consumer survey/
consumer satisfactiontrends?

Periodically company conducts survey among customers
through inhouse customer care department. Judicial
Customer satisfaction is prime motive of IIL, the team of
[IL always in connect with customers. At IIL any customer
can reach to management without delay, higher
management is in connect with customers directly.
Customers of the IIL were satisfied with the products
provided by the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board
Insecticides (India) Limited
(Rajesh Aggarwal) (Hari Chand Aggarwal)
Chairman & WTD
DIN-00577015

Managing Director

DIN-00576872

Place: Delhi
Dated: June 18, 2021
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Annexure -7

Information as required under Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014 pertaining to Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo:

A.

Conservation of resources and Energy

(i) Steps taken or impact on conservation of energy:
Environmental sustainability is embedded in IIL Policy. As
part of long term sustainability, your Company ensures that
the products, packaging and operations are safe for
employees, consumersand the environment. Your Company
ensures this with a focus on technologies, processes and
improvements that matter for the environment. At IIL,
sustainability inspires and guides everything the Company
does. Moreover, the Company gives highest priority to
ensure environmental friendly practices at all factories and
offices. These include reduction in power consumption,
optimal water consumption, eliminating excess use of paper
andusingeco-friendly products.

We continued our efforts on conservation of resources
through automation, highly efficient utilization, adoption of
efficient machines which helps us to conserve resources,
while efficient waste management and reduction in carbon
emission.

As in the past, the Company continued to stress upon
measures for the conservation and optimal utilisation of
energy in all the areas of operations. Within the Company
there are continuous efforts towards improving operational
efficiencies, minimizing consumption of natural resources
and reducing water, energy & CO2 emissions while
maximizing productionvolumes.

During the year, Company has undertaken several Civil and
Construction works in the all its for improving the efficiency
and productivity, which will eventually save the energy and
resourcesinlongperiod of time.

(ii) The steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate
sources of energy: During the year under review, the
Company hasinstalled the Solar Plant at its Chopanki facility
to reduce the traditional electricity consumption. The
installed capacity of the Plantisapproximately 350 KWP.

(iii) Capital investment on energy conservation
equipments:The Company continuously endeavors to
discover usages on new technologies and tools to save the
energy and reduce consumption. The Company has been
keen on investing for energy conservation projects as
installation of Solar Plantinits ChopankiFacility.

Technology absorption

The efforts made towards technology absorption: Technology
isever changingand employees of the Company are made aware
with the latest techniques and technologies through various
workshops and discussions for optimum utilization of the
availableresources.

We have adopted IT in such a way that its beneficial to derive
product improvement, cost reduction, product development or
import substitution. Product improvement and cost reduction is
alwaysthe Company's priority while we choose new equipment.

In case of imported technology (imported during the last three
years reckoned from the beginning of the financial year): Your
Company has not imported any technology during last three
years. However, the Company has spent on the research and
developmentof various products.

Researchand Development(R&D)

(I)  Specific areas in which R&D carried out by the Company - Your
Company put emphasis on R&D and spends enormous
amounts and efforts in R&D for gaining industrial
experiences. First of its kind Joint Venture with Japanese
via OAT & IIL Laboratories Private Limited in the Year 2013
and R&D Center at Chopanki. It has therefore been possible

foryour Company to focus onintroduction of newinnovative
products for the farmers and testing and modification of
productsforlocal conditions. Improvingand maintaining the
quality of certain key raw materialsalso continued toreceive
closeattention.

(ii) Benefits derived as a result of the above R&D - During the year
under review the company has introduced several products
for the benefit of the farmers. Company has launched
revolutionary 7 products during the year named as Milstim
Max, Hakama Super, Master Stroke, Dominant, Mahir,
Tadaaki and Awal. Further, following are the enlisted R&D
activities of the companies:

a. Tilldate the Company has filed 30 patents out of which 13
patentsarealreadyreceived.

b. The Company has R&D workforce of about 60+ Scientists
which includes the scientists of OAT &IIL Laboratories
Pvt.Ltd.

c. TheR&D Teamhasdeveloped morethan59processes.

d. With the increase in thrust on cost optimisation R&D
team of IIL have focused on specific cost reduction
projects for the molecules which are already generic in
the regulated market, which has experienced price
erosion.

(iii) Future plan of action - Steps are continuously being taken for
innovation and renovation of products including new
product development, improvement of packaging and
enhancement of product quality / profile, to offer better
products at relatively affordable prices to the consumers.
The Company expected to introduce 5-6 new products
duringtheyear2022.

D. Theexpenditureincurred onResearchand Development:
(% in Lacs)
Capital 51.51
Recurring 267.30
OAT & IIL Laborataries Private Limited 335.21
Total 654.02

Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo

During the year under review company has applied for licenses in
various countriestoincreaseits export, theseinitiatives were takento
improve the exports; development of new export market for products
andexportplans.

The Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual inflows during the
year and the Foreign Exchange outgo during the year in terms of
actual outflows-

(% in Lacs)

s

Foreign exchange earned

Foreign exchange used

6479.28
47484.59

For and on behalf of the Board
Insecticides (India) Limited

(Rajesh Aggarwal)
Managing Director
DIN - 00576872

(Hari Chand Aggarwal)
Chairman
DIN - 00577015

Place: Delhi
Dated: June 18, 2021
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Company's Philosophy on Code of Governance

Insecticides (India) Limited (“Insecticides India or IIL")
philosophy on Corporate Governance revolves around fair
and transparent governance and disclosure practices in
line with the principles of Good Corporate Governance. This
philosophy is backed by principles of Concern,
Commitment, Ethics, Excellence and Learningin all its acts
and relationships with Stakeholders, Clients, Associates
and Community at large. Company respects the inalienable
rights of the shareholders to information on the
performance of Company. The Company's Corporate
governance policies ensures, among others, the
accountability of the Board of Directors and the
importance of its decisions to all its participants viz.
Employees, Investors, Customers, Regulators etc. The
Company believes that good Corporate Governance is a
continuous process and strives to improve the Corporate
Governance practices to meet Shareholder's expectations.

Board of Directors

Insecticides (India) Limited recognises and embraces the
importance of diverse, well informed Board to ensure high
standards of Corporate Governance. At Insecticides India
the Board is at the core of our Corporate Governance
practice. The Board of Directors, along with its
Committees, play a fundamental role in upholding and
nurturing the principles of good governance in the
Company. In addition to the requisite specific professional
expertise, management and leadership experience for the
given task, members of the Board cover the broadest
possible spectrum of knowledge, experience, educational
and professional backgrounds. The Board sets the overall
corporate objectives and provides necessary guidance and
independence to the Management. The Board operates
within a well-defined framework, which enables it to
discharge its responsibilities and duties of safeguarding
the interests of the Company thereby enhancing
stakeholder value. The Board has identified certain core
skills and competencies which are required in the context
of the business viz. Management and Strategy, Business
Leadership, Human Resources and Industrial Relations,
Purchase and Supply Chain, Research and Development,
Finance and Taxation, CSR, Sustainability matters, Audit
and Risk Management, understanding of corporate
governance, regulatory, fiduciary and ethical
requirements, integrity, credibility, trustworthiness, strong
interpersonal skills and willingness to address issues
proactively. The Board of Directors have demonstrated all
the required core skills as well as competencies.

As on March 31, 2021, the Company has Seven Directors.
Out of Seven Directors, Four (i.e. 57.14%) are Independent
Directors. The profiles of Directors can be found on
https://www.insecticidesindia.com/board-of-directors/
The composition of the Board is in conformity with
Regulation 17 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (SEBI 'Listing
Regulations') read with Section 149 of the Companies Act,
2013 (the ‘Act).

None of the Directors on the Board hold directorships in

Vi.

Vii.

Vviii.

other Listed Company and more than ten public
companies. Further, none of them is a member of more
than ten committees or chairman of more than five
committees across all the public companies in which
he/she is a Director. Necessary disclosures regarding
Committee positions in other public companies as on
March 31, 2021 have been made by the Directors. None of
the Directors are related to each other except Shri Hari
Chand Aggarwal, Shri Rajesh Aggarwal and Smt. Nikunj
Aggarwal.

None of the Directors on the board of the Insecticides
(India) Limited have been debarred or disqualified from
being appointed or continue as director of the Companies
by the Board/ Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such
statutory authority and the certificate of the same has
been received from the Company secretary in Practice.

Independent Directors are non-executive directors as
defined under Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing
Regulations read with Section 149(8) of the Act. The
maximum tenure of Independent Directors is in compliance
with the Act. All the Independent Directors have confirmed
that they meet the criteria of independence as mentioned
under Regulation 16(1)b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations
read with Section 149(8) of the Act. Based on the disclosure
received from the independent directors and also in the
opinion of the board, the independent directors fulfill the
conditions as specified in Companies act 2013, the Listing
regulations and are independent of the management.

Mr.Vinod Kumar Mittal (DIN: 07421742) Independent
director, has resigned w.e.f December 21, 2020 before the
expiry of his tenure during the financial year 2020-21 due to
the health concerns.

Five Board Meetings were held during the year and the gap
between two meetings were according to the Companies
Act, 2013 and rules and Regulations made thereunder. The
dates on which the said meetings were held: June 25,
2020; August 14, 2020; November 09, 2020, February 05,
2021 and March 30, 2021. The necessary quorum was
present for all the meetings. However, in case of a special
and urgent business need, the Board's approval is taken by
passing resolution by circulation, as permitted by law
which is noted and confirmed in the subsequent Board
Meeting. Two resolutions by circulation were passed by the
Board of Directors on 14" January, 2021in accordance with
Section 175 of Companies Act, 2013 and rules made
thereunder.

The names and categories of the Directors on the Board,
their attendance at Board Meetings held during the year
and at the last Annual General Meeting (AGM) and the
number of Directorships and Committee Chairmanships /
Memberships held by them in other public limited
companies as on March 31, 2021, are given herein below.
For reckoning the limit of the Board Committees,
chairpersonship and membership, Audit Committee and
Stakeholders' Relationship Committee has only been
considered under Regulation 26(1)(b) of SEBI Listing
Regulations.
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Number of
board meetings

Name of the
Director & DIN

Category

attended

during the year

e e e T L

Chairman & Whole -
time Director

Shri Hari Chand Aggarwal
(DIN:00577015)

Shri Rajesh Aggarwal

(DIN:00576872) Managing Director 5
Smt. Nikunj Aggarwal e .

(DIN-06569091) Whole - time Director 5
ShriNavin Shah .

(DIN:02701860) Independent Director 5
Shri Virjesh Kumar Gupta .
(DIN:06382540) Independent Director 5
Shri Vinod Kumar Mittal .
(DIN:07421742)¢ Independent Director 3
Shri S. Jayaraman .

(DIN:02634470) Independent Director 5
Smt. Praveen Gupta Independent 5
(DIN: 00180678)# Director

Whether

Number of Number of

attended Directorships | Committee positions Sha.re
in other held in other holding
last AGM . o (No. of
Companies Companies
Share)
Yes = 923400
Yes 3 = = 1322120
Yes = = = 3125000
No 2 = = =
Yes = = = =
Yes = = = =
Yes = = = =
NA 3 1 4 =

# Smt. Praveen Gupta has been appointed as an Independent Women Director of the Company in the 23° AGM w.e.f February 15, 2020.

*Shri Vinod Kumar Mittal resigned from the post of Independent Director of the Company w.e.f. December 21, 2020.

Names of the listed entities where the person is a director

and the category of directorship

Name of Director Name of L|ste'd Compapy and
Category of Directorship

Shri Hari Chand Aggarwal =
Shri Rajesh Aggarwal =
Smt. Nikunj Aggarwal =
Shri Navin Shah =
Shri Virjesh Kumar Gupta =
Shri Vinod Kumar Mittal# =
Shri S. Jayaraman =

Advance Steel Tubes Limited,

t. P t .
Slulia [FENEE ETE Independent Director

Prakash Pipes Limited,
Independent Director

Sophia Exports Limited,
Independent Director

#Shri Vinod Kumar Mittal resigned from the post of Independent
Director of the Company w.e.f. December 21, 2020.

ix. Relationship among the Directors

Name of the
Directors

Relationship with other Disclosures

ShriHari Chand Father of Shri Rajesh Aggarwal and

Aggarwal father-in-law of Smt. Nikunj Aggarwal
9 Shri Rajesh Son of Shri Hari Chand Aggarwal and
Aggarwal Spouse of Smt. Nikunj Aggarwal
S Daughter-in-law of Shri Hari Chand
Smt. Nikunj R
3 Aggarwal and Spouse of Shri Rajesh
Aggarwal

Aggarwal

Xi.

Xii.

xiii.

Xiv.

XV.

Duringtheyear2020-21, informationas mentionedinPart A
of Schedule Il of the SEBI Listing Regulations, has been
placedbefore the Boardforitsconsideration.

The terms and conditions of appointment of the
Independent Directors are disclosed on the website of the
Company at: https://www.insecticidesindia.com/investors-

desk/

During the year 2020-21, one meeting of the Independent
Directors was held on June 25, 2020. The Independent
Directors, inter-alia, reviewed the performance of non-
independentdirectors,andthe Boardasawhole.

The Board periodically reviews the compliance reports of
alllaws applicable to the Company.

The details of the familiarization programme of the
Independent Directors are available on the website of the
Company: https://www.insecticidesindia.com/investors-

desk/

Matrix setting out the skills/expertise/competence of the
board of directors

The board skill matrix provides a guide as to the core skills,
expertise, competencies and other criteria (collectively
referred to as 'skill sets') considered appropriate by the
board of the Company in the context of its business and
sector(s) for it to function effectively and those actually
available with the Board. The skill sets will keep on
changing as the organisation evolves and hence the board
may review the matrix from time to time to ensure that the
composition of the skill sets remains aligned to the
Company'sstrategicdirection.
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The skill sets identified by the board along with its availability assessment collectively for the board and individually for each
Directorareasunder:

. Actual . e .
Core skills/ Availability Mr. Hari Mr. Rajesh M.rs. . 5 Mr.sS. Mr. Virjesh | Mr. Vinod Mrs.
" Chand Nikunj Kumar Kumar Praveen
with current Aggarwal

NEVEIEINED X
board Aggarwal Aggarwal Gupta Mittal# Gupta

Experience/
Competence

Industry Skills

(a) Agro Chemical

Available v v v v v - - -
Industry
(b) Creating value
through Available - v v : v . . v
Intellectual
Property Rights
(c) Board Experience v v - v - - -
(d) Global Operations ~ Available = v - - v v v
(ENEIMRSEORITG | g 7 v - : v v v v

inorganic growth

Technical skills/experience

(a) Strategic Planning  Available v v v v v v v v
(b) Risk and
compliance Available v 4 - v v - v v
oversight
(c)Marketing Available v v = v v v v v
(d) Policy Available v v v 7 7 v v v

development

(e) Accounting, Tax,

Audit & Finance  ~Vallable Y Y Y i’ v v v 4
(f) Legal Available v v - - - v v v
(g) Sales Available v v v - v - = =
(h)Human Resource  Available v v v v = =
(i) Liasoning Available v v v v v v
Behavioural Competencies
(a) I:t;er?(;:r)/di ethical Available v v v v v v v y
(b) Mentoring abilities  Available v v v v v v v v
(c) Interpersonal Available v v v v v y y v

Relations

# ShriVinod Kumar Mittalresigned from the post of Independent Director of the Company w.e.f. December 21, 2020.

xvi. DirectorsProfile-Abrief resume of all Directors, nature of their expertise in specific functional areas etc. are available on the website of the
Company.

xvii. Scheduling and selection of agenda items for Board and Committee meetings - The Board annually holds at least four pre-scheduled
meetings. Additional Board meeting may be convened to address the Company's specific needs. In case of business exigencies or urgency,
resolutionsare passed by circulation. Every quarter, the Board notes compliances of all laws applicable to the Company.

xviii. Succession Planning - the Company believes succession plans should be proactive and rigorous to identify and secure the best possible
talent to oversee and manage the organisation. The succession planning process of the Board and the senior management is managed by
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) and reviewed by the Board. The Human Resource Department on a regular basis
update the NRC onthe succession planning frameworkand seek theirinputs todefineastructuredleadership succession plan.
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Committee of the Board

The Board Committees play a crucial role in the
governance structure of the Company and have been
constituted to deal with specific areas / activities which
concern the Company and need a closer review. The
Board Committees are set up under the formal approval
of the Board, to carry out clearly defined roles which are
considered to be performed by members of the Board,
as a part of good governance practice. The Board
supervises the execution of its responsibilities by the
Committees and is responsible for their action. The
Minutes of the meetings of all the Committees are
placed before the Board for review.

The Board has currently established the following five (5)
statutory and non-statutory Committees:

Audit Committee

Nomination and Remuneration Committee
Stakeholders' Relationship Committee

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

5. Finance Committee

BN

(Buyback committee: The Board, in order to execute the
Buyback, formed the buyback committee comprising Hari Chand
Aggarwal, Chairman and Rajesh Aggarwal, Managing Director;
Nikunj Aggarwal, Whole-time Director; Sandeep Kumar, Company
Secretary & CCO as its members. The committee will execute
buyback procedures as required under the SEBI (Buy-Back of
Securities) Regulations, 2018.)

1.  Audit Committee

The power, role and terms of reference of the Audit
Committee covers the areas as contemplated under
Section 177 of the Act and Regulation 18 of Listing
Regulations, as applicable, besides other terms as
referred by the Board of Directors.

During the year under review, Five (5) Audit Committee
Meetings were held on June 25, 2020; August 14, 2020;
November 09, 2020, February 05, 2021 and March 30,
2021. The maximum time-gap between any two
consecutive meetings did not exceed 120 days.

The composition of the Audit Committee and attendance
of members at the meetings of the Audit Committee
held during the period are as follows-:

No. of Numbers

Name of the Catedor Meeting of
Director gory Held During | meetings

the Year | attended
Shri Vinod Independent 3
Kumar Mittal# Director - Chairman
Smt. Praveen  Independent 9
Gupta* Director - Chairman
Shri S. Independent 5 5
Jayaraman Director - Member
Shri Virjesh Independent 5 5

Kumar Gupta Director - Member

# Shri Vinod Kumar Mittal resigned from the post of Independent
Director of the Company w.e.f. December 21, 2020.

*Smt. Praveen Gupta became chairman of the committee w.e.f.
January 16, 2021.

The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Audit
Committee.

Terms of Reference

a)
b)
c)

d)

e)

f)

i)
i)

k)

Oversight of the Company's financial reporting process
andthedisclosure of itsfinancial information;

Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and
termsofappointment of auditors of the Company;

Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other
servicesrendered by them.

Reviewing with the management, the annual financial
statements and auditor's report thereon before
submission to the board for approval, with particular
referenceto.

» Matters required to be included in the Director's
Responsibility Statement to be included in the
Board'sReport.

» Changes, if any, inaccounting policies and practices
andreasonsforthe same.

» Significant adjustments made in the financial
statementsarisingout of audit findings.

» Compliancewithlistingand otherlegalrequirements
relatingto financial statements.

» Disclosureofanyrelated partytransactions
» Qualificationsinthedraftauditreport.

Reviewing with the management the quarterly financial
statementsbefore submissiontoboard forapproval.

Reviewing with the management the statement of
uses/application of funds raised through anissue (public
issue, rightsissue, preferentialissue, etc.), the statement
of funds utilised for purposes other than those stated in
offer document/ prospectus/ notice and report
submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the
utilisation of proceed of a public orrightissue and making
appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up
stepsinthismatter.

Review and monitor the auditor's independence and
performance, and effectiveness of audit process.

Approval of the related party transactions as per policy of
the Company, including granting of omnibus approval for
related party transactions

Scrutiny of inter-corporate loansandinvestments.

Examination of the financial statement and the auditor's
reportthereon;

Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company,
whereveritisnecessary

Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk
management systems. Establish a vigil mechanism for
directors and employees to report genuine concerns in
suchmannerasmay be prescribed.

Reviewing with the management, performance of
statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the internal
controlsystems.

Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any,
including frequency of internal audit.



o) Discussion with internal auditors of any significant
findingsand follow up there on.

p) Reviewingthefindings of anyinternal observations by the
internal auditors into matters where there is irreqularity
orafailure of internal control systems of amaterial nature
andreportingthe mattertotheboard.

q) Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit
commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well
as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of
concern.

r)  Toreviewthefunctioningofthe Vigilmechanism.

s) Management discussion and analysis of financial
conditionandresults of operations.

t) The audit committee shall review the information
requiredas per SEBI ListingRegulations.

2. Nominationand Remuneration Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is
constituted in line with the provisions of Regulation 19 of
SEBIListingRequlations, read with Section 178 of the Act.

During the year, 4 (Four) Nomination and Remuneration
Committee Meetings were held on June 25, 2020; August
14,2020; November 09, 2020 and February 05, 2021. The
necessary quorum was present for all the meetings. The
composition of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and attendance of members at the meetings
of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee held
duringthe periodare asfollows-:

Number of
Meetings
attended

No. of Meeting
Held During the
Year

Name of
the Director

Designation

) Independent
izrlai;\man Director - 4 4
y Chairman
ShriVirjesh  Independent
Kumar Director - 4 4
Gupta Member
Shri Navin quependent
Director - 4 4
Shah
Member

The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the
Nominationand Remuneration Committee.

Terms of Reference

a) To identify persons who are qualified to become
Directors and who may be appointed in senior
management in accordance with the criteria laid down,
recommend to the Board their appointment and removal
and to carry out evaluation of every Directors'
performance.

b) Formulation of the criteriafor determining qualifications,
positive attributes and independence of the Directorand
recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the
remuneration of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel
and otheremployees.
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c) Formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of
independentdirectorsandthe board of directors;

d) Devisingapolicyondiversity of board of director

e) Whether to extend or continue the term of appointment
of the independent director, on the basis of the report of
performance evaluation of independentdirectors

f)  Determine/ review on behalf of Board of Directors of the
Company the compensation package, service
agreements and other employment conditions for
Managing/Whole Time Director(s).

g) Determine on behalf of the Board of Directors of the
Company the quantum of annual increments/incentives
on the basis of performance of the Key Managerial
Personnel.

h)  Formulate, amend and administer stock options plans
and grant stock options to Managing / Whole Time
Director(s)and employees of the Company.

i)  Delegate any of its power/ function as the Committee
deems appropriate to Senior Management of the
Company.

j)  Consider other matters, as from time to time be referred
toitbytheBoard.

Performance evaluation criteriaforIndependent Directors

Pursuant to the provisions of the Section 134 (3)p) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Regulation SEBI (Listing
Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,
the Nomination & Remuneration committee carried out the
annual performance evaluation of its Directors individually
including the Chairman, and the Board accordingly evaluated
the overall effectiveness of the Board of Directors, including
its committees based on the ratings given by the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee of the Company.

A structured questionnaire was prepared after taking into
consideration inputs received from the Directors, covering
various aspects of the Board' functioning such as Knowledge
to perform the role; Time and level of participation;
Performance of duties and level of oversight; and Professional
conductandindependence.

The performance evaluation of the Independent Directors was
carried out by the entire Board. The performance evaluation of
the Chairman and the Non Independent Directors was also
carried out by the Independent Directors.

The Directorsexpressedtheirsatisfactiontotheabove.

Details of the Remuneration for the year ended March 31,
2021:

a. Non-Executive Directors:

(%in Lacs)

Shri Navin Shah 2.50
Shri Virjesh Kumar Gupta 2.50
Shri Vinod Kumar Mittal 1.50
Shri S. Jayaraman 3.50
Smt. Praveen Gupta 2.50
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b. Chairman,ManagingDirectorand Executive Director

(Rin Lacs)
Sl ShriRajesh  Smt. Nikunj
Name Chand Aggarwal Aggarwal
Aggarwal 99 99
. . Chalrma.n and Managing Whole-time
Designation Whole-time . .
. Director Director
Director
Salary & Allowances 101.74 90.46 41.10
Bonus/Performance 294.29 299.89 2.04
Incentive
Perquisites 0.40 0.40 0.40
Companies
Contribution to PF 6.42 571 244
Stock options NA NA NA
Tenure 5years 5years 5years
Notice Period & Three Three Three
Severance Pay Months Months Months
s As per As per As per
Performance Criteria Agreement  Agreement Agreement

Note: The above figures do not include provisions for gratuity
and premium paid for Group Health Insurance as separate
actuarialvaluation/premium paidis not available.

The remuneration to Non-Executive Directors is based on the
Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company. The
detail of the policy is available on the website of the Company
with the followinglink
https://www.insecticidesindia.com/investors-desk/

None of the Non-Executive Directors has any pecuniary
relationship or transactions with the Company and its
associates.

3. Stakeholders' Relationship Committee

The Stakeholders' Relationship Committee is constituted in
line with the provisions of Regulation 20 of SEBI Listing
Regulations, read with Section 178 of the Act.

During the year, 4 (Four) Stakeholders Relationship
Committee Meetings were held as on June 25, 2020; August
14, 2020; November 09, 2020 and February 05, 2021. The
necessary quorum was present for all the meetings. The
composition of Stakeholders Relationship Committee
meeting and number of Stakeholders Relationship Committee
meetings attended by the Members during the year is given
below:

Name of the Designation No. of Meeting | Number of
Director Held During Meetings
the Year attended

Shri Virjesh Independent

Kumar Gupta  Director - Chairman

Shri Navin Independent 4 4
Shah Director - Member

Shri Vinod Independent 4 3
Kumar Mittal# Director - Member

Smt. Praveen  Independent 4 1

Gupta* Director - Member

# Shri Vinod Kumar Mittal resigned from the post of Independent Director of the
Company w.e.f. December 21, 2020.

*Smt. Praveen Gupta became member of the committee w.e.f. January 16, 2021.

The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the
Stakeholders'Relationship Committee.

Terms of Reference

(1) Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the
listed entity including complaints related to
transfer/transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual
report, non-receipt of declared dividends, issue of
new/duplicate certificates, general meetingsetc.

(2) Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting
rightsby shareholders.

(3) Review ofadherencetothe service standards adopted by
the listed entity in respect of various services being
renderedby the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.

(4) Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by
the listed entity for reducing the quantum of unclaimed
dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend
warrants/annual reports/statutory notices by the
shareholdersof the company.

(5) Consider other matters, as from time to time be referred
toitbytheBoard.

Details of No. of Shareholder's complaint received, No. of
Complaints not solved to the satisfaction of shareholders
and No. of pending complaints

Non-receipt of Dividend

1 Warrants and Dividend Twenty- Twenty- Nil
Draft Revalidation in Two Two
respect of Shares

9 Non- receipt of Annual Five Five Nil
Report

5 Other One One Nil

Twenty Twenty q

Total Eight Eight il

ThereisNilcomplaint during the year whichisnot solved to the
satisfaction of shareholders.]

Compliance officer
ShriSandeep Kumar,

Company Secretary and Chief Compliance Officer of the
Company

4. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee

The Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee is
constitutedinline with the provisions of Section 135 of the Act.

During the year, 4 (Four) meetings of the Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee were held on June 25, 2020; August
14, 2020; November 09, 2020 and February 05, 2021. The
necessary quorum was present for all the meetings. The
composition of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
meeting and number of Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee meetings attended by the Members during the
yearisgivenbelow:



No. of Meeting

Na'f’e of the Designation Held During Meetings

Director attended

the Year
Hari Chand Executive Director
. 4 4

Aggarwal - Chairman
Rajesh Executive Director 4 4
Aggarwal - Member
Virjesh Independent 4 4

Kumar Gupta Director - Member

The Company Secretary acted as the Secretary to the
Committee.

B. TermsofReference

The Terms of reference of Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee include:

a) To formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy which shall indicate the activity to
activities to be undertaken by the Company as per the
Schedule VIl of the Companies Act, 2013.

b) Torecommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred
ontheactivitiesrelated to CSR; and

c) To monitor the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of
the Company fromtimetotime.

5. Finance Committee

The Board of Directors had re-constituted the Finance
Committee and modified the term of reference of Finance
Committee, during the year, 11 (Eleven) Finance Committee
Meetings were held as on May 11, 2020, July 01, 2020; August
07, 2020; August 14, 2020; October 05, 2020; November 09,
2020; December 11,2020; January 11, 2021; February 05, 2021;
February18,2021and March 25, 2021.

The necessary quorum was present for all the meetings. The
composition of the Finance Committee and number of
Finance Committee meetings attended by the Members
duringtheyearare givenbelow:

No. of Meeting | Number of
Name of the . . . .
Director Designation Held During Meetings
the Year attended
Shri Hari Executive
Chand Director - n 1
Aggarwal Chairman
S Executive
ih”aRerzlSh Director - 1l 1
99 Member
I Executive
imtﬁv'vzll‘m Director - n n
99 Member

Shri Sandeep
Aggarwal

Chief Financial

Officer Ul 0

The Company Secretary acted as the secretary to the
Committee.
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Terms of Reference
a) ToOverviewthe daytodayworkingof the Company;
b) Reviewof working capitaland cash flow management;

c) Review of banking arrangement and taking all necessary
actions connected therewith including refinancing for
optimization of borrowing costs(subject to overall limit of
borrowing);

d) Investment of the funds of the Company (subject to
compliance of allapplicable provisions of Companies Act,
2013);

e) Review, consider and advice to the board any other
matter related to the Finance and management of the
Company;

f)  Tonegotiate with the banks in regard reduction of rate of
interest, opennewaccountandclosure of accounts;

g) Give authority for creation, modification, satisfaction of
charge on assets of the company, hypothecation on
movable andimmovable assets of the Company;

h) Power to authorize the persons/officers/ Directors or any
other person in relation to representation before the
government authorities, courts, quasi-judicial bodies,
banksandany otherauthoritiesas mayberequired;

I) Overview and take actions on the works of urgent
matters;

j)  Delegate any of its power, if required, to one or more
members;

k) Anyothermattertoexecute the foregoing.

I)  The Finance Committee shall not take any policy related
decisionsof the Company.

IV. CEO/CFOCertification

The Managing Directorand CFO of the Company have certified
to the Board of Directors, inter alia, the accuracy of financial
statements and adequacy of internal controls for the financial
reporting as required under Regulation 17(8) and Part B of
Schedule Il of the Listing Regulations for the financial year
ended March 31, 2021. The MD and the CFO also give quarterly
certification on financial results while placing the financial
results before the Board in terms of Regulation 33(2) of the
Listing Regulations.

V. GeneralBodyMeetings
a) AnnualGeneral Meetings

Financial .
Time |Venue
Year

2017- August  12:30 MPCU Shah Auditorium,

2018 08,2018 P.M Civil Lines

2018- August  10:30 Sri Sathya Sai International

2019 02,2019 AM Centre

2019- Septemb 03:00 Audio Video Confere.ncmg;

2020 er 04, P.M Deemed Place - Registered
2020 ’ Office of the Company
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Special Resolution(s)

i. One Special Resolution was passed by the
shareholders at the 23" Annual General Meeting held
on September 04, 2020 of the company. 1) Re-
appointment of Smt. Praveen Gupta (DIN: 00180678)
asIndependent Women Director of the Company fora
period of 5yearsw.ef. February15,2020.

ii. Four Special Resolution were passed by the
shareholders at the 22" Annual General Meeting held
on August 02, 2019 of the company. 1). Re-
appointment Shri S. Jayaraman (DIN: 02634470) as
Independent Director of the Company for a period of
years w.e.f. February 09, 2019. 2). Re-appointment of
Shri Vinod Kumar Mittal (DIN: 07421742) as an
Independent Director of the Company fora period of 5
years w.e.f. February 09, 2019. 3). Re-appointment of
Shri Virjesh Kumar Gupta (DIN: 06382540) as an
Independent Director of the Company foraperiod of 5
years w.e.f. May 31, 2019. 4). Re-appointment of Shri
Navin Shah (DIN: 02701860) as an Independent
Director of the Company for a period of 5 years w.e.f.
May 31,2019.

iii. Two Special Resolution were passed by the
shareholders at the 21" Annual General Meeting held
on August 08, 2018 of the company. 1). Re-appointed
Shri Hari Chand Aggarwal as a Chairman and whole-
time director for a period of 5 years w.e.f. October 01,
2017.2) Approved the revision in remuneration of Shri
Rajesh Aggarwal, Managing Director of the Company.

No Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held during Financial
Year2020-2021

Special Resolution passed through Postal Ballot

During the year under review, no special resolution has
beenpassedthroughthe exercise of postal ballot. Further,
no specialresolutionis proposedto be conducted through
postal ballotasondate.

OtherDisclosures
Subsidiary Companies

During the year under review, the Company does not have
any subsidiary company. Therefore, there is no
requirement of reviewing the financial statements of
unlisted company by Audit Committee.

Risk Management

The Company has laid down procedures to inform the
Board of Directors about the Risk Management and its
minimization procedures. The Audit Committee and the
Board of Directorsreview these procedures periodically.

Code of Conduct

The Board of Directors has laid down Code of Conduct for
all Board Members and Senior Management of the
Company. The copies of Code of Conduct as applicable to
the Executive Directors (including Senior Management of
the Company) and Independent have been sent to all the
Directorsand Senior Management Personnel. The Code of
Conduct is available on the Company's website

d)

e)

https://www.insecticidesindia.com/investors-desk/ and
copy of the Code of Conduct can be inspected at the
registered office of the Company during the business
hours.

All the members of the Board of Directors and Senior
Management personnel have affirmed compliance with
the Code of Conduct as applicable to them during the year
ended March 31, 2021. The Annual Report of the Company
containsdeclarationduly signed by the Managing Director.

Compliance

The Company Secretary, while preparing the agenda,
notes on agenda, minutes, etc. of the meeting(s), is
responsible for and is required to ensure adherence to all
the applicable laws and regulations including the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules issued
thereunder.

During the year, the Board periodically reviewed
compliance reports with respect to the various laws
applicable to the Company, as well as taken by the
Company to rectify the instances of non-compliance, if
any.

Disclosures

. Disclosure on materially significant related party

transactions, i.e. the Company's transactions that are of
material nature, with its Promoters, Directors and the
management, their relatives or subsidiaries, among
others that may have potential conflict with the
Company'sinterestsatlarge

The details of related party transactions with the Company
are given in Note No. 38 of the Notes to Accounts of the
Company. Besides this, the Company has no material
transaction with the related parties' viz. promoters,
directors of the Company, management, their relatives,
subsidiaries of promoter Company etc. that may have a
potential conflict with the interest of the Company at
large.

The Audit Committee has set out the criteria for granting
approval torelated party transactions which are repetitive
in nature for the period of one year i.e. for financial year
2020-21, under the category of Omnibus transaction
pursuant to Regulation 23 of LODR, 2015. The audit
committee shall review, at least on a quarterly basis, the
details of related party transactions entered into by the
Company pursuant to each of the omnibus approvals
given. The transactions as approved by the Audit
Committee were entered at Arm's Length Price and were
in ordinary course of business of the Company. These
transactions have been disclosed in the Notes to
Accounts of the Company and policy is available at
https://www.insecticidesindia.com/investors-desk/

i. Disclosure of Accounting Treatment

In preparation of the financial statements, the Company
has followed the Accounting Standards referred to in
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013. The significant
accounting policies which are consistently applied are set
outinthe NotestotheFinancial Statements.



vi.

vii.

viii.

The Company has complied with the requirements of the
Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure
Requirements)Regulation, 2015.

The Company has duly complied with the requirements of
the Schedule V of SEBI(Listing Obligation and Disclosure
Requirements)Regulation, 2015.

The company has complied with the Corporate
Governance requirements specified inregulation 17 to 27
and clause (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46
of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure
Requirements)Regulation, 2015.

The Company has complied with all the provisions of
regulation 17 to 27 and clause (b) to (i) of sub-requlation(2)
of regulation 46 of SEBI(Listing Obligation and Disclosure
Requirements)Regulation, 2015.

Commodity Price Risks and Commodity Hedging
Activities

In order to manage the Company's Foreign Exchange
exposure, the Company has a dynamic Forex risk
management policy to take care of exchange rate
fluctuations. Commodity buys are directly leveraged
between domestic and overseas suppliers based on their
price and parity, close monitoring through various
commodity stock exchange linked with different raw
materials. The intent of this Policy is to minimise the
financial statementimpact of fluctuating foreign currency
exchangerates.

Foreign Exchange Risk and Commodity Price Risk
alongwith Foreign Currency exposure is given under Note
No. 33 of Other Noteson Accountsof the Annual Report.

The Company has policy for determining Material
Subsidiaries and the same is available on the Company's
website under Company Policy Section
www.insecticidesindia.com

Atpresentthe Company doesnothave any subsidiary.

Details of non-compliance by the Company, penalties
and strictures imposed on the Company by Stock
Exchanges or SEBI, or any other statutory authority, on
any matter related to capital markets during last three
years.

There has been no instance of non-compliance by the
Company on any matter related to capital markets during
last threeyears, and hence, no penalties or strictures have
been imposed on the Company by Stock Exchanges or
SEBloranyotherstatutoryauthority.

VigilMechanism(Whistle Blower)Policy

The Company promotes ethical behaviorinallits business
activities and has put in place a mechanism of reporting
illegal or unethical behavior. The Company has a whistle
blower policy wherein the employees are free to report
violations of laws, rules, regulations or unethical conduct
totheirimmediate supervisor orsuch otherpersonasmay
be notified by the management to the workgroups. The
confidentiality of those reporting violations is maintained
and they are not subjected to any discriminatory practice.

xi.

Xii.

xiii.

Xiv.

XV.
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No personnel has been denied the access to the Audit
Committee. The said policy is available on the website of
the Company on the following link
https://www.insecticidesindia.com/investors-desk/

Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal)Act, 2013

The Company has adopted a policy on prevention,
prohibition and Redressal of Sexual harassment at
workplace and has duly constituted an Internal
Complaints Committee in line with the provisions of the
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules
thereunder.

During the financial year ended on March 31, 2021, the
Company has received Nil Complaints on sexual
harassment. Also no complaints have beenresolved orare
pending in respect of sexual harassment before the
Company.

Credit Rating

The Company enjoys a good reputation for its sound
financial management and ability to meet in financial
commitments.

CRISIL, a S&P Global Company, a reputed Rating Agency,
hasre-affirmedthe creditrating of CRISIL A/Stable forthe
long-termand CRISIL Alfor the Short-term Bank facilities.

Adoption of Mandatory and Non- Mandatory
Requirements of SEBI Listing Regulations

The Company has complied with all the mandatory
requirements of the provisions of SEBI Listing
Requlations. Further, the Company had not adopted any
non-mandatory requirements as mentioned in the SEBI
ListingRegulations.

Proceeds from Public Issue, Rights Issue, Preferential
Issues, etc.

The Company has not done any further issue of shares
duringthe periodunderreview.

Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential
allotment or qualified institutions placement as
specified under Regulation32(7A).

The Company has not raised funds through preferential
allotment or Qualified Institutional Placement during the
year, hence, detail of thisclauseis notapplicable.

The Company has accepted all the recommendations of
the committees given time to time in their respective
course of business.

Feestothe Statutory Auditors of the Company:

The total fees for all services paid by the Company and its
subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis, to the Statutory
Auditors of the Company is mentioned at Note No. 28(a) of
Notes to standalone financial statements. The Company
has not availed any services from the network
firm/network entity of which the Statutory Auditors is a
part.
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xvi. Disclosures with respect to Demat Suspense
Account/ Unclaimed Suspense Account- Not

see
1.

Financial Calendar (Tentative) for FY ended 2022

) Result for Q1 : On and before August 14, 2021
applicable
xvii. Auditors'Certificate on Corporate Governance Resultfor 02 : On and before November 14, 2021
The Company has obtained the certificate from its Result for 03 - On and before February 14, 2022
Statutory Auditors regarding compliance with the Result for Q4 : On and before May 14, 2022

provisions relating to Corporate Governance laid

down in SEBI Listing Regulations. The Company has iv. RecordDate :  N.A.
generally complied with the requirements specifiedin v. Listing on Stock Exchanges : BSE
Regulation 17 to 27 and Regulation 46(2) (b) to (i) of .
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure P.J. Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai - 400 001
Requirements), 2015. The National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. (NSE)
VIl. Meansof Communication “Exchange Plaza”
The quarterly, half-yearly and annual results of the BandraKurla Complex, Bandra(E), Mumbai - 400 051
Cohr.nE&.myl adre ;I);bll.shedsln Izadljn?; ntalwf]pap:rBln .Indla Annual listing fee for the financial year 2020-21, has
whichinclu gs _usmess tandard (Englis )a_n usiness been paid by the Company to BSE and NSE.
Standard (Hindi). The Results are also displayed on
Companies website @ Annual custodian charges of Depository have also
beenpaidtoNSDLand CDSL.
https://www.insecticidesindia.com/investors-desk/. .
Press Releases made by the Company from time to time vi. Stock Code / Symbol : NSE - INSECTICID;
are also displayed on the Company's website BSE - 532851
(http://www.insecticidesindia.com). Presentations made vii. ISIN No. INEQ70101018
to the institutional investors and analysts after the e
. viii. Corporate Identification
declaration of the quarterly, half-yearly and annual results
are also displayed on the Company's website. The Number (CIN) of the Company :
Compar'mys off|c‘|a| news z.amd. other' important investor L65991DL1996PL CO83909
relatedinformation are periodically displayed and updated
on the company's website. Also, the website of the ix. Market Price data:
Company contains a separate dedicated section 'Investor The monthly high and low quotations, as well as the
Desk' where shareholders' i.nformation.is available. The volume of shares traded at BSE and NSE for the period
Company's Annual Report is also available in a user- from 01" April, 2020 to 31* March, 2021are given below:
friendly and downloadable form. A Management
Discussion and Analysis Report is a part of the Company's
Annual Report. Month's
Low Volume Volume
Viil. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION Price | (in Nos.) (in Nos.)
i.  Annual General Meeting: =)
Date September 09, 2021 Apr-2020  428.10  285.25 19,131 437.00 284.05  3,00,646
Time 03:00 p.m. May-2020  432.95 352.00 34573  411.00 352.00  3,78,597
Venue The meeting will be held through Jun-2020  535.00 370.50 261,824 532.00 371.05 36,96,447
VC/0AVM Jul-2020  468.45 402.80 154,890  469.10 412.00 30,55,300
As requ!red Reguliatlon 36(3) .Of the SEBI !_|st|ng Aug-2020  557.00  417.30 283,843 557.90 418.00  35,31,303
Regulations, particulars of Director seeking re-
appointment at the forthcoming AGM are given herein and Sep-2020  528.10 456.00 170,910 530.00 458.55  16,41,537
inthe Annexure to the Notice of the AGM held on Thursday,
September 09, 2021. 0ct-2020  494.00 443.00 83,206 49430 452.00  3,92,664
ii. Financial Calendar Nov-2020  471.00 399.00 62,345  472.15 393.00  6,75,884
Year ending March 31, 2021 Dec-2020  480.10 43420 61794  481.00 435.00 561914
AGMin September 09, 2021 Jan-2021  522.35 42150 88,369 523.00 449.60  11,18,995
Dividend Thelnterimdividend already paid. Feb-2021  536.80 440.00 87492 537.85 450.15  12,11,348
Date of Payment of Dividend 09/11/2020 Mar-2021 508.00 405.00 165565 509.50 40510  18,58,773



X.

Share Performance of the Company in comparison to
NIFTY50&BSE Sensex
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xi.

Xii.

xiii.

-Source: www.bseindia.com www.nseindia.com

Registrar and Share Transfer Agent

Alankit Assignments Limited

(Unit: Insecticides (India) Limited)

Alankit House

4E/2, Jhandewalan Extension, New Delhi - 110 055
Tel No.(011) 42541234 Fax No.(011) 4254 1967
Email: rta@alankit.com

Share Transfer System

Shares lodged for transfer at the Registrar's address and
same are normally processed and approved by Company
Secretary of the Company and the details of the same are
notedinthe Stakeholders Relationship Committee.

Distribution of Shareholding as on March 31, 2021

a)

Distribution of equity shareholding as on March 31,
2021:

Number of :I:LT:::I:L ;/;’1::::;:: No. of % of total
Shares rs ers Shares Shares

1-500 16,008 95.14 10,33,450 5.00
501-1000 428 2.54 3,28,479 1.59
1001-2000 183 1.09 2,67,938 1.30
2001- 3000 60 0.36 1,47,766 0.71
3001-4000 41 0.24 1,468,472 0.71
4001-5000 18 0.1 81,746 0.40
5001-10000 37 0.22 2,63,403 1.27
10001-20000 15 0.09 213,226 1.03
20001- Above 55 0.21 1,81,85,316 87.99
Total 16,825 100 2,06,67,796 100.00
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b)

Catedor No. of % of
gory shares held | Shareholding

Promoter and Promoter

Categories of equity shareholders as on March 31, 2021

Group (A) 1,42,38,270 68.89
Public Shareholding

Mutual Funds 18,94,390 9.17
Alternate Investment Funds 1,46,933 0.7
(I—‘gor::;%rr\;z;tfolio Investor 9,79,990 474
Individuals 23,21,016 1.23
ZE;gtshr:rmstered with RBI 3,750 0.02
-Body Corporate 7,07,750 3,42
- Trust 2,778 0.01
-NRI 88,617 0.43
-Resident HUF 1,40,260 0.69
-ClearingMember 1,43,016 0.23
=[ERIF 1026 0.00
Total Public Shareholding(B) 64,29,526 31n
Total Shareholding(A+B) 2,06,67,796 100.00

xiv. Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity

XV.

The shares of the Company fall under the category of
compulsory delivery in dematerialized form by all
categories of investors. The Company has signed
agreements with both the Depositories i.e. National
Securities Depository Limited and Central Depository
ServicesLimited.

As on March 31, 2021, the number of shares held in
dematerialized and physicalmodeisasunder:

Categor No. of % of Share-
gory shares held holding

Held in Dematerialized

formin CDSL 1354828 6.56
Held in Dematerialized

forminNSDL 19312864 93.44
Physical 104 0.00
Total 20667796 100.00

Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit

M/s M.D& Associates, Company Secretaries, carries out
the Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit as mandated by
SEBI and report on the reconciliation of total issued and
listed capital with that of total share capital admitted/ held
indematerialized form with NSDL and CDSL and those held
inphysical form. This audit is carried out on quarterly basis
and the report thereof is submitted to the Stock
Exchanges, where the Company'ssharesare listed.
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xvi. Outstanding GDRs / Warrants and Convertible Bonds,

Conversion Date and likely impact on Equity

The Company has not issued any GDRs / ADRs /
Warrants or any convertible instruments.

xvii. Plant Locations

Presently, your Company having 6 (Six) manufacturing
units / Plants located at the following places:

1. E-442,443-444, RIICO Industrial Area, Chopanki,
(Bhiwadi) - 301707 (Rajasthan)

2. E-439-440, RIICO Industrial Area, Chopanki,
(Bhiwadi) - 301707 (Rajasthan)

3. SIDCO Industrial Growth Centre, Samba - 184 121
(J&K)

4. 11D Centre, BattalBallian, Udhampur - 182 101(J&K)

5. CH-21, GIDC Industrial Estate, Dahej, Dist. Bharuch -
392 130 (Gujarat)

6. Plot No.Z/50, DahejIndustrial Area, SEZ Part-1,
Dahej, Tal. Vagra, Dist, Bharuch, Gujarat, 392130,
India

xviii. Address for Correspondence

Investors and Shareholders can correspond with the
Registered & Corporate Office of the Company at the
following address:

To The Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

Insecticides (India) Limited

401-402, Lusa Tower,

Azadpur Commercial Complex,
Delhi-110 033

Tel No.(011) 27671990 - 04

Fax No.(011) 27671990 - 04

Email - investor@insecticidesindia.com

IX.

Discretionary Requirements as specified in Part E of
Schedulellunder SEBI Listing Regulations

a) The Chairman of the Board is Executive Director.

b) Asthe Company's half yearly results are published in
English newspapers circulated all over Indiaand in a
Hindinewspaper circulatedin Delhi(Both Englishand
Hindi results are published, Generally in Business
Standard) and also posted on the website of the
Company www.insecticidesindia.com and
disseminated to stock exchanges, the same are not
sent to the households of the shareholders of the
Company.

c) TheCompanyisintheregime of unmodified opinions
onfinancial statements.

d) The Internal Auditor of the Company functionally
reportdirectly tothe Audit Committee.

For and on behalf of the Board
Insecticides (India) Limited

Sd/-
(Rajesh Aggarwal)

Managing Director
DIN-00576872

Sd/-
(Hari Chand Aggarwal)

Chairman & WTD
DIN-00577015

Place: Delhi
Dated: June 18, 2021

DECLARATION REGARDING COMPLIANCE BY BOARD MEMBERS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
WITH THE COMPANY'S CODE OF CONDUCT

I, Rajesh Aggarwal, Managing Director of Insecticides(India) Limited hereby declares that all the Board Members and Senior
Managerial Personnel have affirmed for the year ended on March 31, 2021 compliance with the Code of Conduct of the

Company laid down for them.

Place: Delhi
Date: June 18, 2021

Sd/-

(Rajesh Aggarwal)
Managing Director
DIN: 00576872
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)i) of the SEBI

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)
To,

The Members of

Insecticides (India) Limited

401-402, Lusa Tower

Azadpur Commercial Complex, Delhi-110033 IN

| have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of Insecticide (India) Limited having CIN
.65991D0L.1996PLC083909 and having registered office at 401-402, Lusa Tower, Azadpur Commercial Complex Delhi 110033, India(hereinafter referred
to as 'the Company'), produced before me by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with
Schedule V Para-C Sub-clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)Regulations, 2015.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications(including Directors Identification Number(DIN) status at the portal
www.mca.gov.in)as considered necessary and explanations furnished to me by the Company & its officers, | hereby certify that none of the Directors
onthe Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year endingon 31st March, 2021have beendebarred or disqualified from beingappointed
or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory
Authority.

Details of Directors:

Name of Director Date of appointment Name of Director Date of appointment
in the company in the company

1. Mr.HariChand Aggarwal 00577015 12/10/2001 5. Mr.NavinShah 02701860 01/06/2014
2. Mr.RajeshAggarwal 00576872 18/12/1996 6. Mr.S.Jayaraman 02634470 10/02/2016
3. Mrs.NikunjAggarwal 06569091 02/05/2013 7. Mrs.ParveenGupta 00180678 15/02/2020
4. Mr.VirjeshKumar Gupta 06382540 01/06/2014 8. Mr.Vinod Kumar Mittal* 07421742 10/02/2016

*Mr. Vinod Kumar Mittal resigned from the position of Independent director due to health issue and personal reasons with immediate effect on 21/12/2020

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment/continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My
responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on my verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Sd/-

Akash Gupta (Prop.)

M.NO. 30099

Place: Delhi CP No. 11038
Dated: June 18, 2021 UDIN: AD30099C000481541

MD / CFO Certificate

(Under Regulations 17(8) and 33(2) a) of Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

The Board of Directors

Insecticides(India)Limited, Delhi

DearMembersof the Board,

We, Rajesh Aggarwal, Managing Director and Sandeep Aggarwal, Chief Financial Officer of Insecticides(India) Limited to the best of our knowledge and

belief, certify that:

1. Wehavereviewed Financial Statements and the Cash Flow Statement of Insecticides(India) Limited for the year ended March 31, 2021and that to
the best of ourknowledge and belief:

a) thesestatementsdonotcontainany materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that might be misleading;
b) these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting standards,
applicablelawsandregulations.

2. Thereare, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or
violative of the Company's code of conduct;

3. Weacceptresponsibility for establishingand maintaininginternal controls for financial reporting and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of
theinternal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting. We have not come across any reportable deficiencies in the design
oroperationof suchinternal controls.

4. Wehaveindicatedtothe Auditorsand the Audit committee:

a) significantchanges, ifany, ininternal control over financial reporting during the year;

b) significant changes, if any, in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements; and

c) thatthe fraud, which we have become aware of during the period and reported to concern authorities and established internal controls over
suchfinancial transactions.

Sd/- Sd/-
Place: Delhi Rajesh Aggarwal Sandeep Aggarwal
Dated: June 18, 2021 Managing Director Chief Financial Officer
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Independent Auditor's Certificate on compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance as
per provisions of Chapter IV of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

To,

The Members of

Insecticides (India) Limited
401-402, Lusa Tower,
Azadpur Commercial Complex,
Delhi-110033

1) The Corporate Governance Report prepared by
Insecticides (India) Limited (“the Company”), contains
details as stipulated in Regulations 17 to 27, clauses(b) to
(i) of Regulation 46(2), and paragraphs C and D of
Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 as amended (“the Listing Regulations”)
(‘applicable criteria’) with respect to Corporate
Governance for the year ended March 31,2021. This
certificate is required by the Company for annual
submission to the Stock exchange and to be sent to the
shareholders of the Company.

Management's Responsibility for compliance with the
conditions of Listing Regulations

2) The compliance with the terms and conditions of
corporate governance is the responsibility of the
Management of the Company including the preparation
and maintenance of all relevant supporting records and
documents.

Auditor's Responsibility

3) Our examination was limited to procedures and
implementation thereof adopted by the Company for
ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate
Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of
opiniononthe financial statements of the Company.

4) Pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Regulations,
it is our responsibility is to provide a reasonable
assurance whether the Company has complied with the
conditions of Corporate Governance, as stipulated in
ListingRegulations forthe yearended March 31,2021.

5) We conducted our examination of the Statement in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Reports or
Certificatesfor Special Purposeissued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI), The Guidance
Note requires that we comply with the ethical
requirements of the Code of Ethicsissued by the ICAI.

B) We have complied with the relevant applicable
requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC) T,
Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and
Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and Other
Assurance and Related ServicesEngagements.

Opinion

7)

In our opinion, and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, we certify that
the Company has complied with the conditions of
Corporate Governance, as stipulated in the above-
mentioned Listing Regulations.

We state that such complianceis neitheranassurance as
tothe future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or
effectiveness with which the management has
conductedthe affairs of the Company.

Restrictiononuse

9)

This certificate is addressed to and provided to the
Members of the Company solely for the purpose toenable
the Company to comply with requirement of aforesaid
Requlations and should not be used by any other person
for any other purpose. Accordingly, we do not accept or
assume any liability or any duty of care for any other
purpose ortoanyother persontowhomthis certificateis
shownorintowhose handsit may come, without our prior
consentinwriting.

FOR DEVESH PAREKH & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 013338N

Sd/-

(DEVESH PAREKH)

Partner

Place: Delhi Membership No. 092160
Date: 18/06/2021 UDIN: 21092160AAAARX4280
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Form No. MR-3

Secretarial Audit Report
For the Financial Year Ended 31" March 2020
(Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014)
For the Financial Year Ended 31st March 2021

To,

The Members,

Insecticides (India) Limited

401-402, Lusa Tower,

Azadpur Commercial Complex, Delhi 110 033

| have conducted the secretarial audit of the financial year
ending on March 31st 2021 for the compliance of applicable
statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate
practices by Insecticides (India) Limited (CIN
LB65991DL1996PLC0O8B3909) (hereinafter called as the
“Company”) for the financial year ended 31st March 2021('the
year'/ 'audit period'). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a
manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating
the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and
expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of Company's books, papers, minute
books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by the Company, and provided as scanned copied by e-mail
and also the information provided by the Company, its
officers, agents and authorized representatives during the
conduct of secretarial audit, the explanations and
clarifications given to us and the representations made by
the Management and considering the relaxation granted by
the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and Securities and
Exchange Board of India warranted due the spread of the
COVID-19 pandemic, | hereby report that in my opinion, the
Company has, during the audit period, complied with the
statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the
Company has proper board-processes and compliance-
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject
to the reporting made hereinafter:

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company
for the financial year ending on March 31st 2021, according to
the provisions of:

I. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made
thereunder;

Il. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA')
and the Rules made thereunder;

Ill. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-
laws framed thereunder;

IV. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules
and Regulations made thereunder to the extent of
Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment

a)

and External Commercial Borrowings:

Foreign Exchange Management (Transfer or Issue of
Security by a Person Resident Outside India) Regulations,
2017 and Foreign Exchange Management (Non-debt
Instruments) Rules, 2019, as the case may be. -No
foreign direct investment had been received by the
Company during the financial year 2020-21;

b) Foreign Exchange Management (Transfer or Issue
of Any Foreign Security) Regulations, 2004: The
Company had not invested any funds outside India
in Joint Venture or subsidiary during the financial
year 2020-21;

c) Foreign Exchange Management (Borrowing or
Lending) Regulations, 2018: The Company had not
received any external commercial borrowings from
outside India during the financial year 2020-21;

The following Requlations and Guidelines prescribed
under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act,
1992 ('SEBI Act') to the extent applicable to the Company:

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011;

b) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition
of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; - The
Company passed a resolution in respect of Buy back
of securities from open market through stock
exchange method in the Board meeting dated 30th
March 2027

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue
of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018;-The Company has not issued any
capital during the financial year 2020-21, hence the
mentioned regulation is not applicable to the
Company;

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share
Based Employees Benefits Requlations 2014); - The
Company has not come with any ESOP or ESPS or
share based employee benefits during the financial
year ended on March 31, 2021, hence the mentioned
regulations are not applicable to the Company;
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f)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue
and Listing of Debt Securities) Requlations, 2008;
as the Company had not issued or listed debt
securities during the financial year ending March 31,
2021, thus the said regulations are not applicable to
Company;

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993;

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; as
during the financial year ended March 31, 2020; the
Company has not delisted any equity share, thus the
mentioned regulations do not applicable to the
Company; and

| have also examined compliance with the applicable
clauses of the following:

Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India.

ii. The Listing Agreements as entered into by the
Company with the BSE Limited, National Stock
Exchange of India Limited read with the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirement) Requlations, 2015.

| hereby state that during the period under review, the
Company has generally complied with the provisions of the
Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, and Standards etc. as
applicable and mentioned above

Further, as informed to us by management of the Company
there are some industry specific laws, as mentioned below,
which is being compiled by the Company as industry specific
laws under the head “other laws as specifically applicable to
company” are as follows:

a) The Insecticides Act, 1968 & the Insecticides Rules,
1971 read with the Insecticide (Amendment) Rules,
2020.

b) The Insecticides(Price, Stock, Display and Submission
of Reports)Orders, 1986.

c) TheFertilizers Control Order Amendment 2013.

The management of the Company has represented and
confirmed that the Company has generally complied with
applicable provisions of industry specific laws as mentioned
above and based upon such representation and our random
test checks, | also state that Company has generally
complied with applicable provisions of industry specific laws
as mentioned above during the financial year 2020-21.

| further report that:

« The Board of Directors of the Company is duly

constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors,
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors.
The changes in the composition of the Board of
Directors that took place during the period under review
were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the
Act.

- Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the
Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda
were sent at least seven days in advance or with shorter
notice after obtaining requisite consents, and a system
exists for seeking and obtaining further information and
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting
and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

- Alldecisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings
are carried out unanimously as recorded in the minutes
of the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committees
of the Board, as the case may be

- Majority decision is carried through and views are
captured and recorded as part of the minutes while no
member of board has dissented to any proposed
resolutions in board meetings.

Further for the purpose of examining adequacy of
compliance with other applicable laws under both Central &
state legislations, reliance has been placed on reports of
statutory auditors and the Compliance certificates issued by
the Management at each board meeting based on the report
received by the Company from hospitals, nursing homes, day
care centres etc. as part of the Company's Management and
Reporting System.

| further report that there are adequate systems and
processes in the Company commensurate with the size and
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and
guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period, except for the
following events, there was no event/action having a major
bearing on the Company's affairs in pursuance of the above
referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines etc.:

The Board of Directors of the Company had approved the
buyback of fully paid up equity shares of face value of INR
10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each in its meeting dated 30th March
2021 , at a maximum price not exceeding INR 575/- (Rupees
Five Hundred and Seventy Five Only) per Equity Share
payable in cash for an aggregate amount not exceeding
60.00 Crore (Rupees Sixty Crores Only) ("Maximum Buyback
Size") from its shareholders/ beneficial owners (other than
those who are promoters, members of the promoter group or
persons in control), from the open market through stock
exchange mechanism ie., using the electronic trading
facilities of the stock exchanges, also that the Equity Shares
of the Company are listed i.e., National Stock Exchange of
India Limited ("NSE")and BSE Limited.



Mrs. Praveen Gupta (DIN:00180678) who was appointed as an
additional Non- executive Independent woman director on
07th February, 2020 has been appointed as Non- Executive
Independent Woman Director of the Company in the Annual
General meeting held on September 04, 2020 for a period up
to February 14,2021.

M/s Akash Gupta & Associates
Practising Company Secretary
Membership No. 30099
Certificate of Practice No. 11038
UDIN : A030099C000481539

Date: June 18, 2021
Place: Delhi

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is
annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral part of this
report.
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Annexure A

To,

The Members,

Insecticides(India) Limited

401-402, Lusa Tower,

Azadpur Commericial Complex, Delhi-110033

Our report for the financial year ending 31.03.2021 of even
dateisto beread along with this letter:

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of
the management of the company. Our responsibility is to
express opinion on the secretarial records based on our
audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as
were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about
the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial
records. The verification was done on test basis to
ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial
records. We believe that the processes and practices, we
followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriate-
ness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the
company.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management
representation about the compliance of laws, rules and
regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other
applicable laws, rules, requlations, standards is the
responsibility of management. Our examination was
limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to
the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or
effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the company.

7. Due to the ongoing Covid-19 pandemic, we have
conducted online verification and examination of
records, as facilitated by the Company for the purpose of
issuing thisreport.

Sd/-

M/s Akash Gupta & Associates
Practising Company Secretary
Membership No. 30099
Certificate of Practice No. 11038

Date: June 18, 2021
Place: Delhi
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Independent Auditor's Report

Independent Auditor's Report
Tothe Members of Insecticides(India)Limited
Report onthe Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial
statements of Insecticides (India)Limited (“the Company”),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, the
Statement of Profit and Loss(including other comprehensive
income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the financial statements, including a summary of the
significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as “the standalone
financial statements”).

Inouropinionandtothebest of ourinformationandaccording
to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone
financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013("the Act”)in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules,2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting
principles generallyacceptedinIndia, of the state of affairs of
the Company as at March 31, 2021, the profit and total
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows
fortheyearendedonthat date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial
statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone
Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (ICAIl) together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the Standalone financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial
statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to note no. 49 of the Standalone financial
statement, highlighting the fraud committed by two
employees of the Company in collision with Company's
dealers & distributors and FIR filed by the management of the
Company against them. Based on the internal assessment &
enquiry, Company hasrecognized bad debtsamountingtoRs.
970.15 lakhs in this respect and shown it as exceptional item
during the year ended March 31, 2021. Further, Company is of
the view that there is no significant impact of the committed
fraud on the business conditions of the Company, its liquidity

position and has concluded that no material adjustments are
requiredinthe financial statements.
Ouropinionisnot modifiedinrespect of thismatter.

Key Audit Matter

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinionthereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
onthese matters. We have determined the matters described
below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our

report.

Key Audit Matter Auditor's Response

Recognition of Revenue
The Company recognizes
revenue at the point in time
when control of the goods is
transferred to the customer at
an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the
Company expects to be
entitled in exchange for those
goods or services. In
determining the transaction
price for the sale, the Company
considers the effects of
variable consideration and
consideration receivable from
the customer.

For the year ended March 31,
2021, the Company's
Statement of Profit & Loss
included Sales of Rs. 1,41,211.03
Lakhs. The nature of rebates,
discounts and sales returns, if
any, involve judgment in
determining sales revenues
andrevenue cut-off. Theriskis,
therefore, that revenue may
not be recognized in the
correctperiod.

Refer to Accounting policies
Note 2.2 (b) and Note No. 21 of
the standalone Financial
Statements.

Principal Audit Procedures

e We performed process
walkthrough to understand
the adequacy and the
design of the revenue
cycle. We tested internal
controls in the revenue and
trade receivables over the
accuracy and timing of
revenue accounted in the
financial statements.

Understanding the policies
and procedures applied to
revenue recognition, as
well as compliance thereof,
including an analysis of the
effectiveness of controls
related to revenue
recognition processes
employedby the Company.

We reviewed the revenue
recognition policy applied
by the Company to ensure
its compliance with Ind-AS
115 requirements.

We performed a detailed

testing on transactions,
ensuring revenues were
recognized in the correct
accounting period. We also
tested journal entries
recognized in revenue
focusing on unusual or
irregular transactions.

e We validated the
appropriateness and
completeness of the
related disclosures in Note
No. 21 of the Standalone
financial statements.



Information Other than the Standalone Financial
Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the
preparation of the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Management
Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report including Annexures
to Board's Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder's
Information, but does not include the standalone financial
statementsandourauditor'sreportthereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not
covertheotherinformationand we do not expressany form of
assurance orconclusionthereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial
statements, ourresponsibilityistoread the otherinformation
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the standalone financial
statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of
ourauditorotherwise appearstobe materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
thereisamaterial misstatement of this otherinformation, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
thisregard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with
Governance for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the
matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the
preparation of these standalone financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance, totalcomprehensive income, changesin equity
and cash flows of the Company inaccordance with Ind AS and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the standalone financial statements that give
atrue and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whetherduetofraudorerror.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Board
of Directorsisresponsible forassessingthe Company's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
mattersrelated togoing concernand usingthe going concern
basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or
hasnorealisticalternative buttodo so.

The Board of Directorsarealsoresponsible foroverseeingthe
Company'sfinancialreportingprocess.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
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whether the Standalone Financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
butis not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the standalone financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

e (Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls
relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluatetheappropriatenessof accounting policiesused
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

e (Conclude ontheappropriateness of management's use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt onthe Company's ability to continueasa
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the standalone
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based onthe audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the standalone financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the standalone financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
eventsinamannerthatachievesfairpresentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the
standalone financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of
areasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements
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may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the auditand significantaudit findings, includingany
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
duringouraudit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the standalone financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the publicinterest
benefits of suchcommunication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order,
2016("the Order”), issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs3and4of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our
audit, wereport that:

a) Wehavesoughtandobtainedalltheinformationand
explanationswhich tothe best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary forthe purposes of ouraudit.

b) Inour opinion, proper books of account as required
by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appearsfromourexamination of those books.

c) TheBalanceSheet, the Statement of Profitand Loss
including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement
of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash
Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with
therelevantbooksofaccount.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial
statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies(Accounts)Rules, 2014.

e) Onthebasisofthewrittenrepresentationsreceived
from the directors as on March 31, 2021 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the
directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from
beingappointedasadirectorinterms of Section 164

f)

(2)ofthe Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating
effectivenessof suchcontrols, refertoourseparate
Report in “Annexure B". Our report expresses an
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company's internal financial
controlsoverfinancialreporting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in
the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as
amended:

In our opinion and to the best of ourinformation and
according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors
during the year is in accordance with the provisions
of section197of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in
the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended in our opinion and to the best of our
informationandaccordingto the explanations given
tous:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of
pending litigations on its financial position in its
standalone financial statements. - Refer Note 39
tothe standalonefinancial statements.

ii. The Company has made provision, as required
under the applicable law or accounting
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if
any, on long-term contracts including derivative
contracts.

iii. Therehasbeennodelayintransferringamounts,
required to be transferred, to the Investor
Educationand Protection Fund by the Company.

For S S Kothari Mehta & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm's registration number:

000756N

Harish Gupta
Partner

Membership number:
098336

UDIN :
21098336AAAACL2792

Place: New Delhi
Date : June 18, 2021

For Devesh Parekh & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm's registration
number: 013338N

Devesh Parekh
Partner

Membership number:
092160

UDIN:
21092160AAAANWET704

Place: New Delhi
Date : June 18, 2021



ANNEXURE'A'TO THEINDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1under ‘Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements' section of our report to the
Members of Insecticides(India)Limited of even date)

i. Inrespectofthe Company'sproperty, plant & equipment:

(a) The Company has maintained proper records
showingfull particulars, including quantitative details
andsituation of property, plant & equipment.

(b) The property, plant & equipment have been physically
verified by the management according to the
programme of periodical verification in phased
manner, which, in our opinion, is reasonable having
regardtothe size of the Companyandthe nature of its
property, plant & equipment. According to the
information and explanations given to us, no material
discrepancieswere noticed onsuch verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given
tousandonthe basis of ourexamination of records of
the Company, the title deeds ofimmovable properties
areheldinthe name of the Company.

We have been explained by the management that the
inventory (except stock lying with the third parties and in
transit, for which confirmations have been received/
material received) has been physically verified at
reasonable intervals and the procedures of physical
verification of inventory followed by the management are
reasonable in relation to the size of the Company and
nature of its business. According to information and
explanations given to us, the material discrepancies, if
any, noticed on such physical verification of inventory as
compared to book records were properly dealt within the
booksofaccounts.

iii. The Company has not granted any loans, secured or

unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or other parties covered in the register
maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the
provisions of paragraph iii (a) to (c) of the Order are not
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iv. According to the information, explanations and

representations given to us and based upon audit
procedures performed, we are of the opinion that in
respect of loans, investments, guarantees and securities,
the Company has complied with the provisions of section
185and 186 of the Act.

v. Accordingtotheinformationandexplanations giventous,

Vi.

vii

the Company has not accepted any deposits from the
public within the provisions of sections 73 to 76 of the Act
andtherulesframedthereunder.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account
maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules made by
Central Government for the maintenance of the cost
records under section 148(1) of the Act in respect to the
Company's products to which said rules are made
applicable and are of the opinion that prima facie, the
prescribed records have been made and maintained. We
have however not made a detailed examination of the said
records with a view to determine whether they are
accurateorcomplete.

. (a) Accordingtotheinformationandexplanations given

tous and on the basis of examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has generally been
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues
including provident fund, employees' state
insurance, income tax, goods and service tax,
custom duty, cess and any other material statutory
dues with the appropriate authorities to the extent
applicable and further there were no undisputed
statutory dues payable for a period of more than six
months from the date they become payable as at
March 31,2021.

(b) According to the records and information and
explanations given to us, there are no dues in
respect of income tax, sales tax, service tax, goods
and service tax, duty of excise, duty of custom and
value added tax that have not been deposited on
account of anydispute exceptasgivenbelow:

applicabletothe Company.

Net Amount*
(Rs. In Lacs)
(A-B)

Amount
Deposited under
protest (B)

Gross
Liability

Period to
which it

Name of the Nature
Statute of
Dues

Forum where dispute is
pending

relates (A)

1 Gujarat Stamp Act, Stamp 2013-14 Commissioner of Revenue 89.60 19.60 70.00
1958 Duty Department, Tehsil Vagra,
District Bharuch
2 Gujarat Value Added VAT & 2011-12 & 2012-  Joint Commissioner of 371.72 103.27 268.45
Tax Act, 2003 CST 13 commercial Tax, Baroda
3 AndhraPradesh VAT VAT 2014-15 APVAT Appellate Tribunal, 122.08 61.04 61.04
Act, 2005 Visakhapatnam.
4 MP VAT Act, 2002 CST 2012-13 Assistant Commissioner, 1.62 0.15 1.37
VAT, Indore
b5 Central Excise Act, Excise 2015-16, 2016~ Central Excise Audit 294.37 14.72 279.65
1944 Duty 17 & 2017-18 Commissionerate,Jaipur
6  WestBengal VAT VAT 2010-2011 Appellate Authority, VAT, 5.70 7.29 -
Act, 2004 West Bengal
7  Central Excise Act, Excise  2012-13 & Central Excise Audit 135.14 5.07 130.07
1944 Duty 2013-14 Commissionerate, Jammu
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viii.

Xi.

Xii.

xiii.

Xiv.

XV.

(INDIA) LIMITED

In our opinion, on the basis of audit procedures and
according to the information and explanations given to
us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loan
orborrowingtoany bank.

The Company has not taken any loans or borrowings
from the government and financial institution. Further,
the Company had notissuedanydebentures.

According to the information and explanations given to
us, the Company has not raised money by way of initial
public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments)during the year. The term loans have been
appliedforthe purposesforwhichtheywereraised.

As per information and explanations given to us and on
the basis of our examination of the records, except for
reporting of fraud by the Company during the year as
referred to Note no 49 to the standalone financial
statement and as referred in the matter described in
the 'Emphasis of matter'sectionin the report above we
have neither come across any instance of material
fraud by the company or on the Company by its
employee, noticed orreported during the year, nor have
beeninformed ofanysuch case by the management.

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the managerial remuneration
has been paid/ provided in accordance with the
requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of
section197read withschedule Vtothe Act.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence
reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable tothe Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company is in compliance
with section 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable, for
all transactions with the related parties and the details
of related parties transactions have been disclosed in
the standalone financial statements as required by the
applicable Accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to
us, the Company has not made any preferential
allotment of shares or private placement of shares or
fully / partly convertible debentures during the year in
terms of provisions of Sections 42 of the Act.

According to the information and explanations given to
us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash
transactions with directors or persons connected with
him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not
applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section
45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 as the provisions
of the sectionisnotapplicabletothe Company.

For S S Kothari Mehta & Co. For Devesh Parekh & Co.
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
Firm's registration number: Firm's registration
000756N number: 013338N
Harish Gupta Devesh Parekh
Partner Partner

Membership number:

Membership number: 098336 092160

UDIN : 21098336AAAACL2792 UDIN: 21092160AAAANWE704

Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi
Date : June 18, 2021 Date : June 18, 2021



ANNEXURE“B” TO THEINDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under 'Report on Other Legal and
Requlatory Requirements' section of our report to the Members of
Insecticides(India)Limited of evendate)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Statements
under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013(“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of INSECTICIDES (INDIA) LIMITED (“the
Company”) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended
onthatdate.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing
and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal
control with reference to financial statements criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reportingissued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to respective
Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the preventionand
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, asrequiredunderthe Act.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements of the Company
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under
Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectivelyinall materialrespects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system with
reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statementsincluded obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk
thatamaterial weakness exists, and testingand evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whetherdue tofraudorerror.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficientand
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal
financial controls system with reference to financial statements of
the Company.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial
statements

A Company's internal financial control with reference to financial
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
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regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal
financial control with reference to financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
Company; and(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention
or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of
the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls withreference to
financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
withreference tofinancial statementsto future periodsare subject to
the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the Company has, in all material respects, an
adequate internal financial controls system with reference to
financial statements and such internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2021, based on the internal control with reference to
financial statements criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S S Kothari Mehta & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's registration number:

For Devesh Parekh & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's registration

000756N number: 013338N
Harish Gupta Devesh Parekh
Partner Partner

) . Membership number:
Membership number: 098336 092160

UDIN : 21098336AAAACL2792 UDIN: 21092160AAAANW8704

Place: New Delhi
Date : June 18, 2021

Place: New Delhi
Date : June 18, 2021



inseCi ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21

(INDIA) LIMITED

Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

ASSETS

1

Non-current assets
(a)  Property, plant and equipment
(b)  Capital work-in-progress
(c)  Right-of-use asset
(d) Intangible assets
(e) Intangible assets under development
(f)  Investmentin joint venture
(g)  Financial assets
(i) Investments
(ii) Other financial assets
(h)  Non-current tax assets (net)
(i) Other non-current assets
Total non-current assets
Current assets
(a)  Inventories
(b)  Financial Assets
(i) Trade receivables
(i) Cash and cash equivalents
(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above
(iv) Loans
(v) Other financial assets
(c) Other current assets
Total current assets
Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity
(a)  Equity Share capital
(b)  Other Equity
Total equity
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
(a)  Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings
(i) Lease liabilities
(b)  Provisions
(c)  Deferred tax liabilities (net)
Total non-current liabilities
Current liabilities
(a)  Financial Liabilities
() Borrowings
(ii) Lease liabilities
(iii) Trade Payables

(A) total outstanding due of micro enterprises and small enterprises; and

(B) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

(iv) Other financial liabilities
(b)  Other current liabilities
(c)  Provisions
Total current liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Notes to Financial Statements

(R in'Lacs', unless mentioned otherwise)

Auditor's Report

As per our separate report of even date annexed herewith

For DEVESH PAREKH & CO.
Chartered Accountants

DEVESH PAREKH

Partner

Membership No.- 092160

Firm Registration No. - 013338N

Place : Delhi
Date :June 18, 2021

For S S KOTHARI MEHTA & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants

HARISH GUPTA

Partner

Membership No.- 098336

Firm Registration No. - 000756N

3 20,853.52 20,893.13
3 5,187.22 3,288.41
4 2,584.56 2,514.73
5 441.83 501.91
5 677.54 607.49
6 795.00 795.00
7(a) 362.00 244.97
7(b) 280.45 160.82
8 1,072.08 1,396.89
9 1,5634.31 1,056.11
33,788.51 31,459.46
10 66,087.25 51,926.48
11(a) 25,458.71 31,978.73
11(b) 646.36 6,773.13
T1(c) 7,682.94 642.97
11(d) 5.08 272.82
Ti(e) 435.03 604.24
12 8,293.06 5,634.79
1,08,608.43 97,833.16
1,42,396.94 1,29,292.62
13 2,066.78 2,066.78
14 79,772.98 70,956.60
81,839.76 73,023.38
15(a) 239.63 190.53
15(b) 253.35 176.31
16 276.79 103.88
17 1,335.69 1,867.78
2,105.46 2,338.50
18(a) 9,160.85 18,348.22
15(b) 163.42 192.72
18(b)
2,567.17 1,178.57
33,636.32 23,471.21
18(c) 2,627.58 2,911.16
19 10,021.46 7.564.75
20 274.92 258.1
58,451.72 53,930.74
1,42,396.94 1,29,292.62
1to2
3tobl
FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
HARI CHAND AGGARWAL RAJESH AGGARWAL

Chairman
DIN: 00577015

SANDEEP AGGARWAL
Chief Financial Officer

Managing Director
DIN: 00576872

NIKUNJ AGGARWAL
Whole Time Director
DIN 06569091

SANDEEP KUMAR
Company Secretary
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(INDIA) LIMITED

Statement of Profit and Loss for year ended March 31, 2021 (Rin'Lacs' unless mentioned otherwise)
N |
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Income
Revenue from operations 21 1,42,022.58 1,36,321.96
Other Income 22 772.78 256.55
Total Income 1,42,795.36 1,36,578.51
Expenses
Cost of raw material and components consumed 23 1,04,517.82 79,083.88
Purchase of Traded Goods 5,795.48 4,600.90
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and traded goods 24 (3,526.01) 17,249.15
Employee benefits expense 25 7,650.66 7.474.23
Finance Costs 26 665.11 2,388.98
Depreciation and amortization expense 27 2,467.18 2,407.20
Other expenses 28 12,351.54 12,328.06
Total expenses 1,29,921.78 1,25,532.40
Profit before tax and exceptional items 12,873.58 11,046.11
Exceptional items 49 970.15 =
Profit before tax 11,903.43 11,046.11
Tax Expenses 30
- Current Tax 3,051.10 2,538.94
- Deferred Tax (490.97) (96.89)
Total Tax Expenses 2,560.13 2,442.05
Profit for the period 9,343.30 8,604.06
Other comprehensive income 31

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Changes in fair value of FVTOCI equity instruments 117.03 (143.03)
Remeasurement of net defined benefit plans (271.71) (170.23)
Income tax relating to these items 41.12 92.80
Other comprehensive income for the period (net of tax) (113.56) (220.46)
Total comprehensive income for the period (net of tax) 9,229.74 8,383.60
Earnings per equity share 42
Basic earnings per share 45.21 41.63
Diluted earnings per share 45.21 41.63
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 1to2
Notes to Financial Statements 3to bl
Auditor's Report FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
As per our separate report of even date annexed herewith
For DEVESH PAREKH & CO. For SS KOTHARI MEHTA & COMPANY HARI CHAND AGGARWAL RAJESH AGGARWAL
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Chairman Managing Director
DIN: 00577015 DIN: 00576872
DEVESH PAREKH HARISH GUPTA NIKUNJ AGGARWAL
Partner Partner Whole Time Director
Membership No.- 092160 Membership No.- 098336 DIN 06569091
Firm Registration No. - 013338N Firm Registration No. - 000756N
SANDEEP AGGARWAL SANDEEP KUMAR
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place : Delhi

Date :June 18, 2021
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(INDIA) LIMITED

Statement of changes in Equity for year ended March 31, 2021 (Zin'Lacs' unless mentioned otherwise)

(A) Equity share capital (Refer note 13)

As at April 1, 2019 2,066.78
Changes in equity share capital =
As at March 31, 2020 2,066.78
Changes in equity share capital =
As at March 31, 2021 2,066.78

(B) Other equity (Refer note 14)

Total Other
Secur'ities General Reta'ined rese:)IeT-o:t:uity Ui
premium reserve earnings instruments
Balance at April 1, 2019 10,410.18 3,201.52 50,399.16 57.11 64,067.97
Profit for the year 8,604.06 8,604.06
Other comprehensive income (Net of taxes) (110.74) (109.72) (220.46)
Total comprehensive income for the period 8,493.32 (109.72) 8,383.60
Final dividend paid during the year (413.35) (413.35)
Tax on Final dividend paid (84.99) (84.99)
Interim dividend paid during the year (826.70) (826.70)
Tax on Interim dividend paid (169.93) (169.93)
Balance at March 31, 2020 10,410.18 3,201.52 57,397.51 (52.61) 70,956.60
Profit for the year 9,343.30 9,343.30
Other comprehensive income (Net of taxes) (203.33) 89.77 (113.56)
Total comprehensive income for the period 9,139.97 89.77 9,229.74

Final dividend paid during the year - -

Tax on Final dividend paid =
Interim dividend paid during the year (413.36) (413.386)

Tax on Interim dividend paid - -
Balance at March 31, 2021 10,410.18 3,201.52 66,124.12 37.16 79,772.98

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 1to2
Notes to Financial Statements 3to 51
Auditor's Report FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
As per our separate report of even date annexed herewith
For DEVESH PAREKH & CO. For S S KOTHARI MEHTA & COMPANY HARI CHAND AGGARWAL RAJESH AGGARWAL
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Chairman Managing Director
DIN: 00577015 DIN: 00576872
DEVESH PAREKH HARISH GUPTA NIKUNJ AGGARWAL
Partner Partner Whole Time Director
Membership No.- 092160 Membership No.- 098336 DIN 06569091
Firm Registration No. - 013338N Firm Registration No. - 000756N
SANDEEP AGGARWAL SANDEEP KUMAR
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place : Delhi

Date : June 18, 2021
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(R in'Lacs', unless mentioned otherwise)

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

(A) Cash Flow From Operating Activities

Net profit before tax

Adjustment on account of

- Depreciation

- (Profit)/ Loss on Sale of Assets

- Miscellaneous Expenses

- Miscellaneous Income

- Interest Income

- Dividend Income

- Interest Expenses

- Bad debts written off

- Provision for impairment of trade receivables
- Derivative (gain)/ loss

- Unrealised exchange differences

Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes
Adjustments for

-(Increase)/Decrease in security deposits
-(Increase)/Decrease in inventories
-(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables
-(Increase)/Decrease in loans
-(Increase)/Decrease in other financial assets
-(Increase)/Decrease in other current assets
-(Increase)/Decrease in provisions

- Increase/(Decrease)in trade payables

- Increase/(Decrease) in other financial liabilities
- Increase/(Decrease) in other current liabilities
Cash generated from operations

Less: Income tax paid

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities (A)
(B) Cash Flow From Investing Activities

- Addition to property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, capital-work-in-
progress and intangible assets under development

- Proceeds from sale of property plant and equipment

- Interest received

- Proceeds from / (investment in) bank deposits

- Inter Corporate Loans (Given)/ Received back

- Dividends received

Net Cash Flow used in Investing Activities (B)

(C) Cash Flow From Financing Activities

- Repayment of long term borrowings

- Proceeds from long term borrowings

- Proceeds/(Repayment) from/of short term borrowings
- Repayment of lease liabilities

- Interest paid

- Dividend paid (including dividend distribution tax)

Net Cash Flow (used in) / from Financing Activities (C)
Net increase/ (decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year

11,903.43

2,467.18
37.94
(0.81)

(251.18)
(9.62)
665.11
47.06
348.99
(21.86)
(294.85)
14,891.59

(117.81)
(14,160.77)
6,203.48
2.74
94.37
(2,666.99)
(81.99)
11,809.90
(169.35)
2,456.71
18,261.88
(2,726.29)
15,535.59

(4,829.79)

66.96
269.17
(7,041.11)
265.00
10.08
(11,259.69)

(226.21)
298.49
(9,187.37)
(198.69)
(675.53)
(413.36)
(10,402.67)
(6,126.77)
6,773.13
646.36

11,046.11

2,407.20
37.22
6.34
(5.59)
(142.30)
(10.16)
2,588.98
6.34
225.64
(64.40)
(8.40)
15,886.98

(1.85)
18,584.16
(7,785.82)
8.79
(92.61)
2,923.41
(17.32)
(3,330.82)
364.55
856.11
27,395.58
(3,210.32)
24,185.26

(2,902.23)

59.09
104.82
(614.75)
935.00
9.27
(2,408.80)

(928.86)
319.91
(11,160.62)
(161.18)
(2,47.77)
(1,494.98)
(15,897.50)
5,878.96
894.17
6,773.13




insect ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21

(INDIA) LIMITED

Statement of Cash Flow for year ended March 31, 2021 (Rin'Lacs' unless mentioned otherwise)

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Balances with banks

On current accounts 640.03 4,243.04
Cash on hand 6.33 9.03
Deposits with original maturity upto three months = 2,521.06
Total cash and cash equivalents 646.36 6,773.13

Non cash changes in liabilities arising from financial liablities :

As at April U:;::::e: Other non cash As at March 31,
1,2020 . g changes 2021
difference

Long term borrowings (including current maturities) 394.25 72.28 466.53
Lease liabilities (including current maturities) 369.03 (198.69) = 248.43 416.77
Short term borrowings 18,348.22 (9,187.37) = = 9,160.85
19,111.50 (9,313.78) = 246.43 10,044.15
As at April U:;z:::e: Other non cash As at March 31,
1,2019 P changes 2020
difference
Long term borrowings (including current maturities) 1,003.20 (608.95) - - 394.25
Lease liabilities (including current maturities) 680.15 (161.18) = (149.94) 369.03
Short term borrowings 29,517.24 (11,160.62) (8.40) = 18,348.22
31,200.59 (11,930.75) (8.40) (149.94) 19,111.50
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 1to2
Notes to Financial Statements 3to bl
Auditor's Report FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
As per our separate report of even date annexed herewith
For DEVESH PAREKH & CO. For S S KOTHARI MEHTA & COMPANY HARI CHAND AGGARWAL RAJESH AGGARWAL
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Chairman Managing Director
DIN: 00577015 DIN: 00576872
DEVESH PAREKH HARISH GUPTA NIKUNJ AGGARWAL
Partner Partner Whole Time Director
Membership No.- 092160 Membership No.- 098336 DIN 06569091
Firm Registration No. - 013338N Firm Registration No. - 000756N
SANDEEP AGGARWAL SANDEEP KUMAR
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place : Delhi

Date : June 18, 2021
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Corporate Information

Insecticides (India) Limited (“The Company”) is a public
Company domiciled in India and incorporated under the
provisions of the Companies Act. The shares of the
Company are listed in India on the Bombay Stock
Exchange Limited and National Stock Exchange. The
registered office of the Company is located at 401-402,
LusaTower, Azadpur Commercial Complex, Delhi, 110033.
The Company is engaged in the manufacturing activities
of Agro Chemicals, Pesticides and Technical Products for
agriculture purposes. The Company caters to both
domesticandinternational markets.

The financial statements were authorised for issue in
accordance with a resolution of the directors on June 18,
2021.

Significant accounting policies
2.1 Basisof preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been
prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards)Rules, 2015 notified under section
133 of the Companies Act 2013 (“the Act’) as amended
thereafterand otherrelevant provision of the Act.

The financial statements have been prepared on a
historical cost basis, except for the following assets and
liabilities which have been measured at fair value or
revaluedamount

(a) Derivativefinancialinstruments
(b)

(c) Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial
instruments)

Planassetsof defined employee benefit plans

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees
(INR)whichisalso the Company's functional currency and
all values are rounded to the nearest lacs, except when
otherwiseindicated.

Summary of significantaccounting policies
(a) Currentversusnon-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the
balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification. Anassetistreatedascurrentwhenitis

a) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or
consumedinnormal operatingcycle,

b) Heldprimarily forthe purpose of trading,

c) Cashorcashequivalentunlessrestricted frombeing
exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve monthsafterthereporting period.

Allotherassetsare classifiedasnon-current.

Aliabilityis currentwhen:

a) Itisexpectedtobesettledinnormaloperatingcycle.
b) Itisheldprimarily forthe purpose of trading.

c) There is no unconditional right to defer the
settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
afterthereportingperiod.

Allother liabilities are classified asnon-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-
currentassetsand liabilities.

Based on the nature of products and the time between
acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation
in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has identified
twelve months as its operating cycle for the purpose of
current / non-current classification of assets and
liabilities.

(b) Revenuerecognition

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of the goods or services are transferred to
the customer at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Company expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The
Company has generally concluded that it is the principal
initsrevenue arrangements, because it typically controls
the goods or services before transferring them to the
customer.

Revenue is stated exclusive of Goods and Service Tax
(GST).

The specific recognition criteria described below must
alsobemetbeforerevenueisrecognised.

Salesof goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point in
time when control is transferred to the customer which is
usually on shipment. Revenue is measured based on the
transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for
volume discounts, rebates, scheme allowances, price
concessions, incentives, andreturns, if any, as specifiedin the
contracts with the customers. Revenue excludes taxes
collected from customers on behalf of the government.
Accruals for discounts/incentives and returns are estimated
(using the most likely method) based on accumulated
experience and underlying schemes and agreements with
customers. Due to the short nature of credit period given to
customers, thereisnofinancingcomponentinthe contract.

Rendering of services

Revenue from sale of servicesisrecognised over the period of
time as per the terms of the contract with customers based on
the stage of completion whenthe outcome of the transactions
involvingrendering of services canbe estimatedreliably.

Trade receivables

Areceivable is recognised if an amount of consideration that
is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required
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before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to
accounting policies of financial assets in section(m)
financial instruments.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised if a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before
the Company transfers the related goods or services.
Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the
Company performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control
oftherelated goods or servicesto the customer).

Otherincome
Interest Income

For all financial instruments measured either at amortised
cost or fair value through other comprehensive income,
interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate
(EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the
financialinstrument orashorter period, where appropriate, to
the gross carrying amount of the financial asset. When
calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates
the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual
terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment,
extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the
expected credit losses. Interest income is included in other
incomeinthe Statement of Profitand Loss.

Dividends

Revenue is recognised when the Company's right to receive
the payment is established, which is generally when
shareholdersapprove the dividend.

(c) Property, plantand equipment

Iltems of property, plant and equipment and capital work-in
progress are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost
comprises purchase price, borrowing costs if capitalization
criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the
asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade
discountsandrebatesaredeductedinarrivingat the purchase
price.Such costincludesthe cost of replacing part of the plant
and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term
construction projects if the recognition criteria are met.
Subsequent expenditure related to an item of fixed asset is
added to its book value only if it increases the future benefits
from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed
standard of performance. When significant parts of plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Company depreciates them separately based on their specific
useful lives. All other repair and maintenance costs are
recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred. In
respect of additions to /deletions from the property, plantand
equipment, depreciation is provided on pro-rata basis with
referencetothe month of addition/ deletion of the assets.

The Company, based on technical assessment made by
technical expert and management estimate, depreciates
certain items of plant and equipment over estimated useful
lives which are different from the useful life prescribed in
Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013. The management
believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and

reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets
are likely to be used. Depreciation on remaining items of
property, plant & equipment has been provided on Straight
Line Method based on useful life of the assets as prescribedin
Schedulell of the CompaniesAct, 2013.

Estimated usefullives of the assetsare as follows:

Nature of Tangible Assets Useful Life (years)

Plant &Equipments 10-15
Building 30
Laboratory Equipments 10
Office Equipments 5
Furniture, Fixtures &

. 10
Equipments
Vehicles 8-10

. Over the period of lease or
Leasehold improvements ) - )
useful life whichever is lower
An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use
or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)is included in
theincome statementwhenthe assetisderecognised.

(d) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible
assets with finite life are carried at cost less any accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Internally
generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development
costs, are not capitalised and the related expenditure is
reflectedinprofitorlossinthe periodinwhichthe expenditure
isincurred.

Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basis over
the estimated usefuleconomiclife.

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with afinite useful life are reviewed at least at
the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected
useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future
economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to
modify theamortisation period or method, asappropriate, and
are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The
amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless such
expenditure forms part of carryingvalue of another asset.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the
assetisderecognised.

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development
expenditures on an individual project are recognised as an
intangible asset when the Company can demonstrate
technical and commercial feasibility of making the asset



availableforuseorsale.

Following initial recognition of the development expenditure
as an asset, the asset is carried at cost less any accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation of the asset begins when development is
complete and the assetis available for use. Itisamortised over
the period of expected future benefit. Amortisation expenseis
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless such
expenditure forms part of carryingvalue of anotherasset.

A'summary of the policies applied to the Company's intangible
assetsisasfollows:-

Intanaible assets Useful Life |Amortisation
9 (years) method used

Amortised on
SMLRETEALERD 8 straight-line basis
Websites 2 Amortised on

straight-line basis

Amortised on
straight-line basis

Patents, trademarks

and designs i

(e) Borrowingcosts

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
constructionor production of anasset that necessarily takesa
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or
sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
occur.

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an
entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the
extentregardedasanadjustmenttothe borrowingcosts.

(f) Foreigncurrencies
Transactions and Balances

Transactions in foreign currency are recorded applying the
exchange rate at the date of transaction. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currency remaining
unsettled at the end of the year, are translated at the closing
rates prevailing on the Balance Sheet date. Non-monetary
items which are carried in terms of historical cost
denominated in foreign currency are reported using the
exchange rate at the date of transaction. Exchange
differences arising as a result of the above are recognized as
income or expenses in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Exchange difference arising on the settlement of monetary
items at rates different from those at which they were initially
recorded during the year, or reported in previous financial
statements, arerecognised asincome or expensesin the year
inwhichtheyarise.

Foreign exchange difference on foreign currency borrowings,
settlement gain/loss and fair value gain/loss on derivative
contract relating to borrowings are accounted and disclosed
under finance cost. Such exchange difference does not
include foreign exchange difference regarded as an
adjustment tothe borrowings costand capitalised with cost of
assets.
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(g) Fairvalue measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as,
derivatives and equity investments at fair value at each
balance sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfertheliability takes place either:

a) Intheprincipal market forthe asset orliability, or

b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset orliability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in
theireconomicbestinterest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant's ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
assetinitshighestandbestuse.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurementasawhole:

a) Level1—Quoted(unadjusted)market pricesin active
markets foridentical assetsorliabilities.

b) Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurementisdirectly orindirectly observable.

c) Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurementisunobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation(based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
awhole)atthe end of eachreporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has
determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the
nature, characteristicsandrisks of the asset orliabilityand the
level of the fairvalue hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other
fairvaluerelateddisclosuresare givenintherelevant notes.

©
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-Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy
(note 34)

- Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised
cost)(note 7,11,15and 18)

(h) Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset fora
period of timeinexchange for consideration.

Aleaseisacontract that containsright to controlthe use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

Companyasalessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases. The
Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments
and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the
underlying assets.

The Company has lease contracts for various items of land,
office premises, warehousesandvehicles.

i)Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the
commencement date of the lease(i.e., the date the underlying
assetisavailable foruse). Right-of-use assets are measured at
cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, and adjusted for any re-measurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount
of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costsincurred, and
lease payments made at or before the commencement date
less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the
lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets, as
follows:

Nature of Right-of-use assets Depreciation period

Office premises 3-byears
Warehouses 3-5years
Land 60-198 years

There are renewal terms that can extend the lease term for up
to 2 years and are included in the lease term when it is
reasonably certain that the Company will exercise the option.
The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer
to the accounting policies in section (j) Impairment of non-
financial assets.

The Right-of-use assets are presented as separate line itemin
the balance sheet.

ii) Leaseliabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company
recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of
lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease
payments include fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments)lessany lease incentives. The lease payments
also include the exercise price of a purchase option

reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and
payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
termreflects the Company exercising the option to terminate.
Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a
ratearerecognisedasexpenseinthe periodinwhichthe event
orconditionthattriggersthe paymentoccurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicitin the
lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the
accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease
term,achangeinthelease payments.

The lease liabilities are presented as separate line itemin the
balance sheetunderfinancialliabilities.

iii) Short-termleases

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of office premises,
warehouses and vehicles (i.e., those leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and
donotcontainapurchase option).

Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as
expense onastraight-line basisoverthelease term.

Company asalessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset
are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is
accounted for onastraight-line basis over the lease terms and
is included in other income in the statement of profit or loss
due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the
leasetermonthe samebasisasrentalincome.

(i) Inventories

The items of inventories are measured at cost after providing
for obsolescence, if any. Cost of inventories comprise of cost
of purchase, cost of conversion and appropriate portion of
variable and fixed proportion overheads and such other costs
incurred in bringing them to their respective present location
and condition. Fixed production overheads are based on
normal capacity of productionfacilities.

Stores and spares, packing materials and raw materials are
valued at lower of cost or net realisable value. However, the
aforesaid items are not valued below cost if the finished
productsin which they are to be incorporated are expected to
besoldatorabove cost.

Semi-finished products, finished products and by-products
arevaluedatlowerof costornetrealisable value.

Traded goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable
value.

Cost of raw material, process chemicals, stores and spares
packing materials, trading and other products are determined
onweightedaverage basis.

©



Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

(j) Impairmentof non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there
isanindication thatan asset may be impaired. If any indication
exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is
required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable
amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset's or cash-generating unit's(CGU) net selling price and its
value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets. Where the carryingamount of anasset or CGU exceeds
its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and
iswrittendowntoitsrecoverableamount. Inassessingvaluein
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and
therisks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price,
recent market transactions are taken into account, if
available. If no such transactions can be identified, an
appropriate valuation modelisused.

After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised
carryingamount of the asset overitsremainingusefullife.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether
there is any indication that previously recognized impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such
indication exists, the Company estimates the asset's or cash-
generatingunit'srecoverableamount. A previously recognized
impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in
the assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable
amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. The
reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset
does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the
asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a
revaluationincrease.

(k) Provisions, contingentliabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present
obligation(legal or constructive)asaresult of a past event, itis
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The
expense relating to a provision is presented in the Statement
of Profitand Loss netofanyreimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions
arediscounted usingacurrent pre-taxrate thatreflects, when
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of timeisrecognisedasafinance cost. Provisionsare
reviewed at each balance sheet and adjusted to reflect the
currentbestestimates.
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Contingentliabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events whose existence will be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events beyond the control of the Company or a present
obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare
cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized
because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does
not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence
inthefinancial statements.

Contingent Assets

A contingent asset is not recognised unless it becomes
virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise.
When an inflow of economic benefits is probable, contingent
assetsaredisclosedinthefinancial statements.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at
eachbalance sheetdate.

() Retirementand other employee benefits

Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance is a defined
contribution scheme established under a State Plan. The
contributions to the scheme are charged to the Statement of
Profit and Loss in the year when employee rendered related
services.

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every
employee who has completed five years or more of service
gets a gratuity on post-employment at 15 days salary (last
drawn salary) for each completed year of service as per the
rules of the Company. The aforesaid liability is provided for on
the basis of an actuarial valuation on projected unit credit
method made at the end of the financial year. The scheme is
funded with an insurance Company in the form of a qualifying
insurance policy.

The Company has other long-term employee benefits in the
nature of leave encashment. The liability in respect of leave
encashment is provided for on the basis of an actuarial
valuation on projected unit credit method made at the end of
the financial year. The aforesaid leave encashment is
unfunded.

Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses,
the effect of asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in the
net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return
on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on
the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in
OCl in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are
notreclassifiedto profitorlossinsubsequent periods.

(m) Financialinstruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a
financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in
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the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets
areclassifiedinfourcategories:

a) Debtinstrumentsatamortisedcost

b) Debt instruments at fair value through other
comprehensiveincome(FVTOCI)

c) Debt instruments, derivatives and equity
instruments at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL)

d) Equity instruments measured at fair value through
othercomprehensiveincome(FVTOCI)

Debtinstruments atamortised cost

A'debt instrument' is measured at the amortised cost if both
thefollowing conditionsare met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual
cashflows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount
outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included in other income in the Statement of
Profit and Loss. The losses arising from impairment are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. This category
generally applies to trade receivables, security deposits &
otherreceivables.

Debtinstrumentat FVTOCI

A'debt instrument'is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the
following criteriaare met:

a) Theobjective of the business modelis achieved both
by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the
financialassets, and

b) Theasset'scontractualcashflowsrepresent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are
measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair
value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other
comprehensive income (0OCI). However, the Company
recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals
and foreign exchange gain or loss in the Statement of Profit
and Loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or
loss previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from the
equity to Statement of Profit and Loss. Interest earned whilst
holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest
incomeusingthe EIRmethod.

Debtinstrumentat FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt
instrument, which does not meet the criteria for
categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified
asatFVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt
instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI
criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if
doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition
inconsistency (referred to as 'accounting mismatch'). The
Company has designated certain debt instrument as at
FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are
measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the
Statement of Profitand Loss.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at
fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading are
classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the
Company may make anirrevocable electionto presentin other
comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value.
The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-
instrument basis. The classification is made on initial
recognitionandisirrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at
FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument,
excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no
recycling of the amounts from OCI to profit and loss, even on
sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the
cumulative gain orlosswithin equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are
measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the
Statement of Profitand Loss.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets)is primarily
derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company's consolidated
balance sheet)when:

a) Therightstoreceive cash flows from the asset have
expired, or

b) The Company has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a 'pass-
through' arrangement; and either (a) the Company
has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or(b)the Company has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
andrewards of the asset, but has transferred control
of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained
the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
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transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and
rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the
Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the
extent of the Company's continuing involvement. In that case,
the Company also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on
a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Company hasretained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Company could be required
torepay.

Impairment of financial assets

Inaccordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected
credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of
impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit
riskexposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are
measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt
securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank
balance

b) Financial assets that are debt instruments and are
measuredasat FVTOCI

c) Tradereceivablesorany contractual right to receive
cash or another financial asset that result from
transactionsthatarewithinthe scope of Ind AS115

The Company follows 'simplified approach' for recognition of
impairmentlossallowance on Trade and otherreceivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the
Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date, right fromitsinitial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets
and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether
there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since
initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly,
12-month ECL isused to provide forimpairmentloss. However,
if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used.
If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument
improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to
recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month
ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL
which results from default events that are possible within 12
monthsafterthe reportingdate.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that
areduetothe Companyinaccordance withthe contractandall
the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash
shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating
the cashflows, anentityisrequiredto consider:
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a) All contractual terms of the financial instrument
(including prepayment, extension, call and similar
options) over the expected life of the financial
instrument. However, in rare cases when the
expected life of the financial instrument cannot be
estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use
the remaining contractual term of the financial
instrument.

b) Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other
credit enhancements that are integral to the
contractualterms.

c) Financial assets measured as at amortised cost,
contractual revenue receivables and lease
receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e.,
as an integral part of the measurement of those
assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces
the net carryingamount. Until the asset meets write-
off criteria, the company does not reduce
impairment allowance from the gross carrying
amount.

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix
to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its
trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its
historically observed default rates over the expected life of the
trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking
estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimatesare analysed. On that basis, the Company estimates
the following provision matrixat the reportingdate:

days |[days

0.10% 0.20% 0.50%

180-360 |360-720 |More than
EVE

5.00%

50.00%

100.00%

ECLimpairmentlossallowance(or reversal)recognized during
the periodisrecognized asincome/ expense in the Statement
of Profit and Loss. This amount is reflected under the head
'otherexpenses'inthe Statement of Profitand Loss.

(n) Financialliabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instrumentsinaneffective hedge, asappropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directlyattributable transaction costs.

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, loans and borrowings including cash credits and
derivative financialinstruments.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification, asdescribed below:

[0
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Loansand borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in
Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are
derecognisedaswellasthroughthe EIRamortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
anintegral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisationisincluded as
finance costsinthe Statement of Profitand Loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings. For more
information, refernote 15and 18

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit orloss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for
trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in
the near term. This category also includes derivative financial
instruments entered into by the company that are not
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as
defined by Ind AS109.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in
the Statement of Profitand Loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an
existing financial liability is replaced by another fromthe same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
Statement of Profitand Loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the
assetsand settle the liabilities simultaneously.

(o) Derivative financialinstruments
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as
interest rate swaps, currency swaps, options and forward
contractsto hedgeitsinterestrate and foreign currencyrisks.
Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised
at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value.
Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value
is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is
negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
derivativesare takendirectly to Statement of Profitand Loss.

(p) Cashand cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash
at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
insignificantrisk of changesinvalue.

Forthe purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as
defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are
considered an integral part of the Company's cash
management.

(gq) Dividend

The Company recognises a liability to make cash distributions
to equity holders when the distribution is authorised and the
distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As
per the corporate laws in India, a distribution is authorised
when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding
amountisrecogniseddirectlyinequity.

(r) Taxes
Currentincome tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the
amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted,
at the reporting date in the countries where the Company
operatesand generates taxableincome.

Currentincome taxrelating toitemsrecognised outside profit
or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are
recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either
in OCl or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situationsin
which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation
and establishes provisionswhere appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on
temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposesatthereportingdate.

Deferred taxliabilitiesare recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

a) When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accountingprofitnortaxable profitorloss

b) In respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with interestsin joint ventures, when the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are



recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and
unusedtaxlossescanbe utilised except:

- When the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accountingprofitnortaxable profitorloss

The carryingamount of deferred taxassetsisreviewedat each
reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
allorpart of the deferred taxasset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date
and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable
that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to
berecovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside Statement
of Profit and Loss is recognised outside Statement of Profit
and Loss(in other comprehensive income). Deferred tax items
are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction
eitherin Statement of Profitand Lossorin OCI.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to
the same taxable entity and the same taxationauthority.
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(s) Governmentgrants

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and all attached
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an
expenseitem, itisrecognised asincome onasystematic basis
over the periods that the related costs, for whichiitisintended
to compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates to an
asset, it is recognised as income in equal amounts over the
expectedusefullife of therelated assets.

(t) Earningspershare

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net
profit orloss for the period attributable to equity shareholders
after deducting preference dividend and attributable taxes by
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
duringthe period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the
net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares
outstandingduringthe period are adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential equity shares.

(u) Segmentreporting

Based on "Management Approach” as defined in Ind AS 108 -
Operating Segments, the Chief Operating Decision Maker
(CODM) evaluates the Company's performance and allocates
the resources based on an analysis of various performance
indicators by business segments. Inter segment sales and
transfers are reflected at market prices. The Company has
identified the Managing Director as the CODM who assesses
the financial performance and makes strategic decisions.
Refernote 37 for segmentinformation presented.
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3 Property, plant and equipment and capital work-in-progress

GROSS CARRYING AMOUNT ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION WIS

Balance

Description of Assets ::I;m::if :13 Addition Sale/ asat az:l:;\\ct:" Depreciation for the year Balance as at Asat Asat
2320 b Adjustment | March31, | °0 20;0 March 31, March31, | March31,

2021 ¢ Disposal / 2021 2021 2020

Adjustments
Freehold land 88.51 = = 88.51 = = = = 88.51 88.51
Buildings 8,321.29 250.89 9.42 8,562.76 943.06 291.70 1.53 1,233.23 7,329.53 7,378.23
Plant and machinery 15,856.48 1,519.54 18.69 = 17,357.33 4,613.95 1,416.72 13.55 6,017.12 11,340.21  11,242.53
Roads 1,330.39 o = 1,330.39 614.87 163.72 = 768.59 561.80 715.52
Office equipments 125.56 15.98 1.91 139.63 72.12 19.15 1.62 89.65 49.98 53.44
Furniture & fixtures 230.87 20.77 0.03 251.61 84.73 24.28 = 109.01 142.60 146.14
Electrical fittings 355.60 60.28 = 415.88 178.03 49.60 = 227.63 188.25 1771.57
Computers 215.49 19.89 0.13 235.25 117.65 31.17 0.13 148.69 86.56 97.84
Vehicles 1,375.79 331.67 213.52 1,493.94 382.44 167.38 121.96 427.86 1,066.08 993.35
Total 27,899.98 2,219.02 243.70 29,875.30  7,006.85 2,153.72 138.79 9,021.78  20,853.52 20,893.13
GROSS CARRYING AMOUNT ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION NECARRYING
AMOUNT
Description of Assets Balance Sale/ LG Balance Balance as
- N asat . As at As at
asat Addition | Adjustment / as at April at

April 01 Reclassificat March 31, o1, 2019 March 31 March 31, | March 3],

ng ' € .:-Jss* ca 2020 ‘ Depreciation Adjustment / 32:20 ’ 2020 2019

fon Reclassification*

Freehold land 88.51 = = 88.51 = = = = 88.51 88.51
Finance lease assets - Land 2,116.12 = 2,116.12 = 13.72 = 13.72 = = 2,102.40
Buildings 7,543.69 771.60 = 8,321.29 677.10 265.96 = 943.06 7,378.23 6,866.59
Plant and machinery 15,606.35 261.22 11.09  15,856.48 3,222.96 1,394.43 3.44 4,613.95  11,242.53  12,383.39
Roads 1,330.39 = = 1,330.39 461.15 163.72 = 614.87 715.52 869.24
Office equipments 122.11 4.39 0.94 125.56 51.90 21.00 0.78 72.12 53.44 70.21
Furniture & fixtures 216.26 14.61 = 230.87 61.63 23.10 = 84.73 146.14 154.63
Electrical fittings 355.52 0.08 = 355.60 129.12 48.91 = 178.03 177.57 226.40
Computers 202.58 13.46 0.55 215.49 84.69 33.42 0.46 117.65 97.84 117.89
Vehicles 1,140.23 405.90 170.34 1,375.79 304.46 159.91 81.93 382.44 993.35 835.77
Total 28,721.76  1,477.26 2,299.04 27,899.98  5,006.73 2,100.45 100.33 7,006.85 20,893.13 23,715.03

*Reclassification represents net carrying amount of Finance lease assets as on April 1, 2019 reclassified to Right of Use Assets on transition to Ind AS 116

Capital Work In Progress

Cost Amount
Additions 2,018.01
Capitalised during the year (1.02)
Additions 3,477.86
Capital Goods in Transit 83.02
Capitalised during the year (1,662.07)

As at March 31, 2021 5,187.22

a) Contractual obligations - Refer to note 40 for disclosure of contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment.
b) Capital work-in-progress - Capital work-in-progress majorly comprises expenditure in the course of construction at Dahej and Chopanki Technical Plant.
c) Assets charged against borrowings - Refer note 43 for property, plant and equipment pledged as security against current and non-current borrowings.
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
4 Right-of-Use Assets

(R in'Lacs', unless mentioned otherwise)

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the period:

GROSS CARRYING AMOUNT ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION NET CARRYING AMOUNT

Description
of As:ets Balance as | Additions/ | Disposal/ | Balanceas | Balance | Depreciati | Disposal / |Balance as| AsatMarch |Asat March
at April 01, |Modification | Derecognitio | at March 31, | as at April on Derecogniz| atMarch 31,2021 31,2020
2020 s during the | n during the 2021 01,2020 | expense | edduring | 31,2021
the year
Land 2,207.97 33.92 = 2,241.89 14.67 15.50 = 30.17 2,211.72 2,193.30
Office Premises 114.01 .47 1.00 124.48 47.43 48.75 0.51 95.67 28.81 66.58
Warehouses 396.19 245.47 12.29 629.37 141.34 147.08 3.08 285.34 344.03 254.85
Total 2,718.17 290.86 13.29 2,995.74 203.44 211.33 3.59 411.18 2,584.56 2,514.73
GROSS CARRYING AMOUNT ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION NET CARRYING AMOUNT
bescription ST I HeETE o I
of Assets Balance as | Additions/ | Disposal/ | Balanceas | Balance | Depreciati | Disposal / |Balance as| Asat March |AsatMarch
at April 01, | Modification | Derecognitio | at March 31, | as at April on Derecogniz| at March 31,2020 31,2019
2019 s during the | n during the 2020 01,2019 | expense | edduring | 31,2020
the year
Land 2,102.40 105.57 = 2,207.97 = 14.67 = 14.67 2,193.30 2,102.40
Office Premises 240.93 = 126.92 14.01 = 68.63 21.20 47.43 66.58 240.93
Warehouses 439.22 45.16 88.19 396.19 = 145.73 4.39 141.34 254.85 439.22
Total 2,782.55 150.73 215.11 2,718.17 - 229.03 25.59 203.44 2,514.73 2,782.55

5 Intangible assets and intangible assets under development

GROSS CARRYING AMOUNT ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION NE:;%T,’:‘:_ING

Intangible assets

Description of Assets

Balance as Balance as | Balance as Amortisation for B:':::e As at As at
at April 01, | Addition at March 31, | at April 01, the year March 31 March 31, | March 31,
2020 2021 2020 y ! 2021 2020
2021
Amortis Disposal /
ation adjustment
Software 186.19 1.75 - 187.94 98.08 30.99 - 129.07 58.87 88.11
Website 1.65 1.00 - 2.65 1.25 0.50 - 1.75 0.90 0.40
IS, TGRS 568.96 39.30 - 608.26 155.56 70.64 - 22620  382.06 £13.40
and designs
Total 756.80 42.05 - 798.85 254.89 102.13 - 357.02 441.83 501.91

GROSS CARRYING AMOUNT ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION NE;;%‘;‘:;ING

Description of Assets

Balance as
at April 01,
2019

Addition

Software 152.09 34.10 -
Website 1.65 = -
Patents: trademarks 328.38 240.58 ~
and designs

Total 482.12 274.68 -

[Cost |  Amount |

As at April 1, 2019 628.71
Additions 253.36
Capitalised during the year (274.58)
Additions 111.10
Capitalised during the year (41.05)

Balance as
at March 31,
2020

186.19
1.65

568.96

756.80

Balance as
at April 01,
2019

70.28
0.42

106.47

177.17

. e Balance As at As at
Amortisation for asat
March 31, | March 3],
the year March 31, 2020 2019
2020
Amortis Disposal /
ation adjustment
27.80 - 98.08 88.11 81.81
0.83 = 1.25 0.40 1.23
49.09 = 155.56 413.40 221.91
71.72 - 254.89 501.91 304.95

*Intangible assets under development mainly comprises software under development and patents for which registration is awaited.
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 (Zin'Lacs' unless mentioned otherwise)

6 Investment in joint venture

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Investment in unquoted equity shares - Fully paid-up - At cost

795,000 {(March 31, 2020: 795,000) Equity Shares of OAT & IIL India Lab.(P) Ltd. at INR 100 each} 795.00 795.00

Total 795.00 795.00
7 Financial assets - non-current

7(a) Investments

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Investments stated at Fair Value through OCI
Investments in equity instruments - Quoted (fully paid) - Listed at Tokyo Stock Exchange

36,400 {(March 31, 2020: 36,400) equity shares of OAT Agrio Co. Ltd. (Co-venturer of Joint venture

company)} 362.00 244.97
Total 362.00 244.97
Aggregate book value of quoted investments 362.00 244.97
Aggregate market value of quoted investments 362.00 244.97

7(b) Other financial assets

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Measured at amortised cost (Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)

Deposit accounts having maturity of more than twelve months 38.71. 311.95
Security deposits 246.68 128.87
Total 280.45 160.82

8 Non-current tax assets (net)

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Advance income tax 1,072.08 1,396.89
[Net of provision for tax INR 3,153.29 (March 31, 2020: INR 2,258.65)]
Total 1,072.08 1,396.89

9 Other non-current assets

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
Capital advances 1,151.69 682.22
Advances other than Capital Advances

Balances with government authorities 367.90 346.42
Prepaid expenses 14.72 27.47
Total 1,534.31 1,056.11

10 Inventories

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

At the lower of cost and net realisable value

Raw Material {INR 463.03 (March 31, 2020: INR 481.14) in transit} 27,360.29 17,033.79
Packing material {INR 20.39 (March 31, 2020: INR 20.54)in transit} 1,845.54 1,521.91
Work-in-progress 7,803.01 7.110.33
Stock-in-trade (Traded Goods){INR 20.81(March 31, 2020: NIL)in transit} 1,132.16 890.91
Finished goods (Manufactured){(INR 262.96 (March 31, 2020: INR 1,608.90) in transit} 27,809.01 25,216.93
Stores, Scrap material, Spares Parts & Fuel {INR 3.44 (March 31, 2020: INR 0.73) in transit} 137.24 152.61
Total 66,087.25 51,926.48
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 (Zin'Lacs' unless mentioned otherwise)

11 Financial assets - current

11(a) Trade Receivables

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Trade receivables

- to related parties (refer note 38) 207.41 71.72
-to others 26,352.67 32,659.39
Less: Impairment of Trade Receivables (1,101.37) (752.38)
Total (refer note 46) 25,458.71 31,978.73
Breakup of Trade Receivables

Unsecured, considered good 25,458.71 31,978.73
Credit Impaired 1,101.37 752.38
Subtotal 26,560.08 32,731.1
Impairment of Trade Receivables (refer note 35) (1,101.37) (752.38)
Total 25,458.71 31,978.73

- No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company either
severally or jointly with any other person. - -

- Trade or Other receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any
director is a partner, a director or a member. 6.92 18.12

- Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 90 to 180 days.
- For explanations on the Company’s credit risk management processes, refer note 35.
1(b) Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Balances with banks

On current accounts 640.03 4,243.04
Cash on hand 6.33 9.03
Deposit accounts with original maturity upto three months = 2,521.06
Total 646.36 6,773.13

11(c) Other bank balances

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

In earmarked accounts
Unpaid dividend .25 4.57

Balances with banks

On current accounts * 1,500.00 =
On deposit accounts with original maturity upto three months * 6,009.65 =
On deposit accounts with remaining maturity between three and twelve months ** 168.04 638.40

Total 7,682.94 642.97

* Other bank balance as at March 31, 2021 includes restricted bank balances of INR 1,500 lacs in escrow account and INR 6,000 lacs in deposits
respectively. Therestrictionsare primarily onaccount of bank balances held as and by way of security for performance of buy back obligations.

**The fixed deposits made with banks had been given as margin money against Bank Guarantee/
Letter of credit.

1(d) Loans

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Unsecured, considered good

Loans to employees 5.08 7.82
Inter Corporate Loans (refer note 48) = 265.00
Total 5.08 272.82
Loans due from directors or other officers of the Company at the end of the period. Nil Nil

11(e) Other financial assets
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As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Measured at fair value through profit and loss

Derivative assets 9.42 18.76
Measured at amortised cost (unsecured, considered good)

Dividend receivable 8.15 8.61
Insurance claim recoverable 81.96 80.95
Interst accrued on inter corporate loans - 65.05
Litigation charges recoverable 19.60 19.60
Export incentive recoverable 114.55 126.02
Interest subsidy recoverable 201.35 285.25
Total 435.03 604.24

12 Other current assets

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
Advances to suppliers

-to related parties (refer note 38) - 630.78
-to others 1,221.46 756.13
Advances to employees 91.98 20.31
Balances with government authorities 6,607.65 4,093.62
Prepaid expenses 371.97 133.95
Total 8,293.06 5,634.79
Advance due from Directors or other officers at the end of the year/ period Nil Nil
Advance due by Firms or Private Companies in which any Director of the Company is a Director or

member - 4.97
13 Equity share capital

Authorised share capital Number of shares INR
As at April 1, 2020 2,50,00,000 2,500.00
Increase/(decrease) during the year = =
At March 31, 2021 2,50,00,000 2,500.00
Issued equity share capital Number of shares INR
Equity shares of INR 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid.

As at April 1, 2020 2,08,67,796 2,066.78
Increase/(decrease) during the year - -
At March 31, 2021 2,06,67,796 2,066.78

(a) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares :

The company has only one class of equity shares having face value of INR 10/- per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. In the
event of liquidation of the company, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the company after distribution of all
preferentialamount, in proportion to their shareholding.

The company has declared INR 2/- per share as Interim Dividend and paid the same on November 09, 2020. No final dividend has been recommended on
equity sharesforthefinancial yearended 2020-21.

(b) The details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares : As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Name of the Shareholder Number of Shares % Held Number of Shares % Held

Nikunj Aggarwal 31,25,000 16.12 11,25,000 5.44
Sanskar Aggarwal 29,01,800 14.04 9,01,800 4.36
Pushpa Aggarwal 21,51,800 10.41 21,51,900 10.41
Rajesh Aggarwal (HUF) 19,563,000 9.45 19,53,000 9.45
Hari Chand Aggarwal (HUF) 14,94,000 7.23 14,94,000 7.23
Rajesh Aggarwal 13,22,120 6.4 53,21,916 25.75

(c)Aggregate number of equity sharesissued as bonus during the period of five yearsimmediately preceding thereporting date :
The company hasalloted 63,41,483 number of Equity Sharesas Bonus Shareson April 25, 2015 in theratio of 2:1and the same got listed on May 8, 2015.

(d) Proposed Buyback :

Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on March 30, 2021, have approved Buyback of fully paid-up equity shares of face value of INR10/-
each of the Company at a price not exceeding INR 575/- per Equity Share (Maximum Buyback Price”) and for an amount not exceeding INR 6,000 Lacs
("Maximum Buyback Size”)from the open market through Stock Exchange mechanism in such manner as may be prescribed in the Companies Act, 2013
andrules made thereunderand the Securities and Exchange Board of India(Buy Back of Securities)Regulations, 2018.
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14 Other equity
a) Reserves and surplus

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Retained earnings 66,124.12 57,397.51
Securities premium 10,410.18 10,410.18
General reserve 3,201.562 3,201.52
Total reserves and surplus 79,735.82 71,009.21

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

(i) Retained earnings

Opening balance 57,397.51 50,399.16
Profit for the year 9,343.30 8,604.06
Items of other comprehensive income recognised directly in retained earnings
Remeasurements of net defined benefit plans, net of tax (203.33) (110.74)
Final dividend paid during the year = (413.35)
Tax on Final dividend paid - (84.99)
Interim dividend paid during the year (413.36) (826.70)
Tax on Interim dividend paid - (169.93)
Closing balance 66,124.12 57,397.51
(ii) Securities premium
Opening balance 10,410.18 10,410.18
Additions during the year = =
Closing balance 10,410.18 10,410.18
(i) General reserve
Opening balance 3,201.52 3,201.52
Add: Appropriations - -
Closing balance 3,201.52 3,201.52
Total reserves and surplus 79,735.82 71,009.21
b) Other reserves
-
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
FVTOCI reserve - equity instruments 37.16 (52.61)
Total other reserves 37.16 (52.61)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

i) FVTOCI reserve - equity instruments

Opening balance (52.61) 57.11
Change in fair value of FVTOCI equity instruments 89.77 (109.72)
Closing balance 37.16 (52.61)
The disaggregation of changes in OCI by each type of reserves in equity is disclosed in Note 31.

Total other equity 79,772.98 70,956.60

Nature and purpose of reserves
a) Retained earnings - Retained earnings is used to represent the accumulated net earnings of the Company after accounting for dividends or other
distributionstotheinvestors of the Companyas perthe provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

b) Securities premium - Where the Company issues shares at a premium, whether for cash or otherwise, a sum equal to the aggregate amount of the
premium received on those shares shall be transferred to “Securities Premium”. The Company may use this reserve for issuing fully paid-up bonus
shares, buy-back of sharesand for expensesinrelationtoissue of shares.

c)Generalreserve - General Reserve is created out of the profits earned by the Company by way of transfer from surplus in the statement of profit and
loss. The Company can use this reserve for payment of dividend, issue of bonus shares and fully / partly paid-up equity shares . No amount has been
transferredto generalreserve duringtheyearsended March 31,2021& March 31,2020.

d)FVTOCI reserve-equity instruments - The Company has elected to recognise changes in the fair value of certain investments in equity securities in
other comprehensive income. These changes are accumulated within the FVTOCI equity investments reserve within equity. The company transfers
amountsfromthisreserve withinequity whentherelevant equity securitiesare derecognised.
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15 Financial liabilities - Non Current
15(a) Borrowings

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Secured

Indian Rupee loan from banks

Vehicle loans 466.53 394.25
Total 466.53 394.25
Less: Current maturities of long-term debt (included in note 18(c)) 226.90 203.72
Non-current borrowings (as per balance sheet) 239.63 190.53

Nature of Security and terms of repayment for secured borrowing :

Vehicle loans

Term Loans from banks for vehicles have been secured by hypothecation of vehicles. Further, vehicles loans have been guaranteed by the personal
guarantee of the directors-Mr. Hari Chand Aggarwal and Mr. Rajesh Aggarwal. These loans are repayable in 36 monthly installments from the date of the
loansalongwithinterestrates ranging between 7.85% t09.50% perannum.

The carrying amounts of financial and non-financial assets pledged as security for current and non-current borrowings are disclosed in note 43.

15(b) Lease liabilities

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Current 163.42 192.72
Non-current 25555 176.31
Total 416.77 369.03

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the period:

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Balance at April 1 369.03 680.15
Accretion of interest 42.54 54.31
Addition in lease liability 256.94 38.92
Repayment of lease liability (241.23) (215.49)
Derecognition of lease liability (10.51) (188.86)
Balance at March 31 416.77 369.03

The maturity analysis of the lease liability is included in the refer note 35.
The effective interest rate for lease liabilities is 1%, with maturity between 2021-2025.
16 Long term provisions

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Employee benefit provisions

Provision for gratuity 133.24 4.48
Provision for leave encashment 143.55 99.40
Total 276.79 103.88

Refer note 20 for disclosure of employee benefits.

17 Deferred tax liabilities (Net)
(.;?r::(:; t/o Charge /(credit)
As at to other MAT credit As at

Stateme'nt comprehensive utilised March 31, 2021
of Profit q
income

and Loss

April 1, 2020

Deferred tax liabilities

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (2,298.70) (542.41) - - (1,756.29)
Derivatives (6.55) (4.18) = = (2.37)
Right-of-use asset (112.32) (18.48) = = (93.84)
Investments = = 11.29 = (11.29)
Total deferred tax liabilities (2,417.57) (565.07) .29 - (1,863.79)
Deferred tax assets

Investments 15.97 = 15.97 = =
Impairment of Trade Receivables 262.91 (14.28) - - 27719
Derivatives 25.37 14.95 = = 10.42
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Charge/
(credit) to
Statement

of Profit

and Loss

As at
April 1, 2020

Lease liabilities 119.05 17.41
Employee benefit provisions 126.49 56.02
Total deferred tax assets 549.79 74.10
Net deferred tax liabilities (1,867.78) (490.97)

Charge/
(credit) to
Statement

of Profit

and Loss

As at

April 1, 2019

Deferred tax liabilities

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (2,208.96) 89.74
Derivatives (1.43) 5.12
Right-of-use asset = 112.32
Total deferred tax liabilities (2,210.39) 207.18
Deferred tax assets

MAT credit 211.12 =
Investments (17.35) =
Impairment of Trade Receivables 184.06 (78.85)
Derivatives 42.75 17.38
Borrowings 2.94 2.94
Lease liabilities = (119.05)
Employee benefit provisions - (126.49)
Total deferred tax assets 423.52 (304.07)
Net deferred tax liabilities (1,786.87) (96.89)
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(R in'Lacs', unless mentioned otherwise)

Charge /(credit)

to other MAT credit As at
comprehensive utilised March 31, 2021
income
= = 101.64
(68.38) S 138.85
(52.41) = 528.10
(41.12) o (1,335.69)

Charge /(credit)
to other
comprehensive
income

MAT credit
utilised

As at
March 31, 2020

(2,298.70)
(6.55)
(112.32)
(2,417.57)

15.97
262.91
25.37
119.05
126.49
549.79
(1,867.78)

(33.32)
(33.32)

21112
211.12

The Company offsets tax assets andliabilities if and only if it has alegally enforceable right to set of f current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the
deferredtaxassetsanddeferredtaxliabilitiesrelate toincome taxeslevied by the same taxauthority.

18 Financial Liabilities - Current

18(a) Borrowings

Maturity date

Secured
Working Capital facilities from Banks

Loans repayable on demand

As at March 31,
2021

As at
March 31, 2020

Interest rate

Working capital demand loans Apr 21- May 21 4.75% - 4.90% 6,641.38 15,272.06
Cash credit from banks Ondemand 10.95% 2,483.47 2,852.88
Buyers Credit Loans (USD) - - 108.98
Cheques sent for collection Apr-21 36.00 114.30
Total 9,160.85 18,348.22

Working Capital Loans(Loans repayable on demand, Cash Credit & Buyers Credits) from banks are secured by first pari passu charge over present and
future stock & book debtsand moveable property, plantand equipment of the company. Theseloansare additionally secured by equitable mortgage on
pari passu basis over Lands & Buildings of the company and negative lien on company's office at Azad Pur (Delhi). Further, these loans have been
guaranteed by the personalguarantee of the directors-Mr.HariChand Aggarwaland Mr. Rajesh Aggarwal.

The carryingamounts of financialand non-financial assets pledged as security for currentand non-currentborrowings are disclosed in note 43.
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18(b) Trade payables

As at As at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Trade payables

- to related parties (refer note 38) 360.10 172.36
-to others 35,843.39 24,483.42
Total 36,203.49 24,655.78

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
(A) total outstanding due of micro, small & medium enterprises; and 2,567.17 1.178.57
(GBn)tteor:]arIi;J:;standing dues of creditors other than micro enterprises, small & medium 33,636.32 23,477.21
Total 36,203.49 24,655.78

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are settled on agreed terms.

Refer note 45 for disclosure pertaining to Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises Development
Act, 2006.

18(c) Other financial liabilities

As at As at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Current maturities of long-term borrowings (refer note 15(a)) 226.90 203.72
Security deposits received from customers 74.67 725.41
Creditors for capital expenditure 370.36 466.85
Interest accrued on borrowings 9.25 19.67

Employee payables

- to related parties (refer note 38) 17.75 18.44
- to others 1,242.02 1,299.92
Unpaid dividend account 525 4.57

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss
Derivative liabilities 41.38 72.58

Total 2,627.58 2,911.16

19 Other current Liabilities

As at As at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Advances from customers (refer note 46) 9,169.88 7.174.31
Statutory dues 851.58 390.44
Total 10,021.46 7,564.75
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20 Short term provisions

As at

March 31, 2021

Employee benefit provisions

Provision for gratuity 255.73
Provision for leave encashment 19.19
Total 274.92

(a) Defined contribution plan

As at
March 31, 2020

253.37
4.74

258.11

Year ended

March 31, 2020

During the year, the Company has recognised the following amounts in the Statement of Year ended
Profit and Loss: (note 25) March 31, 2021
Employer's Contribution to Employee’s Provident Fund (including admin charges) 367.92
Employer's Contribution to Employee’s State Insurance 20.04
Total 387.96
(b) Defined benefit plan

(i) Gratuity

364.60
28.03

392.63

The company has a defined benefit for gratuity. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days
salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service. The company provides for the liability in its books of accounts based on the actuarial
valuation by applying the Projected Unit Credit Method. The schemeis funded withaninsurance company in the form of a qualifyinginsurance policy.

The following tables summarize the components of net benefit expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss and the funded status and

amountsrecognizedinthe balance sheet fortherespective plans.

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity benefit obligations for the As at
company’s plan are shown below: March 31, 2021
Rate of Discounting 6.57%
Rate of Salary Increase 8.00%

For Service 2 years and
below-27%, For Service

Rate of Employee Turnover Jyearsto4years-15%,
For Service 5 years and
above-8%

Mortality Rate During Employment IALM (2006-08)

As at
March 31, 2021

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Opening defined benefit obligation 871.02
Interest cost 59.40
Current service cost 99.68

Past service cost =
Benefits paid (32.08)

Actuarial (gain) / loss

Due to change in Demographic assumptions 42.60
Due to change in financial assumptions 220.93
Due to change in experience (12.60)
Closing defined benefit obligation 1,248.95

As at

March 31, 2020
6.82%

5.00%

2.00%

IALM(2006-08)

As at
March 31, 2020

627.90
48.91
72.49

(22.71)

74.27
70.16

871.02
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Fair Value of Plan Assets at the Beginning of the Period 613.17 496.97
Interest Income 41.82 38.71
Contributions by the Employer 257.85 126.00
Benefits paid (32.08) (22.71)
Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income (20.78) (25.80)
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the End of the Period 859.98 613.17
Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets and defined benefit obligation:

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Present value of defined benefit obligation (1,248.95) (871.02)
Fair value of plan assets 859.98 613.17
Plan asset / (liability) (388.97) (257.85)

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Net interest cost 17.58 10.20
Current service cost 99.68 72.49
Past service cost = =
Net expense * 117.26 82.69

*Includes INR12.43 (March 31, 2020 - INR 8.50) transfer to Research & Development
Expenditure

Expenses recognised in other comprehensive income Year ended Year ended
- 9 - March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Actuarial (gain)/ loss on defined benefit obligation 250.93 144.43
Return on Plan Assets, excluding Interest Income 20.78 25.80
Total expense recognised in statement of other comprehensive income 271.1 170.23
q q . As at March As at March
e Nl I I
Total In% Total In%
Insurance fund 859.98 100% 613.17 100%
Total 859.98 100% 613.17 100%
A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as shown below:
Defined benefit obligation (base) 1,248.95 871.02
Change in discount rate
Increase by 1% (77.70) (76.38)
Decrease by 1% 88.82 90.13
Change in rate of salary increase
Increase by 1% 83.92 89.95
Decrease by 1% (76.15) (77.44)
Change in rate of employee turnover
Increase by 1% (9.48) 12.23
Decrease by 1% 10.45 (14.20)
The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:
March 31, 2021 | March 31,2020
Weighted average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation 1Myears Myears
Within next 12 months 201.64 114.04
Between 1and 5 years 409.72 187.06
Between 5and 10 years 512.49 316.53
More than 10 years 1,050.49 1,381.62

(c) Risk exposure

Interestraterisk: Afallinthe discount rate whichislinked to the Government Security Rate willincrease the present value of the liability requiring higher
provision. Afallinthe discountrate generallyincreasesthe mark to market value of the assets depending onthe duration of asset.

Salary Risk: The presentvalue of the defined benefit planliability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of members. As such, anincreaseinthe
salary of the members more thanassumed level willincrease the plan'sliability.

Investment Risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by reference to market
yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. If the return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit. Currently, for the
planinindia, ithasarelatively balanced mix of investmentsin government securities, and other debtinstruments.

Asset Liability Matching Risk: The plan faces the ALMrisk as to the matching cash flow. Since the planisinvestedinlines of Rule 101 of Income Tax Rules,
1962, thisgenerallyreduces ALMrisk.

Mortality risk: Since the benefitsunder the planisnot payable for life time and payable tillretirementage only, plandoes not have any longevity risk.
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Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Sale of products
Finished goods

Traded goods

Total

Other operating revenue
Revenue from Job Work
Sale of scrap & others
Government Grants *

Total revenue from operations

1,34,251.07 1.27142.717
6,959.97 7,873.30
1,41,211.04 1,35,016.07
36.46 60.37

88.49 82.83
686.59 1,162.69
1,42,022.58 1,36,321.96

*Includes GST Refund under Budgetery Support Scheme. As per the Scheme eligible units(Samba and Udhampur in Jammu & Kashmir)are entitled to

receiverefund of the Goodsand Services Tax paid by the unit.

a) Disaggregated revenue information

The table below presents disaggregated revenues from contracts with customers by geography. The Company believes that this disaggregation best
depictshowthe nature,amount, timingand uncertainty of the revenues and cash flows are affected by industry, market and other economic factors.

Revenues by Geography

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Within India
QOutside India
Total

Timing of revenue recognition

1,34,731.76 1,28,601.55
6,479.28 6,414.52
1,41,211.04 1,35,016.07

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

At a point in time
Sale of finished goods
Sale of traded goods
Total

1,34,251.07 1,27142.77
6,959.97 7,873.30
1,41,211.04 1,35,016.07

b) Reconciling the amount of revenue recognized in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price:

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Revenue as per contract

Adjustments for variable consideration:
Discounts and rebates

Revenue from contracts with customers

c) Aggregate amount of the Transaction Price allocated to Performance Obligations that
are unsatisfied at end of the year:

1,567,844.00 1,49,831.89
(16,632.96) (14,815.82)
1,41,211.04 1,35,016.07

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Advance from Customers* (refer note 46)

Revenue recognised from amounts included in advance from customers at beginning of the
year

9,169.88 7.174.31

7.174.31 6,228.54

Advance from customers relates to payments received in advance of performance under the contract. Advances from customers are recognized as

revenueas(orwhen)the Company performsunderthe contract.

*For March 31,2021, management expects that the entire transaction price allocated to the unsatisfied contracts at end of the year will be recognised as

revenue duringthe nextyear.
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22 OtherIncome

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Interest income

Fixed deposits with banks 246.18 26.54
Other assets 5.00 115.76
Dividend inct.)mpj from equity investments designated at fair value through other 9.62 1076
comprehensive income*

Other non-operating income

Miscellaneous income 54.51 39.69
Exchange difference (net) 435.61 -
Net gain on fair value changes

Derivatives at FVTPL 21.86 64.40
Total other income 772.78 256.55

* All dividends from equity investments designated at FVTOCI relate to investments held at the end of the reporting period.

23 Cost of raw material and components consumed

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Raw Material

Inventory at the beginning of the year 17,033.79 18,501.32
Add: Purchases 1,05,480.29 70,369.53

1,22,514.08 88,870.85
Less: inventory at the end of the year 27,360.29 17,033.79
Cost of raw material consumed 95,153.79 71,837.06

Packing Material

Inventory at the beginning of the year 1,621.91 1,376.58
Add: Purchases 9,687.66 7,392.15

11,209.57 8,768.73
Less: inventory at the end of the year 1,845.54 1,521.91
Cost of Packing material consumed 9,364.03 7,246.82
Total Cost of raw material and components consumed 1,04,517.82 79,083.88

24 (Increase)/Decrease in inventories

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Inventories at the end of the year

Finished goods 27,809.01 25,216.93
Semi-finished goods 7,803.01 7.110.33
Traded goods 1,132.16 890.91

36,744.18 33,218.17

Inventories at the beginning of the year

Finished goods 25,216.93 41,237.59
Semi-finished goods 7,110.33 6,742.27
Traded goods 890.91 2,487.46

33,218.17 50,467.32
Total (Increase)/Decrease in inventories (3,526.01) 17,249.15
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Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Details of inventory

Traded goods

Powder 693.87 168.58
Liquid 215.09 476.78
Granules 223.20 245.55
Total 1,132.16 890.91

Finished goods

Liquid 15,240.89 18,711.02
Powder 4,450.59 2,289.46
Granules 3,499.63 1,467.86
Technicals 4,617.90 2,748.59
Total 27,809.01 25,216.93

25 Employee benefit expenses

Year ended Year ended
Marc| 2021 March 31, 2020

Salaries, wages and bonus 6,792.39 6,831.28
Contribution to provident and other funds 20 388.03 392.71
Gratuity expense 20 104.83 74.19
Staff welfare expenses 365.41 176.05
Total employee benefit expenses 7,650.66 7.474.23

26 Finance costs

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Interest and finance charges on financial liabilities not at fair value through profit or loss

Interest on term loans and ECBs 30.65 82.89
Interest on CC Limits, buyer's credit and demand loans 286.58 1,891.68
Interest on Lease Liabilities 42.54 54.31
Interest (Others) 32.26 27.30

Other borrowings costs
Bank charges 273.08 332.80
Total finance costs 665.11 2,388.98

27 Depreciation and amortization expense

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Depreciation of tangible assets 2,153.72 2,100.45
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 4 211.33 229.03
Amortization of intangible assets 5 102.13 77.72
Total depreciation and amortization expense 2,467.18 2,407.20
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28 Other expenses

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Consumption of stores and spares 865.98 764.85
Power and fuel Expenses 2,175.85 2,278.45
Transport charges 3,290.50 2,618.08
Repairs and Maintenance

Buildings 5.52 3.96

Plant & Machinery 160.58 59.13

Others 282.85 247.94
Pollution Control Expenses 145.57 70.15
Advertising and sales promotion 525.22 577.01
Royalty 68.09 175.58
Commission 652.77 683.24
Travelling and conveyance 1,093.79 1,510.05
Rent 41 34.22 73.98
Insurance 276.12 118.84
Communication expenses 31.70 33.26
Printing and Stationery 21.44 25.88
Legal and Professional Fees 429.58 429.24
Director Sitting Fees 38 12.50 11.00
Payment to Auditors 28(a) 39.44 40.51
Electricity & Water Charges 67.10 55.90
Rates and taxes 19.38 60.33
Security Charges m.21 98.71
Research & Development Expenses 29 618.67 892.74
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets (net) 37.94 37.22
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses 28(b) 309.13 190.10
Provision for impairment of trade receivables 35 348.99 225.64
Exchange difference (net) = 493.49
Bad debts written off 47.06 6.34
Miscellaneous Expenses 680.54 546.43
Total other expenses 12,351.54 12,328.06

28(a) Details of payment to auditors (excluding taxes)

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

As auditor

Statutory Audit Fees 39.00 39.00
In other capacity

Reimbursement of expenses 0.44 1.51
Total 39.44 40.51

28(b) Corporate social responsibility

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a CSR committee has been formed by the company. The company’s policy covers current as well as
proposed CSRactivities to be undertaken by the company and examining theiralignment with Schedule Vil of the Act.

The company proposes to implement its CSR activities in various sectors which include promoting Education, green initiatives, and facilities for senior

citizens, vocational & entrepreneurship skills, medical aid & healthcare, old age homes & women hostels, art and culture, destitute care and
rehabilitation, ruraldevelopment projectsand others.

®
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Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

CSR amount required to be spent as per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with

Schedule VIl thereof by the Company 262.47 235.38
Unspent of Previous Year spent during the Year 45.28 -
Total amount spent for the financial year (309.13) (190.10)
Amount unspent - 45.28

Amount spent during the year on:

(i) Construction/acquisition of an asset

-incash = =
- yet to be paid in cash = =

(i) On purpose other than (i) above

-incash 308.13 190.10
-yet to be paid in cash - -
Total 309.13 190.10

The entire amount is spent through the IIL foundation which is a related party (refer note 38), except INR 2 lacs, which was directly spent by Company
for COVID-19 relief.

29 Research & Development Expenditure

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Chopanki :
(i) Revenue Expenditure :
(a) Employee cost 134.70 143.88
(b) Cost of material & testing charges 22.86 15.12
(c) Other R&D expenditure 10.76 6.79
(d) Consultancy charges to OAT & IIL 335.21 326.56
(i) Capital Expenditure 41.02 24.50
Chopanki Total 544.55 516.85
Shamli :
(i) Revenue Expenditure :
(a) Employee cost 95.22 -
(b) Cost of material & testing charges 1.50 -
(c) Other R&D expenditure 2.26 =
(d) Consultancy charges to OAT & IIL - -
(ii) Capital Expenditure 10.49 =
Shamli Total 109.47 =
Total 654.02 516.85

30 Income tax expense

This note provides an analysis of the Company’s income tax expense, shows how the tax expense is affected by non-assessable and non-deductible
items.

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

(a) Income tax expense

Current tax on profits for the year BHI5S23 2,732.19
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods (102.19) (193.25)
Total current tax expense 3,051.10 2,538.94

Decrease (increase) in deferred tax assets (565.07) 207.18
(Decrease) increase in deferred tax liabilities 74.10 (304.07)
Total deferred tax expense/(benefit) (490.97) (96.89)
Income tax expense 2,560.13 2,442.05

(b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by the Indian statutory income tax rate
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Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Profit before income tax expense 11,903.43 11,046.11
Tax at the Indian statutory income tax rate of 25.168% (March 31, 2020: 34.944%)* 2,995.86 3,869.95
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating taxable income:
Weighted deduction on research and development expenditure - (41.81)
Deduction on account of tax holiday period - (1,199.00)
Other non-deductible / (taxable) items 25.50 16.16
Effect of difference in tax rates used to calculate deferred tax on temporary differences* (359.04) -
Adjustments for current tax of earlier periods (102.19) (193.25)
Income tax expense 2,560.13 2,442.05

The Company has exercised the option permitted under section 115BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 as introduced by the Taxation Laws (Amendment)
Ordinance, 2019. Accordingly, the tax rate used for the current year reconciliation above are the corporate taxrates of 25.168 % (March 31,2020: 34.944 %)
payable by corporate entities in India on taxable profits under the Indian tax laws. The reconciliation also includes the impact of tax holidays availed by
the Companyunderthe oldregime.

31 Components of Other Comprehensive Income (OCl)

The disaggregation of changes to OCI by each type of reserve in equity is shown below:

During the year ended March 31, 2021

instruments

Re-measurement of net defined benefit plans (203.33) (203.33)
Gain/(loss) on FVTOCI financial assets 89.77 - 89.77
Total 89.77 (203.33) (113.56)

During the year ended March 31, 2020
FVTOCI -equity

instruments Retained earnings Total
Re-measurement of net defined benefit plans - (10.74) (110.74)
Gain/(loss) on FVTOCI financial assets (109.72) - (109.72)
Total (109.72) (110.74) (220.46)

32 Significant estimates, judgements and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates couldresultinoutcomesthatrequire amaterial adjustment to the carryingamount of assets or liabilities affected infuture periods.

Estimates and assumptions

The keyassumptions concerning the future and otherkey sources of estimationuncertainty at the reporting date, that have asignificant risk of causinga
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the separate financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions
about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such
changesarereflectedintheassumptionswhentheyoccur.

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business inrelation to claims against the Company, including legal and other claims. By their
nature, contingencies will be resolved only when one or more uncertain future events occur or fail to occur. The assessment of the existence, and
potential quantum, of contingenciesinherently involves the exercise of significantjudgement and the use of estimates regarding the outcome of future
events.

Taxes

There are many transactions and calculations undertaken during the ordinary course of business for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts initially recorded, such differences willimpact the current and deferred tax
provisionsinthe periodinwhichthe taxdeterminationis made. The assessment of probability involves estimation of anumber of factorsincluding future
taxableincome.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assessesimpairment based on expected creditlosses(ECL)model ontradereceivables.

The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on the portfolio of trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its
histroically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivable and is adjusted for forward looking estimates. At every reporting date,
the historical observed default ratesare updated and changesin the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

®
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Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’sfairvalue less costsof disposalandits value inuse. Itis determined foranindividual asset, unless the asset does not generate cashinflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre- tax discount rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and the risk specific to the asset. In
determining fair value less cost of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate
valuationmodelisused. These calculationsare corroborated by valuation multiples or otheravailable fair value indicators.

Defined benefit plans (gratuity)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using
actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include
the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term
nature, adefined benefit obligationis sensitive to changesintheseassumptions. Allassumptionsare reviewed at eachreportingdate.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the management
considerstheinterestrates of governmentbondsinIndia.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific countries. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in
response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates in India. Further details
about gratuity obligationsare givenin Note 20.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financialinstruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques. The Company usesits judgement
toselectavariety of methods and make assumptionsthatare mainly based on market conditions existingat the end of each reporting period.

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options - Company as lessee

The Company determines the lease termas the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it
isreasonably certaintobe exercised, orany periods covered by an optiontoterminate the lease, if itisreasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Company applies judgement in evaluating whether it is
reasonably certainwhether or not to exercise the optiontorenew or terminate the lease. Thatis, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic
incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a
significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to
terminate.

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

Where the Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, it uses its incremental borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease
liabilities. The IBRis the rate of interest that the Company would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary
toobtainanasset of asimilar value to the right-of-use assetinasimilareconomic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Company ‘would have
to pay’, which requires estimation when no observable rates are available or when they need to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the
lease. The Company estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when available and is required to make certain entity-
specificestimates.

Revenue recognition - Estimating variable consideration for returns and volume rebates

The Company’s contracts with customers include promises to transfer goods to the customers. Judgement is required to determine the transaction
price for the contract. The transaction price could be either a fixed amount of customer consideration or variable consideration with elements such as
rebates, incentives and cash discounts etc. The estimated amount of variable considerationis adjusted in the transaction price only to the extent that it
ishighly probable that asignificant reversalin the amount of cumulative revenue recognised willnot occur andis reassessed at the end of each reporting
period.

The amount of revenue recognised depends on whether the Company act as anagent or as a principal in an arrangement with a customer. The Company
act as a principal if the Company controls a promised goods or service before the Company transfers the goods or service to a customer and act as an
agentifthe Company’s performance obligationistoarrange for the provision of goods or service by another party.

Estimation uncertainty relating to COVID-19 outbreak

The Company has considered internal and certain external sources of information including credit reports, economic forecasts and industry reports up
to the date of approval of the financial statements in determining the impact on various elements of its financial statements. The Company has used the
principles of prudenceinapplying judgments, estimates and assumptions and based on the current estimates, the Company expects to fully recover the
carryingamount of all the assets(refer note 51).

®
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33 Hedging activities and derivatives

Derivatives not designated as hedginginstruments

The Company uses full currency cuminterest rate swap and foreign exchange forward contracts and option contracts to manage some of its transaction
exposures. The foreign exchange forward contracts are not designated as cash flow hedges and are measured at fair value through profit orloss. These
contractsare entered into for period consistent with the foreign currency exposures of the underlying transactions and with the intention to reduce the
foreignexchangerisk of expected purchasesandsales.

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Nature of instrument

Amount outstandin Amount Amount outstanding Amount
FCY outstanding INR FCY outstanding INR

Hedged foreign currency exposures
Forward contract - Buy

In respect of foreign letters of credit (USD) 213.77 15,795.66 25.56 1,919.37
In respect of import bills accepted (USD) 6.95 509.99 0.48 36.25
In respect of buyer's credit (USD) = = 1.46 109.59
220.72 16,305.65 27.50 2,065.21
Forward contract - Sell
In respect of trade receivables (USD) 18.76 1,400.20 20.99 1,529.92
18.76 1,400.20 20.99 1,529.92
Unhedged foreign currency exposures
a) Payables
Buyer's credit (including interest)(USD) - - - -
Letters of credit (USD) 14.27 8,354.16 238.81 18,073.27
Import bills accepted (Trade payables)(USD) 0.96 70.19 0.77 58.12
115.23 8,424.35 239.58 18,131.39
b) Receivables
Trade receivables (USD) .25 675.02 18.68 1,413.16
Trade receivables (AED) 2.80 55.72 = =
12.03 730.74 18.68 1,413.16

34 Fair value measurements

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

(i) Financial instruments by category ﬂ FVTPL FVTOCI FVTPL FvTOCI
cost cost

a) Financial assets - Non-current

Investments

- Equity instruments 7(a) - 362.00 - - 244.97 -
Security deposits 7(b) - - 246.68 - - 128.87
E;gl?lzii:st\gzg maturity of more than b) _ _ 33.77 ~ ~ 31.95
b) Financial assets - Current

Trade receivables 1(a) = = 25,458.71 = = 31,978.73
Cash and cash equivalents 11(b) - - 646.36 - - 6,773.13
Other bank balances 11(c) = = 7,682.94 = = 642.97
Loans 11(d) = = 5.08 = = 272.82
Derivative assets 11(e) 9.42 = = 18.76 = =
Dividend receivable 1(e) = = 8.15 = = 8.61
Insurance claim recoverable 1(e) = = 81.96 = = 80.95
:ggirsst accrued on inter corporate e) _ _ _ ~ ~ 65.05
Litigation charges recoverable 1(e) = = 19.60 = = 19.60
Export incentive recoverable 1(e) = = 114.55 = = 126.02
Interest subsidy recoverable 1(e) - - 201.35 - - 285.25
Total financial assets 9.42 362.00 34,499.15 18.76 244.97 40,413.95
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As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

(i) Financial instruments by category m FVTPL FVTOCI FVTPL FvTOCI

c) Financial liabilities - Non-current
Borrowings 15(a) - - 239.63 - - 190.53
d) Financial liabilities - Current

Borrowings 18(a) = = 9,160.85 = = 18,348.22
Trade payables 18(b) = - 36,203.49 - - 24,655.78
(blg::scvt“:g:tuntles of long-term 18(c) ~ ~ 296.90 ~ ~ 203.72
ij;::;ri;);?seposits received from 18(c) _ _ 714,67 _ ~ 795.41
Creditors for capital expenditure 18(c) = = 370.36 = = 466.85
Interest accrued on borrowings 18(c) - - 9.25 - - 19.67
Employee payables 18(c) - - 1,259.77 - - 1,418.36
Unpaid dividend account 18(c) - - 5.25 - - 4.57
Derivative liabilities 18(c) 41.38 = = 72.58 = =
Total financial liabilities 41.38 - 48,190.17 72.58 - 46,033.11

(ii) Fair value hierarchy

This section explainsthe judgementsand estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instrumentsthatare
(a)recognised and measured at fair value and
(b)measuredatamortised costand for whichfair valuesare disclosedin the financial statements.

To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into the
threelevels prescribedunderthe accounting standard. An explanation of eachlevel follows underneath the table.

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value -

Financial assets

Financial assets at FVTOCI

-Quoted equity investments™* 362.00 - - 244.97 - -
Financial assets at FVTPL

-Derivative assets = 9.42 = = 18.76 =
Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

-Derivative liabilities = 41.38 = = 72.58 =
*The investments in equity instruments are not held for trading. Instead, they are held for medium or long-term strategic purpose. Upon the application
of Ind AS 109, the Company has chosen to designate these investments in equity instruments as at FVTOCI as the management believes that this

provides a more meaningful presentation for medium or long-term strategic investments, than reflecting changes in fair value immediately in profit or
loss.

There have been no transfers between Level 1and Level 2 during the period.

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised
cost for which fair values are disclosed Level1 Level 2 Level 3 Level1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets

Security deposits - - 246.68 - - 128.87
Deposits having maturity of more than twelve months - 33.77 - - 31.95 -

Financial liabilities
Long term borrowings (including current maturities) - 466.53 - - 394.25 -
There have been no transfers between Level 1and Level 2 during the period.
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Level 1: Level Thierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity instruments that have quoted price.
Thefairvalue of allequityinstruments which are tradedinthe stock exchangesisvalued using the closing price asat the reporting period.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, traded bonds, over-thecounter derivatives) is
determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market dataandrely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all
significantinputsrequiredtofairvalueaninstrumentare observable, theinstrumentisincludedinlevel 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

(iii) Valuation technique used to determine fair value

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

a) the fair values of the FVTOCI investments are derived from quoted market prices in active markets.
b)the fairvalue of forward foreign exchange contractsand principal swap is determined using forward exchange rates at the balance sheet date.
c)the fairvalues of the interest-bearing borrowings and loans are determined by using discounted cash flow method using discount rate that reflects the

issuer'sborrowingrate asatthe end of thereporting period. The own non-performance risk was assessed to be insignificant.

d) the fair value of the remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis using rates currently available for debt on
similarterms, creditriskand remaining maturities.

(iv) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
m
amount amount

Financial assets
-Security deposits* 7(b) 246.68 246.68 128.87 128.87
-Deposits having maturity of more than twelve months* 7(b) 33.77 33.77 31.95 31.95

Financial liabilities
- Long term borrowings (including current maturities) 15(a) 466.53 466.53 394.25 394.25

*The management assessed that fair values of above financial instruments is substantially equal to their carrying value due to amortised cost being
calculated based on the effective interest rates, which approximates the market rates.

The carryingamounts of trade receivables, cash and bank balances, loans, other receivables, short term borrowings, security deposits received, trade
payables, creditors for capital expenditure and other current financial assets and liabilities are considered to be the same as fair value due to their short
termmaturities.

35 Financial risk management

The Company’s principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these
financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include trade and other receivables, security
deposits, cash and cash equivalents and loans that derive directly from its operations. The Company also holds FVTOCI investments and enters into
derivative transactions.

The Companyis exposedtomarket risk, credit riskandliquidity risk that are summarised as under:-

Cash and cash equivalents, trade

o receivables, derivative financial . . Diversification of bank deposits,
Credit risk . X . Ageing analysis T

instruments, financial assets credit limits

measured at amortised cost.

Availability of committed credit

Liquidity risk Borrowings and other liabilities Cash flow forecasting e el o el

Recognised financial assets and
Market risk - foreign exchange risk liabilities not denominated in

a) Forward exchange contracts

2l el oy lanesesng b) Foreign currency options

b) Sensitivity analysis

Indian rupee (INR) c) Currency swaps
. . . Long-term borrowings at variable s .
Market risk - interest rate risk rateg " rrowings atvari Sensitivity analysis Interest rate swaps
Market risk - security prices Investments in equity securities Sensitivity analysis Portfolio diversification
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The Company has formulated the Risk Management Policy whose objective is to ensure sustainable business expansion with stability, and to promote an
upbeat approach in risk management process by eliminating risk. In order to achieve this key objective, this policy provides a prepared and well-
organized approach to manage the various types of risk associated with day to day business of the Company and minimize adverse impact onits business
objectivesaswellas policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest raterisk, credit risk, use of derivative financial instruments
and non-derivative financial instruments, and investment of excess liquidity.

A) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The
Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with
banks, foreign exchange transactionsand other financialinstruments.

(1) Credit risk management

a)Tradereceivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Company's established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit
risk management. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. The Company periodically assesses the financial reliability of customers,
taking into account the financial condition, current economic trends, and analysis of historical data and ageing of accounts receivable. Individual risk
limits are setaccordingly. New customers are analysed individually for creditworthiness before the Company's standard payment and delivery termsare
offered. Salelimitsare established for each customersand reviewed periodically.

The Company considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk onan
ongoing basis throughout each reporting period. It considers available reasonable and supportive forward-looking information. Especially the following
indicatorsareincorporated:

a)Actual or expected significant adverse changesin business, financial or economic conditions that are actual

b) Significant changes in the expected performance and behaviour of the customer, including changes in the payment status of customer in the
company.

The maximum exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables is provided in note 11(a)

b)Financialinstruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks is managed by the Company's management in accordance with the policy of the Company. Counterparty credit
limits are reviewed by the Company’s management on an annual basis. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate
financialloss through counterparty’s potential failure to make payments.

The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at March 31,2021and March 31,2020 is the carryingamounts as
illustratedin Note 7and 11exceptfor derivative financialinstruments.

(ii) Provision for expected credit losses

Basis for recognition of expected credit loss provision

Loans to employees
and inter-corporate Security deposits Trade receivables
loans

Category Description of category

Assets where the counter-party
High quality assets, negligible credit has strong capacity to meet the
risk obligations and where the risk of
default is negligible or nil

Lifetime expected

AeaEis wiiere e s e ik o 12-month expected 12-month expected credit losses

default and where the counter- credit loss credit loss

party has sufficient capacity to
meet the obligations and where
there has been low frequency of
defaults in the past

Quality assets, low credit risk

Year ended March 31, 2021
(a) Expected credit loss for loans and security deposits

Carrying
amount net of
impairment
provision

Gross Expected Expected

Category Description of category Asset group carrying probability credit
amount of default losses

. . Assets where the counter-
Loss allowance High quality . Loans to
party has strong capacity to

CERICRIGHE 2 ) GRS e e eraaens e | i SERseT 5.08 0% - 5.08
month expected negligible . . inter-corporate
. o where the risk of default is
credit losses credit risk L . loans
negligible or nil
. . Assets where the counter-
Loss allowance High quality .
measured at 12 assets party has strong capacity to Securit
o meet the obligations and .y 246.68 0% - 246.68
month expected negligible . . deposits
. o where the risk of default is
credit losses credit risk

negligible or nil
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(b) Expected credit loss for trade receivables under simplified approach

More than
Ageing 0-90 days 90-180 days | 180-360 days | 360-720 days 720 days Total
past due past due past due past due
past due
Gross carrying amount 16,706.88 7,029.81 875.78 408.42 987.27 551.92 26,560.08
Expected loss rate 0.10% 0.20% 0.50% 5.00% 50.00% 100.00%
ot arilusesless 16.95 14.06 438 20.42 493.64 551.92
allowance provision) 1,101.37
Carrying amount of trade
receivables (net of 16,689.93 7,015.75 871.40 388.00 493.63 - 25,458.71

impairment)
Year ended March 31, 2020
(a) Expected credit loss for loans and security deposits

Carrying
amount net of
impairment
provision

Gross Expected Expected
Asset group carrying probability of credit
amount default losses

Description of

Cateacs category

Assets where the

. . counter-party has Loans to
High quality g
Loss allowance assets strong capacity to employees and
measured at 12 month o meet the obligations inter- 272.82 0% = 272.82
. negligible .
expected credit losses o and where the risk of corporate
credit risk . L
default is negligible or  loans
nil
Assets where the
High quality counter—party has
Loss allowance e strong capacity to Securit
measured at 12 month o meet the obligations "y 128.87 0% = 128.87
negligible deposits

and where the risk of
default is negligible or
nil

expected credit losses credit risk

(b) Expected credit loss for trade receivables under simplified approach

90-180 180-360 360-720 More than

Ageing LT days days past days 720 days Total
L past due due past due past due

Gross carrying amount 16,528.87 10,270.01 4,597.31 518.00 304.12 512.80 32,731.11
Expected loss rate 0.11% 0.20% 0.50% 5.00% 50.00% 100.00%
Expected credit losses (Loss allowance provision) 18.09 20.54 22.99 25.90 152.06 512.80 752.38
i‘:;’ayiir':ean':)°“"t of trade receivables (net of 16,510.78 10,249.47 457432 49210  152.06 . 3197873
Reconciliation of loss allowance provision - trade
receivables

Amount
Loss allowance on March 31, 2019 526.74
Changes in loss allowance 225.64
Loss allowance on March 31, 2020 752.38
Changes in loss allowance 348.99
Loss allowance on March 31, 2021 1,101.37
B) Liquidity risk

Liquidity riskis the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity
is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions,
without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate
reserves, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of the financial assets and liabilities.

The Company enjoys a good reputation forits sound financial management and ability to meet in financial commitments. CRISIL, a S&P Global Company,
areputed Rating Agency, hasre-affirmed the creditrating of CRISIL A/Stable for the longtermand CRISIL Afor the Short-term Bank facilities.
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(1) Financing arrangements

The Company had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities subject to the reconcilation at the end of the reporting period :
[ sattach3loo | Asataronsi 2020 |

Floating rate

Short term borrowings 29,385.43 26,195.97

(ii) Maturities of financial liabilities

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments :

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities:-

As at March 31, 2021 “ Within1year | BetWweenlands | Morethan3
years years

Long term borrowings (including current maturities) 15(a) 226.90 239.63 466.53
Lease liabilities 15(b) 196.88 284.32 = 481.20
Short term borrowings 18(a) 9,160.85 = = 9,160.85
Trade payables 18(b) 36,203.49 = = 36,203.49
Security deposits received from customers 18(c) 74.67 = = 714.67
Creditors for capital expenditure 18(c) 370.36 = = 370.36
Interest accrued on borrowings 18(c) 9.25 = = 9.25
Employee payables 18(c) 1,259.77 = = 1,259.77
Unpaid dividend account 18(c) 5.25 = = 5.25
Derivative liabilities 18(c) 41.38 = = 41.38
Total 48,188.80 523.95 48,712.75
N e e
Long term borrowings (including current maturities) 15(a) 203.72 190.53 394.25
Lease liabilities 15(b) 199.51 222.49 = 422.00
Short term borrowings 18(a) 18,348.22 = = 18,348.22
Trade payables 18(b) 24,655.78 = = 24,655.78
Security deposits received from customers 18(c) 725.41 = = 725.41
Creditors for capital expenditure 18(c) 466.85 = = 466.85
Interest accrued on borrowings 18(c) 19.67 = = 19.67
Employee payables 18(c) 1,418.36 = = 1,418.36
Unpaid dividend account 18(c) 4.57 = = 4.57
Derivative liabilities 18(c) 72.58 = = 72.58
Total 46,114.67 413.02 - 46,527.69
C) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk
comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments
affected by marketriskinclude loansand borrowings, deposits, FVTOClinvestments and derivative financial instruments.

(i) Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Company’s exposure to the risk of changesin foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company’s operatingactivities(whenrevenue or expense is

denominatedinaforeigncurrency).

When a derivative is entered into for the purpose of being a hedge, the Company negotiates the terms of those derivatives to match the terms of the
hedged exposure. The Company hedgesits exposure to fluctuations on the foreign currencyloan by using foreign currency swaps and forwards.

At March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 the Company’s hedge position is stated in Note 33. This foreign currency risk is hedged by using foreign currency
forward contractsand fullcurrencyinterestrate swaps.

Sensitivity

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to areasonably possible change in USD and JPY exchange rates, with all other variables held constant.
Theimpact onthe Company's profit before taxis due to changesin the fair value of monetary assets andliabilities.
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Impact on profit before tax

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

USD sensitivity
INR/USD - increase by 1% (March 31, 2020: 1%) (77.49) (167.18)
INR/USD - decrease by 1% (March 31, 2020: 1%) 77.49 167.18
AED sensitivity
INR/AED - increase by 1% (March 31, 2020: Nil) 0.56 =
INR/AED - decrease by 1% (March 31, 2020: Nil) (0.56) -

Impact on other comprehensive income
JPY sensitivity [with respect to investment in equity shares of OAT Agrio Co. Ltd. Year ended Year ended
(company listed on Tokyo Stock exchange)] March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
INR/JPY - increase by 5% (March 31, 2020: 5%) 18.10 12.25

INR/JPY - decrease by 5% (March 31, 2020: 5%) (18.10) (12.25)

(i) Interest rate risk

Interestrateriskis therisk that the fairvalue or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changesin marketinterestrates. The
Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s debt obligations with floating interest rates. At
March 31, 2021, 100% (March 31, 2020, 99.93%) of the Company's total borrowings are at a fixed rate of interest. As on March 31, 2021, the Company's
borrowings were mainly denominated in INR. If borrowings carry floating rate of interest, the Company swaps them into fixed rates that are lower than
those available if the Company borrowed at fixed rates directly. Company's fixed rate borrowings are not subject to interest rate risk as defined in Ind AS
107, since neither the carryingamount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of achangein marketinterestrates.

(a) Interest rate risk exposure

The exposure of the Company's borrowings to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Fixed rate borrowings

Long term borrowings (including current maturities) 466.53 381.90
Short term borrowings 9,160.85 18,348.22
Variable rate borrowings

Long term borrowings (including current maturities) - 12.35
Total borrowings 9,627.38 18,742.47

As at the end of the reporting period, the Company had the following long term variable rate borrowings (including current maturities)and interest rate
swap contractsoutstanding:

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
loans loans
Bank borrowings = = = 8.50% -9.00% 12.35 0.07%

Net exposure to cash flow

interest rate risk . = 12.35 0.07%
(b) Sensitivity

The Company's exposure to long-term floating rate borrowings (mainly on account of vehicle loans)is not significant hence the sensitivity is not
disclosed.

(i) Price risk
(a) Exposure

The Company's exposure to equity securities price risk arises from investments held by the Company in equity shares of OAT Agrio Co. Ltd.(Co-venturer
of J.V.)and classified in the balance sheet as fair value through OCl(note 31).

(b) Sensitivity

The Company's investment in equity shares of OAT Agrio Co. Ltd. (Co-venturer of J.V.)is publicly traded in the Japanese stock exchange. With all other
variables held constant, a 10% movement in the market value of the equity instrument will increase or decrease other comprehensive income by INR
36.20(March 31,2020: INR24.50).



Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

36 Capital management

(a) Risk management

insect

ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21

(INDIA) LIMITED

(R in'Lacs', unless mentioned otherwise)

Capital includes equity attributable to the equity holders to ensure that it maintains an efficient capital structure and healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholder value. The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in
economic conditions or its business requirements. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total
capital plusnetdebt. For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, netdebtincludesinterest bearingloansand borrowings, less cashand cash
equivalents. Capitalincludesissued equity capital, share premiumand all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders.

Total debt 15(a),18(a),18(c)
(Less): Cash and cash equivalents 1(b)

Net debt

Total capital 13,14

Capital and net debt

Gearing ratio

9,627.38 18,742.47
(646.36) (6,773.13)
8,981.02 11,969.34
81,839.76 73,023.38
90,820.78 84,992.72
10% 14%

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended March 31, 2021 & March 31, 2020.

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants
attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would
permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and

borrowinginthe current period.

(b) Dividends

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Dividends paid on equity shares
Final dividend for the year ended March 31, 2020 : Nil (March 31, 2019 : INR 2) per fully paid share

Dividend distrubution tax (DDT) on final dividend

Interim dividend for the year ended March 31, 2021 of INR 2 (March 31, 2020: INR 4) per fully paid
share

Dividend distrubution tax (DDT) on interim dividend

37 Segment information

= 413.35
= 84.99
413.36 826.70

= 169.93

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The Company is
engaged in the business of manufacturing and distribution of Agro-chemicals comprising of technical and formulation, hence there is one operating

segment.
Entity wide disclosures as applicable to the Company are mentioned below:-

a) Information about geographical areas:

Revenue from external customers Year ended March 31, Year ended March 31,
2021 2020

Within India
Outside India
Total revenue

1,34,731.76 1,28,601.55
6,479.28 6,414.52
1,41,211.04 1,35,016.07

The basis for attributing revenues from external customer is based on the country of domicile of the respective customers.

b) Revenue from Major Customers: There is no customer having revenue amounting to 10% or more of Company’s total revenue.

38 Related party transactions
Names of related parties and related party relationship:-

a) Individuals owning directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting power of the Company that gives them significant influence over the

Company and Key Management Personnel (KMP)
1. Sh. Hari Chand Aggarwal - Chairman

2. Sh. Rajesh Aggarwal - Managing Director

3. Smt. Nikunj Aggarwal - Whole-time Director

b) Key Management Personnel (KMP)

1. Sh. Sandeep Aggarwal - Chief Financial Officer
2.Sh. Sandeep Kumar - Company Secretary & CCO
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c) Independent directors

1. Sh. Vrijesh Kumar Gupta

2. Sh. Navin Shah

3. Sh. Jayaraman Swaminathan

4. Sh. Vinod Kumar Mittal (resigend w.e.f December 21, 2020)
5. Smt. Praveen Gupta

d) Relatives of KMPs

1. Sh. Sanjeev Aggarwal

2.Smt. Sonia Aggarwal

3. Smt. Anju Aggarwal

4. Smt. Pushpa Aggarwal

5. Miss Kritika Aggarwal

6. Sh. Sanskar Aggarwal

e) Enterprises over which the Company exercises joint control
1. OAT & IIL India Laboratories Private Limited

f) Enterprises over which key management personnel and their relatives have control / significant influence:
1. ISEC Organics Ltd.

2.Vinod Metals Industries

3. Crystal Crop Protection Pvt. Ltd.

4. HPM Chemicals & Fertilizers Ltd.

5. Crop Care Federation of India

6. IIL foundation

7. Indogulf Cropsciences Limited

(ii) Transactions during the year with related parties:-

Individuals owning
directly or indirectly,
Enterprises over an interest in the
which key Enterprises over voting power of the
management which the Company Company that gives Key Management
personnel and their exercises joint them significant Personnel
relatives have control control influence over the
/ significant influence Company and Key
Management
Personnel (KMP)

Relatives of Key
Management
Personnel

Independent
Directors

Year Year Year Year Year Year Year

ended ended ended ended ended ended ended

March 31, March 31, March March March March March
2021 2021 31,2021 | 31,2020 31,2020 | 31,2021 | 31,2020

Advertisement expense - 0.30 - - - - - o o o - -

Crop Care Federation of
India

Consultancy expenses = = = = = = = = 10.88 10.96 = =
Smt. Sonia Aggarwal 10.88 10.96
Deputation fee income - - 30.23 38.39 - - - - - - - -

OAT & IIL India
Laboratories Private 30.23 38.39
Limited

Membership & 1.80 11.80 5 5 5 = 5 = s 5 5 .
Subscription expense
erp Care Federation of .80 .80
India

Purchase of Capital &

Consumabable Goods (2ol IR . - - - = = - - = -

Vinod Metal Industries 194.51 165.36
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Sales of Finished Goods

Crystal Crop Protection
Pvt Ltd

HPM Chemical &
Fertilizers Limited

Indogulf Cropsciences
Limited

Purchases of Traded
Goods

HPM Chemical &
Fertilizers Limited

Purchases of Raw
Material

Crystal Crop Protection
Pvt Ltd

Indogulf Cropsciences
Limited

Other Expenses

Crop Care Federation of
India

R & D Expenses

OAT & IIL India
Laboratories Private
Limited

Rent paid
ISEC Organics Ltd

Smt. Pushpa Aggarwal

Purchase of Property,
Plant & Equipment

ISEC Organics Ltd

Revenue from Job Work

OAT & IIL India
Laboratories Private
Limited

Enterprises over
which key
management
personnel and their
relatives have control
/ significant influence

Year
ended
March 31,
2021

Year
ended

March 31,

2020

364.05  3,747.49
2.86 2,910.56

= 390.50

361.19 446.43
- 1.87
= 1.87
4,732.37  4,914.47
4,732.37 4,112.57
= 801.90

- 17.70

= 17.70

33.42 65.63
33.42 65.63

- 777.60

= 777.60

Enterprises over
which the Company
exercises joint
control

Year
ended
March 31,
2020

Year
ended
March 31,
2021

395.54 385.34
395.54 385.34
23.72 46.05
23.72 46.05

March 31,

Individuals owning
directly or indirectly,
aninterest in the
voting power of the
Company that gives
them significant
influence over the
Company and Key
Management
Personnel (KMP)

Key Management
Personnel

Year
ended
March

31,2020

Year
ended
March

31,2021

Year
ended
March 31,
2020

Year
ended

2021
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Relatives of Key
Management
Personnel

Independent
Directors

Year
ended
March

31,2020

Year
ended
March

31,2021

Year
ended
March

31,2020

Year
ended
March 31,
2021
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Enterprises over
which key
management
personnel and their
relatives have control

/ significant influence

Year
ended
March 31,
2020

Year
ended
March 31,
2021

Remuneration paid * - -
Sh. Hari Chand Aggarwal

Sh. Rajesh Aggarwal
Smt. Nikunj Aggarwal
Sh. Sandeep Aggarwal
Sh. Sandeep Kumar
Sh. Sanjeev Aggarwal
Smt. Anju Aggarwal
Miss Kritika Aggarwal
Sh. Sanskar Aggarwal
Contribution to CSR 307.13

307.13

190.10
IIL foundation 190.10
Sitting fees - -
Sh. Vinod Kumar Mittal

Sh. Jayaraman
Swaminathan

Smt. Praveen Gupta
Sh. Navin Shah
Sh. Vrijesh Kumar Gupta

*Excluding post
employment benefits

(i) Balance outstanding with related parties

Enterprises over
which key
management
personnel and their
relatives have
control / significant

influence

As at
March 31,
2020

Remuneration payable - -
Sh. Hari Chand Aggarwal

Sh. Rajesh Aggarwal

Smt. Nikunj Aggarwal

Sh. Sandeep Aggarwal

Sh. Sandeep Kumar

Sh. Sanjeev Aggarwal

Smt. Anju Aggarwal

Miss Kritika Aggarwal

Sh. Sanskar Aggarwal

357.21

Trade Payables 169.14

Enterprises over

which the Company

exercises joint
control

Year Year
ended
March 31,

2021 2020

Enterprises over
which the Company
exercises joint
control

As at
March 31,
2021

ended
March 31,

Individuals owning
directly or indirectly,
aninterest in the
voting power of the
Company that gives
them significant
influence over the
Company and Key
Management
Personnel (KMP)

Year
ended
March

31,2021

Year
ended
March 31,
2020

Year
ended
March 31,
2021

828.76 901.08 42.45
395.58 431.77
389.99 425.83
43.19 43.48

32.39

10.06

Individuals owning
directly or indirectly,
an interest in the
voting power of the
Company that gives
them significant
influence over the
Company and Key
Management
Personnel (KMP)

As at Asat As at
March 31, | March 31, | March 31,
2021 2020 2021

N.44 m.28 2.86
4.74 1056.33 -

4.51 3.51 -
2.9 2.44 -
- - 1.76
- - 1.10

Key Management
Personnel

Key Management
Personnel

As at
March 31,
2020

(R in'Lacs', unless mentioned otherwise)

Relatives of Key
Management
Personnel

Independent
Directors

Year
ended
March

31,2021

Year
ended
March 31,
2020

Year
ended
March 31,
2021

42.80 49.85 46.57 = =
32.66
10.14
20.78 20.96
12.68 12.79
2.7 12.82
3.68 =

= = = 12.50 11.00
1.50 2.50
3.560 3.50
2.50 0.50
2.50 2.00
2.50 2.50

Relatives of Key
Management
Personnel

Independent
Directors

As at As at
March 31, | March 31,
2021 2020
3.16 3.45 4.00 - -
1.87 - -
1.29 - -
- 1.30 1.70
- 0.89 0.89
= 0.79 1.41
- 0.47 -
- 0.86 3.22 2.03 -
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Individuals owning
directly or indirectly,
an interest in the
Enterprises over voting power of the
which the Company Company that gives Key Management
exercises joint them significant Personnel
control influence over the
Company and Key
Management
Personnel (KMP)

Enterprises over
which key
management
personnel and their
relatives have
control / significant

Relatives of Key
Management
Personnel

Independent
Directors

influence

As at As at As at As at As at As at As at As at As at As at As at
March | March31, | March31, | March | March31, | March31, | March 31, | March 31, | March31, | March 31, March
31,2021 2020 2021 31,2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 31,2021

Vinod Metal Industries 105.76 61.46 = = 5 o

Crystal Crop Protection ~ -~ _ ) _
Ltd 251.45
Isec Organics Ltd. = 89.84 = = _ -

Crop Care Federation of
India

= 17.84 = - = -
Smt. Sonia Aggarwal - = 0.86 0.84 = -
Smt. Pushpa Aggarwal = = = 2.38 = =
Smt. Praveen Gupta = = = - 0.46 =

Sh. Jayaraman
Swaminathan

Sh. Navin Shah = - = = 0.46 -
Sh. Vrijesh Kumar Gupta = = = - 0.46 =
Trade Receivables 200.49 53.60 6.92 18.12 - - - = o -

Crystal Crop Protection

Ltd 286 : : .

Indogulf Cropsciences Ltd 197.63 53.60 - -

OAT & IIL India

Laboratories Private = = 6.92 18.12

Limited

Advances given - 625.57 - 4.97 - - - - - 0.24
Crystal Crop Protection
Ltd

OAT & IIL India
Laboratories Private = = = 4.97 = =
Limited

Sh. Vinod Kumar Mittal = = - - = 0.06

= 625.57 = = = =

Sh. Jayaraman
Swaminathan

Sh. Navin Shah = = = = 0.06
Sh. Vrijesh Kumar Gupta = = - - = 0.06

iv) Key g per p

Short-term employee benefits 871.21 943.88

tion

Post-employment benefits 26.41 21.83
Long-term employee benefits = =
Total 897.62 965.71
v) Terms and conditions of transactions withrelated parties

The sales to and purchases from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. Outstanding balances at the year-end are

unsecured and interest free. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables. This assessment is undertaken each financial
yearthrough examining the financial position of the related party and the marketin which the related party operates.
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39 Contingent liabilities

As at As at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt

a)Bank Guarantee 265.68 104.50
b) Excise Matter with Appellate Authority 429.51 429.51
c)Sales Tax/ GST Matters 501.03 397.57
d) Revenue Department 89.60 89.60

With respectto contingentliabilitiesreported at(b),(c)&(d)above, the management has taken an opinion from the legal advisors/ professionals engaged
bythemandexpectsthattheappealswillbedecidedinthe favor of the Company. Therefore, the probability of outflow of resourcesisremote.

40 Commitments

Commitments with respect to:

As at As at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital accounts (net of advances)

and not provided for B BeREs

Other commitments

Letter of Credits (FLC & ILC) 7,508.64 8,232.72
8,504.52 8,322.60

41 Leases

The Company has lease contracts for land, office premises, warehouses and vehicles. The land leases have term ranging from 60 to 198 years, office
premises and warehouses have lease terms between 1to 5 years.

Further, the Company has leases of warehouses and vehicles which have lease term less than 12 months. The Company applies the "Short term
leases"recognition exemption for such leases.

a) Amounts recognized in profit and loss

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets (Refer Note 27) 211.33 229.03
Interest expense on lease liabilities (Refer Note 26) 42.54 54.31
Expense relating to short-term leases (included in rent)(Refer Note 28) 34.22 73.98
(Gain)/loss on termination of leases (included in miscellaneous income)(Refer Note 22) (0.81) (5.59)
Total 287.28 351.73

b) Extension and termination options

The Company has lease contracts that include extension and termination options. These options are negotiated by management and align with the
Company’s business needs. Management exercises significant judgement in determining whether these extension and termination options are
reasonably certain to be exercised. The Company has considered all the lease payments relating to periods following the exercise date of extension
options, where such option is available with the Company in the calculation of lease liabilities. The Company has determined that it is not reasonably
certainthat termination optionsattachedtolease contracts will be exercised. Therefore, such disclosuresare notapplicable.
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42 Earnings per share

Year ended March Year ended March
31,2021 31,2020
Profit for the year
Weighted average number of shares (Face value Rs 10/- each)
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(R in'Lacs', unless mentioned otherwise)

(a) Basic earnings per share (INR)

(b) Diluted earnings per share (INR)*

*There are no dilutive potential equity shares.

43 Assets pledged as security

The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for current and non-current borrowings are:

9,343.30 8,604.06
2,08,67,796 2,08,67,796
45.21 41.63

45.21 41.63

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Current
Financial assets

First charge

Trade receivables 1(a)
Loans 1(d)
Other financial assets 1(e)

Non-financial assets

Inventories 10
Other current assets 12
Total current assets pledged as security

Non-Current

Financial assets

First charge

Security deposits 7(b)
Non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment 3
Capital work-in-progress 3
Other non-current assets 9

Total non-currents assets pledged as security
Total assets pledged as security

25,458.71 31,978.73
5.08 272.82
435.03 604.24
25,898.82 32,855.79
66,087.25 51,926.48
1,313.44 1,407.22
93,299.51 86,189.49
246.68 128.87
20,853.52 20,893.13
5,187.22 3,288.41
1,151.69 682.22
27,439.11 24,992.63
1,20,738.62 11,182.12

44. The Balances shown under the head Trade Receivables and Trade Payables are subject to confirmation and reconciliations. However, the

Company hasinitiated the process of obtaining confirmations fromtrade receivables and payables.

45. Information as required to be funished as per section 22 of the Micro, small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) for
the year ended March 31, 2021is given below. This information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis

ofinformationavailable with the Company :

Act:
Principal
Interest

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006 along with
i amounts of the payments made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting

Year.

Principal Paid during FY 2020-21

Interest Paid during FY 2020-21

The amount of interest due and payables for the period of delay in making payment (Which have

i been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year ) but without adding the interest specified

under MSMED Act.
iv. The amount of Interest accured and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year.

Accounting year ended 31st March 2021
Accounting year ended 31st March 2020*

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such

v date when the interest dues as above actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of
disallowance as a deductible enterprise under section 23 of the MSMED Act,2006.

*The interest has been reversed since the same was not required to be paid as per the agreement/P0O

Principal amount and interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier covered under MSMED

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

S 274.45
S 0.48

276.43 63.60

= 0.48

= 2.46

= 2.46
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46

47

48

49

50
(a)
(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Contract assets and contract liabilities

The following table provides information about trade receivables and contract liabilities from contracts with the customers :

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Trade Receivables (refer note 11(a)) 25,458.71 31,978.73
Total trade receivables 25,458.71 31,978.73
Advance from customers (contract liabilities) (refer note 19 & 21) 9,169.88 7174.31
Total advance from customers (contract liabilities) 9,169.88 7174.31

The Company has received Refund of Terminal Excise Duty during the financial years 2014-15, 2015-16 & 2016-17 from the Director of Foreign Trade
(DGFT), Ahmedabad on the basis of issuance of an Advance Release Order (ARO) by DGFT, Mumbai. On 28" November,2019, the Additional Director
of Foreign Trade, Ahmedabad hasissued show cause notice(whichis primary stage of adjudication)stating that the refunds were erroneously paid
by this office and directed to pay back the amount of INR 7828.87 along with interest @ 15%. The Additional Director of Foreign Trade, Ahmedabad
has also provided an opportunity to the Company to appear before the Authority which is mandatory requirement before adjudicating. In terms of
the provisions of the Act, the Company filed the writ petition before Hon'ble Gujarat High Court against the Show Cause Notice challenging the
legality of the noticeand the Hon'ble court has granted interimrelief and also stayed the show cause notice proceedings.

Information on details of loans under section 186 of the Act read with Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014

Maximum Amount
Outstanding as Outstanding Outstanding as
at during the year at
March 31, 2021 ended March 31, March 31, 2020
2021

Maximum Amount
Outstanding during

the year ended
March 31, 2020

Inter Corporate Loans

- New Age Knowledge Solutions Ltd (for Business purpose) = 320.84 320.84 445.16
- Mentor Financial Services Pvt. Ltd (for Business purpose) = 9.21 9.21 842.52
Note: Advances to employee as per company’s policy are not considered.

Exceptionalitemrepresentsaone-time expense onaccount of fraud committed by two employees of the Company in collusion with 16 dealers and
distributors of the Company. The said dealers and distributors had sold the goods in cash at reduced price to different customers. However, the
invoices were raised in the name of Company’s authorised debtors. The Company has filed FIR on July 04, 2020 in P.S. Janjgir District, Janjgir-
Champa, Chhattisgarh. Afterinternalinvestigationin the matter, the Company has recognized bad debts amounting to INR 970.15. The Company is
of the view that there is no significant impact of aforesaid fraud on the general business conditions, financial position, profit & loss and liquidity
position, except fortheamountsalreadyrecognized.

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
New and amended standards and interpretations

Amendments to Ind AS 116: Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions

The amendments provide relief to lessees from applying Ind AS 116 guidance on lease modification accounting for rent concessions arising as a
direct consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic. As a practical expedient, a lessee may elect not to assess whether a Covid-19 related rent
concession from alessor is alease modification. A lessee that makes this election accounts for any change in lease payments resulting from the
Covid-19relatedrent concessionthe same way it would account for the change underInd AS 116, if the change were not alease modification.

The amendments are applicable for annual reporting periods beginning on or after the April 1, 2020. In case, a lessee has not yet approved the
financial statements for issue before the issuance of thisamendment, then the same may be applied for annual reporting periods beginning on or
afterthe April1,2019. Thisamendment had noimpact on the financial statements of the Company.

Amendments to Ind AS 103 Business Combinations

The amendment to Ind AS 103 Business Combinations clarifies that to be considered a business, an integrated set of activities and assets must
include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive process that, together, significantly contribute to the ability to create output. Furthermore, it
clarifiesthatabusiness can exist withoutincludingall of the inputsand processes needed to create outputs.

Theseamendmentsare applicable to business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the firstannual reporting
period beginning on or after the April 1, 2020 and to asset acquisitions that occur on or after the beginning of that period. Thisamendment had no
impactonthe financial statements of the Company but may impact future periods should the Company enterinto any business combinations.

Amendments to Ind AS 1and Ind AS 8: Definition of Material

The amendments provide a new definition of material that states, “information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably
be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements, which provide financial information about a specific reporting entity.” The amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the
nature or magnitude of information, either individually or in combination with other information, in the context of the financial statements. A
misstatement of information is material if it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions made by the primary users. These amendments
hadnoimpactonthe financial statementsof, noristhere expectedtobe any futureimpact to the Company.
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(iv) Amendments to Ind AS 107 and Ind AS 109: Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

The amendments to Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement provide a number of reliefs, which apply to all hedging
relationshipsthatare directly affected by interest rate benchmark reform. A hedging relationshipis affected if the reform givesrise to uncertainty
about the timing and/or amount of benchmark-based cash flows of the hedged item or the hedging instrument. These amendments have no
impactonthe consolidated financial statements of the Company asitdoesnothave anyinterest rate hedge relationships.

The amendments to Ind AS 107 prescribe the disclosures which entities are required to make for hedging relationships to which the reliefs as per
the amendments in Ind AS 109 are applied. These amendments are applicable for annual periods beginning on or after the April 1, 2020. These
amendmentsdid not have anyimpact onthe Company’s financial statements.

(b) Standards issued but not yet effective

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs(MCA) has issued Companies(Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2021to amend Ind AS. The rules
shallcomeinto force onthe date of their publicationin the Official Gazettei.e June 18, 2021.

(i) Amendments to Ind AS 116: Leases

The amendments extend the benefits of the COVID 19 related rent concession that were introduced last year (which allowed lessees to recognize
COVID 19 related rent concessions as income rather than as lease modification) from June 30, 2021 to June 30, 2022. The Company is in the
process of evaluatingthe impact of theamendmentsonitsfinancial statements.

(ii) Amendments to Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments

The amendment provides a practical expedient for assessment of contractual cash flow test, which is one of the criteria for being eligible to
measure a financial asset at amortized cost, for the changes in the financial assets that may arise as a result of Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
along. An additional temporary exception from applying hedge accounting is also added for Interest Rate Benchmark Reform. The Company is in
the process of evaluating the impact of the amendments onits financial statementsbut does not expect theamendments to have animpactonthe
financial statements.

(iii) Other amendments

The otheramendments to Ind AS are in terms of insertion of certain paragraphs, substituting the definition of certain terms used in the standard
along with aligning the text of Standards with the Conceptual Framework of Financial reporting under Ind AS. The Company is in the process of
evaluating the impact of the amendments on its financial statements but does not expect the amendments to have an impact on the financial
statements.

The Company has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 on the financial results. In developing
the assumptions relating to the possible future uncertainties in the economic conditions because of this pandemic, the Company, has used

51 internal and external sources of information. Based on the Company assessment, no material impact has been noted. Considering that it is a
dynamic and evolving situation, the management will continue to closely monitor and evaluate the impact of any material change in macro-
economicand otherrelated factors, whichmay have bearingonthe Company's operations.

Auditor's Report FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

As per our separate report of even date annexed herewith

For DEVESH PAREKH & CO. For S S KOTHARI MEHTA & COMPANY HARI CHAND AGGARWAL RAJESH AGGARWAL

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Chairman Managing Director
DIN: 00577015 DIN: 00576872

DEVESH PAREKH HARISH GUPTA NIKUNJ AGGARWAL

Partner Partner Whole Time Director

Membership No.- 092160 Membership No.- 098336 DIN 06569091

Firm Registration No. - 013338N Firm Registration No. - 000756N

Place : Delhi SANDEEP AGGARWAL SANDEEP KUMAR

Date :June 18, 2021 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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Independent Auditor's Report on Consolidated Financial Statement

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of Insecticides (India) Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial
Statements of Insecticides (India) Limited (herein referred
to as “the Company”) and its jointly controlled entity- Oat &
IIL India Laboratories Private Limited, comprising of the
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash
Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements, including a summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as “the Consolidated Financial
Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Consolidated Financial Statements give the information
required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of
the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (“Ind AS") and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
Consolidated state of affairs of the Company and its jointly
controlled entity as at March 31, 2021, the Consolidated profit,
Consolidated total comprehensive income, Consolidated
changes in equity and its Consolidated cash flows for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company and its jointly controlled entity
in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements under the provisions of
the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note No. 50 of the Consolidated
Financial Statement, highlighting the fraud committed by
two employees of the Company in collision with Company's
dealers & distributors and FIR filed by the management of the
Company against them. Based on the internal assessment &

enquiry, Company has recognized bad debts amounting to
Rs. 970.15 lakhs in this respect and shown it as exceptional
item during the year ended March 31, 2021. Further, Company
is of the view that there is no significant impact of the
committed fraud on the business conditions of the Company,
its liquidity position and has concluded that no material
adjustments are required in the financial statements.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the
matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report.

Key Audit Matter Auditor's Response

Recognition of revenue  Principal Audit Procedures

The Company recognizes
revenue at the pointin
time when control of the
goods is transferred to
the customer at an
amount that reflects the
consideration to which
the Company expects to
be entitled in exchange
for those goods or
services. In determining
the transaction price for
the sale, the Company
considers the effects of
variable consideration
and consideration
receivable from the
customer.

For the year ended March
31,2021, Consolidated
Statement of Profit &
Lossincludes Sales of Rs.
1,41,211.03 Lakhs. The
nature of rebates,
discounts and sales
returns, if any, involve
judgment in determining
sales revenues and
revenue cut-off. The risk
is, therefore, that revenue
may not be recognized in
the correct period.

Refer to Accounting
policies Note 2.3 (b)and
Note No. 21 of the
Consolidated Financial
Statements.

®

e We performed process
walkthrough to understand the
adequacy and the design of the
revenue cycle. We tested
internal controls in the revenue
and trade receivables over the
accuracy and timing of revenue
accounted in the financial
statements.

Understanding the policies and
procedures applied to revenue
recognition, as well as
compliance thereof, including
an analysis of the effectiveness
of controls related to revenue
recognition processes
employed by the Company.

e We reviewed the revenue
recognition policy applied by
the Company to ensure its
compliance with Ind-AS 115
requirements.

e We performed a detailed testing
on transactions, ensuring
revenues were recognized in
the correct accounting period.
We also tested journal entries
recognized in revenue focusing
on unusual orirregular
transactions.

We validated the
appropriateness and
completeness of the related
disclosures in Note No. 21 of the
Consolidated Financial
Statements.



Information Other than the Consolidated Financial
Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the
preparation of the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Management
Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report including Annexures
to Board's Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder's
Information, but does not include the Consolidated Financial
Statementsand ourauditor'sreportthereon

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
formofassurance orconclusionthereon.

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements, our responsibility is to read the otherinformation
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the Consolidated Financial
Statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of
ourauditorotherwise appearstobe materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
thisregard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with
Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the
preparation and presentation of these Consolidated Financial
Statementsinterms of the requirements of the Act that give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position,
consolidated financial performance, consolidated total
comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and
consolidated cash flows of the Company and its jointly
controlled entity in accordance with the Ind AS and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India. The
respective Board of Directors of the companiesincludedin the
Company and its jointly controlled entity are responsible for
maintenance of the adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the
assets of each Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irreqularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
Consolidated Financial Statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of
preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements by the
Directorsof the Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, the
respective Board of Directors of the Company and of its jointly
controlled entity are responsible for assessing the ability of
each Company to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or
hasnorealisticalternative buttodoso.
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The respective Board of Directors of the Company and its
jointly controlled entity are responsible for overseeing the
financialreporting process of each company.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whetherthe Consolidated Financial Statementsasawhole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error,andtoissueanauditor'sreport thatincludes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, butisnota
guarantee thatanaudit conducted inaccordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these Consolidated
Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughoutthe audit. We also:

o |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the Consolidated Financial Statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to thoserisks, and obtain audit evidence thatis
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e (Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls
relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the Company and its jointly
controlled entity has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

e (Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the ability of the Company and its
jointly controlled entity to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the Consolidated Financial
Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company and its jointly controlled entity to cease to
continueasagoingconcern.
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o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the Consolidated Financial Statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Consolidated Financial
Statements represent the underlying transactions and
eventsinamannerthatachievesfair presentation.

e (btain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Company and its jointly controlled entity to
express an opinion on the Consolidated Financial
Statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audit of the financial
statements of such entities included in the Consolidated
Financial Statements of which we are the independent
auditor. For the other entities included in the Consolidated
Financial Statements, which have been audited by the
other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for
the directions, supervision and performance of the audits
carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our
audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the
Consolidated Financial Statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makesit probable that the economic decisions of a
reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements
may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work
andin evaluating the results of our work; and(ii)to evaluate the
effect of any identified misstatements in the financial
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the
Company, regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
duringour audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of suchcommunication.

Other Matters

The Consolidated Financial Statements include the
Company's share of net profit after tax of Rs. 48.27 lakhs for
the year ended March 31, 2021, in respect of one jointly
controlled entity. These financial statements are audited by
other auditors whose report have been furnished to us by the

management. OQur opinioninso far asit relates to the affairs of
such jointly controlled entity, and our report in terms of sub-
sections(3)of section143 of the Act, insofarasitrelatestothe
aforesaid jointly controlled entity is based solely on the report
of the otherauditor.

Ouropiniononthe Consolidated Financial Statements, and our
report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements below, is
not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to
our reliance on the work done and the report of the other
auditor.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. Asrequired by Section 143(3)of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of
the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by
law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
Consolidated Financial Statements have been kept so
far as it appears from our examination of those books
andthereportsof the otherauditors.

c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement
with the relevant books of account and records
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial
Statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section133of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received
from the directors of the Company as on March 31, 2021
taken on record by the Board of Directors of the
Companyandthereports of the statutory auditors of its
jointly controlled entity incorporated in India, none of
the directors of the Company and its jointly controlled
entity is disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from being
appointed asadirectorinterms of Section 164(2)of the
Act.

f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements of the
Company and its jointly controlled entity and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in "Annexure A". Our report expresses
an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company's internal financial
controlswithreferenceto financial statement.

g) Withrespect to the other matters to be included in the
Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirements
of section197(16) of the Act,asamended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the



remuneration paid by the Company to its directors
during the year is in accordance with the provisions of
section197ofthe Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the
Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to
us:

i. The Consolidated Financial Statements disclose
impact of pending litigations on the Consolidated
financial position of the Company and its jointly
controlled entity. Refer Note 40 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

ii. The Company and its jointly controlled entity have
made provisions, as required under the applicable
law or accounting standards, for material
foreseeable losses, if any; on long-term contracts
includingderivative contracts.

There has been no delay in transferring amounts,
requiredtobetransferred, tothe Investor Education
and Protection Fund ('IEPF') by the Company and its
jointly controlled entity.

For S S Kothari Mehta & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's registration number:

For Devesh Parekh & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's registration

000756N number: 013338N
Harish Gupta Devesh Parekh
Partner Partner

. . Membership number:
Membership number: 098336 092160
UDIN : UDIN:
21098336AAAACM3297 21092160AAAANX2517

Place: New Delhi
Date : June 18, 2021

Place: New Delhi
Date : June 18, 2021
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Annexure A” to the Independent Auditor's Report of even
date on the Consolidated Financial Statements of
Insecticides(India) Limited.

(Referredtoin paragraph 1(f)under 'Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements' section of our report to the
Membersof Insecticides(India)Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to
financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements of the company as of and for the year ended March
31, 2021, we have audited the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements of Insecticides (India)
Limited.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company are responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to the
company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financialinformation, asrequired under
the Act.

Auditors'Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's
internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by the ICAl and
deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls,
both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and,
bothissuedby the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtainreasonable assurance about whetheradequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements was established and maintained and if such
controlsoperated effectively inallmaterial respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
system with reference to financial statements and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a



insect

(INDIA) LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21

material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
duetofraudorerror.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
referencetofinancial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to
financial statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to
financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial control
with reference to financial statementsincludes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material
effectonthe Consolidated Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with
reference tofinancial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control with reference to financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies
orproceduresmaydeteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company have maintained, in all material
respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the
internal control with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
Other Matters

Reporting on the adequacy of the Internal Financial Controls
with reference to financial statement of the jointly controlled
entity and the operating effectiveness of such controls, under
Section 143(3)i)of the Act is not applicable as per report of the
auditors of such company.

For S S Kothari Mehta & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's registration number:

For Devesh Parekh & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's registration

000756N number: 013338N
Harish Gupta Devesh Parekh
Partner Partner

. . Membership number:
Membership number: 098336 092160
UDIN : UDIN:
21098336AAAACM3297 21092160AAAANX2517

Place: New Delhi
Date : June 18, 2021

Place: New Delhi
Date : June 18, 2021



Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021

insect

ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21

(INDIA) LIMITED

(% in'Lacs', unless mentioned otherwise)

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

ASSETS
1.Non-current assets
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
(f)
(9)

Capital work-in-progress
Right-of-use asset
Intangible assets

Investment in joint venture
Financial assets
(i) Investments
(ii) Other financial assets
(h)  Non-current tax assets (net)
(i)  Other non-current assets
Total non-current assets
2  Current assets
(a) Inventories
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Trade receivables
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents

(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above

(iv) Loans
(v) Other financial assets
(c) Other current assets
Total current assets
Total assets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share capital
(b) Other Equity
Total equity
LIABILITIES
1  Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings
(ii) Lease liabilities
(b) Provisions
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (net)
Total non-current liabilities
2 Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings
(ii) Lease liabilities
(iii) Trade Payables
(A)total outstanding due of mi
(B) total outstanding dues of ¢
enterprises
(iv) Other financial liabilities
(b) Other current liabilities
(c) Provisions
Total current liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

Property, plant and equipment

Intangible assets under development

Place :

o o1 O » N N

7(a)
7(b)

(a)
11(b)
(c)
11(d)
11(e)

Delhi

18(a)
15(b)
18(b)
cro enterprises and small enterprises; and
reditors other than micro enterprises and small

18(c)

20

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Notes to Financial Statements

Auditor's Report

1t02
3to 53

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

As per our separate report of even date annexed herewith

For DEVESH PAREKH & CO.
Chartered Accountants

DEVESH PAREKH

Partner

Membership No.- 092160

Firm Registration No. - 013338N

Place : Delhi
Date : June 18, 2021

HARI CHAND AGGARWAL
Chairman
DIN: 00577015

For SS KOTHARI MEHTA & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants

HARISH GUPTA

Partner

Membership No.- 098336

Firm Registration No. - 000756N

SANDEEP AGGARWAL
Chief Financial Officer

20,853.562 20,893.13
5,187.22 3,288.41
2,584.56 2,514.73
441.83 501.91
677.54 607.49
992.75 944.48
362.00 244.97
280.45 160.82
1,072.08 1,396.89
1,5634.31 1,056.11
33,986.26 31,608.94
66,087.25 51,926.48
25,458.71 31,978.73
646.36 6,773.13
7,682.94 642.97
5.08 272.82
435.03 604.24
8,293.06 5,634.79
108,608.43 97,833.16
142,594.69 129,442.10
2,066.78 2,066.78
79,970.73 71,106.08
82,037.51 73,172.86
239.63 190.53
253.35 176.31
276.79 103.88
1,335.69 1,867.78
2,105.46 2,338.50
9,160.85 18,348.22
163.42 192.72
2,567.17 1,178.57
33,636.32 23,477.21
2,627.58 2,911.16
10,021.46 7,564.75
274.92 258.11
58,451.72 53,930.74
142,594.69 129,442.10
RAJESH AGGARWAL

Managing Director
DIN: 00576872

NIKUNJ AGGARWAL
Whole Time Director
DIN 06569091

SANDEEP KUMAR
Company Secretary
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(INDIA) LIMITED

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2021 (Zin'Lacs,, unless mentioned otherwise)
L - e
March 31,2021 | March 31,2020
Revenue from operations 142,022.58 136,321.96
Other Income 22 772.78 256.55
Total Income 142,795.36 136,578.51
Expenses
Cost of raw material and components consumed 23 104,517.82 79,083.88
Purchase of Traded Goods 5,795.48 4,600.90
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and traded goods 24 (3,526.01) 17,249.15
Employee benefits expense 25 7,650.66 7.474.23
Finance Costs 26 665.11 2,388.98
Depreciation and amortization expense 27 2.,467.18 2,407.20
Other expenses 28 12,351.54 12,328.06
Total expenses 129,921.78 125,532.40
:::tf:\to l;efore tax, exceptional items and share of net profit of investment accounted for using equity 12,873.58 1,046.1
Exceptional items 50 970.15 =
Profit before tax and share of net profits of investments accounted for using equity method 11,903.43 11,046.11
Share of net profit of joint venture accounted for using the equity method 53 47.00 87.25
Profit before tax 11,950.43 1,133.36
Tax Expenses 30
- Current Tax 3,051.10 2,538.94
- Deferred Tax (490.97) (96.89)
Total Tax Expenses 2,560.13 2,442.05
Profit for the period 9,390.30 8,691.31
Other comprehensive income 31

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Changes in fair value of FVTOCI equity instruments 117.03 (143.03)
Remeasurement of net defined benefit plans (271.71) (170.23)
Share of other comprehensive income of joint venture accounted for using the equity method 1.69 (4.54)
Income tax relating to these items 40.69 93.95
Other comprehensive income for the period (net of tax) (112.30) (223.85)
Total comprehensive income for the period (net of tax) 9,278.00 8,467.46
Earnings per equity share 43
Basic earnings per share 45.43 42.05
Diluted earnings per share 45.43 42.05
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies Tto2
Notes to Financial Statements 3to53
Auditor's Report FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
As per our separate report of even date annexed herewith
For DEVESH PAREKH & CO. For S S KOTHARI MEHTA & COMPANY HARI CHAND AGGARWAL RAJESH AGGARWAL
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Chairman Managing Director
DIN: 00577015 DIN: 00576872
DEVESH PAREKH HARISH GUPTA NIKUNJ AGGARWAL
Partner Partner Whole Time Director
Membership No.- 092160 Membership No.- 098336 DIN 06569091
Firm Registration No. - 013338N Firm Registration No. - 000756N
Place : Delhi SA'NDE'EP AQGARVYAL SANDEEP KUMAR
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Date : June 18, 2021



Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity for the year ended March 31, 2020

Parowrs I ot
As at April 1, 2019 2,066.78

Changes in equity share capital -

As at March 31, 2020

2,086.78
Changes in equity share capital -

As at March 31, 2021 2,066.78

(B) Other equity (Refer note 14)
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(% in'Lacs, unless mentioned otherwise)

Reserves and surplus

Securities

premium

Balance at April 1, 2019
Profit for the year

10,410.18

Other comprehensive income (Net of taxes)
Total comprehensive income for the period
Final dividend paid during the year

Tax on Final dividend paid

Interim dividend paid during the year

Tax on Interim dividend paid

Balance at March 31, 2020

Profit for the year

10,410.18

Other comprehensive income (Net of taxes)
Total comprehensive income for the period
Final dividend paid during the year

Tax on Final dividend paid

Interim dividend paid during the year

Tax on Interim dividend paid

Balance at March 31, 2021 10,410.18

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Notes to Financial Statements

Auditor's Report
As per our separate report of even date annexed herewith

For DEVESH PAREKH & CO. For SS KOTHARI MEHTA & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

DEVESH PAREKH

Partner

Membership No.- 092160

Firm Registration No. - 013338N

HARISH GUPTA

Partner

Membership No.- 098336

Firm Registration No. - 000756N

Place : Delhi
Date :June 18, 2021

General GEETTEL FVTOCI reserve Total Other Equity
reserve earnings - equity
instruments
3,201.52 50,464.78 57.11 64,133.59
8,691.31 8,691.31
(114.13) (109.72) (223.85)
8,577.18 (109.72) 8,467.46
(413.35) (413.35)
(84.99) (84.99)
(826.70) (826.70)
(169.93) (169.93)
3,201.52 57,546.99 (52.61) 71,106.08
9,390.30 9,390.30
(202.06) 89.77 (112.29)
9,188.24 89.77 9,278.01
(413.36) (413.386)
3,201.52 66,321.87 37.16 79,970.73
1t02
3tob3
FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
HARI CHAND AGGARWAL RAJESH AGGARWAL

Chairman
DIN: 00577015

Managing Director
DIN: 00576872

NIKUNJ AGGARWAL
Whole Time Director
DIN 06569091

SANDEEP AGGARWAL
Chief Financial Officer

SANDEEP KUMAR
Company Secretary
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(INDIA) LIMITED

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2021 (Xin'Lacs, unless mentioned otherwise)

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

(A) Cash Flow From Operating Activities

Net profit before tax 11,950.43 1,133.36
- Share of Net Profit of Joint Venture (47.00) (87.25)
- Depreciation 2,467.18 2,407.20
- (Profit)/ Loss on Sale of Assets 37.94 37.22
- Miscellaneous Expenses - 6.34
- Miscellaneous Income (0.81) (5.59)
- Interest Income (251.18) (142.30)
- Dividend Income (9.62) (10.16)
- Interest Expenses 665.11 2,388.98
- Bad debts written off 47.08 6.34
- Provision for impairment of trade receivables 348.99 225.64
- Derivative (gain)/ loss (21.86) (64.40)
- Unrealised exchange differences (294.65) (8.40)
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 14,891.59 15,886.98
Adjustments for

-(Increase)/Decrease in security deposits (117.81) (1.85)
-(Increase)/Decrease in inventories (14,160.77) 18,584.16
-(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables 6,203.48 (7,785.82)
-(Increase)/Decrease in loans 2.74 8.79
-(Increase)/Decrease in other financial assets 94.37 (92.61)
-(Increase)/Decrease in other current assets (2,666.99) 2,923.41
-(Increase)/Decrease in provisions (81.99) (17.32)
- Increase/(Decrease)in trade payables 11,809.90 (3,330.82)
- Increase/(Decrease) in other financial liabilities (169.35) 364.55
- Increase/(Decrease) in other current liabilities 2,456.71 856.11
Cash generated from operations 18,261.88 27,395.58
Less: Income tax paid (2,726.29) (3,210.32)
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities (A) 15,535.59 24,185.26
(B) Cash Flow From Investing Activities

- Addition to property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, capital-work-in- (4,829.79) (2,902.23)
progress and intangible assets under development

- Proceeds from sale of property plant and equipment 66.96 59.09
- Interest received 269.17 104.82
- Proceeds from / (investment in) bank deposits (7,041.1) (614.75)
- Inter Corporate Loans (Given)/ Received back 265.00 935.00
- Dividends received 10.08 9.27
Net Cash Flow used in Investing Activities (B) (11,259.69) (2,408.80)
(C) Cash Flow From Financing Activities

- Repayment of long term borrowings (226.21) (928.86)
- Proceeds from long term borrowings 298.49 319.91
- Proceeds/(Repayment) from/of short term borrowings (9,187.37) (11,160.62)
- Repayment of lease liabilities (198.69) (161.18)
- Interest paid (675.53) (2,471.77)
- Dividend paid (including dividend distribution tax) (413.386) (1,494.98)
Net Cash Flow (used in) / from Financing Activities (C) (10,402.67) (15,897.50)
Net increase/ (decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) (6,126.77) 5,878.96
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 6,773.13 894.17
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 646.36 6,773.13
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(INDIA) LIMITED

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2021

(in'Lacs', unless mentioned otherwise)

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Balances with banks

On current accounts 640.03 4,243.04
Cash on hand 6.33 9.03
Deposits with original maturity upto three months = 2,521.06
Total cash and cash equivalents 646.36 6,773.13

Non cash changes in liabilities arising from financial liablities :

As at April 1, Unrealised Other non cash As at March 31,
Cash flows exchange
2020 . changes 2021
difference
Long term borrowings (including current maturities) 394.25 72.28 = = 466.53
Lease liabilities (including current maturities) 369.03 (198.69) = 246.43 416.77
Short term borrowings 18,348.22 (9,187.37) = = 9,160.85
19,111.50 (9,313.78) = 246.43 10,044.15

Unrealised Other non cash

changes

As at April 1,

As at March 31,
2020

exchange
difference

2019

Long term borrowings (including current maturities) 1,003.20 (608.95) = = 394.25
Lease liabilities (including current maturities) 680.15 (161.18) = (149.94) 369.03
Short term borrowings 29,517.24 (11,160.62) (8.40) = 18,348.22
31,200.59 (11,930.75) (8.40) (149.94) 19,111.50

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies Tto2

Notes to Financial Statements 51053
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Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

1. Corporateinformation

Insecticides (India) Limited ("The Company”) is a public
Company domiciled in India and incorporated under the
provisions of the Companies Act. The shares of the Company
are listed in India on the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited and
National Stock Exchange. The registered office of the
Company is located at 401-402, Lusa Tower, Azadpur
Commercial Complex, Delhi, 110033. The Company is engaged
in the manufacturing activities of Agro Chemicals, Pesticides
and Technical Products for agriculture purposes. The
Company caterstobothdomesticandinternational markets.

OAT and IIL India Laboratories Private Limited was
incorporated on March 6, 2013, as per joint venture agreement
dated December 26, 2012 between OAT Agrio Co., Ltd., Japan
and the Company (co-venturers), to undertake Scientific and
Technical Research Experiment, Product Development, Bio-
equivalency Studies and Developing New Chemical Entities
(NCEs)forthe co-venturers.

Insecticides (India) Limited together with OAT & IIL India Lab
(P)Ltd.ishereinafterreferredtoasthe Group”.

The Group's financial statements were authorised for issue in
accordance witharesolution of the directorsonJune 18, 2021.

2. Significantaccounting policies
2.1 Basisofpreparation

The financial statements of the Group have been prepared in
accordance with Indian Accounting Standards(Ind AS)notified
under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
20715 notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013(“the
Act”) as amended thereafter and other relevant provision of
the Act.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical
cost basis, except for the following assets and liabilities which
have been measuredatfairvalue orrevaluedamount

(a) Derivativefinancialinstruments
(b) Planassetsof defined employee benefit plans

(c) Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value(refer accounting policy regarding financial
instruments)

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees
(INR) which is also the Group's functional currency and all
values are rounded to the nearest lacs, except when
otherwise indicated. Figures appearing as “0.00" represent
amountsbelow INR500.

2.2. Basis of consolidation
Joint venture

(a) A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby
parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the arrangement.
Interests in joint ventures are initially recognised at
cost and thereafter accounted for using the equity
method.

(b) Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereaftertorecognise the Group's share of
the post-acquisition profits or losses and other
comprehensive income of the investee in the
Statement of Profit and Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income of the Group, respectively.
Dividends received or receivable from joint ventures
arerecognisedasareductioninthe carryingamount
of theinvestment.

(c) When the Group's share of losses in a joint venture
equals or exceeds its investment in the entity,
including any other unsecured long-term
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
paymentsonbehalf of the joint venture.

(d) Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group's interest in these entities. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Where the accounting policies of joint
ventures are different from those of the Group,
appropriate adjustments are made for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances to
ensure conformity with the policies adopted by the
Group.

(e) Anygainorlossondilutionarisingonareduced stake
in the joint venture, but still retaining the joint
control, is recognized in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

(f)  When the investment ceases to be a joint venture
and the retained interest is a financial asset, the
Group measures the retained interest at fair value
withthe changeincarryingamountrecognisedinthe
Statement of Profit and Loss. The fair value of the
retained interest becomes the initial carrying
amount for the purpose of accounting for the
retained interest as an associate or as a financial
asset. Any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that joint
venture are reclassified to the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

(g) With respect to consolidation of OAT and IIL India
Laboratories Private Limited, the Group has
consideredthe ownershipratioof 20% as prescribed
in the joint venture agreement for recognising its
share of profits/losses.

2.3. Summary of significant accounting policies
(a) Currentversusnon-currentclassification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet
based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is
treatedascurrentwhenitis

®



a) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or
consumedinnormal operatingcycle,

b) Heldprimarily forthe purpose of trading,

c) Cashorcashequivalentunlessrestricted frombeing
exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months afterthereporting period.

Allotherassetsare classifiedasnon-current.

Aliabilityis currentwhen:
a) Itisexpectedtobesettledinnormaloperatingcycle.
b) Itisheldprimarily for the purpose of trading.

c) There is no unconditional right to defer the
settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
afterthereporting period.

Allotherliabilitiesare classifiedasnon-current.

Deferredtaxassetsandliabilitiesare classified asnon-current
assetsandliabilities.

Based on the nature of products and the time between
acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in
cash and cash equivalents, the Group has identified twelve
months asits operating cycle for the purpose of current/non-
currentclassification of assetsand liabilities.

(b) Revenuerecognition
Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of the goods or services are transferred to the
customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goodsorservices. The Group has generally concluded thatitis
the principal in its revenue arrangements, because it typically
controls the goods or services before transferringthemto the
customer.

Revenueis stated exclusive of Goodsand Service Tax(GST).

The specificrecognition criteriadescribed below mustalso be
met beforerevenueisrecognised.

Salesof goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point in
time when control is transferred to the customer which is
usually on shipment. Revenue is measured based on the
transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for
volume discounts, rebates, scheme allowances, price
concessions, incentives, and returns, if any, as specifiedinthe
contracts with the customers. Revenue excludes taxes
collected from customers on behalf of the government.
Accruals for discounts/incentives and returns are estimated
(using the most likely method) based on accumulated
experience and underlying schemes and agreements with
customers. Due to the short nature of credit period given to
customers, thereisno financingcomponentinthe contract.

Rendering of services

Revenue from sale of servicesisrecognised over the period of
time as per the terms of the contract with customers based on
the stage of completion when the outcome of the transactions
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involvingrendering of services can be estimated reliably.
Inrespect of Company's Joint Venture

Revenue from Research & Development services are
recognized when services are rendered, and related cost is
incurred over a period of time.

Trade receivables

Areceivableisrecognisedif anamount of considerationthatis
unconditional(i.e., only the passage of time is required before
payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting
policies of financial assets in section (m) financial
instruments.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised if a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before
the Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract
liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs
under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods
orservicestothe customer).

Otherincome
Interest Income

For all financial instruments measured either at amortised
cost or fair value through other comprehensive income,
interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate
(EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the
financialinstrument or ashorter period, where appropriate, to
the gross carrying amount of the financial asset. When
calculatingthe effectiveinterestrate, the Group estimatesthe
expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms
of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment,
extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the
expected credit losses. Interest income is included in other
incomeinthe Statement of Profitand Loss.

Dividends

Revenue is recognised when the Group's right to receive the
payment is established, which is generally when shareholders
approve thedividend.

(c) Property, plantand equipment

Iltems of property, plant and equipment and capital work-in
progress are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost
comprises purchase price, borrowing costs if capitalization
criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the
asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade
discountsandrebatesaredeductedinarrivingatthe purchase
price.Such costincludesthe cost of replacing part of the plant
and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term
construction projects if the recognition criteria are met.
Subsequent expenditure related to an item of fixed asset is
added to its book value only if it increases the future benefits
from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed
standard of performance. When significant parts of plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
depreciates them separately based on their specific useful
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lives. All other repairand maintenance costsare recognisedin
Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred. In respect of
additions to /deletions from the property, plant and
equipment, depreciation is provided on pro-rata basis with
referencetothe month of addition/ deletion of the assets.

The Group, based on technical assessment made by technical
expert and management estimate, depreciates certain items
of plant and equipment over estimated useful lives which are
different from the useful life prescribed in Schedule Il to the
Companies Act, 2013. The management believes that these
estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair
approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to
be used. Depreciation on remaining items of property, plant &
equipment has been provided on Straight Line Method based
on useful life of the assets as prescribed in Schedule Il of the
CompaniesAct, 2013.

Estimated usefullives of the assetsare asfollows:

Nature of Tangible Assets Useful Life (years)

Plant &Equipments 10-15
Building 30
Laboratory Equipments 10
Office Equipments 5
Furniture, Fixtures &

. 10
Equipments
Vehicles 8-10

Over the period of lease
or useful life whichever is
lower

Leasehold improvements

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use
or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)is included in
theincome statement whentheassetisderecognised.

(d) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible
assets with finite life are carried at cost less any accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Internally
generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development
costs, are not capitalised and the related expenditure is
reflectedin profitorlossinthe periodinwhichthe expenditure
isincurred.

Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basis over
the estimated usefuleconomiclife.

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected
useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future
economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to

modify the amortisation period or method, asappropriate, and
are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The
amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless such
expenditure forms part of carrying value of anotherasset.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the
assetisderecognised.

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development
expenditures on an individual project are recognised as an
intangible asset when the Group can demonstrate technical
and commercial feasibility of making the asset available for
useorsale.

Following initial recognition of the development expenditure
as an asset, the asset is carried at cost less any accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation of the asset begins when development is
complete and the assetis available for use. Itisamortised over
the period of expected future benefit. Amortisation expenseis
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless such
expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

A summary of the policies applied to the Group's intangible
assetsisasfollows:-

Intangible assets Useful Life Amortisation
) (years) method used

Amortised on

Computer Software € straight-line basis

Amortised on

Websites 2 straight-line basis

Amortised on
straight-line basis

Patents, trademarks

and designs i

(e) Borrowingcosts

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
constructionorproduction of anasset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or
sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
occur.

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an
entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the
extentregardedasanadjustmenttotheborrowingcosts.

(f) Foreigncurrencies
Transactions and Balances

Transactions in foreign currency are recorded applying the
exchange rate at the date of transaction. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currency remaining
unsettled at the end of the year, are translated at the closing
rates prevailing on the Balance Sheet date. Non-monetary
items which are carried in terms of historical cost
denominated in foreign currency are reported using the
exchange rate at the date of transaction. Exchange
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differences arising as a result of the above are recognized as
income or expenses in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Exchange difference arising on the settlement of monetary
items at rates different from those at which they were initially
recorded during the year, or reported in previous financial
statements, arerecognised asincome or expenses in the year
inwhichtheyarise.

Foreign exchange difference on foreign currency borrowings,
settlement gain/loss and fair value gain/loss on derivative
contract relating to borrowings are accounted and disclosed
under finance cost. Such exchange difference does not
include foreign exchange difference regarded as an
adjustmenttothe borrowings cost and capitalised with cost of
assets.

(g) Fairvalue measurement

The Group measures financial instruments, such as,
derivatives and equity investments at fair value at each
balance sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfertheliability takes place either:

a) Intheprincipalmarket forthe asset orliability, or

b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset orliability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible bythe Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in
theireconomicbestinterest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant's ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
assetinitshighestandbestuse.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurementasawhole:

a) Level1—Quoted(unadjusted)market pricesinactive
markets foridenticalassetsorliabilities.

b) Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurementisdirectly orindirectly observable.

c) Level 3 —Valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurementisunobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial

insect

(INDIA) LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21

statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation(based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
awhole)atthe end of eachreporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has
determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the
nature, characteristicsandrisks of the asset or liability and the
level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other
fairvaluerelateddisclosuresaregivenintherelevant notes.

-Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy
(note 34)

- Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised
cost)(note 7,11,15and 18)

(h) Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract
is, orcontains, alease. Thatis, if the contract conveys theright
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

Aleaseisacontract that containsright to controlthe use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

Groupasalessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases. The
Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and
right-of-use assets representing the right to use the
underlyingassets.

The Group has lease contracts for various items of land, office
premises, warehousesandvehicles.

i)Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the
commencement date of the lease(i.e., the date the underlying
assetisavailable for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at
cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, and adjusted for any re-measurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount
of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costsincurred, and
lease payments made at or before the commencement date
less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the
lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets, as
follows:

Nature of Right-of-use assets | Depreciation period

Office premises 3-5years
Warehouses 3-5years
Land 60-198 years

There are renewal terms that can extend the lease term for up
to 2 years and are included in the lease term when it is
reasonably certain that the Group will exercise the option. The
right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to
the accounting policies in section (j) Impairment of non-
financial assets.
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The Right-of-use assets are presented as separate line itemin
the balance sheet.

ii) Leaseliabilities

Atthe commencementdate of the lease, the Grouprecognises
lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease
paymentsto be made over the lease term. The lease payments
include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments)less any lease incentives. The lease payments also
include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of
penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects
the Group exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as expense in the period in which the event or
conditionthat triggersthe paymentoccurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group
uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the
accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease
term,achangeinthelease payments.

The lease liabilities are presented as separate line itemin the
balance sheetunderfinancialliabilities.

iii) Short-termleases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of office premises,
warehouses and vehicles (i.e., those leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and
donot containapurchase option).

Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as
expense onastraight-line basisoverthelease term.

Groupasalessor

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is
accounted foronastraight-line basis over the lease terms and
is included in other income in the statement of profit or loss
due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the
leasetermonthe samebasisasrentalincome.

(i) Inventories

The items of inventories are measured at cost after providing
for obsolescence, if any. Cost of inventories comprise of cost
of purchase, cost of conversion and appropriate portion of
variable and fixed proportion overheads and such other costs
incurred in bringing them to their respective present location
and condition. Fixed production overheads are based on
normal capacity of production facilities.

Stores and spares, packing materials and raw materials are
valued at lower of cost or net realisable value. However, the
aforesaid items are not valued below cost if the finished
productsin which they are to be incorporated are expected to
be soldatorabove cost.

Semi-finished products, finished products and by-products
arevaluedatlower of costornetrealisable value.

Traded goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable
value.

Cost of raw material, process chemicals, stores and spares
packing materials, trading and other products are determined
onweightedaverage basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

(j) Impairmentof non-financial assets

The Group assesses at eachreporting date whether thereisan
indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication
exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is
required, the Group estimates the asset'srecoverable amount.
An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or
cash-generating unit's (CGU) net selling price and its value in
use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual
asset, unlessthe asset doesnotgenerate cashinflows thatare
largely independent of those from other assets. Where the
carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down
to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent
market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no
such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation
modelisused.

After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised
carryingamount of the asset overitsremainingusefullife.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether
there is any indication that previously recognized impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such
indication exists, the Group estimates the asset's or cash-
generatingunit'srecoverableamount. Apreviously recognized
impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in
the assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable
amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. The
reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset
does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the
asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a
revaluationincrease.

(k) Provisions, contingentliabilities and contingentassets

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation(legal or constructive)asaresult of apast event, itis
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The
expense relating to a provision is presented in the Statement
of Profitand Loss net of anyreimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions
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arediscountedusingacurrent pre-taxrate thatreflects, when
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of timeisrecognisedasafinance cost. Provisionsare
reviewed at each balance sheet and adjusted to reflect the
currentbest estimates.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events whose existence will be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events beyond the control of the Group or a present
obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare
cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized
because it cannot be measured reliably. The Group does not
recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in
thefinancial statements.

Contingent Assets

A contingent asset is not recognised unless it becomes
virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise.
When an inflow of economic benefits is probable, contingent
assetsaredisclosedinthefinancial statements.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at
eachbalance sheetdate.

() Retirementand other employee benefits

Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance is a defined
contribution scheme established under a State Plan. The
contributions to the scheme are charged to the Statement of
Profit and Loss in the year when employee rendered related
services.

The Group has adefined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee
who has completed five years or more of service gets a
gratuity on post-employment at 15 days salary (last drawn
salary) for each completed year of service as per the rules of
the Group. The aforesaid liability is provided for on the basis of
anactuarial valuation on projected unit credit method made at
the end of the financial year. The scheme is funded with an
insurance company in the form of a qualifying insurance
policy.

The Group has other long-term employee benefits in the
nature of leave encashment. The liability in respect of leave
encashment is provided for on the basis of an actuarial
valuation on projected unit credit method made at the end of
the financial year. The aforesaid leave encashment is
unfunded.

Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses,
the effect of asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in the
net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return
on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on
the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in
OCl in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are
notreclassifiedtoprofitorlossinsubsequent periods.

(m) Financialinstruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a
financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.
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Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in
the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisitionof the financial asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets
areclassifiedinfourcategories:

a) Debtinstrumentsatamortisedcost

b) Debt instruments at fair value through other
comprehensiveincome(FVTOCI)

c) Debt instruments, derivatives and equity
instruments at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL)

d) Equity instruments measured at fair value through
othercomprehensiveincome(FVTOCI)

Debtinstruments atamortised cost

A'debt instrument'is measured at the amortised cost if both
thefollowing conditionsare met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual
cashflows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount
outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included in other income in the Statement of
Profit and Loss. The losses arising from impairment are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. This category
generally applies to trade receivables, security deposits &
otherreceivables.

DebtinstrumentatFVTOCI

A'debt instrument'is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the
following criteriaare met:

a) Theobjective of the business modelis achieved both
by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the
financialassets, and

b) Theasset'scontractualcashflowsrepresent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are
measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair
value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other
comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Group recognizes
interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign
exchange gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss. On
derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCl is reclassified from the equity to Statement
of Profit and Loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt
instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR
method.
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DebtinstrumentatFVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt
instrument, which does not meet the criteria for
categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified
asatFVTPL.

In addition, the Group may elect to designate a debt
instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI
criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if
doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition
inconsistency (referred to as 'accounting mismatch’). The
Group hasdesignated certaindebtinstrumentasat FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are
measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the
Statement of Profitand Loss.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at
fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading are
classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the
Group may make an irrevocable election to present in other
comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value.
The Group makes such election on an instrument-by-
instrument basis. The classification is made on initial
recognitionandisirrevocable.

If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument as at
FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument,
excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no
recycling of the amounts from OCI to profit and loss, even on
sale of investment. However, the Group may transfer the
cumulative gainorloss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are
measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the
Statement of Profitand Loss.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets)is primarily
derecognised (i.e. removed from the Group's consolidated
balance sheet)when:

a) Therightstoreceive cash flows from the asset have
expired, or

b) The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a 'pass-through’
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
theasset, or(b)the Group has neithertransferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, buthastransferred control of the asset.

Whenthe Group hastransferreditsrightstoreceive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained
the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and
rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the
extent of the Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the
Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred

asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflectstherightsandobligationsthatthe Group hasretained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required to
repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies expected
credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of
impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit
riskexposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are
measured at amortised cost e.qg., loans, debt
securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank
balance

b) Financial assets that are debt instruments and are
measuredasat FVTOCI

c) Tradereceivablesorany contractual right to receive
cash or another financial asset that result from
transactionsthatare withinthe scope of Ind AS115

The Group follows 'simplified approach’' for recognition of
impairmentlossallowance on Tradeand otherreceivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the
Group to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reportingdate, right fromitsinitial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets
and risk exposure, the Group determines that whether there
has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-
month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if
credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If,
in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument
improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to
recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month
ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL
which results from default events that are possible within 12
monthsafterthereportingdate.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that
are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash
shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating
the cashflows, anentityisrequiredto consider:

a) All contractual terms of the financial instrument
(including prepayment, extension, call and similar
options) over the expected life of the financial
instrument. However, in rare cases when the
expected life of the financial instrument cannot be
estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use
the remaining contractual term of the financial
instrument.
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b) Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other
credit enhancements that are integral to the
contractualterms.

c) Financial assets measured as at amortised cost,
contractual revenue receivables and lease
receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e.,
as an integral part of the measurement of those
assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces
the net carryingamount. Untilthe asset meets write-
off criteria, the Group does not reduce impairment
allowance fromthe gross carryingamount.

As a practical expedient, the Group uses a provision matrix to
determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its trade
receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically
observed default rates over the expected life of the trade
receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At
every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed. On that basis, the Group estimates the following
provision matrixat thereporting date:

0-90 | 90-180

180-360 | 360-720
days days

More than

Not due 720 days

0.10% 0.20% 0.50% 5.00% 50.00% 100.00%

ECL impairmentloss allowance(or reversal)recognized during
the periodisrecognized asincome/ expense in the Statement
of Profit and Loss. This amount is reflected under the head
‘otherexpenses'inthe Statement of Profitand Loss.

(n) Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit orloss, loansand
borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instrumentsinaneffective hedge, asappropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directlyattributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, loans and borrowings including cash credits and
derivative financialinstruments.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification, asdescribed below:

Loansand borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in
Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are
derecognisedaswellasthroughthe EIRamortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
anintegral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisationisincluded as
finance costsinthe Statementof Profitand Loss.
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This category generally applies to borrowings. For more
information, refer note 15and 18

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit orloss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for
trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasingin
the near term. This category also includes derivative financial
instruments entered into by the Group that are not designated
as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by
Ind AS108.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in
the Statement of Profitand Loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an
existing financial liability isreplaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
Statement of Profitand Loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the
assetsandsettle theliabilities simultaneously.

(o) Derivative financialinstruments
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as
interest rate swaps, currency swaps, options and forward
contractsto hedgeitsinterest rate and foreign currency risks.
Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised
at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value.
Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value
is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is
negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
derivativesare takendirectly to Statement of Profitand Loss.

(p) Cashand cashequivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash
at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
insignificantrisk of changesinvalue.

Forthe purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as
defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are
consideredanintegral part of the Group's cash management.

(q) Dividend

The Group recognises a liability to make cash distributions to
equity holders when the distribution is authorised and the
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distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Group. As per
the corporate laws in India, a distribution is authorised when it
is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is
recogniseddirectlyinequity.

(r) Taxes
Currentincome tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the
amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted,
at the reporting date in the countries where the Group
operatesand generatestaxableincome.

Currentincome taxrelatingtoitemsrecognised outside profit
or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are
recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either
in OCl or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situationsin
which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation
andestablishesprovisionswhere appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on
temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposesatthereporting date.

Deferredtaxliabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

a) When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profitnortaxable profitorloss

b) In respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with interestsin joint ventures, when the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeablefuture

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused taxlossescanbe utilised except:

- When the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accountingprofitnor taxable profitorloss

The carryingamount of deferred taxassetsisreviewedat each
reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
allorpart of the deferred taxasset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date
and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable
that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to
berecovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside Statement
of Profit and Loss is recognised outside Statement of Profit
and Loss(in other comprehensive income). Deferred taxitems
are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction
eitherinStatement of Profitand Loss orin OCI.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to
the same taxable entity and the same taxationauthority.

(s) Governmentgrants

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and all attached
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an
expenseitem,itisrecognisedasincome onasystematic basis
over the periods that the related costs, for whichiitisintended
to compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates to an
asset, it is recognised as income in equal amounts over the
expectedusefullife of therelated assets.

(t) Earningspershare

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net
profit orloss for the period attributable to equity shareholders
after deducting preference dividend and attributable taxes by
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the
net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares
outstandingduringthe period are adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential equity shares.

(u) Segmentreporting

Based on "Management Approach” as defined in Ind AS 108 -
Operating Segments, the Chief Operating Decision Maker
(CODM) evaluates the Group's performance and allocates the
resources based on an analysis of various performance
indicators by business segments. Inter segment sales and
transfers are reflected at market prices. The Group has
identified the Managing Director as the CODM who assesses
the financial performance and makes strategic decisions.
Refer note 38 for segmentinformation presented.
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Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

3 Property, plant and equipment and capital work-in-progress
Property, plant and equipment

GROSS CARRYING AMOUNT ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION NET CARRYING AMOUNT

Balance as
at April 01,

Description of
Assets

2020

Addition

Sale /

Adjustment

Balance
asat
March 31,
2021

Balance
asat
April 01,
2020
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Balance
asat
March 31,
2021

Depreciation for the year

Depreciation Disposal /
Adjustments

As at March
31,2021

ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21

(% in'Lacs', unless mentioned otherwise)

As at
March 31,
2020

Freehold land 88.51 = = 88.51 = = = = 88.51 88.51
Buildings 8,321.29 250.89 9.42 8,562.76 943.06 291.70 153 1,233.23 7,329.53 7,378.23
Plant and machinery 15,856.48  1,519.54 18.69 = 17,357.33  4,613.95 1,416.72 13.55 6,017.12 1,340.21  11,242.53
Roads 1,330.39 = = 1,330.39 614.87 163.72 = 768.59 561.80 715.52
Office equipments 125.56 15.98 1.91 139.63 72.12 19.15 1.62 89.65 49.98 53.44
Furniture & fixtures 230.87 20.77 0.03 251.61 84.73 24.28 = 109.01 142.60 146.14
Electrical fittings 355.60 60.28 = £415.88 178.03 49.60 = 227.63 188.25 177.57
Computers 215.49 19.89 0.13 235.256 117.65 31.17 0.13 148.69 86.56 97.84
Vehicles 1,375.79 331.67 213.562 1,493.94 382.44 167.38 121.96 427.86 1,066.08 993.35
Total 27,899.98  2,219.02 243.70 29,875.30 7,006.85 2,153.72 138.79  9,021.78 20,853.52 20,893.13

Description of Assets

GROSS CARRYING AMOUNT

Balance
as at April
01, 2019

Addition

Sale /

Adjustme

nt

Reclassifi

cation*

Balance as

at March
31,2020

Balance
asat
April 01,
2019

UMULATED DEPRECIATION

Depreciation for the year

Balance
asat
March 31,

Deprecia
2020

tion

Disposal /
Adjustments
Reclassification*

NET CARRYING AMOUNT

As at
March 31,
2020

As at March
31,2019

Freehold land 88.51 = = 88.51 = = o = 88.51 88.51
Finance lease assets 2,116.12 - 2,116.12 - 13.72 - 13.72 - - 2,102.40
-Land

Buildings 7,543.69  777.60 = 8,321.29 677.10 265.96 o 943.06  7,378.23 6,866.59
Plant and machinery  15,606.35  261.22 11.09 | 15,856.48 3,222.96 1,394.43 3.44  4,613.95 1124253  12,383.39
Roads 1,330.39 = = 1,330.39 461.15 153.72 o 614.87 715.52 869.24
Office equipments 122.1 4.39 0.94 125.56 51.90 21.00 0.78 7212 53.44 70.21
Furniture & fixtures 216.26 14.61 = 230.87 61.63 23.10 o 84.73 146.14 154.63
Electrical fittings 355.562 0.08 - 355.60 129.12 48.91 - 178.03 177.57 226.40
Computers 202.58 13.46 0.55 215.49 84.69 33.42 0.46 117.65 97.84 117.89
Vehicles 1140.23  405.90 170.34 1,375.79 304.46 159.91 81.93 382.44 993.35 835.77
Total 28,721.76 1,477.26 2,299.04 27,899.98 5,006.73 2,100.45 100.33 7,006.85 20,893.13  23,715.03

*Reclassification represents net carrying amount of Finance lease assets as on April 1, 2019 reclassified to Right of Use Assets on transition to Ind AS 116

Capital Work In Progress

Cost Amount
As at April 1, 2019 1,271.42
Additions 2,018.01

Capitalised during the year

As at March 31, 2020 3,288.41
As at April 1, 2020 3,288.41

(1.02)

Additions 3,471.86
Capital Goods in Transit 83.02
Capitalised during the year (1,662.07)

As at March 31, 2021 5,187.22

a) Contractual obligations - Refer to note 41 for disclosure of contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment.
b) Capital work-in-progress - Capital work-in-progress majorly comprises expenditure in the course of construction at Dahej and Chopanki Technical Plant.
c) Assets charged against borrowings - Refer note 44 for property, plant and equipment pledged as security against current and non-current borrowings.
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Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

4 Right-of-Use Assets
Property, plant and equipment

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the period:

GROSS CARRYING AMOUNT ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION NET CARRYING AMOUNT

Description of

Assets
Balance asat| Additions/ Disposal / Balance as | Balance as | Depreciation | Disposal /
at April 01, expense |Derecognize| at March 31,
during the d during the
year year
Land 2,207.97 33.92 = 2,241.89 14.67 15.50 -
Office 14.01 .47 1.00 124.48 47.43 48.75 0.51
Premises
Warehouses 396.19 245.47 12.29 629.37 141.34 147.08 3.08
Total 2,718.17 290.86 13.29 2,995.74 203.44 211.33 3.59

Description of

Assets
Balanceas | Additions/ Disposal / Balance as | Balance as | Depreciation| Disposal /
at April 01, | Modifications | Derecognition | at March 31, | at April 01, expense |Derecognized |at March 31,
2019 during the year| during the 2019 during the
year year
Land 2,102.40 105.57 = 2,207.97 14.67 -
Office 240.93 - 126.92 114.01 68.63 21.20
Premises
Warehouses 439.22 45.16 88.19 396.19 145.73 4.39
Total 2,782.55 150.73 215.1 2,718.17 229.03 25.59

5 Intangible assets and intangible assets under development
Intangible assets

Balance as |As at March 31,

(% in'Lacs', unless mentioned otherwise)

As at March
31,2020

30.17 2,211.72 2,183.30
95.67 28.81 66.58
285.34 344.03 254.85
41.18 2,584.56 2,514.73

GROSS CARRYING AMOUNT ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION NET CARRYING AMOUNT

Balance as | As at March 31,

As at March
31,2019

14.67 2,193.30 2,102.40
47.43 66.58 240.93
141.34 254.85 439.22
203.44 2,514.73 2,782.55

GROSS CARRYING AMOUNT ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION NET CARRYING AMOUNT

Description

of Assets Balance Addition Sale / Balance Balanc

as at April Adjustment asat easat

01,2020 March 31, | April 01,

2021 2020

Software 186.19 1.75 = 187.94 98.08

Website 1.65 1.00 = 2.65 1.25

Patents, 568.96 39.30 = 608.26 155.56
trademarks
and designs

Total 756.80 42.05 - 798.85 254.89

Amortisation for the year

Amortisation | Disposal /
adjustment

30.99 =

0.50 =

70.64 =

102.13 -

Balance | Asat March As at
as at 31,2021 March 31,

March 2020

31,2021

129.07 58.87 88.11
1.75 0.90 0.40
226.20 382.06 413.40
357.02 441.83 501.91

GROSS CARRYING AMOUNT ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION NET CARRYING AMOUNT

D:fs f\:::t:n Balance Addition Sale / Balance Balanc

as at April Adjustment asat easat

01, 2019 March 31, | April 01,

2020 2019

Software 152.09 34.10 - 186.19 70.28

Website 1.65 = = 1.65 0.42

Patents, 328.38 240.58 - 568.96 106.47
trademarks
and designs

Total 482.12 274.68 - 756.80 17717

Amortisation for the year

Amortisation | Disposal /
adjustment

27.80 -

0.83 =

49.09 -

77.72 -

Balance | Asat March As at
asat 31,2020 March 31,
March 2019
31,2020
98.08 88.11 81.81
1.25 0.40 1.23
155.56 413.40 221.91
254.89 501.91 304.95
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Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 (Zin'Lacs, unless mentioned otherwise)

Intangible assets under development*

Cost Amount
Additions 253.36
Capitalised during the year (274.58)

As at March 31, 2020 607.49
As at April 1, 2020 607.49

Additions 11110
Capitalised during the year (41.05)

As at March 31, 2021 677.54

*Intangible assets under development mainly comprises software under development and patents for which registration is awaited.

6 Investment in joint venture

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Investment in unquoted equity shares - Fully paid-up - At cost

795,000 {(March 31, 2020: 795,000) Equity Shares of OAT & IIL India Lab.(P) Ltd. at INR 100 each} 992.75 944.48
Total 992.75 944.48
*Refer note 37

7 Financial assets - non-current

7(a) Investments

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Investments stated at Fair Value through OCI

Investments in equity instruments - Quoted (fully paid) - Listed at Tokyo Stock Exchange

36,400 {(March 31, 2020: 36,400) equity shares of OAT Agrio Co. Ltd. (Co-venturer of Joint venture 362.00 244.97
company)}

Total 362.00 244.97
Aggregate book value of quoted investments 362.00 244.97
Aggregate market value of quoted investments 362.00 244.97

7(b) Other financial assets

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Measured at amortised cost (Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)

Deposit accounts having maturity of more than twelve months 33.77 31.95
Security deposits 246.68 128.87
Total 280.45 160.82

8 Non-current tax assets (net)

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Advance income tax 1,072.08 1,396.89
[Net of provision for tax INR 3,153.29 (March 31, 2020: INR 2,258.65)]
Total 1,072.08 1,396.89

9 Other non-current assets

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
Capital advances 1,151.69 682.22

Advances other than Capital Advances

Balances with government authorities 367.90 346.42
Prepaid expenses 14.72 27.47
Total 1,534.31 1,056.11
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10 Inventories

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

At the lower of cost and net realisable value

Raw Material {INR 463.03 (March 31, 2020: INR 481.14) in transit} 27,360.29 17,033.79
Packing material {INR 20.39 (March 31, 2020: INR 20.54)in transit} 1,845.54 1,5621.91
Work-in-progress 7,803.01 7.110.33
Stock-in-trade (Traded Goods){INR 20.81(March 31, 2020: NIL) in transit} 1,132.16 890.91
Finished goods (Manufactured){(INR 262.96 (March 31, 2020: INR 1,608.90) in transit} 27,809.01 25,216.93
Stores, Scrap material, Spares Parts & Fuel {INR 3.44 (March 31, 2020: INR 0.73) in transit} 137.24 152.61
Total 66,087.25 51,926.48

1 Financial assets - current

11(a) Trade Receivables

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Trade receivables

- to related parties (refer note 39) 207.41 71.72

- to others 26,352.67 32,659.39
Less: Impairment of Trade Receivables (1,101.37) (752.38)
Total (refer note 47) 25,458.71 31,978.73
Breakup of Trade Receivables
Unsecured, considered good 25,458.71 31,978.73
Credit Impaired 1.101.37 752.38
Subtotal 26,560.08 32,731.11
Impairment of Trade Receivables (refer note 35) (1,101.37) (752.38)
Total 25,458.71 31,978.73

- No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Group either severally or -
jointly with any other person. -

- Trade or Other receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any 6.92 18.12
director is a partner, a director or a member.

- Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 90 to 180 days.
- For explanations on the Group’s credit risk management processes, refer note 35.

11(b) Cash and cash equivalents

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Balances with banks

On current accounts 640.03 4,243.04
Cash on hand 6.33 9.03
Deposit accounts with original maturity upto three months = 2,521.06
Total 646.36 6,773.13

1(c) Other bank balances

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

In earmarked accounts
Unpaid dividend 525 4.57

Balances with banks

On current accounts * 1,500.00 =
On deposit accounts with original maturity upto three months * 6,009.65 =
On deposit accounts with remaining maturity between three and twelve months ** 168.04 638.40

Total 7.682.94 642.97

* Other bank balance as at March 31, 2021 includes restricted bank balances of INR 1,500 lacs in escrow account and INR 6,000 lacs in deposits
respectively. The restrictions are primarily on account of bank balances held as and by way of security for performance of buy back obligations.

**The fixed deposits made with banks had been given as margin money against Bank Guarantee/ Letter of credit.

©
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1(d) Loans

Interest rate As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Unsecured, considered good

Loans to employees - 5.08 7.82
Inter Corporate Loans (refer note 49) - - 265.00
Total 5.08 272.82
Loans due from directors or other officers of the Group at the end of the period. Nil Nil

11(e) Other financial assets

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Measured at fair value through profit and loss

Derivative assets 9.42 18.76

Measured at amortised cost (unsecured, considered good)
Dividend receivable 8.15 8.61
Insurance claim recoverable 81.96 80.95
Interst accrued on inter corporate loans = 65.05
Litigation charges recoverable 19.60 19.60
Export incentive recoverable 114.55 126.02
Interest subsidy recoverable 201.35 285.25

Total 435.03 604.24

12 Other current assets

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)

Advances to suppliers

-to related parties (refer note 39) - 630.78

-to others 1,221.46 756.13
Advances to employees 91.98 20.31
Balances with government authorities 6,607.65 4,093.62
Prepaid expenses 371.97 133.95
Total 8,293.06 5,634.79
Advance due from Directors or other officers at the end of the year/ period Nil Nil
Advance due by Firms or Private Companies in which any Director of the Group is a Director or = 4.97
member

13 Equity share capital

Authorised share capital Number of shares INR
As at April 1, 2020 25,000,000 2,500.00
Increase/(decrease) during the year = =
At March 31, 2021 25,000,000 2,500.00
Issued equity share capital Number of shares INR

Equity shares of INR 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid.

As at April 1, 2020 20,667,796 2,066.78
Increase/(decrease) during the year = =
At March 31, 2021 20,667,796 2,066.78

(a) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares :

The Group has only one class of equity shares having face value of INR 10/- per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. In the
event of liquidation of the Group, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Group after distribution of all
preferential amount, in proportion to their shareholding.

The Group has declared INR 2/- per share as Interim Dividend and paid the same on November 09, 2020. No final dividend has been recommended on
equity shares for the financial year ended 2020-21.

®
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(b) The details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares : As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Name of the Shareholder Number of Shares % Held Number of Shares % Held

Nikunj Aggarwal 3,125,000 15.12 1,125,000 5.44
Sanskar Aggarwal 2,901,800 14.04 901,800 4.36
Pushpa Aggarwal 2,151,900 10.41 2,151,900 10.41
Rajesh Aggarwal (HUF) 1,953,000 9.45 1,953,000 9.45
Hari Chand Aggarwal (HUF) 1,494,000 7.23 1,494,000 7.23
Rajesh Aggarwal 1,322,120 6.40 5,321,916 25.75

(c) Aggregate number of equity shares issued as bonus during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date :
The Group hasalloted 63,41,483 number of Equity Shares as Bonus Shares on April 25, 2015in the ratio of 2:Tand the same got listed on May 8, 2015.

(d) ProposedBuyback :Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on March 30, 2021, have approved Buyback of fully paid-up equity shares
of face value of INR 10/- each of the Company at a price not exceeding INR 575/- per Equity Share (Maximum Buyback Price”) and for an amount not
exceeding INR 6,000 Lacs("Maximum Buyback Size")from the open market through Stock Exchange mechanismin such manner as may be prescribedin
the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunderand the Securities and Exchange Board of India(Buy Back of Securities)Regulations, 2018.

14 Other equity

a) Reserves and surplus

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Retained earnings 66,321.87 57,546.99
Securities premium 10,410.18 10,410.18
General reserve 3,201.52 3,201.52

Total reserves and surplus 79,933.57 71,158.69

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

(i) Retained earnings

Opening balance 57,546.99 50,464.78
Profit for the year 9,390.30 8,691.31
Items of other comprehensive income recognised directly in retained earnings
Remeasurements of net defined benefit plans, net of tax (202.06) (14.13)
Final dividend paid during the year - (413.35)
Tax on Final dividend paid - (84.99)
Interim dividend paid during the year (413.36) (826.70)
Tax on Interim dividend paid - (169.93)
Closing balance 66,321.87 57,546.99
(ii) Securities premium
Opening balance 10,410.18 10,410.18
Additions during the year = =
Closing balance 10,410.18 10,410.18
(iii) General reserve
Opening balance 3,201.52 3,201.52
Add: Appropriations = =
Closing balance 3,201.52 3,201.52
Total reserves and surplus 79,933.57 71,158.69
b) Other reserves
-
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
FVTOCI reserve - equity instruments 37.16 (52.61)
Total other reserves 37.16 (52.61)

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

i) FVTOCI reserve - equity instruments

Opening balance (52.61) 57.1
Change in fair value of FVTOCI equity instruments 89.77 (109.72)
Closing balance 37.16 (52.61)
The disaggregation of changes in OCI by each type of reserves in equity is disclosed in Note 31.

Total other equity 79,970.73 71,106.08
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Nature and purpose of reserves
a) Retained earnings - Retained earnings is used to represent the accumulated net earnings of the Group after accounting for dividends or other
distributionstotheinvestorsof the Group as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

b) Securities premium - Where the Group issues shares at a premium, whether for cash or otherwise, a sum equal to the aggregate amount of the
premium received on those shares shall be transferred to “Securities Premium”. The Group may use this reserve for issuing fully paid-up bonus shares,
buy-back of sharesand for expensesinrelationtoissue of shares.

c) Generalreserve - General Reserve is created out of the profits earned by the Group by way of transfer from surplus in the statement of profitand loss.
The Group canusethisreserve for payment of dividend, issue of bonus shares and fully / partly paid-up equity shares. Noamount has been transferred to
generalreserveduring the yearsended March 31,2021& March 31,2020.

d) FVTOCI reserve-equity instruments - The Group has elected to recognise changes in the fair value of certain investments in equity securities in
other comprehensive income. These changes are accumulated within the FVTOCI equity investments reserve within equity. The Group transfers
amountsfromthisreserve withinequity whentherelevant equity securitiesare derecognised.

15 Financial liabilities - Non Current

15(a) Borrowings

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Secured

Indian Rupee loan from banks

Vehicle loans 466.53 394.25
Total 466.53 394.25
Less: Current maturities of long-term debt (included in note 18(c)) 226.90 203.72
Non-current borrowings (as per balance sheet) 239.63 190.53

Nature of Security and terms of repayment for secured borrowing :
Vehicle loans

Term Loans from banks for vehicles have been secured by hypothecation of vehicles. Further, vehicles loans have been guaranteed by the personal
guarantee of the directors- Mr. Hari Chand Aggarwal and Mr. Rajesh Aggarwal. These loans are repayable in 36 monthly installments from the date of the
loansalongwithinterestrates ranging between 7.85% t09.50% perannum.

The carrying amounts of financial and non-financial assets pledged as security for current and non-current borrowings are disclosed in note 44.

15(b) Lease liabilities

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Current 163.42 192.72
Non-current 253.35 176.31
Total 416.77 369.03
Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the
period:
e e e
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Balance at April 1 369.03 680.15
Accretion of interest 42.54 54.31
Addition in lease liability 256.94 38.92
Repayment of lease liability (241.23) (215.49)
Derecognition of lease liability (10.51) (188.86)
Balance at March 31 416.77 369.03

The maturity analysis of the lease liability is included in the refer note 35.
The effective interest rate for lease liabilities is 11%, with maturity between 2021-2025.

16 Long term provisions

As at As at
March 31,2021 | March 31, 2020

Employee benefit provisions

Provision for gratuity 133.24 4.48
Provision for leave encashment 143.55 99.40
Total 276.79 103.88

Refer note 20 for disclosure of employee benefits.



inseCi ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21

(INDIA) LIMITED

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 (zin'Lacs' unless mentioned otherwise)

17 Deferred tax liabilities (Net)

Charge/ (credit) Charge / (credit)

MAT credit As at

to Statement of to other compre- utilised March 31, 2021

Profitand Loss hensive income

Deferred tax liabilities

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (2,298.70) (542.41) - - (1,756.29)
Derivatives (6.55) (4.18) - - (2.37)
Right-of-use asset (112.32) (18.48) - - (93.84)
Investments = - 1.29 = (1.29)
Total deferred tax liabilities (2,417.57) (565.07) 1.29 - (1,863.79)
Deferred tax assets

Investments 15.97 = 15.97 = =
Impairment of Trade Receivables 262.91 (14.28) = = 277.19
Derivatives 25511 14.95 = = 10.42
Lease liabilities 119.05 17.41 = = 101.64
Employee benefit provisions 126.49 56.02 (68.38) = 138.85
Total deferred tax assets 549.79 74.10 (52.41) - 528.10
Net deferred tax liabilities (1,867.78) (490.97) (41.12) = (1,335.69)

Charge/ (credit) Charge / (credit)
to Statement of to other compre-
Profitand Loss hensive income

MAT credit As at
utilised March 31, 2020

As at

April1, 2019

Deferred tax liabilities

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (2,208.96) 89.74 - - (2,298.70)
Derivatives (1.43) 5.12 - - (6.55)
Right-of-use asset - 12.32 - - (12.32)
Total deferred tax liabilities (2,210.39) 207.18 = = (2,417.57)
Deferred tax assets

MAT credit 21112 - - 21112 -
Investments (17.35) = (33.32) = 15.97
Impairment of Trade Receivables 184.06 (78.85) - - 262.91
Derivatives 42.75 17.38 = = 25.37
Borrowings 2.94 2.94 = = =
Lease liabilities - (119.05) - - 119.05
Employee benefit provisions = (126.49) = = 126.49
Total deferred tax assets 423.52 (304.07) (33.32) 211.12 549.79
Net deferred tax liabilities (1,786.87) (96.89) (33.32) 211.12 (1,867.78)

The Group offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

18 Financial Liabilities - Current
18(a) Borrowings

. As at As at
m Maturlty date IntereSt rate - MarCh 3]' 2021 MarCh 3]' 2020

Secured
Working Capital facilities from Banks
Loans repayable on demand

Working capital demand loans Apr 21- May 21 4.75% - 4.90% 6,641.38 15,272.06
Cash credit from banks On demand 10.95% 2,483.47 2,852.88
Buyers Credit Loans (USD) = = = 108.98
Cheques sent for collection Apr-21 - 36.00 114.30
Total 9,160.85 18,348.22

Working Capital Loans (Loans repayable on demand, Cash Credit & Buyers Credits) from banks are secured by first pari passu charge over present and
future stock & book debts and moveable property, plant and equipment of the Group . These loans are additionally secured by equitable mortgage on
paripassu basis over Lands & Buildings of the Group and negative lien on Group's office at Azad Pur(Delhi). Further, these loans have been guaranteed by
the personalguarantee of the directors-Mr.HariChand Aggarwaland Mr. Rajesh Aggarwal.

The carrying amounts of financial and non-financial assets pledged as security for current and non-current borrowings are disclosed in note 44.

18(b) Trade payables

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Trade payables

- to related parties (refer note 39) 360.10 172.36
-to others 35,843.39 24,483.42
Total 36,203.49 24,655.78
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S e e
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
(A) total outstanding due of micro, small & medium enterprises; and 2,567.17 1.178.57
(B) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises, small & medium enterprises 33,636.32 23,477.21
Total 36,203.49 24,655.78

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are settled on agreed terms.
Refer note 45 for disclosure pertaining to Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2008.

18(c) Other financial liabilities

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Current maturities of long-term borrowings (refer note 15(a)) 226.90 203.72
Security deposits received from customers 714.67 725.41
Creditors for capital expenditure 370.36 466.85
Interest accrued on borrowings 9.25 19.67
Employee payables

- to related parties (refer note 39) 17.75 18.44
- to others 1,242.02 1,299.92
Unpaid dividend account 5.25 4.57
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss

Derivative liabilities 41.38 72.58
Total 2,627.58 2,91.16

19 Other current Liabilities

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Advances from customers (refer note 47) 9,169.88 7.174.31
Statutory dues 851.58 390.44
Total 10,021.46 7,564.75

20 Short term provisions

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Employee benefit provisions

Provision for gratuity 255.73 253.37
Provision for leave encashment 19.19 4.74
Total 274.92 258.11

(a) Defined contribution plan

During the year, the Group has recognised the following amounts in the Statement of Profit and Year ended Year ended
Loss: (note 25) March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Employer's Contribution to Employee’s Provident Fund (including admin charges) 367.92 364.60
Employer's Contribution to Employee’s State Insurance 20.04 28.03
Total 387.96 392.63
(b) Defined benefit plan

(i) Gratuity

The Group has a defined benefit for gratuity. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days
salary(lastdrawn salary)for each completed year of service. The Group provides for the liability inits books of accounts based on the actuarial valuation
byapplying the Projected Unit Credit Method. The schemeis funded withaninsurance Groupin the form of aqualifyinginsurance policy.

The following tables summarize the components of net benefit expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss and the funded status and
amounts recognized in the balance sheet for the respective plans.

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity benefit obligations for the Group’s As at As at
plan are shown below: March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Rate of Discounting 6.57% 6.82%
Rate of Salary Increase 8.00% 5.00%
Rate of Employee Turnover For Service 2 years and below- 2.00%

27%, For Service 3 years to 4
years - 15%, For Service 5
yearsandabove-8%

Mortality Rate During Employment IALM (2006-08) IALM (2006-08)
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As at As at

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:
Opening defined benefit obligation 871.02 627.90
Interest cost 59.40 48.91
Current service cost 99.68 72.49
Past service cost - -
Benefits paid (32.08) (22.71)

Actuarial (gain)/ loss

Due to change in Demographic assumptions 42.60 -
Due to change in financial assumptions 220.93 74.27
Due to change in experience (12.60) 70.16
Closing defined benefit obligation 1,248.95 871.02
As at As at
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the Beginning of the Period 613.17 496.97
Interest Income 41.82 38.7
Contributions by the Employer 257.85 126.00
Benefits paid (32.08) (22.71)
Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income (20.78) (25.80)
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the End of the Period 859.98 613.17

Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets and defined benefit obligation:
Present value of defined benefit obligation (1,248.95) (871.02)
Fair value of plan assets 859.98 613.17
Plan asset / (liability) (388.97) (257.85)
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Net interest cost 17.58 10.20
Current service cost 99.68 72.49
Past service cost = =
Net expense * 117.26 82.69

*Includes INR 12.43 (March 31, 2020 - INR 8.50) transfer to Research & Development Expenditure

Expenses recognised in other comprehensive income esnctded jleiiendest
- < - March 31,2021 | March 31,2020

Actuarial (gain)/ loss on defined benefit obligation 250.93 144.43
Return on Plan Assets, excluding Interest Income 20.78 25.80
Total expense recognised in statement of other comprehensive income 27N 170.23
Total In % Total In %
Insurance fund 859.98 100% 613.17 100%
Total 859.98 100% 613.17 100%
A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as shown below: Year ended Year ended
Defined benefit obligation (base) 1,248.95 871.02
Change in discount rate
Increase by 1% (77.70) (76.38)
Decrease by 1% 88.82 90.13
Change in rate of salary increase
Increase by 1% 83.92 89.95
Decrease by 1% (76.15) (77.44)
Change in rate of employee turnover
Increase by 1% (9.48) 12.23
Decrease by 1% 10.45 (14.20)
The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Weighted average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation 1years Nyears
Within next 12 months 201.64 114.04
Between Tand 5 years 409.72 187.06
Between 5 and 10 years 512.49 316.53
More than 10 years 1,050.49 1,381.62
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(c) Risk exposure

(% in'Lacs', unless mentioned otherwise)

Interest raterisk: Afallinthe discount rate whichislinked to the Government Security Rate willincrease the present value of the liability requiring higher
provision. Afallinthe discountrate generallyincreases the mark to market value of the assets depending on the duration of asset.

SalaryRisk: The present value of the defined benefit planliability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of members. As such, anincreasein the

salary of the members more thanassumed level willincrease the plan'sliability.

Investment Risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by reference to market
yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. If the return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit. Currently, for the

planinindia, ithasarelatively balanced mix of investmentsin government securities, and other debtinstruments.

Asset Liability Matching Risk: The plan facesthe ALMriskas to the matching cash flow. Since the planisinvestedinlines of Rule 101of Income Tax Rules,

1962, this generallyreduces ALMrisk.

Mortality risk: Since the benefitsunderthe planisnot payable for life time and payable till retirement age only, plandoes not have any longevity risk.

21 Revenue from operations

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Sale of products

Finished goods

Traded goods

Total

Other operating revenue
Revenue from Job Work

Sale of scrap & others
Government Grants *

Total revenue from operations

134,251.07 127.142.77
6,959.97 7.873.30
141,211.04 135,016.07
36.46 60.37
88.49 82.83
686.59 1,162.69
142,022.58 136,321.96

*Includes GST Refund under Budgetery Support Scheme. As per the Scheme eligible units(Samba and Udhampur in Jammu & Kashmir)are entitled to

receiverefund of the Goodsand Services Tax paid by the unit.

a) Disaggregated revenue information

The table below presents disaggregated revenues from contracts with customers by geography. The Group believes that this disaggregation best
depictshow the nature,amount, timingand uncertainty of the revenues and cash flows are affected by industry, market and other economic factors.

Revenues by Geography

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Within India

Outside India

Total

Timing of revenue recognition

134,731.76 128,601.55
6,479.28 6,414.52
141,211.04 135,016.07

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

At a point in time
Sale of finished goods
Sale of traded goods
Total

134,251.07 127142.77
6,959.97 7,873.30
141,211.04 135,016.07

b) Reconciling the amount of revenue recognized in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price:

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Revenue as per contract

Adjustments for variable consideration:
Discounts and rebates

Revenue from contracts with customers

157,844.00 149,831.89
(16,632.96) (14,815.82)
141,211.04 135,016.07

c) Aggregate amount of the Transaction Price allocated to Performance Obligations that are unsatisfied at end of the year:

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Advance from Customers* (refer note 47)
Revenue recognised from amounts included in advance from customers at beginning of the year

9,169.88
7.174.31

7.174.31
6,228.54

Advance from customers relates to payments received in advance of performance under the contract. Advances from customers are recognized as

revenue as (or when) the Group performs under the contract.

*For March 31, 2021, management expects that the entire transaction price allocated to the unsatisfied contracts at end of the year will be

recognised as revenue during the next year.
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22 Otherincome

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Interest income

Fixed deposits with banks 246.18 26.54
Other assets 5.00 115.76
Dividend income from equity investments designated at fair value through other comprehensive 9.62 10.16
income*

Other non-operating income

Miscellaneous income 54.51 39.69
Exchange difference (net) 435.61 =
Net gain on fair value changes

Derivatives at FVTPL 21.86 64.40
Total other income 772.78 256.55

* All dividends from equity investments designated at FVTOCI relate to investments held at the end of the reporting period.

23 Cost of raw material and components consumed

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Raw Material
Inventory at the beginning of the year 17,033.79 18,501.32
Add: Purchases 105,480.29 70,369.53
122,514.08 88,870.85
Less: inventory at the end of the year 27,360.29 17,033.79
Cost of raw material consumed 95,153.79 71,837.06
Packing Material
Inventory at the beginning of the year 1,521.91 1,376.58
Add: Purchases 9,687.66 7,392.15
11,209.57 8,768.73
Less: inventory at the end of the year 1,845.54 1,521.91
Cost of Packing material consumed 9,364.03 7,246.82
Total Cost of raw material and components consumed 104,517.82 79,083.88

24 (Increase)/Decrease in inventories

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Inventories at the end of the year

Finished goods 27,809.01 25,216.93
Semi-finished goods 7,803.01 7.110.33
Traded goods 1.132.16 890.91
36,744.18 33,218.17
Inventories at the beginning of the year
Finished goods 25,216.93 41,237.59
Semi-finished goods 7.110.33 6,742.27
Traded goods 890.91 2,487.46
33,218.17 50,467.32
Total (Increase)/Decrease in inventories (3,526.01) 17,249.15

Details of inventory Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Traded goods

Powder 693.87 168.58
Liquid 215.09 476.78
Granules 223.20 245.55
Total 1,132.16 890.91
Finished goods

Liquid 15,240.89 18,711.02
Powder 4,450.59 2,289.46
Granules 3,499.63 1,467.86
Technicals 4,617.90 2,748.59
Total 27,809.01 25,216.93
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25 Employee benefit expenses

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other funds
Gratuity expense

Staff welfare expenses

Total employee benefit expenses

26 Finance costs

Interest and finance charges on financial liabilities not at fair value through profit or loss
Interest on term loans and ECBs

Interest on CC Limits, buyer's credit and demand loans

Interest on Lease Liabilities

Interest (Others)

Other borrowings costs

Bank charges

Total finance costs

27 Depreciation and amortization expense

20
20
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(% in'Lacs', unless mentioned otherwise)

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

6,792.39 6,831.28
388.03 392.71
104.83 74.19
365.41 176.05

7,650.66 7.474.23

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

30.65 82.89
286.58 1,891.68
42.54 54.31
32.26 27.30
273.08 332.80
665.11 2,388.98

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Depreciation of tangible assets

Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Amortization of intangible assets

Total depreciation and amortization expense

28 Other expenses

z.
5

2,153.72 2,100.45
211.33 229.03
102.13 71.72

2,467.18 2,407.20

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Consumption of stores and spares
Power and fuel Expenses
Transport charges

Repairs and Maintenance

Buildings

Plant & Machinery

Others

Pollution Control Expenses
Advertising and sales promotion
Royalty

Commission

Travelling and conveyance

Rent

Insurance

Communication expenses

Printing and Stationery

Legal and Professional Fees
Director Sitting Fees

Payment to Auditors

Electricity & Water Charges

Rates and taxes

Security Charges

Research & Development Expenses
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets (net)
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses
Provision for impairment of trade receivables
Exchange difference (net)

Bad debts written off
Miscellaneous Expenses

Total other expenses

42

39
28(a)

29

28(b)
35

865.98 764.85
2,175.65 2,278.45
3,290.50 2,618.08
562, 3.96
160.58 59.13
282.85 247.94
145.57 70.15
V52272 577.01
68.09 175.59
652.77 683.24
1,093.79 1,5610.05
34.22 73.98
276.12 118.84
31.70 33.26
21.44 25.88
429.58 429.24
12.50 11.00
39.44 40.51
67.10 55.90
19.38 60.33
m.21 98.7
618.67 892.74
37.94 37.22
309.13 190.10
348.99 225.64
= 493.49

47.06 6.34
680.54 546.43
12,351.54 12,328.06
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28(a) Details of payment to auditors (excluding taxes)

(% in'Lacs', unless mentioned otherwise)

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

As auditor

Statutory Audit Fees

In other capacity
Reimbursement of expenses
Total

28(b) Corporate social responsibility

39.00 39.00
0.44 1.51
39.44 40.51

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a CSR committee has been formed by the Group. The Group's policy covers current as well as
proposed CSRactivitiestobe undertaken by the Group and examining theiralignment with Schedule VIl of the Act.

The Group proposes to implement its CSR activities in various sectors which include promoting Education, greeninitiatives, and facilities for
senior citizens, vocational & entrepreneurship skills, medical aid & healthcare, old age homes & women hostels, art and culture, destitute care

andrehabilitation, rural development projectsand others.

CSR amount required to be spent as per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Schedule VI thereof by the Group

Unspent of Previous Year spent during the Year
Total amount spent for the financial year
Amount unspent

Amount spent during the year on:

(i) Construction/acquisition of an asset

-in cash

-yet to be paid in cash

(ii) On purpose other than (i) above

-incash

- yet to be paid in cash

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
262.47 235.38

45.28 =

(309.13) (190.10)

- 45.28

309.13 190.10

309.13 190.10

Total

The entire amount is spent through the IIL foundation which is a related party (refer note 39), except INR 2 lacs, which was directly spent by

Group for COVID-19 relief.

29 Research & Development Expenditure

Year ended Year ended
March 31,2021 | March 31, 2020

Chopanki :
(i) Revenue Expenditure :
(a) Employee cost
(b) Cost of material & testing charges
(c) Other R&D expenditure
(d) Consultancy charges to OAT & IIL
(ii) Capital Expenditure

Chopanki Total
Shamli :
(i) Revenue Expenditure :
(a) Employee cost
(b) Cost of material & testing charges
(c) Other R&D expenditure
(d) Consultancy charges to OAT & IIL
(i) Capital Expenditure

Shamli Total

Total

134.70 143.88
22.86 16.12
10.76 6.79
335.21 326.56
41.02 24.50
544.55 516.85
95.22 =
1.50 =
2.26 =
10.48 =
109.47 -
654.02 516.85
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30 Income tax expense
Thisnote provides ananalysis of the Group’sincome tax expense, shows how the tax expense isaffected by non-assessable and non-deductible items.

Year ended Year ended
March 31,2021 | March 31, 2020
(a) Income tax expense
Current tax

Current tax on profits for the year 3,155.29 2,732.19
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods (102.19) (193.25)
Total current tax expense 3,051.10 2,538.94
Deferred tax

Decrease (increase) in deferred tax assets (565.07) 207.18
(Decrease)increase in deferred tax liabilities 74.10 (304.07)
Total deferred tax expense/(benefit) (490.97) (96.89)
Income tax expense 2,560.13 2,442.05

(b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by the Indian statutory

Year ended Year ended
March 31,2021 | March 31, 2020

Profit before income tax expense 11,903.43 11,046.11
Tax at the Indian statutory income tax rate of 25.168% (March 31, 2020: 34.944%)* 2,995.86 3,859.95
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating taxable income:

Weighted deduction on research and development expenditure = (41.81)
Deduction on account of tax holiday period - (1,199.00)
Other non-deductible / (taxable) items 25.50 16.16
Effect of difference in tax rates used to calculate deferred tax on temporary differences* (359.04) =
Adjustments for current tax of earlier periods (102.19) (193.25)
Income tax expense 2,560.13 2,442.05

The Group has exercised the option permitted under section 115BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 as introduced by the Taxation Laws (Amendment)
Ordinance, 2019. Accordingly, the tax rate used for the currentyearreconciliation above are the corporate tax rates of 25.168 % (March 31,2020: 34.944 %)
payable by corporate entities in India on taxable profits under the Indian tax laws. The reconciliation also includes the impact of tax holidays availed by
the Groupunderthe old regime.

31 Components of Other Comprehensive Income (0CI)

The disaggregation of changes to OCI by each type of reserve in equity is shown below:

During the year ended March 31, 2021

FVTOCI -equity instruments  Retained earnings Total
Re-measurement of net defined benefit plans - (203.33) (203.33)
Gain/(loss) on FVTOCI financial assets 89.77 - 89.77
Share of other comprehensive income of joint venture - 1.26 1.26
Total 89.77 (202.07) (112.30)
During the year ended March 31, 2020

FVTOCI -equity instruments  Retained earnings Total
Re-measurement of net defined benefit plans = (110.74) (110.74)
Gain/(loss) on FVTOCI financial assets (109.72) = (109.72)
Share of other comprehensive income of joint venture - (3.39) (3.39)
Total (109.72) (114.13) (223.85)

32 Significant estimates, judgements and assumptions

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in
future periods.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Group
based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the separate financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances
and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control
of the Group. Such changesarereflectedinthe assumptionswhenthey occur.

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against the Group, including legal and other claims. By
theirnature, contingencies willbe resolved only when one or more uncertain future events occur or failto occur. The assessment of the existence,
and potential quantum, of contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgement and the use of estimates regarding the

outcome of future events.
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Taxes

There are many transactions and calculations undertaken during the ordinary course of business for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts initially recorded, such differences will impact the current and deferred tax
provisionsinthe periodin which the tax determinationis made. The assessment of probability involves estimation of anumber of factors including future
taxableincome.

Impairment of financial assets
The Group assessesimpairment based on expected creditlosses(ECL)model ontrade receivables.

The Group uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on the portfolio of trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its
histroically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivable and is adjusted for forward looking estimates. At every reporting date, the
historical observed default ratesare updatedand changesinthe forward-looking estimates are analysed.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual
impairment testing foranassetisrequired, the Group estimates the asset'srecoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amountis the higher of an asset's
fairvalue less costs of disposalanditsvalueinuse. Itisdetermined foranindividual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or group of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre- tax discount rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and the risk specific to the asset. In
determining fair value less cost of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate
valuationmodelisused. These calculationsare corroborated by valuation multiples or other available fair value indicators.

Defined benefit plans(gratuity)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using
actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include
the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term
nature, adefined benefit obligationis sensitive to changesin these assumptions. Allassumptionsarereviewed at eachreporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the management
considerstheinterestrates of governmentbondsinIndia.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific countries. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in
response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates in India. Further details
about gratuity obligationsare givenin Note 20.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques. The Group uses its judgement to
selectavariety of methods and make assumptions thatare mainly based on market conditions existingat the end of each reporting period.

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options - Group aslessee

The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is
reasonably certaintobe exercised, orany periods covered by anoptiontoterminate the lease, if itisreasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Group has several lease contracts thatinclude extensionand termination options. The Group appliesjudgementin evaluatingwhetheritisreasonably
certainwhetherornottoexercise the optiontorenew orterminate thelease. Thatis, it considersall relevant factors that create an economicincentive for
it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the commencement date, the Group reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or
changeincircumstancesthatiswithinits controland affectsitsability to exercise or notto exercise the optiontorenew or to terminate.

Leases-Estimating the incremental borrowingrate

Where the Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, it uses its incremental borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities.
The IBRis the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an
asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Group ‘would have to pay’, which
requires estimation when no observable rates are available or when they need to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease. The Group
estimatesthe IBRusingobservableinputs(suchas marketinterest rates)whenavailable and isrequired to make certain entity-specific estimates.

Revenue recognition - Estimating variable consideration forreturns and volume rebates

The Group’s contracts with customersinclude promises to transfer goods to the customers. Judgementisrequired to determine the transaction price for
the contract. The transaction price could be either a fixed amount of customer consideration or variable consideration with elements such as rebates,
incentives and cash discounts etc. The estimated amount of variable considerationis adjusted in the transaction price only to the extent that it is highly
probable thatasignificant reversalinthe amount of cumulative revenue recognisedwillnotoccurandisreassessedat the end of eachreportingperiod.

The amount of revenue recognised depends on whether the Group act as an agent or as a principal inan arrangement with a customer. The Group actasa
principalif the Group controlsapromised goods or service before the Group transfers the goods or service toa customerand act asanagentif the Group's
performance obligationistoarrange forthe provision of goods or service by another party.

Estimationuncertaintyrelating to COVID-19 outbreak

The Group has consideredinternaland certain external sources of informationincluding credit reports, economic forecastsandindustry reportsup tothe
date of approval of the financial statementsin determining the impact on various elements of its financial statements. The Group has used the principles
of prudence in applying judgments, estimates and assumptions and based on the current estimates, the Group expects to fully recover the carrying
amount of allthe assets(refer note 52).

Interestinjoint venture

OAT &lIL India Laboratories Private Limited (OAT & IIL)is a private company in which the parent company currently owns 20% of the ownership interest. As
perthejointventure agreement between the parent company and OAT Agrio Co. Ltd, control over the "relevant activities" of OAT & lIL is exercisedjointly by
both the companies. OAT & lIL is structured as a separate legal entity and both companies have aninterestin the net assets of OAT & IIL. Accordingly, the
parentcompany has classifieditsinterestin OAT & lILasajoint venture.

@
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33 Hedging activities and derivatives

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments

The Group uses full currency cuminterest rate swap and foreign exchange forward contracts and option contracts to manage some of its transaction
exposures. The foreign exchange forward contracts are not designated as cash flow hedges and are measured at fair value through profit or loss.
These contracts are entered into for period consistent with the foreign currency exposures of the underlying transactions and with the intention to

reducetheforeignexchangerisk of expected purchasesandsales.
As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Amount Amount Amount Amount
outstanding outstanding outstanding outstanding
USD (in Lacs) INR USD (in Lacs) INR

Nature of instrument

Hedged foreign currency exposures
Forward contract - Buy

In respect of foreign letters of credit (USD) 213.77 15,795.66 25.56 1,919.37

In respect of import bills accepted (USD) 6.95 509.99 0.48 36.25

In respect of buyer's credit (USD) = = 1.46 109.59

220.72 16,305.65 27.50 2,065.21

Forward contract - Sell

In respect of trade receivables (USD) 18.76 1,400.20 20.99 1,529.92
18.76 1,400.20 20.99 1,529.92

Unhedged foreign currency exposures

a) Payables

Buyer's credit (including interest)(USD) - - - -

Letters of credit (USD) N4.27 8,354.16 238.81 18,073.27

Import bills accepted (Trade payables)(USD) 0.96 70.19 0.77 58.12
115.23 8,424.35 239.58 18,131.39

b) Receivables

Trade receivables (USD) 9.23 675.02 18.68 1,413.16

Trade receivables (AED) 2.80 55.72 = =
12.03 730.74 18.68 1,413.16

34 Fair value measurements

(i) Financial instruments by category Note FVTPL FVTOCI Am:;;its ed FVTPL FVTOCI Am:::ts ed
a) Financial assets - Non-current

Investments

- Equity instruments 7(a) - 362.00 - - 244.97 -
Security deposits 7(b) - - 246.68 - - 128.87
tDv(:zl?lseiLi::;/r:r;g maturity of more than 7b) _ ~ 3377 ~ ~ 31.95
b) Financial assets - Current

Trade receivables 1(a) = = 25,458.71 = = 31,978.73
Cash and cash equivalents 1(b) - - 646.36 - - 6,773.13
Other bank balances (c) = = 7,682.94 = = 642.97
Loans 11(d) = - 5.08 - - 272.82
Derivative assets 1(e) 9.42 18.76 = =
Dividend receivable 1(e) = = 8.15 = = 8.61
Insurance claim recoverable 1(e) = = 81.96 = = 80.95
Interst accrued on inter corporate loans 1(e) = = = 65.05
Litigation charges recoverable 1(e) - - 19.60 - - 19.60
Export incentive recoverable 1(e) - - 114.55 - - 126.02
Interest subsidy recoverable 1(e) - - 201.35 - - 285.25
Total financial assets 9.42 362.00 34,499.15 18.76 244.97 40,413.95
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(i) Financial instruments by category Note  FVTPL FvTOCI Am:;:'tsed FVTPL FvTOCI Am:;ts'tsed

c) Financial liabilities - Non-current

Borrowings 15(a) - - 239.63 - - 190.53
d) Financial liabilities - Current

Borrowings 18(a) = - 9,160.85 - = 18,348.22
Trade payables 18(b) - = 36,203.49 = = 24,655.78
Current maturities of long-term borrowings 18(c) = = 226.90 = = 203.72
Security deposits received from customers 18(c) = = 714.67 = = 725.41
Creditors for capital expenditure 18(c) = = 370.36 = = 466.85
Interest accrued on borrowings 18(c) = = 9.25 = = 19.87
Employee payables 18(c) - - 1,259.77 - - 1,418.36
Unpaid dividend account 18(c) - - 5:25 - - 4.57
Derivative liabilities 18(c) 41.38 = = 72.58 = =
Total financial liabilities 41.38 = 48,190.17 72.58 = 46,033.1

(i) Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are
(a) recognised and measured at fair value and
(b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements.

To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Group has classified its financial instruments into the
threelevels prescribedundertheaccountingstandard. An explanation of eachlevelfollowsunderneaththe table.

| As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

'::;1'::"':;:::e‘::lz'::r:z:s"‘::::l:;:s“’e" atfair value = Level1 Level2  Level3 Level1 Level2  Level3
Financial assets

Financial assets at FVTOCI

-Quoted equity investments™ 362.00 = = 244.97 = =
Financial assets at FVTPL

-Derivative assets = 9.42 = = 18.76 =
Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

-Derivative liabilities = 41.38 = = 72.58 =
*The investments in equity instruments are not held for trading. Instead, they are held for medium or long-term strategic purpose. Upon the
application of Ind AS 109, the Group has chosen to designate these investments in equity instruments as at FVTOCI as the management believes that
this provides a more meaningful presentation for medium or long-term strategic investments, than reflecting changes in fair value immediately in
profitorloss.

There have been no transfers between Level 1and Level 2 during the period.

Assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised

cost for which fair values are disclosed Level1 Level 2 Level 3 Level1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets

Security deposits - - 246.68 - - 128.87
Deposits having maturity of more than twelve months - 33.77 - - 31.95 -
Financial liabilities

Long term borrowings (including current maturities) - 466.53 - - 394.25 -

There have been no transfers between Level Tand Level 2
during the period.

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity instruments that have quoted
price. Thefairvalue of allequity instruments which are traded inthe stock exchangesis valued using the closing price as at the reporting period.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, traded bonds, over-thecounter derivatives)is
determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market dataand rely aslittle as possible on entity-specific estimates. If
allsignificantinputsrequiredto fairvalueaninstrumentare observable, theinstrumentisincludedinlevel 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

@
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(iii) Valuation technique used to determine fair value

Specific valuation technigues used to value financial instruments include:
a) the fair values of the FVTOCI investments are derived from quoted market prices in active markets.

b) the fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts and principal swap is determined using forward exchange rates at the balance sheet date.

c) thefairvaluesof theinterest-bearingborrowingsandloansare determined by using discounted cash flow method using discount rate that reflects
theissuersborrowingrateasatthe endof thereporting period. The own non-performance risk was assessed to beinsignificant.

d) the fair value of the remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis using rates currently available for debt on
similarterms, credit riskand remaining maturities.

(iv) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost

L Carryin Carryin
ying ying Fair value
amount amount

Financial assets

-Security deposits* 7(b) 246.68 246.68 128.87 128.87
-Deposits having maturity of more than twelve months* 7(b) 33.77 33.77 511.95 511:95
Financial liabilities

- Long term borrowings (including current maturities) 15(a) 466.53 466.53 394.25 394.25

*The management assessed that fair values of above financial instruments is substantially equal to their carrying value due to amortised cost being
calculated based onthe effective interestrates, whichapproximates the market rates.

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, cash and bank balances, loans, other receivables, short term borrowings, security deposits received,
trade payables, creditors for capital expenditure and other current financial assets and liabilities are considered to be the same as fair value due to
theirshortterm maturities.

35. Financial risk management

The Group's principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of
these financial liabilities is to finance the Group's operations. The Group’s principal financial assets include trade and other receivables, security
deposits, cash and cash equivalents and loans that derive directly from its operations. The Group also holds FVTOCI investments and enters into
derivative transactions.

The Group is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk that are summarised as under:-

Cash and cash equivalents, trade
receivables, derivative financial Diversification of bank

it risk X . . Agei lysi X L
Breelidlis instruments, financial assets measured geing analysis deposits, credit limits
atamortised cost.
Liquidity risk Borrowings and other liabilities Cash flow forecasting Ava|lab|l|ty of commlttgq (.:rEd't
lines and borrowing facilities
Recognised financial assets and . a) Forward exchange contracts
) ; : A . A ) a) Cash flow forecasting . 3
Market risk - foreign exchange risk liabilities not denominated in Indian s . b) Foreign currency options
b) Sensitivity analysis
rupee (INR) c)Currency swaps
Market risk - interest rate risk Long-term borrowings at variable rates Sensitivity analysis Interest rate swaps
Market risk - security prices Investments in equity securities Sensitivity analysis Portfolio diversification

The Group has formulated the Risk Management Policy whose objective is to ensure sustainable business expansion with stability, and to promote
an upbeat approach in risk management process by eliminating risk. In order to achieve this key objective, this policy provides a prepared and
well-organized approach to manage the various types of risk associated with day to day business of the Group and minimize adverse impact on its
business objectives as well as policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative
financial instruments and non-derivative financial instruments, and investment of excess liquidity.

A) Credit risk

Creditriskis the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The
Group is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with
banks, foreignexchange transactionsand other financialinstruments.
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(1) Credit risk management

a)Tradereceivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Group's established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit
risk management. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. The Group periodically assesses the financial reliability of customers,
takinginto account the financial condition, current economic trends, and analysis of historical data and ageing of accounts receivable. Individual risk
limits are setaccordingly. New customers are analysed individually for creditworthiness before the Group's standard payment and delivery terms are
offered. Sale limits are established for each customersandreviewed periodically.

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an
ongoing basis throughout each reporting period. It considers available reasonable and supportive forward-looking information. Especially the
followingindicatorsareincorporated:

a)Actual or expected significant adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions that are actual
b)Significant changesinthe expected performance and behaviour of the customer, including changesin the payment status of customerin the Group

The maximum exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables is provided in note 11(a)

b) Financial instruments and cash deposits

Creditrisk frombalances with banksis managed by the Group's managementinaccordance with the policy of the Group. Counterparty credit limitsare
reviewed by the Group’s management onanannual basis. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss
through counterparty’s potential failure to make payments.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at March 31, 2021and March 31,2020 is the carryingamounts as
illustratedinNote 7and 11except for derivative financial instruments.

(ii) Provision for expected credit losses

Basis for recognition of expected credit loss pro

Category Description of category Loans to employees

8 Security Trade
and inter-corporate s n
deposits receivables
loans
RIEELE S Assets where the counter-party has strong capacity to meet the  12-month expected el RGN

assets, negligible
credit risk

expected credit  expected credit

obligations and where the risk of default is negligible or nil credit loss
loss losses

Quality assets, low  Assets where there is low risk of default and where the counter-party has sufficient capacity to meet the obligations and
credit risk where there has been low frequency of defaults in the past

Year ended March 31, 2021

(a) Expected credit loss for loans and security deposits

Gross Expected Expected sy
Category . e . - . amount net of
Description of category Asset group | carrying | probability of credit . .
impairment
amount default losses . .
provision
Loss allowance High qualit Assets where the counter- Loans to
measured at 12 month as(iet?s y party has strong capacityto ~ employees
exoected credit negli i’ble meet the obligations and and inter- 5.08 0% - 5.08
Iosl?ses crgdif risk where the risk of default is corporate
negligible or nil loans
. . Assets where the counter-
Loss allowance High quality party has strong capacity to
measured at ]2. month assets, meet the obligations and Securllty 246.68 0% - 246.68
expected credit negligible where the risk of default is deposits
losses credit risk

negligible or nil

(b) Expected credit loss for trade receivables under simplified approach

More than
ey 0-90 days 90-180 days 180-360 days 360-720 days 720 days past Total
past due past due (RG] past due due
Gross carrying amount 16,706.88 7,029.81 875.78 408.42 987.27 551.92 26,560.08
Expected loss rate 0.1% 0.20% 0.50% 5.00% 50.00% 100.00%

Expected credit losses (Loss

. 16.95 14.06 4.38 20.42 493.64 551.92 1,101.37
allowance provision)
Carrying amount of trade
receivables (net of 16,689.93 7,015.75 871.40 388.00 493.63 - 25,458.71

impairment)
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Year ended March 31, 2020

(a) Expected credit loss for loans and security deposits

Carrying amount
net of
impairment
provision

Gross Expected Expected
Asset group carrying probability credit
amount of default losses

Category Description of

category

Assets where the

. . counter-party has Loans to
Loss allowance High quality !
strong capacity to employees
measured at 12 assets, L . o
L meet the obligations and inter- 0%
month expected negligible . 272.82 = 272.82
X o and where the risk of corporate
credit losses credit risk . L
default is negligible loans
or nil
Assets where the
Loss allowance High quality counter party has
strong capacity to .
measured at 12 assets, L Security o
L meet the obligations R 128.87 0%
month expected negligible . deposits = 128.87
. o and where the risk of
credit losses credit risk

default is negligible
or nil

(b) Expected credit loss for trade receivables under simplified approach

Agein 0-90 days |90-180 days| 180-360 days 360-720 days [ [TERGED Total

geing past due past due past due past due 720 days past due
Gross carrying amount 16,528.87 10,270.01 4,597.31 518.00 304.12 512.80 32,731.11
Expected loss rate 0.11% 0.20% 0.50% 5.00% 50.00% 100.00%
Expected credit losses 18.09 20.54 22.99 25.90 152.06 512.80 752.38
(Loss allowance
provision)
Carrying amount of 16,510.78 10,249.47 4,574.32 492.10 152.06 - 31,978.73
trade receivables (net
of impairment)
Reconciliation of loss allowance provision - trade receivables
Loss allowance on March 31, 2019 526.74
Changes in loss allowance 225.64
Loss allowance on March 31, 2020 752.38
Changes in loss allowance 348.99
Loss allowance on March 31, 2021 1,101.37

B) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to
ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without
incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group’s reputation. The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, by
continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flowsand matching the maturity profiles of the financial assets andliabilities.

The Group enjoys a good reputation for its sound financial management and ability to meet in financial commitments. CRISIL, a S&P Global Group, a
reputed Rating Agency, hasre-affirmed the credit rating of CRISIL A/Stable for the longtermand CRISIL ATfor the Short-term Bank facilities.
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(1) Financing arrangements
The Group had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities subject to the reconcilation at the end of the reporting period :
I R
2021 2020
Floating rate
Short term borrowings 29,385.43 26,195.97
(ii) Maturities of financial liabilities

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments :

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities:-

As at March 31, 2021 Within Between More than Total
lyear 1and 5 years Syears

Long term borrowings (including current maturities) 15(a) 226.90 239.63 466.53
Lease liabilities 15(b) 196.88 284.32 = 481.20
Short term borrowings 18(a) 9,160.85 - - 9,160.85
Trade payables 18(b) 36,203.49 - - 36,203.49
Security deposits received from customers 18(c) T4.67 - - T4.67
Creditors for capital expenditure 18(c) 370.36 = = 370.36
Interest accrued on borrowings 18(c) 9.25 - - 9.25
Employee payables 18(c) 1,259.77 = - 1,259.77
Unpaid dividend account 18(c) 5.25 = = 5.25
Derivative liabilities 18(c) 41.38 = = 41.38
Total 48,188.80 523.95 - 48,712.75

N N N
Long term borrowings (including current maturities) 15(a) 203.72 190.53 394.25
Lease liabilities 15(b) 199.51 222.49 = 422.00
Short term borrowings 18(a) 18,348.22 - - 18,348.22
Trade payables 18(b) 24,655.78 = = 24,655.78
Security deposits received from customers 18(c) 725.41 = = 725.41
Creditors for capital expenditure 18(c) 466.85 - - 466.85
Interest accrued on borrowings 18(c) 19.67 = = 19.67
Employee payables 18(c) 1,418.36 - - 1,418.36
Unpaid dividend account 18(c) 4.57 - - 4.57
Derivative liabilities 18(c) 72.58 = = 72.58
Total 46,114.67 413.02 = 46,527.69
C) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk
comprisesthree typesof risk: interest raterisk, currencyriskand other price risk, such as equity price riskand commodity risk. Financial instruments
affected by marketriskincludeloansandborrowings, deposits, FVTOClinvestmentsandderivative financial instruments.

(1) Foreign currency risk

Foreigncurrencyriskis theriskthat the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changesinforeign exchange rates. The
Group's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Group’s operating activities (when revenue or expense is
denominatedinaforeigncurrency).

When a derivative is entered into for the purpose of being a hedge, the Group negotiates the terms of those derivatives to match the terms of the
hedged exposure. The Group hedgesits exposure to fluctuations on the foreign currencyloan by using foreign currency swaps and forwards.

At March 31,2021and March 31, 2020 the Group’s hedge position is stated in Note 33. This foreign currency risk is hedged by using foreign currency
forward contractsandfullcurrencyinterestrate swaps.

©
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Sensitivity

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD and JPY exchange rates, with all other variables held constant. The
impactonthe Group's profitbefore taxis due tochangesinthe fair value of monetary assets and liabilities.

Impact on profit before tax

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

USD sensitivity
INR/USD - increase by 1% (March 31, 2020: 1%) (77.49) (167.18)
INR/USD - decrease by 1% (March 31, 2020: 1%) 77.49 167.18
AED sensitivity
INR/AED - increase by 1% (March 31, 2020: Nil) 0.56 -
INR/AED - decrease by 1% (March 31, 2020: Nil) (0.56) -

Impact on other comprehensive income

JPY sensitivity [with respect to investment in equity shares of OAT Agrio Co. Ltd. (company Year ended Year ended
listed on Tokyo Stock exchange)] March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
INR/JPY - increase by 5% (March 31, 2020: 5%) 18.10 12.25
INR/JPY - decrease by 5% (March 31, 2020: 5%) (18.10) (12.25)

(ii) Interest rate risk

Interestrateriskis the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s debt obligations with floating interest rates. At
March 31, 2021, 100% (March 31, 2020, 99.93%) of the Group's total borrowings are at a fixed rate of interest. As on March 31, 2021, the Group's
borrowings were mainly denominated in INR. If borrowings carry floating rate of interest, the Group swaps them into fixed rates that are lower than
those available if the Group borrowed at fixed rates directly. Group's fixed rate borrowings are not subject to interest rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107,
since neitherthe carryingamount northe future cash flows will fluctuate because of achange in market interest rates.

(a) Interest rate risk exposure

The exposure of the Group's borrowings to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Fixed rate borrowings

Long term borrowings (including current maturities) 466.53 381.90
Short term borrowings 9,160.85 18,348.22
Variable rate borrowings

Long term borrowings (including current maturities) = 12.35
Total borrowings 9,627.38 18,742.47

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following long term variable rate borrowings (including current maturities) and interest
rate swap contracts outstanding:

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Interest rates Balance /° of total Interest rates Balance 7% of total
loans loans

Bank borrowings - 8.560%-9.00% 12.35 0.07%
Net exposure to cash flow interest rate risk - - 12.35 0.07%
(b) Sensitivity

The Group's exposure to long-term floating rate borrowings (mainly on account of vehicle loans) is not significant hence the sensitivity is not
disclosed.

(iii) Price risk
(a) Exposure

The Group's exposure to equity securities price risk arises from investments held by the Group in equity shares of OAT Agrio Co. Ltd. (Co-venturer
of J.V.)and classified in the balance sheet as fair value through OCI (note 31).
(b) Sensitivity

The Group's investment in equity shares of OAT Agrio Co. Ltd.(Co-venturer of J.V.)is publicly traded in the Japanese stock exchange. With all other
variables held constant, a10% movement in the market value of the equity instrument will increase or decrease other comprehensive income by INR
36.20(March 31,2020: INR 24.50).
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36 Capital management
(a) Risk management

Capital includes equity attributable to the equity holders to ensure that it maintains an efficient capital structure and healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholder value. The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in
economic conditions or its business requirements. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total
capital plus net debt. For the purpose of the Group's capital management, net debt includes interest bearing loans and borrowings, less cash and cash
equivalents. Capitalincludesissued equity capital, share premiumandall other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders.

Total debt 15(a),18(a),18(c) 9,627.38 18,742.47
(Less): Cash and cash equivalents 1(b) (646.36) (6,773.13)
Net debt 8,981.02 11,969.34
Total capital 13,14 82,037.51 73.172.86
Capital and net debt 91,018.53 85,142.20
Gearing ratio 10% 14%

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended March 31, 2021 & March 31, 2020

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Group’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to
the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to
immediately callloansand borrowings. There have beennobreachesinthe financial covenants of any interest-bearingloansand borrowingin the current period.

(b) Dividends
e N
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
(1) Dividends paid on equity shares
Final dividend for the year ended March 31, 2020 : Nil (March 31, 2019 : INR 2) per fully paid

share = £413.35
Dividend distrubution tax (DDT) on final dividend = 84.99
Int.erlm dividend for the year ended March 31, 2021 of INR 2 (March 31, 2020: INR 4) per fully 413.36 826.70
paid share

Dividend distrubution tax (DDT) on interim dividend = 169.93

37 Interests in other entities

a) Interestsin

Set out below is the joint venture of the Group as at March 31, 2021. The entity listed below has share capital consisting solely of equity shares, whichis
held directly by the Group. The country of incorporation orregistrationisalso their principal place of business, and the proportion of ownership interest

isthe sameasthe proportionof votingrights held.
) Place of % of ownership . . Accounting
Name of entity business interest Relationship method s at Asat
Mal 021 March 31, 2020

OAT & IIL India
Laboratories Private India 20% Jointventure Audited Equity method 992.75 944.48
Limited

OAT &IIL India Laboratories Private Limited (OAT &lIL)is involved in the business of undertaking scientific and technical research experiments, product
development, bio-equivalency studiesand developing New Chemical Entities(NCEs). Itisan unlisted entity so quoted prices are not available.

As at As at
b) Commitments, contingent liabilities and contingent assets in respect of joint venture March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Share of commitments in respect of:

Capital commitments in respect of Property, plant and equipment 0.00 0.03

Unpaid preference dividend 0.00 0.00



inseC'l' ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21

(INDIA) LIMITED

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 (%in'Lacs, unless mentioned otherwise)

c) Summarised financial information for joint venture

The tables below provide summarised financial information for the Group's joint venture. The information disclosed reflects the amounts presented
in the financial statements of the relevant joint venture and not the Group's share in those amounts.

Summarised balance sheet OAT & IIL India Laboratories Private Limited
vz msareosan)
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 612.52 1,373.73
Other assets 2,424.44 1,889.27
Total current assets 3,036.96 3,263.00
Total non-current assets 2,5638.82 2,962.60
Total assets 5,5675.78 6,225.60

Current liabilities

Financial liabilities (excluding trade payables) 5.02 55.56
Other liabilities 409.19 1:275.33
Total current liabilities 414.21 1,330.89

Non-current liabilities

Financial liabilities (excluding trade payables) S -

Other liabilities 197.81 172.30
Total non-current liabilities 197.81 172.30
Net assets 4,963.76 4,722.41
Opening net assets 4,722.41 4,303.16
Profit for the year 235.02 436.23
Other comprehensive income 6.33 (16.98)
Closing net assets 4,963.76 4,722.41
Group's share in % 20% 20%
Carrying amount 992.75 944.48
Revenue from operations 2,178.88 2,860.47
Interest income 92.99 91.68
Other income 0.88 1.52
Total revenue 2,272.75 2,953.67
Expenses

Cost of materials consumed 614.06 1,168.27
Changes in inventories of finished goods (70.56) (224.33)
Employee benefit expenses 616.31 623.87
Finance costs 1.22 1.81
Depreciation & amortisation expenses 189.46 200.16
Other expenses 590.00 585.51
Total expenses 1,940.49 2,355.29
Profit before tax 332.26 598.38
Tax expense 97.24 162.15
Profit after tax 235.02 436.23
Other comprehensive income 6.33 (16.98)
Total comprehensive income 241.35 419.25
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38 Segmentinformation
Operatingsegmentsarereportedinamanner consistent with the internalreporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The Group
is engaged in the business of manufacturing and distribution of Agro-chemicals comprising of technical and formulation, hence there is one
operatingsegment.

Entity wide disclosures as applicable to the Group are mentioned below:-

a) Information about geographical areas:

Within India 134,731.76 128,601.55
Outside India 6,479.28 6,414.52
Total revenue 141,211.04 135,016.07

The basis for attributing revenues from external customer is based on the country of domicile of the respective customers.
b) Revenue from Major Customers: There is no customer having revenue amounting to 10% or more of Group’s total revenue.

39 Related party transactions
(i) Names of related parties and related party relationship:-

a) Individuals owning directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting power of the Group that gives them significant influence over
the Group and Key Management Personnel (KMP)
1. Sh. Hari Chand Aggarwal - Chairman
2. Sh. Rajesh Aggarwal - Managing Director
3. Smt. Nikunj Aggarwal - Whole-time Director

b) Key Management Personnel (KMP)
1. Sh. Sandeep Aggarwal - Chief Financial Officer
2. Sh. Sandeep Kumar - Company Secretary

c) Independent directors
1. Sh. Virjesh Kumar Gupta
2. Sh. Navin Shah
3. Sh. Jayaraman Swaminathan
4. Sh. Vinod Kumar Mittal (resigend w.e.f December 21, 2020)
5. Smt. Praveen Gupta

d) Relatives of KMPs
1. Sh. Sanjeev Aggarwal
2. Smt. Sonia Aggarwal
3. Smt. Anju Aggarwal
4. Smt. Pushpa Aggarwal
5. Miss Kritika Aggarwal
8. Sh. Sanskar Aggarwal

e) Enterprises over which the Group exercises joint control
1. OAT & IIL India Laboratories Private Limited

f) Enterprises over which key management personnel and their relatives have control / significant influence:
1. ISEC Organics Ltd.
2.Vinod Metals Industries
3. Crystal Crop Protection Pvt. Ltd.
4. HPM Chemicals & Fertilizers Ltd.
5. Crop Care Federation of India
B. IIL foundation
7. Indogulf Cropsciences Limited
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(ii) Transactions during the year with related parties:-

Enterprises over Enterprises over | Individuals owning | Key Management Relatives of Key Independent
which key which the Group [directly or indirectly, Personnel Management Directors
management exercises joint an interest in the Personnel
personnel and their control voting power of the
relatives have Group that gives
control / significant them significant
influence influence over the

Group and Key
Management
Personnel (KMP)

Year Year Year Year Year Year Year Year
ended ended ended ended ended ended ended ended
March March March March March March March March
31,2021 | 31,2020 | 31,2021 | 31,2020 | 31,2021 | 31,2020 | 31,2021 | 31,2020 | 31,2021 | 31,2020 | 31,2021 | 31,2020
Advertisement expense - 0.30 - - - - - - - - - -
Crop Care Federation of India = 0.30 = =
Consultancy expenses - - - - - - - - 10.88 10.96 - -
Smt. Sonia Aggarwal 10.88 10.96
Deputation fee income - - 30.23 38.39 - - - - - - - -
gﬁ;ra%elIll__ilmn;ideaboratorles 30.23 38.39
:I::;::ship & Subscription .80 .80 _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _
Crop Care Federation of India 11.80 11.80
Consumabable Goocs I B O e e
Vinod Metal Industries 194.51 165.36
Sales of Finished Goods 364.05 3,747.49 - - - - - - - - - -
Crystal Crop Protection Pvt Ltd 2.86 2,910.56
tliljnr?t(;r;em|cal & Fertilizers _ 39050
Indogulf Cropsciences Limited 361.19 446.43
Purchases of Traded Goods - 1.87 - - - - - - - - - -
HPM Chemical & Fertilizers
Limited : 187
Purchases of Raw Material 4,732.37 4,914.47 - - - - - - - - -
Crystal Crop Protection Pvt Ltd =~ 4,732.37  4,112.57
Indogulf Cropsciences Limited = 801.90
Other Expenses - 17.70 - - - - - - - - - -
Crop Care Federation of India = 17.70 =
R & D Expenses - - 395.54  385.34 - - - - - - - -

OAT & IIL India Laboratories

Private Limited S it

Rent paid 33.42 65.63 - - - - - - 2.64 2.64 - -
ISEC Organics Ltd 33.42 65.63 = = = =

Smt. Pushpa Aggarwal = = = = 2.64 2.64

::LT::-:, tt)f Property, Plant & _ 777.60 _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _
ISEC Organics Ltd = 777.60

Revenue from Job Work - - 23.72 46.05 - - - - - - - -

OAT & IIL India Laboratories

Private Limited 2372 LD
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Individuals owning
directly or indirectly,
Enterprises over an interest in the
which key Enterprises over voting power of the
management which the Company | Company that gives | Key Management
personnel and their exercises joint them significant Personnel
relatives have control control influence over the
/ significant influence Company and Key
Management
Personnel (KMP)

Relatives of Key
Management
Personnel

Independent
Directors

Year ended Year ended Year ended
March 31, March 31, March 31,

2020 2020 2020 March 31, [March 31, | March 31, |March 31,|March 31,

Remuneration paid * - - - -  828.76 901.08  42.45 42.80 49.85 46.57 - -
Sh. Hari Chand Aggarwal 395.58 431.77

Sh. Rajesh Aggarwal 389.99 425.83

Smt. Nikunj Aggarwal 43.19 43.48

Sh. Sandeep Aggarwal 32.39 32.66

Sh. Sandeep Kumar 10.06 10.14

Sh. Sanjeev Aggarwal 20.78 20.96

Smt. Anju Aggarwal 12.68 12.79

Miss Kritika Aggarwal 12.7 12.82

Sh. Sanskar Aggarwal 3.68 =

Contribution to CSR 307.13 190.10 - - - - - - - - - -
IIL foundation 307.13 190.10

Sitting fees - - - - - - - - - - 12.50 1.00
Sh. Vinod Kumar Mittal 1.50 2.50

Sh. Jayaraman 3.50 3.50
Swaminathan

Smt. Praveen Gupta 2.50 0.50
Sh. Navin Shah 2.50 2.00
Sh. Vrijesh Kumar Gupta 2.50 2.50

* Excluding post employment benefits
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(iii) Balance outstanding with related parties

Enterprises over | Enterprises over | Individuals owning | Key Management | Relatives of Key Independent
which key which the Group | directly or indirectly, Personnel Management Directors
management exercises joint an interest in the Personnel
personnel and control voting power of the
their relatives Group that gives them
have control / significant influence
significant over the Group and
influence Key Management
Personnel (KMP)
As at As at As at
March | March 31, | March 31, | March March
31,2021 | 31, 2020 | 31, 2021 | 31, 2020 2020 31,2021 | 31,2020 | 31,2021 | 31, 2020 | 31, 2021 | 31, 2020
Remuneration payable - - N.44 m.2s 2.86 3.16 3.45 4.00 - -
Sh. Rajesh Aggarwal 4.51 3.51 = = = =
Smt. Nikunj Aggarwal 2.9 2.44 = = = =
Sh. Sandeep Aggarwal = = 1.76 1.87 = =
Sh. Sandeep Kumar = = 1.10 1.29 = =
Sh. Sanjeev Aggarwal = = = = 1.30 1.70
Smt. Anju Aggarwal = = = = 0.89 0.89
Miss Kritika Aggarwal = = = = 0.79 1.41
Sh. Sanskar Aggarwal = = = = 0.47 =
Trade Payables 357.21 169.14 - - - - 0.86 3.22 2.03 -
Vinod Metal Industries 105.76 61.46 = = = =
Crystal Crop Protection Ltd 251.45 - - - - -
Isec Organics Ltd. = 89.84 = - = -
Crop Care Federation of India = 17.84 = - = -
Smt. Sonia Aggarwal - = 0.86 0.84 = -
Smt. Pushpa Aggarwal = - = 2.38 = -
Smt. Praveen Gupta = = = - 0.46 =
Sh. Jayaraman Swaminathan = = = = 0.65 =
Sh. Navin Shah - - - - 0.46 -
Sh. Vrijesh Kumar Gupta - - - - 0.46 -
Trade Receivables 200.49 53.60 6.92 18.12 - - - - - -
Crystal Crop Protection Ltd 2.86 - - -
Indogulf Cropsciences Ltd 197.63 53.60 - -
OAT &IIL India Laboratories Pvt. Ltd. - - 6.92 18.12
Advances given - 625.57 - 4.97 - - - - - 0.24
Crystal Crop Protection Ltd -  625.57 - = = =
OAT & IIL India Laboratories Pvt. Ltd. = = = 4.97 = =
Sh. Vinod Kumar Mittal = = - - = 0.06
Sh. Jayaraman Swaminathan = = - - o 0.06
Sh. Navin Shah = = - - = 0.06
Sh. Vrijesh Kumar Gupta = = - - = 0.06

iv) Key management personnel compensation

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Short-term employee benefits 871.21 943.88
Post-employment benefits 26.41 21.83

Long-term employee benefits - -
Total 897.62 965.71

v) Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

The sales to and purchases from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. Outstanding
balances at the year-end are unsecured and interest free. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or
payables. This assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which

therelated party operates.
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40 Contingent liabilities

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debt

a)Bank Guarantee 265.68 104.50
b) Excise Matter with Appellate Authority 429.51 429.51
c)Sales Tax / GST Matters 501.03 397.57
d) Revenue Department 89.60 89.60
Total 1,285.82 1,021.18

With respect to contingent liabilities reported at (b), (c) & (d) above, the management has taken an opinion from the legal advisors /
professionals engaged by them and expects that the appeals will be decided in the favor of the Group. Therefore, the probability of outflow of
resources is remote.

41 Commitments

Commitments with respect to:

Particulars GELL L
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital accounts
. 994.88 89.88
(net of advances)and not provided for
Other commitments
Letter of Credits (FLC & ILC) 7,509.64 8,232.72
8,504.52 8,322.60

42 |Leases

The Group has lease contracts for land, office premises, warehouses and vehicles. The land leases have term ranging from 60 to 198 years, office
premisesand warehouses haveleasetermsbetweenltobyears.

Further, the Group has leases of warehouses and vehicles which have lease term less than 12 months. The Group applies the "Short term leases"
recognition exemption forsuchleases.

a) Amounts recognized in profit and loss

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets (Refer Note 27) 211.33 229.03
Interest expense on lease liabilities (Refer Note 26) 42.54 54.31
Expense relating to short-term leases (included in rent)(Refer Note 28) 34.22 73.98
(Gain)/loss on termination of leases (included in miscellaneous income)(Refer Note 22) (0.81) (5.59)
Total 287.28 351.73

b) Extension and termination options

The Group has lease contracts that include extension and termination options. These options are negotiated by management and align with the
Group's business needs. Management exercises significant judgement in determining whether these extension and termination options are
reasonably certain to be exercised. The Group has considered all the lease payments relating to periods following the exercise date of extension
options, where such option is available with the Group in the calculation of lease liabilities. The Group has determined that it is not reasonably
certainthat terminationoptionsattachedtolease contracts willbe exercised. Therefore, suchdisclosuresarenotapplicable.

43 Earnings per share

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Profit for the year 9,390.30 8,691.31
Weighted average number of shares (Face value Rs 10/- each) 20,667,796 20,667,796
(a) Basic earnings per share (INR) 45.43 42.05
(b) Diluted earnings per share (INR)* 45.43 42.05

*There are no dilutive potential equity shares.
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44 Assets pledged as security

The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for current and non-current borrowings are:

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Current

Financial assets

First charge

Trade receivables 1(a) 25,458.71 31,978.73

Loans 11(d) 5.08 272.82

Other financial assets 1(e) 435.03 604.24
25,898.82 32,855.79

Non-financial assets

Inventories 10 66,087.25 51,926.48

Other current assets 12 1,313.44 1,407.22

Total current assets pledged as security 93,299.51 86,189.49

Non-Current

Financial assets

First charge

Security deposits 7(b) 246.68 128.87

Non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment ¥ 20,853.52 20,893.13

Capital work-in-progress 3 5,187.22 3,288.41

Other non-current assets 9 1,151.69 682.22

Total non-currents assets pledged as security 27,439.1 24,992.63

Total assets pledged as security 120,738.62 11,182.12

45 TheBalancesshownunderthe head Trade Receivablesand Trade Payables are subject to confirmationand reconciliations. However, the
Group hasinitiated the process of obtaining confirmations fromtrade receivables and payables.

46 Informationasrequiredtobe furnished as per section 22 of the Micro, smalland Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act)
forthe year ended March 31,2021is given below. Thisinformation has been determined to the extent such parties have beenidentified on
the basis of information available with the Group :

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

| Principal amount and interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier covered under

MSMED Act:
Principal - 274.45
Interest - 0.48

i Theamount of interest paid by the buyerinterms of section 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006 along with
amounts of the payments made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting
Year.

Principal Paid during FY 2020-21 276.43 63.60
Interest Paid during FY 2020-21 - -
i The amount of interest due and payables for the period of delay in making payment (Which have - 0.48
been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year )but without adding the interest specified
under MSMED Act.
iv. The amount of Interest accured and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year.
Accounting year ended 31st March 2021 - -
Accounting year ended 31st March 2020* - 2.46

v The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until -
such date when the interest dues as above actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose
of disallowance as a deductible enterprise under section 23 of the MSMED Act,2006.

*The interest has been reversed since the same was not required to be paid as per the agreement/PO

©
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47 Contract assets and contract liabilities

The following table provides information about trade receivables and contract liabilities from contracts with the customers :

As at
Particulars March 31, 2021
Trade Receivables (refer note 11(a)) 25,458.71 31,978.73
Total trade receivables 25,458.71 31,978.73
Advance from customers (contract liabilities) (refer note 19 & 21) 9,169.88 7,174.31
Total advance from customers (contract liabilities) 9,169.88 7.174.31

48 The Group hasreceived Refund of Terminal Excise Duty during the financial years 2014-15, 2015-16 & 2016-17 from the Director of Foreign
Trade (DGFT), Ahmedabad on the basis of issuance of an Advance Release Order (ARO) by DGFT, Mumbai. On 28th November,2019, the
Additional Director of Foreign Trade, Ahmedabad has issued show cause notice (which is primary stage of adjudication) stating that the
refunds were erroneously paid by this office and directed to pay back the amount of INR7828.87 along with interest @ 15%. The Additional
Director of Foreign Trade, Ahmedabad has also provided an opportunity to the Group to appear before the Authority which is mandatory
requirement before adjudicating. In terms of the provisions of the Act, the Group filed the writ petition before Hon'ble Gujarat High Court
against the Show Cause Notice challenging the legality of the notice and the Hon’ble court has granted interim relief and also stayed the
show cause notice proceedings.

49 Information on details of loans under section 186 of the Act read with Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014

Outstanding Maximum Amount |Outstanding| Maximum Amount
asat Outstanding during Outstanding during
March the year ended March the year ended March

31,2021 31,2021 31,2020

Inter Corporate Loans

- New Age Knowledge Solutions Ltd (for Business purpose) = 320.84 320.84 445.16

- Mentor Financial Services Pvt. Ltd (for Business purpose) = 9.21 9.21 842.52

Note: Advances to employee as per Group's policy are not considered.

50 Exceptional item represents a one-time expense on account of fraud committed by two employees of the Group in collusion with 16
dealersanddistributors of the Group. The said dealersand distributors had sold the goodsin cashatreduced price to different customers.
However, the invoices were raised in the name of Group's authorised debtors. The Group has filed FIR on July 04, 2020 in P.S. Janjgir
District, Janjgir-Champa, Chhattisgarh. After internal investigation in the matter, the Group has recognized bad debts amounting to INR
970.15. The Group is of the view that there is no significantimpact of aforesaid fraud on the general business conditions, financial position,
profit&lossand liquidity position, except forthe amountsalready recognized.

51 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(a) New and amended standards and interpretations

(i) Amendments to Ind AS 116: Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions

The amendments provide relief to lessees from applying Ind AS 116 guidance on lease modification accounting for rent concessions
arising as a direct consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic. As a practical expedient, a lessee may elect not to assess whether a Covid-19
relatedrentconcessionfromalessorisalease modification. Alessee that makesthis electionaccounts forany change inlease payments
resulting from the Covid-19 related rent concession the same way it would account for the change under Ind AS 116, if the change were not
alease modification.

Theamendments are applicable for annual reporting periods beginning on or after the April 1,2020. In case, alessee has not yet approved
the financial statements for issue before the issuance of this amendment, then the same may be applied for annual reporting periods
beginningonorafterthe April1,2018. Thisamendment had noimpact on the financial statements of the Group.

©
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(b)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

52

Amendments to Ind AS 103 Business Combinations

The amendment to Ind AS 103 Business Combinations clarifies that to be considered a business, an integrated set of activities and
assets must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive process that, together, significantly contribute to the ability to create
output. Furthermore, it clarifies thatabusiness can exist withoutincludingall of theinputsand processes needed to create outputs.

These amendments are applicable to business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first
annual reporting period beginning on or after the April 1, 2020 and to asset acquisitions that occur on or after the beginning of that
period. Thisamendment had no impact on the financial statements of the Group but may impact future periods should the Group enter
intoanybusiness combinations.

Amendments to Ind AS 1and Ind AS 8: Definition of Material

The amendments provide a new definition of material that states, “information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could
reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial statements make on the basis of
those financial statements, which provide financial information about a specific reporting entity.” The amendments clarify that
materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude of information, either individually or in combination with other information, in the
context of the financial statements. A misstatement of information is material if it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions
made by the primary users. These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of, nor is there expected to be any future
impacttothe Group.

Amendments to Ind AS 107 and Ind AS 109: Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

The amendments to Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement provide a number of reliefs, which apply to all
hedgingrelationshipsthataredirectly affected by interest rate benchmarkreform. Ahedgingrelationshipisaffectedif thereformgives
rise to uncertainty about the timing and/or amount of benchmark-based cash flows of the hedged item or the hedging instrument.
These amendments have no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group as it does not have any interest rate hedge
relationships.

The amendments to Ind AS 107 prescribe the disclosures which entities are required to make for hedging relationships to which the
reliefs as per the amendmentsinInd AS 109 are applied. These amendments are applicable for annual periods beginning on or after the
April1,2020. These amendmentsdid not have anyimpact onthe Group’s financial statements.

Standards issued but not yet effective

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs(MCA) hasissued Companies(Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2021to amend Ind AS.
Therulesshallcomeintoforce onthe date of their publicationin the Official Gazettei.e June 18,2021.

Amendments to Ind AS 116:
Leases

The amendments extend the benefits of the COVID 19 related rent concession that were introduced last year (which allowed lessees to
recognize COVID 19 related rent concessions as income rather than as lease modification) from June 30, 2021 to June 30, 2022. The
Groupisinthe process of evaluatingtheimpact of theamendments onits financial statements.

Amendments to Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments

The amendment provides a practical expedient for assessment of contractual cash flow test, which is one of the criteria for being
eligible to measure a financial asset at amortized cost, for the changesin the financial assets that may arise as aresult of Interest Rate
Benchmark Reform along. An additional temporary exception from applying hedge accounting is also added for Interest Rate
Benchmark Reform. The Group is in the process of evaluating the impact of the amendments on its financial statements but does not
expecttheamendmentstohaveanimpactonthefinancial statements.

Other amendments

The otheramendmentsto Ind AS are in terms of insertion of certain paragraphs, substituting the definition of certain terms usedin the
standard along with aligning the text of Standards with the Conceptual Framework of Financial reporting under Ind AS. The Group is in
the process of evaluating the impact of the amendments on its financial statements but does not expect the amendments to have an
impactonthefinancial statements.

The Group has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 on the financial results. In
developing the assumptions relating to the possible future uncertainties in the economic conditions because of this pandemic, the
Group, has used internal and external sources of information. Based on the Group assessment, no material impact has been noted.
Considering thatitis adynamic and evolving situation, the management will continue to closely monitor and evaluate the impact of any
materialchange inmacro-economicand otherrelated factors, which may have bearingonthe Group's operations.
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53 Statutory Group Information
As at March 31, 2021

Consolidated Net.Assets, "“€-| Share in Consolidated | Share in Consolidated Other Share in Consolldafed
Total Assets minus Total . . Total Comprehensive
s Profit and Loss Comprehensive Income )
Liabilities income
Name of the entity o S > >
in the Group As /o of As A,_of As A of As A.of
Consolidated Consolidate Consolidated Consolidate
Net Assets d Profit and Other d Total
Loss Comprehensive Comprehens
Income ive Income
Parent
Insecticides (India) Limited 81,839.76 99.76% 9,343.30 99.50%  (113.56) 101.12% 9,229.74 99.48%
Joint venture (Investment as per
equity method)
OAT & IIL India Laboratories Private 197.75 0.24% 47.00 0.50% 1.26 -1.12% 48.26 0.52%
Limited
Total equity 82,037.51 9,390.30 (m2.30) 9,278.00

As at March 31, 2020

Consolidated Net Assets, Share in Share in Consolidated Other| Share in Consolidated
i.e. Total Assets minus Total Consolidated Comprehensive Income Total Comprehensive
Liabilities Profit and Loss income
Name of the entity As % of As % of As % of As % of
in the Group Consolidated Consolidate Consolidated Consolidated
Net Assets d Profit and Other Total

Loss Comprehensive Comprehensi

Income ve Income

Parent

Insecticides (India) Limited 73,023.38 99.80%  8,604.06 99.00%  (220.45) 98.48% 8,383.61 99.01%

Joint venture (Investment as per

equity method)
OAT & IIL India Laboratories Private 149.48 0.20% 87.25 1.00% (3.40) 1.52% 83.85 0.99%
Limited
Total equity 73,172.86 8,691.31 (223.85) 8,467.46
Auditor's Report FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
As per our separate report of even date annexed herewith
For DEVESH PAREKH & CO. For S S KOTHARIMEHTA & COMPANY HARI CHAND AGGARWAL RAJESH AGGARWAL
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Chairman Managing Director
DIN: 00577015 DIN: 00576872

DEVESH PAREKH HARISH GUPTA NIKUNJ AGGARWAL
Partner Partner Whole Time Director
Membership No.- 092160 Membership No.- 098336 DIN 06569091
Firm Registration No. - 013338N Firm Registration No. - 000756N

) SANDEEP AGGARWAL SANDEEP KUMAR
Place : Delhi Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Date : June 18, 2021
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Notice of the 24" Annual General Meeting

Notice is hereby given that the 24" Annual General
Meeting ("AGM”) of the members of INSECTICIDES
(INDIA)LIMITED will be held on Thursday, September 09,
2021at 03.00 p.m IST through Video Conferencing(“VC")
totransactthe followingbusinesses:

Ordinary Business:
Item No. 1- Adoption of Financial Statements

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited standalone
and consolidated Financial Statements for the Financial
Year ended March 31, 2021 and the Reports of the Board
of Directorsand Auditorsthereon.

Item No. 2 - Confirmation of payment of Interim
Dividend

To confirm the payment of Interim Dividend of Rs. 2/-
(Two Rupees only) per equity share of Rs. 10/- (Ten
Rupees only) each already paid during the year as the
Final Dividend for the financial year ended March 31,2021

Item no. 3 - Appointment of Mrs. Nikuj Aggarwal as a
directorliable toretire by rotation

To appoint a Director in place of Mrs. Nikunj Aggarwal
(DIN: 06569091) who retires by rotation and, being
eligible, seeksre-appointment.

Explanation: Based on the terms of appointment,
executive directors are subject to retirement by
rotation. Mrs. Nikunj Aggarwal, who was appointed for
the present term on May 02, 2018 for the period of five
years and whose office is liable to retire at the ensuing
AGM, being eligible, seeks reappointment. Based on
performance evaluation and the recommendation of
the nominationand remunerationcommittee, the Board
recommendsherreappointment.

Therefore, members are requested to consider and if
thought fit, pass the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

Insecticides (India) Limited

CIN: L65991DL1996PLC083909

401-402, Lusa Tower, Azadpur Commercial Complex,
Delhi-110033

investor@insecticidesindia.com
www.insecticidesindia.com

“"RESOLVED THAT, pursuant to the provisions of Section
152 and other applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013, Mrs. Nikunj Aggarwal (DIN: 06569091), who
retires by rotation, be and is hereby reappointed as a
director of the Company”

Special Business:

Item no. & - Ratification of age of appointment of Mr.
Virjesh Kumar Gupta

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following
resolution as Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED that approval of the Company be and is
hereby accorded for continuation of Mr. Virjesh Kumar
Gupta (DIN: 06382540) as Independent Director of the

"

Company who will attain the age of seventy-five years’

Item no. 5 - Ratification of remuneration of Cost
Auditors for the financial year, 2022

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following
resolutionasan Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Section
148 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
CompaniesAct, 2013 read with Rule 14 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time
being in force)the remuneration, as approved by the
Board of Directorsand set outin the Statement annexed
to the Notice convening this Meeting, to be paid to M/s
Aggarwal Ashwani K & Associates, Cost Accountant,
Firm Registration No. 100191 the Cost Auditors
appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company, to
conductthe audit of costrecords of the Company for the
financial year ending March 31, 2022, be and is hereby
ratified.”

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Insecticides (India) Limited

Sd/-

Sandeep Kumar
Company Secretary
Delhi, June 18, 2021
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Notes:

1.

Pursuant to the General Circular nos. 20/2020,
14/2020, 17/2020, 02/2021 issued by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs ("MCA") and Circular no.
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 and SEBI/
HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 issued by the SEBI
(hereinafter collectively referred to as “the
Circulars”), companies are permitted to hold of the
Annual General Meeting ("AGM”) through VC / OAVM,
without the physical presence of the Members at a
common venue. Hence, in compliance with the
Circulars, the AGM of the Company is being held
through VC. In compliance with the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act'), SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 ('SEBI Listing Regulations') and
the relevant MCA Circulars, the AGM of the
Company would be conducted through VC/0AVM
and the deemed venue for the AGM shall be the
Registered Office of the Company.

A statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013 relating to certain ordinary
business and the special businesses to be
transacted at the 24™ AGM is annexed hereto. All
documents referred to in the accompanying
Notice and the Explanatory Statement shall be
available for inspection electronically. Members
seeking to inspect such documents can send an e-
mail to investor@insecticidesindia.com

The relevant details, pursuant to Regulation 36(3)
and other applicable provisions of the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015
and Secretarial Standard 2 on General Meetings
issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of
India, in respect of Director seeking re-
appointment at this AGM is annexed hereto.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a Member
entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to
appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her
behalf and the proxy need not be a Member of the
Company. Since this AGM is being held pursuant to
the MCA Circulars through VC / OAVM, physical
attendance of Members has been dispensed with.
Accordingly, the facility for appointment of
proxies by the Members will not be available for
the 24" AGM and hence the Proxy Form,
Attendance Slip and Route map are not annexed
to this Notice.

Members attending the AGM through VC shall be
counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum
under Section 103 of the Act.

10.

1.

0

In case of joint holders attending the meeting, only
such joint holder who is higher in the order of
names will be entitled to vote.

Institutional / Corporate Shareholders (i.e. other
than individuals / HUF, NRI, etc.) are required to
send a scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of its
Board or governing body Resolution/Authorization
etc., authorizing its representative to attend the
AGM through VC on its behalf and to vote through
remote e-voting. The said Resolution/
Authorization shall be sent to the Scrutinizer by
email through its registered e-mail address to
akashguptacs86@gmail.com with a copy marked
to investor@insecticidesindia.com and upload on
relevant section at www.evotingindia.com

In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars
and SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/
CIR/P/2020/79 dated 12"May, 2020, Notice of the
AGM along with the Annual Report, including
Financial statements, Directors' Report, is being
sent only through electronic mode to those
Members whose e-mail addresses are registered
with the Company/ Depositories. Members may
note that the Notice and Annual Report will also be
available on the Company's website
www.insecticidesindia.com, website of stock
exchanges i.e., BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com
and National Stock Exchange of India Limited at
www.nseindia.com and on the website of Central
Depository Services (India) Limited at
www.evotingindia.com.

As per Regulation 40 of SEBI Listing Regulations,
as amended, securities of listed companies can be
transferred only in dematerialized form with effect
from, April 1, 2019, except in case of request
received for transmission or transposition of
securities. In view of this and to eliminate all risks
associated with physical shares and for ease of
portfolio management, members holding shares in
physical form are requested to consider
converting their holdings to dematerialized form.
Members can contact the Company or Company's
Registrars and Transfer Agents, Alankit
Assignments Limited ("AAL").

To support the 'Green Initiative’, Members who
have not yet registered their e-mail addresses
are requested to register the same with their DPs
in case the shares are held by them in electronic
form and with AAL in case the shares are held by
them in physical form.

Members are requested to intimate changes, if
any, pertaining to their name, postal address, e-



12.

13.

14.

15.

mail address, telephone/ mobile numbers,
Permanent Account Number (PAN), mandates,
nominations, power of attorney, bank details such
as, name of the bank and branch details, bank
account number, MICR code, IFSC code, etc., to
their DPs in case the shares are held by them in
electronic form and to AAL in case the shares are
held by them in physical form.

The Register of directors and key managerial
personnel and their shareholding, maintained
under Section 170 of the Act, and the Register of
Contracts or Arrangements in which the directors
are interested, maintained under Section 189 of
the Act, will be available electronically for
inspection by the members during the AGM. All
documents referred to in the Notice will also be
available for electronic inspection without any fee
by the members from the date of circulation of this
Notice up to the date of AGM, i.e. September 09,
2021. Members seeking to inspect such
documents can send an e-mail at

investor@insecticidesindia.com.

Members seeking any information with regard to
the accounts or any matter to be placed at the
AGM, are requested to write to the Company on or
before September 02, 2021 through e-mail on
investor@insecticidesindia.com. The same will be
replied by the Company suitably.

Members are requested to note that, dividends if
not encashed for a consecutive period of 7 years
from the date of transfer to Unpaid Dividend
Account of the Company, are liable to be
transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund ("IEPF”). The shares in respect of
such unclaimed dividends are also liable to be
transferred to the DEMAT account of the IEPF
Authority. In view of this, Members are requested
to claim their dividends from the Company, within
the stipulated timeline. The due date for transfer of
unclaimed / unpaid divided or shares to IEPF is
available on the website of the company at
https://www.insecticidesindia.com/wp-
content/uploads/2021/07/L0S_2021.pdf The
Members, whose unclaimed dividends/shares have
been transferred to IEPF, may claim the same by
making an online application to the IEPF Authority
in web Form No. I[EPF-5 available on

www.iepf.gov.in

At the 20" AGM held on August 08, 2017 the
members approved appointment of Joint Auditors
M/s SS Kothari Mehta & Co., Chartered
Accountants(Firm Registration No. : 000756N)and
Devesh Parekh & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm

16.

17.

18.

19.

o
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Registration No. :013338N)as Statutory Auditors of
the Company to hold office for a period of five
years from the conclusion of that AGM till the
conclusion of 25" AGM, subject to ratification of
their appointment by Members at every AGM, if so
required under the Act. The requirement to place
the matter relating to appointment of auditors for
ratification by Members at every AGM has been
done away by the Companies (Amendment) Act,
2017 with effect from May 7, 2018. Accordingly, no
resolution is being proposed for ratification of
appointment of statutory auditors at this AGM.

In terms of the provisions of Section 152 of the Act,
Mrs. Nikunj Aggarwal, Whole-time Director of the
Company, retire by rotation at this Meeting.
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the
Board of Directors of the Company recommend
her re-appointment. The details of Mrs. Nikunj
Aggarwal, Director, Seeking re-appointment,
pursuant to Requlation 36(3) of the SEBI Listing
Regulations, 2015 and other applicable provisions
are annexed herewith this notice. The Company
has received the requisite consents/declarations
for the appointment/re-appointment under the
Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made
thereunder.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI)
has mandated the submission of Permanent
Account Number (PAN) by every participant in
securities market. Members holding shares in
electronic form are, therefore, requested to
submit the PAN to their Depository Participants
with whom they are maintaining their DEMAT
accounts. Members holding shares in physical
form can submit their PAN details to the Company.

Non-resident Indian shareholders are requested to
inform about the following immediately to the
Company or its Registrar and Share Transfer Agent
or the concerned Depository Participant, as the
case may be:-

a) The change in the residential status on return
to India for permanent settlement, and

b) The particulars of the NRE account with a
Bank in India, if not furnished earlier.

The Company has provided the facility to Members
to exercise their right to vote by electronic means
both through remote e-voting and e-voting during
the AGM. The process and instructions for remote
e-voting are provided in the subsequent pages.
Such remote e-voting facility is in addition to
voting that will take place at the 24th AGM being
held through VC.
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Instructions for e-voting and joining the AGM
are as follows:

A.

Voting through electronics means

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the
Companies (Management and Administration)
Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of
SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended),
read with SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/
CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9,
2020, and MCA Circulars dated April 08, 2020, April
13, 2020 and May 05, 2020 the Company is
providing facility of remote e-voting to its
Members in respect of the business to be
transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the
Company has entered into an agreement with
Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL)
for facilitating voting through electronic means, as
the authorized e-Voting's agency. The facility of
casting votes by a member using remote e-voting
as well as the e-voting system on the date of the
AGM will be provided by CDSL.

The Members can join the AGM in the VC mode 15
minutes before the scheduled time of the
commencement of the Meeting by following the
procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility of
participation at the AGM through VC will be made
available to at least 1000 members on first come
first served basis. This will not include large
Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more
shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors,
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the
Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination
and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders
Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are
allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on
account of first come first served basis.

The attendance of the Members attending the
AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the
purpose of ascertaining the quorum under Section
103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA)
Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, the
Notice calling the AGM has been uploaded on the
website of the Company @

www.insecticidesindia.com. The Notice can also
be accessed from the websites of the Stock
Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and National Stock
Exchange of India Limited at www.bseindia.com
and www.nseindia.com respectively. The AGM
Notice is also disseminated on the website of

VI.

VII.

VIILL

®

CDSL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting
facility and e-voting system during the AGM) i.e.
www.evotingindia.com.

The AGM has been convened through VC in
compliance with applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA Circular No.
14/2020 dated April 8, 2020 and MCA Circular No.
17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 and MCA Circular No.
20/2020 dated May 05, 2020.

Pursuant to MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April
08, 2020, the facility to appoint proxy to attend
and cast vote for the members is not available for
this AGM. However, in pursuance of Section 112
and Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013,
representatives of the members such as the
President of India or the Governor of a State or
body corporate can attend the AGM through VC
and cast their votes through e-voting.

The voting rights of Members shall be in proportion
to their shares in the paid-up equity share capital
of the Company as on the cut-off date i.e.
Thursday, September 02, 2021. Only those
Members whose names are recorded in the
Register of Members of the Company or in the
Register of Beneficial Owners maintained by the
Depositories as on the cut-off date will be entitled
to cast their votes by remote e-voting or e-voting
during the AGM. Those who are not Members on
the cut-off date should accordingly treat this
Notice as for information purposes only

Any person, who acquires shares of the Company
and becomes a Member of the Company after
sending of the Notice and holding shares as of the
cut-off date, may obtain the login ID and password
by sending arequest @
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. However, if
he/she is already registered with CDSL for remote
e-voting then he/she can use his/her existing User
ID and password for casting the vote.

Pursuant to the Income-tax Act, 1961, as amended,
dividend income is taxable in the hands of the
Members with effect from 1st April, 2020 and the
Company is required to deduct tax at source from
such dividend at the prescribed rates.

Members who hold shares in the physical form or
who have not registered their e-mail addresses
with the Company or with the Depositories and
wish to receive the AGM Notice and the Report and
Accounts 2021, or participate in the AGM, or cast
their votes through remote e-voting or e-voting
during the meeting, are required to register their
e-mail addresses on the Company's corporate
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website under the section 'Investor's desk'.
Alternatively, Members may send a letter
requesting for registration of their e-mail
addresses, mentioning their name and DP ID &
Client ID / folio number, by post to the registered
office of the company or scanned copy thereof
through e-mail at investor@insecticidesindia.com.

Members who would like to express their views or
ask questions with respect to the agenda items of
the meeting will be required to register themselves
as speaker by sending e-mail to the Company at
investor@insecticidesindia.com from their
registered e-mail address, mentioning their name,
DPID & Client ID / folio number and mobile number.
Only those Members who have registered
themselves as speaker by September 02, 2021 will
be able to speak at the meeting. The Company
reserves the right to restrict the number of
questions and number of speakers, depending
upon availability of time, for smooth conduct of the
AGM.

The e-voting period commences on Monday,
September 06, 2021(09:00 a.m. IST) and ends on
Wednesday, September 08, 2021(05:00 p.m. IST)
(both days inclusive). During this period, members
may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting
module shall be disable by CDSL thereafter. A vote
once cast on the resolution, would not be allowed
to be changed subsequently.

As the AGM held only through VC/0AVM, the voting
during the AGM is same as the procedure for
remote e-voting. The facility for e-voting during
AGM only available to those members, present at
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the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and who would
not have cast their vote on the resolutions set
forth in the Notice of AGM by remote e-voting prior
to the AGM and are otherwise not barred from
doing so shall be eligible to vote through e-voting
system at the AGM on such resolutions. Members
who have voted through remote e-voting will be
eligible to attend the AGM and their presence shall
be counted for the purpose of quorum, however
such shareholders shall not be entitled to cast
their vote again at the AGM on such resolution(s)
for which the Shareholder has already cast the
vote through remote e-voting.

THE INSTRUCTIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS FOR E-
VOTING AND JOINING VIRTUAL MEETINGS ARE AS
UNDER:

Step 1: Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-
Voting system in case of individual shareholders
holding shares in demat mode.

(iv) In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/
CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on e-
Voting facility provided by Listed Companies,
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat
mode are allowed to vote through their demat
account maintained with Depositories and
Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised
to update their mobile number and email Id in their
demat accounts in order to access e-Voting
facility.

Pursuant to above said SEBI Circular, Login
method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings
for Individual shareholders holding securities in
Demat mode CDSL/NSDL is given below:

Type of shareholders Login Method

Individual
Shareholders holding
securities in Demat
mode with CDSL

providers'website directly.

1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their existing user id and
password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any further authentication.
The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest are https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or
www.cdslindia.comandclickon Loginiconand select New System Myeasi.

2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option for eligible
companies where the evotingisin progress as per the information provided by company. On clicking
the evoting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the
meeting. Additionally, there is also links provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service
Providers i.e. CDSL/NSDL/KARVY/LINKINTIME, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service

3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Reqgistration/EasiRegistration

4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat Account Number and
PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com home page or click on
https://evoting.cdslindia.com/Evoting/EvotinglLogin The system will authenticate the user by

sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat Account. After successful
authentication, user will be able to see the e-Voting option where the evotingisin progress and also
abletodirectlyaccessthe system of alle-Voting Service Providers.

@
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Type of shareholders Login Method

Individual 1)
Shareholders holding
securities in demat
mode with NSDL

If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-Services website of NSDL.
Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the “Beneficial
Owner”iconunder“Login”which is available under'IDeAS' section. A new screen will open. You will
have to enteryourUserIDand Password. After successful authentication, you willbe able to see e-
Votingservices. Clickon“Access to e-Voting”under e-Voting servicesand you willbe able to see e-
Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be re-directed
to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or
joiningvirtualmeeting & votingduring the meeting.

2) If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at
https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for IDeAS “Portal or click at
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReq.jsp

3) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home
page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under
'Shareholder/Member'section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID(i.e. your
sixteen digit demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as
shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository
sitewhereinyou can see e-Voting page. Clickon company name or e-Voting service provider name
and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the
remote e-Votingperiodorjoiningvirtualmeeting & voting during the meeting

Individual
Shareholders (holding
securities in demat
mode)login through
their Depository
Participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your Depository
Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. After Successful login, you will be
able to see e-Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to
NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting
feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to e-
Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining
virtual meeting & votingduring the meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget Password
optionavailable atabovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities
in demat mode for any technical issues related to login
through Depositoryi.e. CDSLand NSDL

Step2: Accessthrough CDSL e-Voting systemin case
of shareholders holding shares in physical mode and
non-individual shareholdersindemat mode.

(i) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual

Logintype Helpdesk details meetings for Physical shareholders and
shareholders other thanindividual holding in Demat
form.

Individual Members facing any technical 1) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting

Shareholders holding
securities in Demat

issue in login can contact CDSL
helpdesk by sending a request at

website www.evotingindia.com.

2) Clickon“Shareholders”module.

mode with CDSL helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
or contact at 022- 23058738 and 3) NowenteryourUserID
22-23058542-43. a. ForCDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,
Individual Members facing any technical b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8

Shareholders holding
securities in Demat
mode with NSDL

issue in login can contact NSDL
helpdesk by sending a request at
evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll
freeno.:18001020990and 180022
4430

4)

Digits ClientID,

c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical
Form should enter Folio Number registered
withthe Company.

Next enter the Image Verification as displayed
andClickonLogin.



5) If you are holding shares in demat form and had
logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted
onan earlier e-voting of any company, then your
existing passwordistobeused.

B) Ifyouareafirst-timeuserfollow the stepsgiven
below:

For Physical shareholders and other than individual

shareholders holding sharesin Demat.

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN
issued by Income Tax Department
(Applicable for both demat shareholders as
wellas physical shareholders)
e Shareholders who have not updated
their PAN with the Company/Depository
Participant are requested to use the
sequence number sent by Company/RTA
orcontact Company/RTA.
Dividend Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of
Bank Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in
. your demat account or in the company
Details . .
recordsinordertologin.
or e |fboththe details are not recorded with
Date of the depository orcompany, please enter
Birth the member id / folio number in the
(DOB) Dividend Bank detailsfield.

(N

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

After entering these details appropriately, click on
"SUBMIT"tab.

Shareholders holding shares in physical form will
then directly reach the Company selection screen.
However, shareholders holding shares in demat
form will now reach 'Password Creation' menu
whereinthey are required to mandatorily enter their
login password in the new password field. Kindly
note that this password is to be also used by the
demat holders forvoting for resolutions of any other
companyonwhichtheyareeligible tovote, provided
that company opts for e-voting through CDSL
platform. It is strongly recommended not to share
your password with any other person and take
utmost caretokeepyourpassword confidential.

For shareholders holding shares in physical form,
the details can be used only for e-voting on the
resolutions containedinthis Notice.

Click on the EVSN for the relevant <Company
Name>onwhichyouchoosetovote.

On the voting page, you will see “"RESOLUTION
DESCRIPTION" and against the same the option
“YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as
desired. The option YES implies that you assent to
the Resolution and option NO implies that you

(vi)
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dissenttothe Resolution.

Clickonthe"RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK"if you wish to
view the entire Resolutiondetails.

(vii) After selecting the resolution, you have decided to

vote on, click on “SUBMIT". A confirmation box will
be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click
on“0OK", else to change your vote, click on "CANCEL”
andaccordingly modify yourvote.

(viii)Once you"CONFIRM”your vote on the resolution, you

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

@

willnot be allowed to modify yourvote.

You canalso take aprint of the votes cast by clicking
on“Clickheretoprint”optiononthe Voting page.

If a demat account holder has forgotten the login
password then Enter the User ID and the image
verification code and click on Forgot Password &
enterthe detailsas prompted by the system.

Additional Facility for Non - Individual Shareholders
and Custodians-For Remote Voting only.

¢ Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than
Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are
requiredtologontowww.evotingindia.comand
register themselves in the “Corporates”
module.

e A scanned copy of the Registration Form
bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should
beemailedto
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com

e After receiving the login details a Compliance
User should be created using the admin login
and password. The Compliance User would be
able tolink the account(s)for which they wish to
voteon.

e Thelistofaccountslinkedintheloginshouldbe
mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and
on approval of the accounts they would be able
tocasttheirvote.

e A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and
Power of Attorney (POA)which they have issued
in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be
uploaded in PDF format in the system for the
scrutinizertoverify the same.

e Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are
requiredto sendthe relevant Board Resolution/
Authority letter etc. together with attested
specimen signature of the duly authorized
signatory who are authorized to vote, to the
Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email
addressviz; investor@insecticidesindia.com if
they have voted from individual tab & not
uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting system for
the scrutinizertoverify the same.
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INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE
AGMTHROUGH VC/0AVM & E-VOTING DURING MEETING
ARE AS UNDER:

1.

10.

The procedure for attending meeting & e-Voting on
the day of the AGM/ is same as the instructions
mentioned above for e-voting.

The link for VC/OAVM to attend meeting will be
available where the EVSN of Company will be
displayed after successful login as per the
instructions mentioned above for e-voting.

Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-
Voting will be eligible to attend the meeting.
However, they willnot be eligible tovote at the AGM.

Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting
through Laptops/IPads forbetterexperience.

Further shareholders will be required to allow
Cameraand use Internet with a good speed to avoid
anydisturbance duringthe meeting.

Please note that Participants Connecting from
Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop
connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience
Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their
respective network. It is therefore recommended
to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate
any kind of aforesaid glitches.

Shareholders who would like to express their
views/ask questions during the meeting may
register themselves as a speaker by sending their
request in advance at least 7 days prior to meeting
mentioning their name, demat account number/
folio number, email id, mobile number at
investor@insecticidesindia.com. The shareholders
who do not wish to speak during the AGM but have
queries may send their queries in advance 7 days
prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat
account number/folio number, email id, mobile
number @ investor@insecticidesindia.com. These
queries will be replied to by the company suitably by
e-mail.

Those shareholders who have registered
themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to
express their views/ask questions during the
meeting.

Members holding multiple folios/demat accounts
shall choose the voting process separately for each
folio/ demataccounts.

Only those shareholders, who are present in the
AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted
their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-
Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so,
shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system
available duringthe AGM.

@

1.

If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through
the e-voting available during the AGM and if the
same shareholders have not participated in the
meeting through VC/0OAVM facility, then the votes
cast by such shareholders shall be considered
invalid as the facility of e-voting during the meeting
is available only to the shareholders attending the
meeting.

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE
EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH THE
COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES

1.

For Physical shareholders- please provide
necessary details like Folio No., Name of
shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate
(frontandback), PAN(self attested scanned copy of
PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of
Aadhar Card)by email to Company/RTA email id.

For Demat shareholders -, Please update your email
id & mobile no. with your respective Depository
Participant(DP)

For Individual Demat shareholders - Please update
your email id & mobile no. with your respective
Depository Participant (DP) which is mandatory
while e-Voting & joining virtual meetings through
Depository.

OtherInstructions

1.

It is strongly recommended not to share your
password with any other person and take utmost
care to keep your password confidential. Login to
the e-voting website will be disabled upon five
unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct
password. In such an event, you will need to go
through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or
“Physical User Reset Password?’Option available on
www.evotingindia.com toreset the password.

If you have any queries or issues regarding
attending AGM & e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting
System, you can write an email to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at
022-23058738and 022-23058542/43.

All grievances connected with the facility for voting
by electronic means may be addressed to Mr.
Rakesh Dalvi, Sr. Manager, (CDSL, ) Central
Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th
Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds,
N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai -
400013 , Maharashtra or send an email to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call on 022-
23058542/43.

The Board of Directors has appointed M/s Akash
Gupta & Associates, Company Secretaries, (PCS
Regs. No. 11038) as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the




voting at the meeting and remote e-voting process
inafairandtransparent manner.

5. The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the
conclusion of voting at the AGM, first count the
votes cast at the Meeting, thereafter unblock the
votes cast throughremote e-votingin the presence
of at least two witnesses not in the employment of
the Company, not later than 48 hours of conclusion
of the Meeting, a consolidated Scrutinizer's Report
of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to
the Chairman or a person authorised by him in
writingwho shall countersignthe same.

6. Thefacility forjoiningthe AGM shall open 15 minutes

Insecticides (India) Limited

CIN: L65991DL1996PLC083909

401-402, Lusa Tower, Azadpur Commercial Complex,
Delhi-110033

investor@insecticidesindia.com
www.insecticidesindia.com
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before the scheduled time for commencement of
the AGM and shall be closed after the expiry of 15
minutesaftersuch schedule time.

The result declared along with the Scrutinizer's
Report shall be placed on the Company's website
www.insecticidesindia.com and on the website of
CDSL www.evotingindia.com immediately after the
declaration of Results by the Chairman or a person
authorized by him. The Company shall
simultaneously forward the results to the National
Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited,
where the shares of the Company are listed.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Insecticides (India) Limited

Sd/-

Sandeep Kumar
Company Secretary
Delhi, June 18, 2021
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT IN RESECT TO THE SPECIAL BUSINESSES
PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013.

Item no. 4- Ratification of age of appointment of Mr. Virjesh Kumar Gupta

Mr. Virjesh Kumar Gupta, currently aged 74 Years, he was re-appointed as an Independent Director for the second
term of 5 (Five) years with effect from May 31, 2019 up to May 30, 2024 in the meeting of members held on August
02, 2019. According to the Companies Act, 2013 read with applicable Rules and Requlations of an Independent
Directors

The Board recommends ratification of his age, and continuation as an Independent Director beyond the age of 75
years till the date of his current appointment by passing special resolution as set out at item no. 4 of the notice.

The Board recommends the Special Resolution as set out at Item No. 4 of the Notice for approval by the members.

Except Mr. Virjesh Kumar Mittal, being the appointee, none of the Directors or the Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company and their relatives is concerned or interested in the resolution set out at Iltem No. 4.

Item no. 5 - Ratification of remuneration of Cost Auditors for the financial year, 2021

The Board of Directors of the Company on the recommendation of the Audit Committee has approved the
appointment and remuneration of Aggarwal Ashwani K. & Associates, Cost Accountants, Delhi (Firm Regd. No.
100191), to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company for the financial year ending March 31, 2022.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Act read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors as recommended by the Audit Committee and approved by
the Board, has to be ratified by the members of the Company.

M/s. Aggarwal Ashwani K. & Associates, Cost Accountants, Delhi (Firm Regd. No. 100191), have furnished
certificates regarding their eligibility for appointment as Cost Auditors of the Company. In accordance with the
provisions of Section 148 of the Act read with the Rules, the remuneration payable to the cost auditor has to be
ratified by the shareholders of the Company.

Accordingly, ratification by the members is sought to the remuneration of Rs.4,83,000/- (Rupees Four Lakh Eighty
three Thousand Only) (excluding out of pocket expenses and applicable taxes) payable to the Cost Auditor for
Financial year ending March 31, 2022 by passing Ordinary Resolution as set out at Item No. 5 of the Notice.

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution as set out at Item No. 5 of the Notice for approval by the
members.

None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives is, in any way, concerned or
interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution.
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Information of Director retiring by rotation and the Directors seeking re-appointment at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting pursuant to Regulation 36 of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, inaccordance with provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and Secretarial Standards, ason the date of Notice

Name of the Director Mrs. Nikunj Aggarwal Mr. Virjesh Kumar Gupta
Directors Identification Number (DIN) | 06569091 06382540
Date of Birth (Age in Years) January 01,1973 April 07, 1947

(48 Years) (74 Years)
Original Date of Appointment May 02, 2013 May 31, 2019
Qualification Graduate B.Com(Hons.)

Experience, brief resume and
expertise in specific functional area

More than 15 Years of Experience in
Administration in Agro Chemical
Industry. Please refer

Company's website:
www.inceticidesindia.com for detailed
profile.

More than 4 decade of Experience in
Business Management and
Operations.

Please refer Company's website:
www.inceticidesindia.com for
detailed profile.

Remuneration last drawn

As mentioned in Corporate Governance Re

port

Number of meeting of Board attended | 05 05
during the year (2020-2021)

Shareholding in Insecticides (India) 31,25,000/-(15.12%) Equity Shares Nil
Limited

Relationship with other Directors / Spouse of Mr. Rajesh Aggarwal, Managing | None

KMPs

Director and Daughter-in-law of Mr. Hari
Chand Aggarwal, Chairman & WTD and
not related to any other Director / Key
Managerial Personnel

Directorships of other Boards as on
March 31, 2021

Insecticides (India) Limited

Insecticides (India) Limited

Membership /Chairmanship of
committees of other Boards as on
March 31, 2021

Nil

Nil
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